
 
 

 

 To: Councillor Kevin Stewart, Convener; Councillor Yuill, Vice Convener;  and 
Councillors Cassie, Cormack, Crockett, Dean, Dunbar, Farquharson, Fletcher, 
Graham, Kiddie, Laing, Leslie, McCaig and John West. 
  

 
 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN 20 September, 2010 

 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

 Members of the FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE are requested to 
meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on TUESDAY, 28 SEPTEMBER 2010 at 2pm 
 
 
  

 
 

JANE G. MACEACHRAN 
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS   
 

2 REQUEST FOR DEPUTATION   
 A request for deputation has been received from Mr Steve Robb (Convener of 

Unite) and Mr Mike Middleton (Convener of GMB) in relation to item 12.9 of the 
agenda (Staff Houses).  
 

3 MINUTES, COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT AND MOTIONS LIST   
 

 3.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 17 June, 2010 - for approval  (Pages 1 - 
54) 
 

 3.2  Minute of Meeting of the Lord Provost Sub Committee of 29 April - for 
noting  (Pages 55 - 60) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 3.3  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 61 - 78) 
 

 3.4  Motions List  (Pages 79 - 80) 
 

4 MOTIONS   
 

 4.1  Motion by Councillor McCaig - referred from Council meeting of 30 June, 
2010   

  “Council recognises the benefits that can be gained from small scale 
investment in local areas and agrees to investigate the establishment of a 
city wide ‘community fund’ from which community groups, including 
community councils, can bid for money from to fund specific projects in 
their local area. Requests that officers report back on potential funding 
levels and streams with consideration given to this proposal as an 
alternative to ward budgets.” 
 
 

5 REFERRALS   
 

 5.1  Request for Delegated Powers and Use of Work Notices - referred by the 
Housing and Environment Committee of 24 August, 2010  (Pages 81 - 88) 
 

 5.2  Furnishings Service Charge - referred by the Housing and Environment 
Committee of 24 August, 2010  (Pages 89 - 96) 
 

 5.3  HMO Licence Application Fees - referred by the Housing and Environment 
Committee of 24 August, 2010  (Pages 97 - 110) 
 

 5.4  Waste Management Services Contract Progress Report - referred by the 
Housing and Environment Committee of 24 August, 2010  (Pages 111 - 
128) 
 

 5.5  Resourcing a High Quality Planning System - referred by the Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure Committee of 7 September, 2010  (Pages 129 
- 140) 

  Members: Please note the recommendation as contained within the 
report was approved by the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

6 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SERVICE 
ISSUES   
 

 6.1  Corporate Governance Performance Report  (Pages 141 - 154) 
 

 6.2  2010/11 Financial Monitoring - Corporate Governance Service  (Pages 155 
- 158) 
 

7 FINANCE   
 

 7.1  Revenue Budget 2010/11 Monitoring  (Pages 159 - 164) 
 

 7.2  Unrecoverable Income  (Pages 165 - 174) 
  Members: Please note that an additional appendix containing exempt 

information can be located at item 11.1 of this agenda.  
 

 7.3  2010/11 Common Good Budget - Monitoring Report Update  (Pages 175 - 
182) 
 

 7.4  2010/11 Common Good Budget - Request by Scottish Opera for Support  
(Pages 183 - 190) 
 

 7.5  Admitted Bodies within the Aberdeen City Council Pension Fund with links 
to Aberdeen City Council  (Pages 191 - 196) 

  Members: Please note that an appendix containing exempt 
information can be located at item 11.2 of this agenda.  
 

 7.6  Review of General Service Capital Programme 2010/11  (Pages 197 - 202) 
 

 7.7  Tax Increment Financing for the City Garden Project  (Pages 203 - 214) 
 

 7.8  Proposed Fee Structure - Landlords Consents etc.  (Pages 215 - 220) 
 

 7.9  Youth Activities Small Grants Fund 2010/11- Applications for Round 2 
Funding  (Pages 221 - 224) 
 

8 HUMAN RESOURCES   
 

 8.1  Conference Invitation - Society of Personnel Directors  (Pages 225 - 228) 
 
 
 



 
 
 

9 PROPERTY   
 

 9.1  Access from the North Proposals (Third Don Crossing), Compulsory 
Purchase Order  (Pages 229 - 248) 

  Members: Please note that appendix A will be circulated prior to the 
meeting.  
 

 9.2  Property Asset Management Plan Update 2010  (Pages 249 - 308) 
 

10 GENERAL   
 

 10.1  Legal Services Contract Arrangements  (Pages 309 - 310) 
 

 10.2  Property Services - Contract Extension and Retender  (Pages 311 - 314) 
 

 10.3  Supply and Delivery of Vehicles and Items of Plant - Permission to Procure 
and Award  (Pages 315 - 318) 
 

 10.4  Roads and Quarry Materials Testing Services - Permission to Procure and 
Award  (Pages 319 - 320) 
 

 10.5  Cash in Transit Services - Award of Contract  (Pages 321 - 324) 
 

 10.6  Estates Management Contracts  (Pages 325 - 328) 
 

 10.7  North Territory Hub Programme  (Pages 329 - 338) 
 
 

 ITEMS WHICH THE COMMITTEE MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE 
 

11 FINANCE   
 

 11.1  Unrecoverable Income - Appendix  (Pages 339 - 340) 
  Members: Please note that this appendix relates to item 7.2 of the 

agenda.   
 

 11.2  Admitted Bodies within the Aberdeen City Council Pension Fund with links 
to Aberdeen City Council - Appendix  (Pages 341 - 344) 

  Members: Please note that this appendix relates to item 7.5 of the 
agenda.  
 

 11.3  ABES Loans - Monitoring Report  (Pages 345 - 350) 
 



 
 
 

 11.4  Trading Services Monitoring 2009/10  (Pages 351 - 364) 
 

 11.5  Customer First Programme - Capital Spend  (Pages 365 - 368) 
 

 11.6  Transition Extreme - Restructuring of Bank Guarantees  (Pages 369 - 376) 
 

 11.7  AECC Expansion Project for Offshore Europe 2011  (Pages 377 - 382) 
 

12 PROPERTY   
 

 12.1  Townscape Heritage Initiative - verbal update by Director of Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure   
 

 12.2  Corporate Asset Management System - progress report  (Pages 383 - 390) 
 

 12.3  Retail Rocks  (Pages 391 - 400) 
 

 12.4  Hayfield Riding Centre  (Pages 401 - 406) 
 

 12.5  Westside of Carnie  (Pages 407 - 416) 
 

 12.6  Rowan Road/Rosehill Drive  (Pages 417 - 422) 
 

 12.7  Proposed Sales - St Peters Nursery and former Public Toilets  (Pages 423 
- 430) 
 

 12.8  Bobby Calder Park and Lochinch Farm  (Pages 431 - 446) 
 

 12.9  Staff Houses  (Pages 447 - 456) 
 

 12.10  Land at Pitmedden Road, Dyce  (Pages 457 - 468) 
 

 12.11  Summerhill - Sale and Relocation of Services  (Pages 469 - 474) 
 

 12.12  Pinewood/Hazledene  (Pages 475 - 498) 
 

 
Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  

 
 
If you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Rebecka Steven 
(tel. 522869 email rsteven@aberdeencity.gov.uk)   
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



3049 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 

ABERDEEN, 17 June, 2010 - minute of meeting of the FINANCE AND 
RESOURCES COMMITTEE.   Present:- Councillor Kevin Stewart, 
Convener;  Councillor Fletcher, Vice Convener; and Councillors Cassie, 
Cormack, Corall (substitute for Councillor Fletcher for articles 6 and 7), 
Cormie (substitute for Councillor John West for articles 6 and 7; and for 
Councillor McCaig from article 34), Crockett, Dunbar, Farquharson, Graham, 
Greig (substitute for Councillor Cormack for article 6), Jaffrey (substitute for 
Councillor Dunbar for article 6), Kiddie (until article 36), Leslie (until article 
36), McCaig (until article 34), Noble (substitute for Councillor McCaig for 
article 6; and for Councillor Kiddie from article 36), John Stewart (substitute 
for Councillor Dean until article 33), John West, Young (substitute for 
Councillor Crockett for articles 8 - 15) and Yuill.  
 
Also in attendance:- Councillors Allan and Donnelly for article 34.  

 
 
 
DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, ORDER OF AGENDA 
AND REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATION 
 
1. The Convener (1) proposed that the Committee consider those reports 
identified on the agenda as being for determination in private, with the press and 
public excluded; (2) advised that four requests for deputation had been received in 
accordance with Standing Order 10; and (3) further proposed that should these 
requests be accepted by the Committee, that item 7.4 of the agenda (Employment 
Costs) be considered immediately after item 2.5 of the agenda (Motions List), 
followed by items 8.1 (Transfer of Sports Service to Sport Aberdeen) and 5.7 
(Beach Leisure Centre – Heating and Ventilation Works), which would be 
considered as one item immediately thereafter.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to 

exclude the press and public from the meeting from article 34 of this minute 
onwards (item 10.1 of the agenda) so as to avoid disclosure of information of 
the class described in the following paragraphs of Schedule 7(A) to the Act:-  
article 34 (paragraph 8), article 35 (paragraphs 6 and 9), article 36 
(paragraphs 8 and 12), article 37 (paragraphs 8 and 11), article 38 
(paragraph 6), article 39 (paragraphs 8, 9 and 10), article 40 (paragraph 12), 
article 41 (paragraph 6), article 42 (paragraph 9), article 43 (paragraphs 6 
and 9), article 44 (paragraphs 6 and 9), article 45 (paragraphs 6 and 9),  
article 46 (paragraphs 6 and 9), article 47 (paragraphs 6 and 9), article 48 
(paragraphs 6 and 9), article 49 (paragraphs 6 and 9), article 50 (paragraphs 
2, 6 and 9), article 51 (paragraph 9), and article 52 (paragraphs 6 and 9);  

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 1



 3050 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
(ii) to agree to hear deputations from (1) Unite the Union, (2) Unison, and (3) 

GMB in relation to item 7.4 of the agenda (Employment Costs); and 
Northfield Community Council in relation to item 8.1 of the agenda (Transfer 
of Sports Service to Sport Aberdeen); and  

(iii) to concur with the proposals of the Convener in respect of the order of  
agenda.  

 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
2. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 
11 May, 2010. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  
 
3. The Committee had before it the minute of meeting of the Joint 
Consultative Committee of 25 March, 2010.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the minute.  
 
 
MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY 
COMMITTEE  
 
4. The Committee had before it the minute of meeting of the Corporate Health 
and Safety Committee of 26 February, 2010. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the minute. 
 
 

DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Yuill declared a pecuniary interest in relation to item 22 of 
the Business List (Pinewood/Hazledene) and withdrew from the 
meeting prior to any discussion taking place on this matter.  

 

Page 2



 3051 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
5. The Committee had before it a statement of pending and outstanding 
Committee business, which had been prepared by the Director of Corporate 
Governance. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to delete items 4 (Charitable Trusts), 5 (Culter Grounds Depot), 10 (Financial 

Strategy - Employment Costs), 12 (Kirkton Avenue), 13 (Queen’s Links), 15 
(CAB) (resolution B only), 17 (Tendering for ACC Services), 18 (Retail Rocks), 
21 (Westburn Park), 24 (General Fund – Employment Costs), 28 (Third Tier Ill 
Health Gratuity), 33 (Frederick Street), and 34 (Financial and Performance 
Monitoring and Reporting to Committee) from the list;  and 

(ii) in relation to item 16 of the list (Altens Community Centre), to request that the 
Director of Education, Culture and Sport ascertain as to whether a response to 
the officer’s letter had been received to date, and advise members of the 
Committee in this regard. 

 
 
 
MOTIONS LIST 

 
6. The Committee had before it the outstanding motions list as prepared by the 
Director of Corporate Governance. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the updates as contained within the list.  
 
 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Prior to the consideration of the following article, certain members of 
the Committee declared non financial interests in the subject matter of 
the report.   As a result of the interests declared, a number of members 
left the meeting, taking no part in the Committee’s deliberations on the 
matter and were replaced by substitutes. The declarations were 
received from the Vice Convener (as a member of the Appeals 
Committee), who was replaced by Councillor Corall;  Councillor 
Cormack (as Convener of the Appeals Committee) who was replaced 
by Councillor Greig;  Councillor Dunbar (as a member of the Appeals 
Committee, who was replaced by Councillor Jaffrey;  Councillor 
McCaig (as a member of the Appeals Committee), who was replaced by 

Page 3



 3052 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Councillor Noble;  and Councillor John West (as a member of the 
Appeals Committee), who was replaced by Councillor Cormie.  
 
A number of members declared interests and chose not to withdraw 
from the meeting, namely Councillor Farquharson (as a member of the 
Appeals Committee); Councillor Laing (as a member of the Appeals 
Committee); Councillor Crockett (as a member of the Appeals 
Committee and Unite (who formed part of the deputation before the 
Committee));  Councillor Graham (as a member of Unite (who formed 
part of the deputation before the Committee));   Councillor Kiddie (as a 
retired member of Unison (who formed part of the deputation before 
the Committee));  the Convener (as a member of Unison (who formed 
part of the deputation before the Committee); and Councillor Yuill (as a 
member of Unison (who formed part of the deputation before the 
Committee)).  
 
Following the declarations of interests from members and also from 
certain individual staff members who withdrew from the meeting in 
terms of Standing Order 25, the Convener requested that appropriate 
officers carry out a review of the rules and regulations surrounding the 
declaration of interests when dealing with Council specific matters 
such as the employment costs report, as these may become more 
prevalent given the present economic climate, and to report thereon to 
a future meeting of the Committee. 
 

 
 
EMPLOYMENT COSTS (CG/10/128) 
 
7. Reference was made to the decision of the Council (article 2 of the minute of 
meeting of 11 February, 2010 refers) that in relation to the General Fund Revenue 
Budget, the Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development in 
conjunction with the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, review the Council’s 
employment costs, looking at reducing agency costs, new ways of working, giving 
employees flexibility on working hours wherever possible, assessing pay awards 
and pay scale increments.   It was further resolved that the review of such costs be 
undertaken in conjunction with widespread consultation with the Council’s 
employees and the Trades Unions and that their views inform the 
recommendations to be brought back to the relevant Committee.   The Committee 
now had before it a report prepared by the Director of Corporate Governance on 
the subject.   The earlier decision taken at the meeting to hear a deputation 
comprising representatives from Unison, GMB and TGWU/Unite unions was also 
pertinent to this matter (article 1 of this minute refers). 

Page 4



 3053 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
The Convener having invited the deputation to address the Committee, the 
members heard Karen Maxfield (Secretary of the local Unison branch), Mike 
Middleton (GMB Convener), and Tommy Campbell (Regional Organiser for Unite), 
who each spoke, and between them highlighted the moral and legal issues arising 
from the proposal before the Committee, that the Council defer payment of the pay 
scale increments due to staff with effect from 1 April, 2010.   The suggestion was 
clearly made that such action may be discriminatory given the high proportion of 
female staff affected.   The deputation emphasised the inevitability of industrial 
appeals in response to the action, all of which would involve costs for the Council 
and questioned the robustness of the legal advice upon which the proposal was 
based.   The resultant effect on staff morale and industrial relations generally was 
also raised within the report as was the likely impact on the Council’s reputation 
and the simple unfairness of the proposal for hardworking staff who signed their 
new contracts in good faith only one year ago.   The deputation concluded their 
address to the Committee with a reference to the fact that direct industrial action 
could not be ruled out should the proposal to defer the payments be supported.    
 
The deputation having withdrawn, the Committee proceeded to consider the report 
before it which focused on the need identified during the budget process to find 
£4.5m of savings from employment costs for the 2010/11 financial year;  referred to 
the fact that a deferral of the pay scale increments normally paid on 1 April, would 
achieve the saving in full;  and made the point that although a great deal of 
progress had been made over the past two years in steering the Council to a sound 
financial position, financial pressures over which the Council had no control were 
signalling a difficult period ahead.    The report went on to highlight the likely extent 
of reductions in grant funding for Councils over the coming four years, the total 
indicative impact of that on the Council and the need to view the employment costs 
issue in the wider financial context.   The legal interpretation of the increment 
clause within the employment contract was addressed within the report which also 
confirmed that it had not been possible to secure collective agreement with the 
Trades Unions following consultation and that the Unions remained opposed to the 
proposal.    
 
A risk assessment of proceeding with the increment deferral unilaterally was 
provided and highlighted within that were officers’ views on the type of challenges 
which the Council could expect and the possible implications should these 
challenges be successful.    
 
The fact that the proposal being considered involved a deferral of the payments for 
2010/11 only was recognised and the report sought to deal with the need to 
consider the options for 1 April, 2011.   The report in this respect referred to the 
request made during the budget process 2010, for officers to look at new ways of 

Page 5



 3054 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
working; giving employees flexibility on working hours wherever possible; and 
assessing pay awards; in addition to the increment issue.   Examples of some of 
these were contained within the report which also commented on the consultation 
process carried out with Trades Unions and staff generally.   The responses on 
behalf of the Council to the two key questions raised by the Trades Unions, were 
provided as part of the report.   The contrary view of the Trades Unions was also 
outlined.   The response from staff to the consultation exercise having been 
detailed within the report, it was confirmed that the numerous suggestions received 
had been circulated to Directors for consideration and reporting back.    
 
The report recommended:- 
(a) that the Committee agrees that given the abnormal financial pressures 

facing the Council, the increment that was due to be paid from 1 April, 2010 
to relevant staff employed under the SJC for Local Government Employees, 
is deferred until 1 April 2011;  and 

(b) that officers enter into further discussions with Trades Unions with a view to 
reviewing employment costs, including conditions of service, for all 
employment groups. 

 
The Convener moved, seconded by Councillor Yuill:- 
 that the report recommendations be approved. 
 
Councillor Graham moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Laing:- 
 (1) that the Committee recognises that Aberdeen City Council has a loyal 

and dedicated workforce and agrees to honour its contractual 
agreement with employees to pay the salary increment as it has done 
in each preceding year, with costs to be met from reserves;  and  

 (2) that officers enter into further discussions with Trades Unions with a 
view to reviewing employment costs, including conditions of service 
for all employment groups. 

 
At this point Councillor Farquharson attempted to move a further amendment to the 
effect that recommendation (a) within the report be not approved and that 
recommendation (b) be amended to read:- 
 that officers enter into further discussions with Trades Unions with a view to 

reviewing employment costs and levels, including conditions of service for all 
employment groups. 

 
The further amendment by Councillor Farquharson did not attract a seconder, 
however, and therefore fell. 
 
On a division, there voted:-  for the motion (10) – the Convener;  and Councillors 
Corall, Cormie, Greig, Kiddie, Jaffrey, Leslie, Noble, John Stewart and Yuill;  for the 

Page 6



 3055 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
amendment (4) – Councillors Cassie, Crockett, Graham and Laing;  declined to 
vote (1) – Councillor Farquharson. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to adopt the terms of the successful motion; and  
(ii) to concur with the Convener’s request to instruct appropriate officers to carry 

out a review of the rules and regulations surrounding the declaration of 
interests when dealing with Council specific matters such as the employment 
costs report, as these may become more prevalent given the present 
economic climate, and to report thereon to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 

 
 
 Councillor Graham intimated in accordance with Standing Order 36(3), 

that he wished the report on employment costs dealt with in the 
preceding article to be referred to Council for decision.   Councillor 
Graham was supported by Councillors Cassie, Crockett, Farquharson 
and Laing in this respect.    

 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
The Vice Convener and Councillor John West declared an interest in 
the subject matter of the following article by virtue of their position as 
Council representatives on Sport Aberdeen. Both Councillors withdrew 
from the meeting and Councillor Corall substituted for the Vice 
Convener, and Councillor Cormie substituted for Councillor John West.  
 
During the general debate that ensued in relation to the following 
article, Councillor Graham intimated an interest as a member of the 
Fairer Scotland Fund Board, but did not leave the meeting.   
Councillors Crockett and Kiddie also declared interests as members of 
the Council’s Pension Panel but again did not consider it necessary to 
withdraw from the meeting. 

 
 
 
BEACH LEISURE CENTRE – HEATING AND VENTILATION WORKS – 
(ECS/10/058) AND SPORT ABERDEEN – TRANSFER OF SPORTS SERVICES 
(ECS/10/059) 
 
8. With reference to article 1 of this minute, and article 13 of the minute of 
meeting of Council of 19 August, 2009, the Committee had under consideration (1) 

Page 7



 3056 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
a report by the Director of Education, Culture and Sport on the condition of the 
heating and ventilation plant at the Beach Leisure Centre which was badly in need 
of urgent attention following recent frequent breakdowns; and (2) a separate report 
by the same Director containing updated information on the current negotiations 
between the Council and the Board of Sport Aberdeen, the arm’s length charitable 
organisation to which certain Council owned sports services were to be transferred 
for a period of ten years. 
 
As regards the heating and ventilation equipment at the Beach Leisure Centre, the 
report referred to the condition survey carried out by consultant engineers on the 
Council’s behalf in March, 2009;  reminded members of the outcome thereof, ie. 
that the general condition of the plant was found to be very poor and that, because 
of access difficulties and issues of scale, the particular components affected would 
be very difficult to replace or refurbish;  and set out the options available to the 
Council in order to address the matter and which would involve the closure of the 
facility for a time and a corresponding reduction in income.   As part of the report 
content, the concerns expressed by the Board of Sport Aberdeen as regards taking 
over responsibility for the Beach Leisure facility in its current condition, were 
highlighted.    
 
The report on the heating and ventilation plant at the Beach Leisure Centre 
recommended:- 
that the Committee: 
(a) note the situation in relation to the heating and ventilation equipment; and  
(b) approve urgent funding for the necessary works involved from the Capital 

Plan, when contingencies allowed. 
 
The report in respect of the transfer of Sports Services from the Council to Sport 
Aberdeen advised that detailed discussions had taken place through the Sports 
Trust Project Board/Working Group over the past eighteen months, to oversee the 
transfer process;  indicated that as part of those discussions, a number of changes 
to the specification for the services to be provided, had been proposed;  outlined 
what the changes were;  and confirmed that the facilities and services that would 
now transfer were listed within appendix 2 to the report. The report went on to 
advise that there were a number of details and issues still to be resolved through 
further discussion and negotiation prior to the proposed transfer date of 1 July, 
2010, but that given the scope of the key principles agreed by the Committee at its 
meeting on 17 September, 2009, the issues raised were not so significant that they 
needed to be referred to members.   The report concluded with a statement that 
officers believed that Sport Aberdeen’s Corporate Plan demonstrated that the 
company understood the key elements of operating the Council’s Sport Services 
and had in place workable financial arrangements that would enable the services to 
be operated and developed in an efficient manner which will help to achieve the 

Page 8



 3057 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Council’s strategic and financial objectives.    
 
The report on the transfer of sports services to Sport Aberdeen 
recommended:- 
(a) that the Committee agrees to transfer the Council’s sports service to Sport 

Aberdeen for a ten year period in line with a Transfer Agreement, a Funding 
and Service Provision Agreement and ancillary documents, on 1 July, 2010 
or as soon as possible thereafter;   

(b) that appropriate officers be authorised to continue negotiations with Sport 
Aberdeen and its advisers over the specific terms of the Transfer 
Agreement, the Funding and Service Provision Agreement and ancillary 
documents, between the Council and Sport Aberdeen;   

(c) that the Committee endorses Sport Aberdeen’s Corporate Plan for the 
remainder of 2010/11;   

(d) that the Committee agrees that the Council will pay Sport Aberdeen £5m to 
operate the Council’s Sports Services for 2010/11 (based on a total annual 
cost of £6.3m);   

(e) that the Committee confirms that it will act as guarantor for Sport Aberdeen 
in relation to the pension fund and in the event that Sport Aberdeen should 
cease to exist, will guarantee up to £295,000 as required to meet these 
liabilities;  and  

(f)  that the Committee agrees that the Council will meet any costs arising from 
outstanding contractual or employment issues lodged prior to the date of 
transfer.    

 
At this point in the meeting and in accordance with the earlier decision on 
deputations (article 1 of this minute refers), the Committee welcomed a deputation 
from the Northfield Community Council who wished to address the members 
regarding Northfield Swimming Pool and the difficulties being experienced by 
ordinary members of the public who are not members of a swimming or other club, 
in gaining access to the pool at times when public sessions might be anticipated, 
for example, on Saturday or Sunday afternoons.    
 
The Committee heard from Mr Keith Paterson and Mr Kevin Wallace, after which 
members were invited to ask questions firstly of the deputation and secondly of 
Council officers.   
 
The Director of Education, Culture and Sport alluded to the fact that a number of 
Directors of Sport Aberdeen had recently resigned, and advised that the posts were 
currently being advertised, and that she hoped the new Directors would be in place 
in a matter of weeks. When questioned by members, Mrs Bruton advised that the 
Board was competent in terms of its constitution in its current form (ie there being 
currently only four Directors, with three of these being Councillors).  

Page 9



 3058 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
With reference to page 315 of the report, the Committee queried whether members 
of the public would continue to have access to the cricket pitch at Duthie Park. The 
Director undertook to have this assurance written into the Council’s Service Level 
Agreement with Sport Aberdeen.  
 
The Convener moved, seconded by Councillor Yuill:- 
(i) that the content of the report on the Beach Leisure Centre be noted;  
(ii)  that the Council agrees in principle to meet the cost of replacing the heating 

and ventilation equipment at the Beach Leisure Centre to give the Board of 
Sport of Aberdeen the comfort it requires, and remits to the Education, 
Culture and Sport Committee to consider reviewing its capital programme to 
meet the expenditure involved (estimated to be up to £1.5m);   

(iii) that the recommendations contained within the report on the transfer of 
Sports Services from the Council to Sport Aberdeen be approved;  

(iv) that Tullos Swimming Pool be removed from the list of properties to be 
transferred to Sport Aberdeen, as a report on this matter would be 
considered at a later point in the meeting (article 34 of this minute refers);  
and  

(v) that Sport Aberdeen be requested to enter into consultation with the local 
community and local members with a view to the provision of public 
swimming sessions at Northfield Swimming Pool at times when the 
community are most likely to want to use the pool. 

 
Councillor Graham moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Laing:- 
(i) that the Committee does not agree to transfer the Council’s sport services to 

Sport Aberdeen until the appointment of a range of suitable, acceptable and 
representative independent Directors, meeting the requirements of best 
practice in government; and for clarity, no decision on changes on provision 
will be made until a further report is presented to Council; and 

(ii) that appropriate officers be instructed to identify funding from the Capital 
Programme to meet any costs incurred by the Council arising from the 
delayed transfer.  

 
On a division, there voted :- for the motion (10) – the Convener; and Councillors 
Corall, Cormack, Cormie, Dunbar, Kiddie, Leslie, McCaig, John Stewart and Yuill; 
for the amendment (5) – Councillors Cassie, Crockett, Farquharson, Graham and 
Laing. 
 
The Committee resolved :-  
(i) that the successful motion be adopted; and  
(ii) to note that the Director of Education, Culture and Sport undertook to ensure 

that written into the Service Level Agreement with Sport Aberdeen, would be 

Page 10



 3059 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

an assurance that members of the public would continue to have access to 
the cricket pitch at Duthie Park.  

 
 
 
ABERDEEN ART GALLERY REDEVELOPMENT (ECS/10/054) 
 
9. The Committee had under consideration, upon a remit from the Education, 
Culture and Sport Committee (article 14 of the minute of meeting of 27 May, 2010 
refers), a request to fund the cost of the Conservation Statement (estimated to be 
£19,644 plus VAT), required as part of a Stage One Application to the Heritage 
Lottery Fund, in relation to the proposed redevelopment of Aberdeen Art Gallery.   
The report by the Service Director which had been considered by the Education, 
Culture and Sport Committee, together with the minuted article in respect thereof, 
had also been circulated. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to agree the request and to authorise appropriate officers accordingly. 
 
 
 
PARKING ENFORCEMENT (EPI/10/164) 
 
10. The Committee had under consideration, upon a remit from the Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure Committee (article 31 of the minute of meeting of 31 
May, 2010 refers), the resolution of that Committee to authorise in principle the 
setting of an £80 penalty charge for illegal parking in anticipation that the Scottish 
Government will implement proposals (currently the subject of consultation) to 
increase the penalty charge from £60 to £80, in an effort to secure a high level of 
compliance with parking regulations and the self financing of the parking 
enforcement system.    
 
The Convener, seconded by Councillor McCaig, moved:- 

that the Committee endorses the decision of the Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure Committee in this matter. 

 
Councillor Graham, seconded by Councillor Laing, moved as an amendment:- 

that the Committee does not approve the request of the Enterprise, Planning 
and Infrastructure Committee to ratify their decision to set an £80 penalty 
charge for illegal parking until such a time as collection rates improved.  

 
 
 

Page 11



 3060 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
On a division, there voted:- for the motion (11) – the Convener, the Vice Convener; 
and Councillors Cormack, Dunbar, Farquharson, Kiddie, Leslie, McCaig, John 
Stewart, John West and Yuill; for the amendment (4) – Councillors Cassie, 
Graham, Laing and Young. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the terms of the successful motion.  
 
 
 
EXCHEQUER HOUSE  
 
11. The Committee had under consideration, upon a remit from the Marischal 
College Advisory and Monitoring Working Group (article 2 of the minute of meeting 
of 26 May, 2010 refers), the suggestion that whilst the lease of Exchequer House 
by the Council was operational, the property be maintained as a utilised asset for 
frontline operational needs; and further that Spring Garden be retained as a Council 
asset in the medium to long term.   
 
The Committee were advised that the discussion by the Working Group was in the 
context of “Offset Property Matters” which provided members with an overview of 
current issues as they relate to the various sites represented as affected by the 
Marischal College Initiative. 
 
The Convener, seconded by the Vice Convener, moved:- 

that the Committee express their agreement with the views of the Marischal 
College Advisory and Monitoring Working Group in this matter; and therefore 
agree to (1) maintain Exchequer House as a utilised asset for frontline 
operational needs; and (2) retain Spring Garden as a Council asset in the 
medium to long term. 

 
Councillor Graham, seconded by Councillor Laing, moved as an amendment:- 

that no action be taken on this matter until the report, as presented to the 
Marischal College Advisory and Monitoring Working Group, is brought 
before this Committee for consideration.  

 
On a division, there voted:- for the motion (11) – the Convener, the Vice Convener; 
and Councillors Cormack, Dunbar, Farquharson, Kiddie, Leslie, McCaig, John 
Stewart, John West and Yuill; for the amendment (4) – Councillors Cassie, 
Graham, Laing and Young.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the terms of the successful motion.  

Page 12



 3061 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
12. With reference to article 7 of the minute of its meeting of  
11 March, 2010 the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which presented key performance and management information for 
the Corporate Governance Service. 
 
The report detailed the Director’s overview of progress since the aforementioned 
meeting, which focused on the key operational and performance issues in each 
section within the Service; and provided a performance indicator balanced 
scorecard, which utilised a traffic light mechanism to indicate the status relating to 
each indicator, which in turn was supported by appendices with ‘drill down’ 
information for each indicator within the scorecard. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to instruct the Director of Corporate Governance to advise Committee 

members of the number of tenants who are in rent arrears; and  
(ii) to note the information contained within the report. 
 
 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BUSINESS PLAN AND MANAGEMENT 
STRUCTURE (CG/10/119) 
 
13. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which presented the Business Plan for the Corporate Governance 
Service for 2010/11 – 2012/13 and outlined the management structure in this 
regard.  
 
The report detailed a number of proposed changes to the structures and 
establishment of the sections within Corporate Governance, namely (1) Human 
Resources and Organisational Development; (2) Finance (including Revenues and 
Benefits); (3) Legal and Democratic Services; (4) Customer Service and 
Performance; and (5) Central Procurement Unit.  To this end, the report proposed 
that a total of 13 new posts would be required in this structure as follows: 
• Corporate Financier  
• Service Accountant  
• Revenue and Benefits Manager  
• Senior Programme Manager  
• Community Planning and Corporate Performance Manager  
• Supply Chain Manager  
• Legal Manager (Policy, Property, Procurement Projects)  

Page 13



 3062 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
• Legal Manager (Employment, Education, Litigation, Licensing) 
• Business Manager  
• HR Manager (Planning and Development)  
• HR Manager (Client and Corporate Support)  
• HR Shared Service Manager  
• Corporate Performance Manager 
and that the funding for these posts would be delivered within the Directorate’s 
approved budget for 2010/11, and through the disestablishment of a number of 
posts, namely: 
• Personnel Manager   
• Corporate Support Manager  
• Organisational Development Manager  
• Employee Development Manager  
• Change Manager x 2  
• Business Transformation Team Manager   
• Chief Administrative Officer 
• Business Transformation Project Leaders x 2  
• Customer Relations Management Solutions Analyst   
• Information and Research Team Leader  
• Projects Manager Post 
• Administration Assistant  
• Distribution Services Assistant  
• Legal Managers x 4 
 
The report advised that there would be a redundancy situation for a number of post 
holders but until a job matching and advertising process was complete, it would not 
be possible to identify the number of staff who would be affected in this regard. The 
report continued that if staff concerned chose not to apply for new posts, or were 
unsuccessful, the Council would try to mitigate redundancies through redeployment 
in the first instance.  
 
Appended to the report was the proposed structure for the Services within 
Corporate Governance. The Business Plan for the Service had been made 
available online and in the Members’ Library.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the Corporate Governance Service Business Plan 2010/11-

2012/13; 
(ii) to agree to the establishment of 13 new manager posts (as detailed above) 

reporting to Heads of Service;  
(iii) to agree the disestablishment of 19 posts (as detailed above) to fund the 

new posts; and 

Page 14



 3063 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
(iv) to delegated authority to the Director of Corporate Governance, in 

consultation with the Convener of this Committee, to implement further 
restructuring across the Directorate, in accordance with Council policies and 
procedures for Union and staff consultation. 

 
 
 
OFFICE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE STAFFING STRUCTURE (OCE/10/012) 
 
14. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Executive which 
presented the proposed third tier structure for the Office of Chief Executive.  
 
The report advised that the Office of Chief Executive was divided into four sections, 
namely (1) civic administration (including the Lord Provost’s office and the work of 
the Lord Lieutenancy); (2) elections unit; (3) internal and external communications; 
and (4) business management supporting the Chief Executive. The Office of Chief 
Executive currently comprised 25 posts including a Team Manager (Civic 
Administration) and Communications Manager, both at third tier level. The report 
proposed that the post of Personal Assistant to the Chief Executive be 
disestablished, and a post of Business Manager be established to work closely with 
the Chief Executive and Head of Service to provide business management function 
and activities for the Office. The report outlined the key tasks that would be 
associated with the post, and continued that officers in Human Resources and 
Organisational Development were finalising the job evaluation assessment for the 
post, the costs for which would be met from within the Office of Chief Executive 
budget allocation, and from the disestablishment of the Personal Assistant post.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the disestablishment of the post of Personal Assistant to the 

Chief Executive; 
(ii) to approve the establishment of the post of Business Manager; 
(iii) to delegate authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the 

Convener, to implement further structural changes below third tier level 
within the Office of Chief Executive in accordance with Council policies and 
procedures relating to staff and trades unions consultation. 

 
 
 
ACCORD UPDATE REPORT (CG/10/096) 
 
15. With referenced to article 10 of the minute of its meeting of 28 January, 
2010, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which provided an update on the Accord Scheme.  

Page 15



 3064 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
The report advised that the Integrated Transport Smartcard Organisation (ITSO) 
Board (the organisation that provided the secure electronic smartcard environment, 
within which the Scotland wide bus scheme operated) had expressed their concern 
over the security of the MiFare smartcard (which was used by all other Scottish 
local authorities), and the transaction time of the JCOP (Java Card Open Platform) 
card (currently used by this Council). Both cards were to lose their ITSO 
certification and a new card type would be required for use by all Scottish local 
authorities. The planned date for this migration to take place was 31 December, 
2010, but officers were pursuing with the ITSO Board, the possibility of this date 
being moved to 31 December, 2011, which was the date for the MiFare migration. 
In the case that this amended date for migration be not approved by the ITSO 
Board, officers suggested as a contingency, the possibility of retaining the existing 
card beyond 31 December, 2011 through the installation of a new ITSO applet, 
which would enable the card to meet the required transaction time. A card 
migration plan would be developed once a decision had been made by the National 
Entitlement Card Programme Office as to the type of card that would replace 
MiFare, as this may be the best option for the Council, if it proved to be compatible 
with the existing applications, services and entitlements held on the card.  
 
In relation to progress made on sQuid (an electronic cash purse), the report 
advised that the contract had recently been signed and work had commenced on 
an implementation plan for Aberdeen.  
 
The report continued that the Accord cards for use by secondary school pupils 
would be ready for the orientation days, to be held in May and June, 2010, with 
1,510 applications for a card having been made. The cards would also now have 
the capacity to add a catering allowance for pupils who were entitled to free school 
meals.  
 
The report further advised that the card also enabled pupils at Bucksburn Academy 
to enter the school via the library, through an electronic reader on the door.  
 
Officers in the Accord team had also been pursuing the possibility of allowing users 
to credit the card via the internet. This would be reported to the Project Steering 
Group and progressed if approved at this stage.  
 
The report outlined performance information for the period 1 November, 2009 – 31 
April, 2010, including (1) the number of new Accord cards produced; (2) the 
number of replacement Accord cards produced; (3) the number of phone calls and 
emails dealt with by the Accord team; (4) the number of technical and maintenance 
calls dealt with.  
 

Page 16



 3065 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
With reference to the time and attendance recording of staff at the Crown House 
through the Accord card (article 8 of the minute of meeting of this Committee of 12 
November, 2009 refers), the report updated that this system had been live for ten 
weeks and was working well. The report further provided an update in respect of 
the utilisation of the card at the AECC, Frederick Street and Marischal College.  
 
The report concluded to highlighted (a) that the card now offered a discount to 
young Accord card holders (40% for 12-18 year olds and 20% for 18-26 year olds) 
for Foyer Music (a facility to allow young people to become involved in music and 
related activities); (b) that officers were now investigating the possibility of replacing 
the ACE membership card and Golf Pass and incorporating these into the Accord 
card as well; and (c) that officers were promoting the card to local licensees as a 
proof of age card, in accordance with recent legislative changes.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the progress and developments being made in the advancement of the 
Accord Scheme.  
 
 
 
VARIATION TO CONTRACT – TEMPORARY LABOUR AND PERMISSION TO 
TENDER THE PROVISION OF TRADES AGENCY WORKERS (CG/10/099) 
 
16. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which advised that the Council’s contract (in collaboration with 
Aberdeenshire Council) with Manpower UK Limited for the provision of 
administration, ICT, technical, care, professional, and trades agency workers was 
due to expire on 31 August, 2010.  
 
The report continued that a national tender for the provision of temporary and 
interim staff was currently being progressed by Procurement Scotland (Scottish 
Government National Contracts), which would result in eight national framework 
agreements across a range of staff categories. Trades workers would fall outwith 
the range of these agreements therefore required to be procured under a separate 
tender exercise. The report concluded that subject to the outcome of the national 
tender demonstrating best value, the Head of Procurement would recommend 
migration to the national framework agreements when the current contract expires.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve a six month extension of the contract with Manpower UK Limited 

for the provision of administration, ICT, technical, care, professional, and 
trades agency workers, and in accordance with Standing Order 1(6)(i), to 
sanction that such extension shall be exempt from Part A of the Standing 

Page 17



 3066 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Order; 
(ii)  to approve the adoption of the Scottish Government’s national contract for 

temporary labour from 1 March, 2011; 
(iii) to instruct the Central Procurement Unit to conduct a competitive tendering 

exercise in line with Council Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and EU 
Legislation for the provision of trades agency workers; and 

(iv) to instruct that the Head of Procurement and Head of Human Resources and 
Organisational Development, in consultation with the Head of Finance and 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services, following the tender exercise, 
appoint a supplier to provide trades agency workers. 

 
 
 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY (CG/10/105) 
 
17. With reference to article 17 of the minute of meeting of the former Resources 
Management Committee of 5 May, 2009, whereby members approved the Treasury 
Management Policy for the Council; article 11 of the minute of meeting of the 
former Resources Management Committee of 16 June, 2009; and article 13 of the 
minute of its meeting of 10 December, 2009, the Committee had before it a report 
by the Head of Finance which outlined the Treasury Management Policy and 
Strategy for 2010/11 – 2012/13.  
 
The report explained that Councils were required to have regard to the Prudential 
Code when carrying out their duties, in accordance with part 7 of the Local 
Government Scotland Act 2003, that treasury management should be carried out in 
accordance with good professional practice, and that the Council must comply with 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of 
Treasury Management in the Public Services. The proposed Treasury Management 
Policy statement was appended to the report.   
 
The report reminded members that the new investment regulations, prepared by 
the Scottish Treasury Management Forum Executive and CIPFA, granted 
authorities additional investment powers. These regulations had now been finalised 
and approved by the Scottish Government, and that in accordance with them, the 
proposed Borrowing and Investment Strategy for 2010/11 – 2012/13 was also 
appended to the report.  This appendix also listed permitted investment instruments 
identified for use in the financial years 2010/11 – 2012/13. The Council’s 
Counterparty list was detailed at appendix 3 to the report.  
 
The report further advised that in complying with the Prudential Code, the Council 
had to set a number of Prudential Indicators, which included a number of Treasury 
Management indicators for external debt. The report explained that the Prudential 

Page 18



 3067 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Code stated that it would probably not be significant if the operational boundary 
was breached temporarily on occasions due to variations in cash flow, however, a 
sustained or regular trend above the operational boundary would be significant and 
should lead to further investigation and action as appropriate. The report stated that 
the Council had in place an early warning system to highlight when an indicator 
was likely to be breached, and no indicators had been breached during financial 
year 2009/10.  The Head of Finance added that if a breach were to occur, this 
would be reported to this Committee with an explanation.  
 
The report concluded that HM Treasury had a reserve power to limit local authority 
borrowing for national economic reasons; legislation specified that any such 
national limit would be used to protect the country’s economic interest if local 
borrowing under the Prudential Code were to be unaffordable nationally.  In 
principle, a national limit could be set at any point during any financial year and any 
such national limit would be implemented based on local authorities’ outstanding 
borrowing with all future borrowing being reduced proportionately.  Officers advised 
that there were no known plans for the introduction of a national limit at this time. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the Council’s Treasury Management Policy Statement for 

2010/11 to 2012/13; 
(ii)  to approve the Council’s Borrowing and Investment Strategy for 2010/11 to 

2012/13; and 
(iii) to approve the revised Counterparty list as detailed at appendix 3 to the 

report.  
 
 
 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL CHARITABLE TRUSTS (CG/10/125) 
 
18. Reference was made to article 21 of the minute of meeting of this Committee 
of 17 September, 2009, whereby officers were instructed to write to the Scottish 
Government to ascertain whether it would be possible for the Council to 
amalgamate all charitable trusts with assets of £20,000 or less, in order to create a 
worthwhile fund for the citizens of Aberdeen, and to report back thereafter. Further 
to this meeting, officers had advised that the appropriate body to contact on this 
issue would be the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator (OSCR), rather than the 
Scottish Government. The Committee had before it on this day the report as 
requested at the aforementioned meeting.  
 
The report advised that officers had written to the OSCR as instructed, and had 
received a response that indicated that the proposal was acceptable in principle, 
and that a new trust should be set up in the first instance, to which the assets of the 

Page 19



 3068 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
other charitable trusts could then be transferred. It was therefore proposed that a 
trust be established for the benefit of the citizens of Aberdeen, with the specific 
charitable purposes matching those of the existing charitable trusts which were to 
be transferred into it; and for members of this Committee to be the trustees. It was 
explained that once this new trust was established, it would be necessary to write 
to the OSCR to disestablish each of the existing charitable trusts with assets below 
£20,000 and to transfer the said assets to the new trust.  
 
The OSCR had requested that this work be undertaken in batches to take account 
of their staff’s workload, so it was unlikely that this exercise would be completed by 
March, 2011.  
 
The report continued that returns for the charitable trusts would require to be 
presented to the OSCR for the year to 31 March 2010, and as the amalgamation 
process would only commence further to this report being approved, these would 
be in a similar form to those presented last year. It was intended that individual 
trustee reports would be presented for those charitable trusts where amalgamation 
was not being considered and a single trustee report would be provided to cover 
charitable trusts due to be amalgamated. In addition, and to ensure compliance 
with the OSCR requirements, it was proposed that the status of all of the charitable 
trusts be reviewed as part of this process. If thought appropriate, proposals would 
be submitted to committee for approval to remove them from the charity register, or 
to transfer their assets to another more relevant external charitable body. 
 
Appended to the report were details of the assets, which were subject to audit, of 
all the charitable trusts under review showing the value of their asset as at 31 
March, 2010.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the actions taken by officers to date; 
(ii) to approve the outline proposals for a new charitable trust to be established, 

with the members of this Committee as trustees; 
(iii) to approve the transfer of charitable trusts with assets of less than £20,000 

into the new trust;  
(iv) to note the likely timescales for completion of the work; and  
(v)  to approve the outline of actions proposed by officers within the report to 

take matters forward. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 3069 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
ANNUAL HOUSING AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT REPORT (CG/10/117) 
 
19. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which detailed the performance of Housing and Council Tax Benefit 
during 2009/10, by way of an annual report.  
 
The annual report, which was appended to the report, also set out the key priorities 
for 2010/11.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to instruct that an annual report be submitted to this Committee in June each year, 
which should detail the previous financial year’s Housing and Council Tax Benefit 
Service. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL REGULATIONS – UPDATE (CG/10/127) 
 
20. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which presented an updated version of the Financial Regulations in 
accordance with Standing Order – Finance 9(3).  
 
The Regulations had been updated to reflect Service, committee and management 
structure changes to the organisation and were appended to the report.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the updated Financial Regulations.  
 
 
 
APPLICATIONS FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 2010/11 (CG/10/120) 
 
21. With reference to article 22 of the minute of its previous meeting, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Head of Finance which presented an 
application for financial assistance from Dancesport Scotland for the Northern 
Trophy Day at the Beach Ballroom on 3 October, 2010.  
 
The report advised that the request could be met from the uncommitted budget 
remaining.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to award £800 to Dancesport Scotland.  
 

Page 21



 3070 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
APPLICATION FOR YOUTH ACTIVITIES SMALL GRANTS FUND 2010/11 – 
ROUND 1 (ESC/10/057) 
 
22. With reference to article 25 of the minute of its meeting of 10 December, 
2010, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture 
and Sport which presented the recommendations of the Youth Activities Grant 
Funding Group for the first round of funding for the financial year 2010/11, which 
had a closing date of 30 April, 2010. 
 
The report advised that twenty four new applications had been received this round, 
and twenty one recommendations for funding had been made by the Youth 
Activities Grant Funding Group. The report continued that the total sum 
recommended for approval was £24,696, and that if the recommendations outlined 
were approved there would be an uncommitted budget of £25,304 remaining. 
 
Appended to the report were details of the applications received and the 
recommendations made by the Youth Activities Grant Funding Group. 
  
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to ratify the recommendations of the Youth Activities Grant Funding Group 

and to therefore approve funding to the following organisations: 
 
Group Name Summary of Application Decision 
Don Swimming Club 
 

To fund bus and pool hire to 
attend a swimming 
competition in Inverness.  
 

to award 
£1,227 

Young LGBT Group 
 

To allow young LGBT people 
to plan and organise their 
own events and activities.   

to award 
£739 

Transition Group – Middlefield 
Youth Flat 

To fund the cost of a trip to 
Edinburgh for 8 young 
people.   

to award 
£1,175 

Noble Brothers’ Productions 
 

To purchase a sound 
microphone and adaptor.   

to award 
£1,360 

East End Girls FC To fund the cost of good 
indoor training facilities, 
based in a central location 
with high quality coaches.  

to award 
£1,500 

SHMU FM Youth Radio Project To fund team building 
activities over summer recess 

to award 
£825 

Page 22



 3071 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Group Name Summary of Application Decision 

at Aberdeen Sports Village.  
Girls Only SHMU To purchase equipment to 

enable better quality 
productions to be produced.  

to award 
£1,490 

SHMU Train – Torry Academy To purchase media 
technology equipment.  

to award 
£1,500 

21st Aberdeen (Cults) Scouts To part fund a return trip to 
Gomel.  

to award 
£350 

Craiglea Children’s Centre  To purchase fishing 
equipment.  

to award 
£1,500 

Stoneywood/Dyce Cricket Club To purchase a mobile cricket 
net cage for practice 
sessions.  

to award 
£1,480 

Dee Boys’ Club To fund the cost of a new 
fence around football pitches.  

to award 
£1,500 

Powis Gateway Community Centre To fund the cost of setting up 
a youth computer facility at 
Powis Gateway Community 
Centre.  

to award 
£1,380 

St Machar Academy 2010/11 
Citizenship Group 

To fund the cost of this group 
taking part in the Youth 
Achievements Awards.  

to award 
£1,270 

Trinity Court Tenant Group  To fund the cost of the Tenant 
Group to take part in activities 
and workshops.  

to award 
£1,500 

Sensory Support Service Peer 
Support Group  

To enable young people with 
hearing loss and visual 
impairment to take part in 
activities with others who face 
similar challenges.   

to award 
£1,500 

Bucksburn Academy’s 
Environmental Group 

To fund the cost of a safe 
route/path to school and to 
build a wildlife area.  

to award 
£1,500 

St Machar Academy’s 
Environmental Studies Class 

To fund the cost of 
improvements to the school 
grounds in relation to the 
quality of the environment.  

to award 
£1,400 

Aberdeen Scout Network To fund the cost of a trip to 
Kenya for 5 days to volunteer 
at an orphanage.  

to award 
£1,500 

 

Page 23



 3072 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
and 
(ii) to instruct the Director of Education, Culture and Sport to arrange for the 

funds to be distributed accordingly. 
 
 
 
OLDMACHAR HEATING, VENTILATION AND AIR CONDITIONING 
REFURBISHMENT (EPI/10/166) 
 
23. Reference was made to article 2 of the minute of meeting of the Council 
meeting of 11 February 2010 (appendix 3, page 2283 refers), whereby the capital 
budget was approved, which incorporated funding for replacement heating, 
ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) systems at Oldmachar Academy. The 
Committee now had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure, which brought to the attention of members the financial requirements 
in relation to the necessary work associated with the upgrading and refurbishment 
of the HVAC systems at the school.  
 
By way of background the report advised that the original HVAC system had been 
introduced when the school had been constructed. There had been a number of 
complaints made by staff and pupils, and an independent survey had indicated that 
there were major problems with the temperature control and circulation of air 
throughout the school. 
 
Further to the aforementioned meeting of Council, the specification had been 
tendered, however, due to the limited time available to complete the works during 
the school holidays, the prices received had been unaffordable, and further 
contained a high risk that the works could overrun. Officers reviewed the scope of 
works, and proposed that the project be split into two phases, whereby the second 
phase would entail works of lesser priority than the initial phase.  
 
The report explained that due to the fact that the scheme was allowing more 
effective and efficient controls of heating, it would be eligible for funding from the 
Central Energy Efficiency Fund. This was a spend to save initiative where monies 
saved in terms of energy efficiency were invested back into the fund, which in turn 
allowed more schemes to be funded. A project was considered eligible if it could 
repay any grant within five years, and it was considered by officers that efficiencies 
of £21,000 per annum could be achieved through this scheme, with modifications to 
existing systems being undertaken.   
 
The report concluded that based on the original tender and the revised costs for 
phase one of the HVAC project, it was estimated that phase two would cost 
£350,000, and proposed that this be evaluated as part of the development of the 

Page 24



 3073 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
future non housing capital programme of works and the Corporate Asset 
Management Plan.  
 
The Convener congratulated officers for their lateral thinking which had enabled 
this project to proceed. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i)  to acknowledge the funding arrangements put in place to deliver the first 

phase of the replacement heating, ventilation and air conditioning system 
within Oldmachar Academy, for which the contract had been awarded to 
allow works to be undertaken during the course of the school summer 
holidays; and 

(ii) to agree to consider the funding required to complete the second (and final) 
phase, as part of the non housing capital programme review for 2011/12, 
and future years as part of the Council’s asset management plan.  

 
 
 

MATTER OF URGENCY 
 
 The Convener intimated that he had directed in terms of Section 

50(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 that the 
following report be considered as a matter of urgency in order to 
ensure that the Council’s statutory duties were met in relation to 
Kinship Carers.  

 
 
 
KINSHIP CARE SERVICE – BUSINESS CASE  
 
24. Reference was made to article 10 of the minute of meeting of the Social 
Care and Wellbeing Committee of 3 June, 2010, whereby officers had been 
instructed to submit a business case to this Committee in relation to posts that were 
to be created as part of the Kinship Team. The Committee had before it on this day 
the said business case.  
 
The business case advised that 5.5 full time equivalent posts would be required 
(two Social Workers, two Family Resources Workers, and 1.5 Administrative 
Assistant), and that the posts would undertake a statutory function in the 
assessment, approval, and support provided to Kinship Carers.  
 
 
 

Page 25



 3074 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee approves the establishment of 5.5 full time equivalent posts as 
follows:- 2 x Social Worker; 2 x Family Resources Worker; and 1.5 x Administrative 
Assistant.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the posts outlined above on a one year fixed term basis;  
(ii) to instruct that officers report back, reviewing the situation when required; 

and  
(iii) to instruct officers to write to the Scottish Government and conduct talks with 

CoSLA about reducing the bureaucracy associated with the Kinship Carers 
scheme.  

 
 
 
POLICIES UPDATE REPORT (CG/10/123) 
 
25. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which presented revisions and updates on four Council policies and 
procedures.  
 
The report outlined the amendments that had been made to the policies, namely (1) 
Maximising Attendance; (2) Managing Work Performance; (3) Managing Substance 
Misuse; and (4) Managing Redundancy, and appended full, updated versions in 
each case.  
 
The main features and amendments to the policies and procedures were outlined 
as follows: 

• Managing Attendance Policy - (1) trigger levels would now be three 
occasions, with a total of 10 days lost to sickness absence over twelve 
months and five occasions with a total of 15 days lost to sickness absence 
over 24 months; (2) managers had a clear responsibility to apply the policy 
and manage the attendance of their staff, and where this did not happen 
they would be subject to performance management measures; (3) provision 
was included within the policy to state that in a circumstance where following 
a review period where an employee came out of formal procedure then had 
further sickness, they would go back to the stage at which they left the 
procedure; (4) when an employee hit the trigger, the formal process would 
be automatically activated; (5) a process named Employee AIDE (absence 
involving domestic emergencies) was to be introduced to recognise that an 
employee may find themselves in a situation where they need to take time 
away from work to deal with non work emergencies, and to avoid this being 
reported/recorded as sickness, managers would be allowed to approve 

Page 26



 3075 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

appropriate time off or allow for time off to be worked back; (6) a process to 
deal with non attendance due to short term sickness absence, without an 
underlying medical cause, under a ‘conduct or some other substantial 
reason’ route was introduced; (7) the process to deal with non attendance 
due to short term sickness absence, with an underlying medical cause, 
under a ‘capability’ route was included; (8) a supportive and understanding 
approach to employees who suffer from an underlying medical cause was 
encouraged; (9) it was made clear that the outcome of the first two stages of 
the short term processes could be a caution to improve attendance and 
review period, and the third and final stage (the Capability Hearing) could 
result in the dismissal of the employee; and (10) the process to deal with non 
attendance due to long term sickness absence was made explicit.  

• Managing Work Performance – (1) the process had been adjusted with the 
right to appeal against the action plan being removed; and (2) the previous 
provision to search for redeployment had been removed, and it was made 
explicit that unless there was a medical reasons behind the under 
performance, that improvement within the role would be required. 

• Managing Substance Misuse – (1) the policy provided a structure for a 
supportive and constructive approach to managing substance misuse in line 
with the Council’s legal obligations under the Health and Safety at Work Act 
1974 and Misuse of Drugs Act 1971; (2) employees must attend work free of 
the affects of alcohol and/or substances; (3) the substances that were 
covered by the policy and procedure were defined, including alcohol; (4) it 
was made clear that employees must notify their manager if they were taking 
prescribed medication which may impair their ability to undertake their duties 
safely and effectively; (5) an explanation was provided with regard to the 
responsibilities of managers and employees in the management of alcohol or 
substance; (6) the possible referral routes were outlined and it was explained 
when it was appropriate to follow each route, depending upon how the 
substance misuse issue had been discovered; (7) the supporting provisions 
that were available and when these should be put in place were detailed; (8) 
clarification was provided on how and when management of substance 
misuse may integrate with the implementation of the Managing Discipline, 
Managing Work Performance or Managing Attendance Policies; (9) the 
circumstances when testing for alcohol or substances may occur were fully 
explained; and (10) information was provided on sources of support, 
sensible drinking limits and recognising alcohol and/or substance misuse.  

• Managing Redundancy – (1) the selection criteria were amended to be as 
objective as is possible, in line with the legal requirements; (2) the process 
had been amended to apply the competencies identified in the person 
specification; and (3) details of the simplified consultation process were 
provided.  

 

Page 27



 3076 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the revisions and updates to the four policies, as appended to the 

report (Maximising Attendance – appendix 1; Managing Work Performance – 
appendix 2; Managing Substance Misuse – appendix 3; and Managing 
Redundancy – appendix 4); and  

(ii) to delegate authority to the Director of Corporate Governance to approve 
minor amendments to the wording of the Maximising Attendance and the 
Managing Substance Misuse policies, following ongoing consultation with 
Trades Unions representing teachers to ensure that these policies are 
consistent.  

 
 
 
THIRD TIER ILL HEALTH GRATUITY (CG/10/124) 
 
26. Reference was made to article 25 of the minute of its meeting of 11 March, 
2010 whereby officers were instructed to report back in much more detail in order 
for a final decision to be taken with regard to the application or otherwise of the 
Third Tier Ill Health Gratuity. The Committee had before it on this day the said 
report which advised that there had been four ill health capability dismissals in 
2008, six in 2009, and three to date, in 2010.  
 
The report continued that officers believed it was likely that these numbers would 
increase in the future with the Council having to improve its performance around 
managing attendance.  The report estimated that if there were six cases per 
annum, with each employee earning £27,000 and having 30 years continuous 
service, the annual cost to the Council would be over £90,000; and reiterated that 
the cost would vary each year, dependant on the number of employees eligible and 
their length of service.  
 
The report proposed that criteria be applied in relation to this Gratuity to employees 
who are not able to meet their contractual commitment to attend work due to long 
term ill health as follows: (1) the employee must be a member of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme with a minimum of two years’ membership in the 
scheme; (2) the Council’s Occupational Health Provider must determine that the 
employee’s medical condition does not qualify for a Tier 1 or Tier 2 Ill Health 
retirement recommendation; and (3) the reason for the capability dismissal was due 
to a continued period of long term sickness absence immediately prior to the 
decision to dismiss due to an underlying medical condition (the payment would not 
be appropriate where an employee had short term persistent sickness, even where 
there was an underlying medical cause).  
 
 

Page 28



 3077 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to apply its discretion provided in the Local Government (Discretionary 

Payments and Injury Benefits) (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2009, to 
make Third Tier Ill Health Gratuity in accordance with the criteria outlined 
within the report;  

(ii) that the Third Tier Ill Health Gratuity should be one week’s pay for each year 
of continuous service up to a maximum of 30 weeks;  

(iii) that any associated costs were required to be contained within the Service 
budgets; and  

(iv) to instruct that each time a Gratuity is made, that a report be submitted to 
this Committee detailing the case.  

  
 
 
PAY PROTECTION ARRANGEMENTS – REVIEW (CG/10/129) 
 
27. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which proposed a revised policy on the application of pay protection 
for employees who may be matched to a lower paid position during the 
restructuring of Services.  
 
The report explained that there was already a national agreement in place with 
regard to employees adversely affected through the Equal Pay and Modernisation 
process, but that with Directors currently seeking approval from their Service 
Committees for authority to make changes to the staffing establishment below 
senior management level, there was a requirement to clarify the position for 
employees who may be affected during this process.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the revision of the current pay protection arrangements so that 

(1) the existing Equal Pay and Modernisation arrangements remain 
unaltered; (2) the authority to agree the ongoing provisions of pay protection 
be delegated to the Chief Executive and the Director of Corporate 
Governance in consultation with the Convener of this Committee; and (3) all 
employees who are job matched into lower paid positions resulting from the 
recently approved restructuring, will be subject to the protection 
arrangements as detailed at (2) above; and  

(ii) to instruct that officers report back with an update on this policy in due 
course.   

 
 
 
 

Page 29



 3078 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
VICTORIA HOUSE, WEST NORTH STREET – FUTURE USE (EPI/10/169) 
 
28. Reference was made to article 26 of the minute of meeting of the Finance 
and Resources Committee of 28 January, 2010, at which time there was under 
consideration a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
which advised of the current status of a number of surplus Council owned 
properties, one of which was the former social work hostel premises at Victoria 
House, West North Street, Aberdeen in respect of which an interest had been 
expressed by a Council Service that the property be identified for use as a Housing 
Access Centre. The Committee now had before it a further report from the said 
Director containing an update on the situation and a recommendation that the 
property be transferred from the General Services Account (GSA) to the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA).    
 
The report before members made reference to the approval by the Housing and 
Environment Committee at its meeting of 16 February, 2010 (article 23 refers), of 
the recommendations contained within the Homelessness Accommodation 
Feasibility Study undertaken on the Council’s behalf by external consultants, which 
were to develop the preferred long term option and provide a purpose built Housing 
Access Centre on the site of Victoria House.   The report also referred to the value 
assessed by the Council’s external property contractors at which the subjects could 
transfer between the GSA and HRA, following which the buildings on the site, now 
derelict, would be demolished to make way for the proposed Centre which would 
comprise twenty flats, ten temporary accommodation units for the homeless plus 
office accommodation for thirty staff members within the Housing and Community 
Safety Section of the Service.   It was confirmed that a further report on the matter 
was to be submitted to the meeting of the Housing and Environment Committee to 
be held on 24 August, 2010.    
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that the Head of Finance be instructed to conclude the transfer of the property, 
Victoria House, West North Street, Aberdeen, from the General Services Account 
to the Housing Revenue Account, including the obtaining of Scottish Minister 
approval, if necessary, and subject to the approval of the Housing and Environment 
Committee at its meeting on 24 August, 2010.   
 
 
 
WOOLHILLOCK CROFT, CARNIE, SKENE (EPI/10/173) 
 
29. The Committee had under consideration a report by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure relative to the Council owned property and 
land at Woolhillock Croft, Carnie, Skene, following the death of the Council tenant 

Page 30



 3079 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
and receipt from the tenant’s executors of notice that the lease be brought to an 
end.    
 
The report before members (1) contained a description of the property in question 
and its location within the administrative area of Aberdeen City Council; (2) advised 
that the Croft was part of the Lands of Skene which extended to some 260 hectares 
to the south and west of Westhill, land held by the Council on Common Good/Trust 
Funds Accounts; (3) highlighted certain unusual features of the lease which officers 
felt justified a more considered analysis of the options available to the Council as a 
way forward;  (4) advised also of the valuation assessments provided for the site by 
the Council’s external property contractors, taking into account certain 
assumptions; (5) outlined the planning policy considerations arising within the 
current development plan and the potential situation should changes occur in the 
future; (6) set out a number of options based on the advice received; and (7) 
concluded that the best option at this time was to lease the property on a five year 
Short Limited Duration Tenancy, thereby leaving the way open for the Council to 
reconsider its options should the planning designation of the site be changed.    
 
The report recommended:- 
(a) that the Committee instructs the Head of Asset Management and Operations 

to advertise and then lease, Woolhillock Croft on a five year Short Limited 
Duration Tenancy;  and  

(b) that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services be instructed to formally 
conclude the lease entered into on terms and conditions as necessary to 
protect the Council’s interests.    

 
The Committee were advised at this point that the Guildry and Mortifications Funds 
Board at its meeting on 14 June, 2010 (article 2 refers), agreed with this option as 
recommended by officers.    
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
QUALITY AND PRICE CRITERIA IN THE EVALUATION OF TENDERS 
(CG/10/115) 
 
30. Reference was made to article 40 of the minute of meeting of this Committee 
of 11 March, 2010 whereby officers were instructed to prepare a report on the 
introduction of a quality/price basis for assessment and award of competitive 
tenders. The Committee had before it on this day the report requested by 
members.  

Page 31



 3080 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
The report advised that for legal requirements, tenders must be undertaken in two 
stages, namely selection and award. With regard to the selection process, under 
the Public Contracts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (the 2006 Regulations), 
contracting authorities may require bidders to satisfy minimum levels of economic 
and financial standing, and/or technical ability. Contracting authorities should also 
check that no bidders meet the mandatory or discretionary rejection factors stated 
within the 2006 Regulations. Any selection process would be undertaken by means 
of the pre qualification questionnaire where the restricted procedure would be used, 
and within the invitation to tender when the open procedure would be used. The 
selection stage focused on the supplier’s characteristics and suitability in principle 
to satisfy the contracting authority’s requirement. Contracting authorities must use 
the selection phase to identify the bidders who will go on to have their tenders 
evaluated at the award stage. 
 
The invitation to tender (ITT) is the award stage, and at this point all remaining 
bidders will have satisfied the selection criteria and will have been assessed as 
being qualified to perform the contract.  The award stage must focus on the tenders 
rather than the tenderers.  There would be two grounds for awarding a public 
contract under the 2006 Regulations, namely (1) the lowest price, where the lowest 
priced tender wins and no other element of the tender may be taken into account; 
or (2) the most economically advantageous tender (MEAT), where other criteria, or 
criteria in addition to price, like quality, technical merit and running costs could be 
taken into account. 
 
Where MEAT is chosen, award criteria must be linked to the subject matter of the 
contract and would include: 
• quality 
• price 
• technical merit 
• aesthetic and functional characteristics 
• environmental characteristics 
• running costs 
• cost effectiveness 
• after sales service  
• technical assistance 
• delivery date and delivery period  
• period of completion. 
 
The report proposed that the Council should use MEAT for the majority of 
procurements as there were very few purchases where the Council would not wish 
to evaluate a quality element. The report did suggest however, that when 

Page 32



 3081 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
purchasing simple commodities (off the shelf), lowest price evaluation may be 
appropriate. Evaluation on the basis of price alone may also be appropriate in the 
procurement of specific works contracts where the bill of quantities or schedule of 
rates was so prescriptive and detailed as to the quality standard, that lowest price 
could be applied.  
 
The report highlighted that when setting questions for tender evaluation it was 
important to ensure that there were no questions asked that related to the selection 
stage.  This was because the use of selection criteria such as experience at award 
stage may perpetuate the advantage of an incumbent or previously used supplier, 
to the detriment of other qualified tenderers.  The report explained that evaluation 
criteria must treat all bidders equally and should be evaluated in a transparent 
manner; and criteria must be proportionate and relate to the subject matter of the 
contract. The report continued that contracting authorities must publish their 
evaluation criteria and scoring methodology in the ITT and the contract notice 
inviting expressions of interest; ensure that they follow the methodology set out in 
the ITT as this could not be deviated from at any point without exposing the 
contracting authority to the risk of legal challenge; and include any sub criteria 
within the ITT. 
 
The report explained that tenderers now had enhanced powers to challenge the 
decisions of contracting authorities, and their success or otherwise in the challenge 
would be dependant on how robust the Council had been in ensuring all evaluation 
and award criteria was fair, transparent and proportionate to the need in question. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the content of the report;  
(ii) to instruct all Services to evaluate tenders on the basis of the most 

economically advantageous tender (MEAT), using a price/quality matrix, 
unless there is an approved justification sanctioned by the Head of 
Procurement and the relevant Head of Service for evaluating solely on the 
basis of lowest price.  

 
 
 
FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS (CG/10/114) 
 
31. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which requested that Services be provided with the opportunity to 
procure Business Support Services from identified pre tendered framework 
agreements.  
 
 

Page 33



 3082 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
The report explained that the Public Contracts (Scotland) Regulations 2006, 
Regulation 2(1) defined a framework agreement as ‘an agreement or other 
arrangement between one or more contracting authorities, and one or more 
economic operators, which establishes the terms (in particular the terms as to price 
and, where appropriate, quantity) under which the economic operator will enter into 
one or more contracts with a contracting authority in the period during which the 
framework agreement applies’. The report continued that it would be important for 
Services to consider whether a framework agreement was the right approach for 
the particular goods, services or works to be purchased, which would require a 
value for money judgement for the Council, taking account of the type of purchases 
involved, the ability of the providers on a framework to deliver the requirement, and 
the ability to specify such purchases with sufficient precision.  
 
The report advised that the Office of Government Commerce (Buying Solutions) 
had established a full suite of business support services covering a broad spectrum 
of needs, which were tendered on behalf of all UK public bodies in line with EU 
Procurement Regulations. The Scottish Government (Procurement Scotland) had 
also undertaken further similar exercises, for all Scottish public bodies for those 
areas they had identified that had not been adequately covered by Buying 
Solutions.  Also listed within the identified frameworks, were arrangements through 
the Improvement Service which had gone through the same tendering process as 
above. 
 
The report highlighted that this way of working would provide all users with access 
to a database of identified contracts that had maximised the combined leverage of 
potential participants in order to provide the most competitive pricing structures 
available. The use of the frameworks also limited the time and resources spent by 
internal tendering. 
 
Where the Council’s requirements were more specific than those detailed under the 
framework, ‘mini competition’ exercises would require to be undertaken between all 
the providers on the framework agreement to identify the most competitive offering 
for the Council’s requirements, and to ensure that the providers would be in a 
position to mobilise resources to meet those requirements.  
 
The report concluded that additional requirements that Directors identified to the 
report author as being required to support delivery of their Services, covered a 
number of common themes, and in order to address these requirements, access to 
all Buying Solutions, Procurement Scotland and Improvement Service Frameworks 
would be available, providing the protocol outlined was followed. In each instance a 
fast track ‘mini competition’ between the approved providers on each framework list 
could be facilitated, where necessary, once the specification and scope of need 
was ascertained.  

Page 34



 3083 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee:- 
(a) approve the action taken by the Head of Procurement to ensure that use of 

the identified national framework agreements are in full compliance with EU 
Regulations, Council Standing Orders and Financial Regulations; 

(b) agree the suspension of Standing Orders 75 and 76 to the extent necessary 
to permit the delegation of powers, to allow the use of the Office of 
Government Commerce (Buying Solutions), Scottish Government 
(Procurement Scotland) and the Improvement Service framework 
agreements, to Service Directors in consultation with the Head of 
Procurement and Head of Legal and Democratic Services; and 

(c)  to instruct that the Head of Procurement administer the central database of 
approved framework agreements. 

 
The Committee requested clarification in relation to the use of the Standing Orders 
as detailed above, and the Legal Manager (Policy and Advice) advised that 
Standing Orders 75 and 76 were no longer in use further to a recent review of the 
Procurement Standing Orders.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve recommendations (a) and (c) as detailed above; 
(ii) to agree that the relevant Standing Orders be suspended (if required) to the 

extent necessary to permit the delegation of powers to allow the use of the 
Office of Government Commerce (Buying Solutions), Scottish Government 
(Procurement Scotland) and the Improvement Service framework 
agreements, to Service Directors in consultation with the Head of 
Procurement and Head of Legal and Democratic Services, and in 
consultation with the Convener of this Committee; and 

(iii)  to request, in relation to the Procurement Standing Orders that were being 
reported to the Council meeting of 30 June, 2010, that the Legal Manager 
(Policy and Advice) makes explicit the use of the suspension of Standing 
Orders to utilise the use of framework contracts.  

 
 
 
REQUEST FOR AUTHORITY TO PROCURE OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY 
EQUIPMENT (CG/10/106) 
 
32. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which requested authority for officers to conduct tender exercises for 
the provision of general Occupational Therapy (OT) equipment.  
 

Page 35



 3084 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
The report outlined the legislation that required the Council to provide and maintain 
OT equipment; detailed the range of OT equipment that the Council required; and 
concluded that it was the intention of officers to pursue collaborative tender 
exercises with public sector partners in order to maximise buying power and 
improve value for money.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to instruct the Central Procurement Unit to conduct competitive tendering exercises 
in line with the Council’s Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and European 
Union legislation, for the provision of Occupational Therapy equipment.  
 
 
 
REVIEW OF CASH HANDLING ARRANGEMENTS (CG/10/103) 
 
33. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which outlined the review of the Council’s cash handling arrangements 
that was currently being undertaken.  
 
The report proposed that due to cash handing being expensive, that the Council no 
longer provided a city centre cash office, but outlined that customers could still 
make cash payments at Customer Access Points in Mastrick, Kincorth and 
Woodside, at Paypoint outlets and Post Offices within the city, and at 
Aberdeenshire Council outlets. The Council was encouraging customers to pay by 
Direct Debit, electronic payment (through the website or telephone) or payment 
card.  
 
The report further proposed that the cash payment service located at the Podium, 
be not transferred to Marischal College; but confirmed that there would be some 
cash payment facilities available at Marischal College, including those currently 
located at The Point.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to agree that the cash offices at Bucksburn and Peterculter cease to operate 

as such with effect from 1 April, 2011 to meet the proposed aim of  
rationalising the Registrar function within Aberdeen; 

(ii) to agree that no ‘physical cash’ in relation to rent or Council Tax payments will 
be accepted at Marischal College; and to note that this would also extend to 
smaller volumes such as business rates and sundry debts; 

(iii) to instruct that the Head of Finance, the Head of Housing and Community 
Safety and the Head of Customer Service and Performance examine the 
options as to whether, in terms of best value, the cash office at Tillydrone 
should remain open, given the development of the Customer Access Point at 

Page 36



 3085 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Woodside. 
(iv) to instruct that a report be submitted at the meeting of 28 September, 2010, 

outlining progress and confirming the savings to be achieved as a result of 
this proposed reconfiguration. 

 
 
 
INFOSMART FINANCE – CREDITORS PROCESSING (CG/10/104) 
 
34. With reference to article 11 of the minute of its meeting of 28 January, 2010, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate Governance 
which updated members on the progress on the creation of a centralised Finance 
Processing Team (FPT).  
 
The report advised that work had been finalised in relation to the matching pool for 
the FPT, and it was now clear that due to variances in the information originally 
provided in 2009, and the recent exercise undertaken for the matching pool, that 
the number of full time equivalent posts could be reduced from the preliminary 
figure of twenty five, to sixteen. Staff had now been advised if they had been 
allocated a job within the FPT, and the team would take up their posts on 1 July, 
2010.   
 
The report continued that the rollout of Infosmart across Services would be carried 
out in a staggered four week rolling plan as follows: Education, Culture and Sport 
Service – to be completed 23 June; Housing and Environment Service – to be 
completed 9 July; Office of Chief Executive – to be completed 16 July; Corporate 
Governance Service – to be completed 23 July; Social Care and Wellbeing Service 
– to be completed 16 August; and Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Service – 
to be completed 23 August.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report.  
 
 
 In accordance with the decision taken under article 1 of this minute, the 

following items were considered with the press and public excluded. 
 
 
 In terms of Standing Order 32(1), the Convener invited Councillors 

Allan and Donnelly to join the meeting for the following item of 
business only, in their capacity as local members.  

 
 

Page 37



 3086 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
TULLOS SWIMMING POOL – INTERNAL WORKS (ECS/10/048) 
 
35. The Committee had under consideration, upon a remit from the Education, 
Culture and Sport Committee, (article 16 of the minute of meeting of 27 May, 2010 
refers), a request from that Committee to consider urgent funding from the Capital 
Plan to carry out works to the interior of the Tullos Swimming Pool building in order 
that it could be brought back to the standard required for use by the general public. 
 
The report which had been considered by the Education, Culture and Sport 
Committee, had again been circulated to the members of this Committee who also 
had a copy of the minuted article containing the terms of that Committee’s 
resolution which was to note the progress with work to make Tullos Swimming Pool 
safe and water tight and the likely costs and implications of the water damage to 
the building interior. Also circulated to the Committee was a letter to the Convener 
from Torry Community Council which expressed its dissatisfaction at how the 
project to repair the Swimming Pool had been handled; brought to the attention of 
the Committee the lack of swimming pool provision in the south of the city; and 
highlighted that Tullos Swimming Pool was one of very few shallow pools in the 
city.  
 
Members expressed their concern that not enough detail was included within the 
report, and questioned why the repairs had not been carried out at a much earlier 
date. Councillor Allan presented to the Convener, a petition signed by over 100 
people intimating their concern at the threat of closure of Tullos Swimming Pool.  
 
At this point the Convener alluded to the fact that the Service Committee was 
requesting capital funding in order for the repairs to be undertaken, and expressed 
his concern in this regard, intimating that Service Committees should be taking 
ownership of their Non Housing Capital Programmes, and reprioritising their 
budgets to take account of urgent matters such as this case.  He emphasised that 
there was no leeway in the Capital Plan of Council.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) that the matter be referred back to the Education, Culture and Sport 

Committee in order that members may consider the matter as part of a 
review of the Non Housing Capital Programme for that Service;  and  

(ii) to request the Audit and Risk Committee to investigate the matter of the 
internal works on Tullos Swimming Pool, particularly the costs, delays and 
inadequate reasoning provided to members in this regard. 

 
 
 
 

Page 38



 3087 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
INTEGRATED DRUG SERVICE, TIMMER MARKET SITE – CAPITAL 
CONTRIBUTION (SCW/10/073) 
 
36. The Committee had under consideration, upon a remit from the Social Care 
and Wellbeing Committee (article 15 of the minute of meeting of 3 June, 2010 
refers), the report to that Committee by the Director of Social Care and Wellbeing 
relating to the building and future joint operation with National Health Service 
Grampian of an Integrated Drug Treatment and Rehabilitation Centre on the 
Timmer Market site in the Castlegate (former Justice Street car park). The 
resolution of the Social Care and Wellbeing Committee was to approve the report 
recommendations which included an instruction that the report be referred to this 
Committee for consideration of the legal implications in drawing up a formal 
agreement between the Council and NHS Grampian. Also before the Committee 
was the minuted article of the Social Care and Wellbeing Committee meeting.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that authority be delegated to the Director of Corporate Governance, the Director of 
Social Care and Wellbeing and the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, in 
consultation with the Convener of this Committee and the Convener of the Social 
Care and Wellbeing Committee, to resolve this impasse and bring the matter to a 
satisfactory conclusion.    
 
 
 
GLASHIEBURN FLOOD PREVENTION SCHEME (EPI/10/156) 
 
37. The Committee had under consideration, upon a remit from the Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure Committee (article 27 of the minute of meeting of 31 
May, 2010 refers), a request from that Committee to consider additional capital 
funding necessary to progress the works required to complete the Glashieburn 
Flood Prevention Scheme. An updated version of the report by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure which was before the meeting on 31 May, 
2010, was circulated, as was the minuted article from the said meeting which 
contained a request that officers submit an updated report to this Committee 
detailing all negotiations and agreements made to date. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that the matter be referred back to the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee in order that members may consider the matter as part of a review of 
the Non Housing Capital Programme for that Service. 
 
 
 

Page 39



 3088 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
MANAGED DATA CENTRE AND VIRTUAL DESKTOP ENVIRONMENT 
(CG/10/122) 
 
38. Reference was made to article 30 of the minute of its meeting of 28 January, 
2010, whereby members agreed to proceed to a formal tender for a Managed Data 
Centre and further to tender for the delivery of a Virtual Desktop Environment. The 
report before members on this day provided an update on the latest position.  
 
The report advised that an initial pre qualification questionnaire had been issued to 
the market through the Official Journal of the European Union, following which, the 
Council had identified six companies of those who had responded, who were found 
to be capable of satisfying the project requirements, and had issued an Invitation to 
Tender (ITT) document to these companies. The report continued that responses to 
the ITT were to be submitted to the Council by 15 June, 2010 and a five person 
evaluation team had been established to carry out an evaluation of the responses. 
It was hoped that the scoring for all submissions could be completed by early July, 
2010.  
 
The report explained that the Council had provided the tenderers with significant 
details of its ICT estate, but that a further due diligence process would require to be 
undertaken by the preferred tenderer (prior to the contract being awarded) to 
validate the Council’s ICT estate and confirm the scope of work. The preferred 
tenderer would install monitoring software on existing Council servers for a period 
of time to produce detailed statistics on hardware functions, capacity and storage. 
The report highlighted that this approach would mitigate the risk of unforeseen 
future cost to the Council, and further limit the risk of procurement challenge from 
companies who were unsuccessful during the tender process. It was further 
explained that it was not feasible to ask all tenderers to undertake this type of due 
diligence process, as this was operationally unrealistic and brought about risk in 
terms of data corruption and unnecessary disruption to the operational performance 
of hardware and systems. The report concluded that if the preferred tenderer’s due 
diligence process was not recorded as successful, the Council would approach the 
next tenderer in line, until a tenderer’s due diligence was recorded as successful.      
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the progress of the procurement process initiated following 

authorisation granted at its meeting of 28 January, 2010; and  
(ii) to grant delegated authority to the Director of Corporate Governance, the 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services, the Head of Finance, and the Head 
of Procurement, in consultation with the Convener of this Committee, to 
award a contract, within the approved budget, to the preferred tenderer for 
the provision of a Managed Data Centre and the implementation of the 

Page 40



 3089 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Virtual Desktop Environment, following an evaluation of tenders, and subject 
to a successful due diligence exercise being undertaken.  

 
 
 
TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION FUND – WIFI CCTV EXPANSION TO 
MASTRICK, ROSEMOUNT, CULTS AND PETERCULTER (H&E/10/063) 
 
39. Reference was made to article 20 of the minute of meeting of the Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure Committee of 23 February, 2010, when that Committee 
had agreed (1) to approve the works detailed within the report be carried out; (2) to 
approve costs being aligned to existing budgets where similar works had been 
authorised, on condition that these would be reimbursed by the Town Centre 
Regeneration Fund (TCRF) funding; (3) to approve the formalisation of a project 
team to monitor and coordinate the works associated with the grant; and (4) to 
request that the Director of Corporate Governance write to Scottish Ministers 
confirming that the funds would be utilised in this way, as required by the funding 
rules. The Committee had before it on this day, a report by the Director of Housing 
and Environment which provided an update on the CCTV Wireless Mesh Network 
project. 
 
The report explained that the planned extension to Rosemount, Mastrick, Cults and 
Peterculter was based on replicating and expanding the CCTV system currently in 
place in Torry, which transmitted signals to Grampian Police CCTV control room; 
provided an update on the current situation; and outlined the works that were still 
outstanding.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the suspension of Standing Order 1(6)(ii) – General Contracts for 

Works, Goods and Services; and 
(ii) to provide delegated authority to officers to negotiate a works contract with 

Aberdeen Technical to install and commission the CCTV element of the 
Town Centre Regeneration Project.   

 
 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 Councillors Crockett and John West declared interests in the subject 
matter of the following article by virtue of their positions on the 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau Board of Directors.  Both Councillors withdrew 
from the meeting during consideration of the matter. 

 

Page 41



 3090 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
CITIZENS’ ADVICE BUREAU – DEBT ADVICE SERVICES 
 
40. With reference to article 34 of the minute of its previous meeting, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and Environment which 
proposed an option for the procurement of the debt advice services currently 
provided on behalf of the Council by the Aberdeen Citizens’ Advice Bureau (CAB). 
 
The report provided a synopsis of the advice received by officers in Legal Services 
on the procurement options; and presented to members, a proposed course of 
action.   
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to instruct the Director of Housing and Environment, in conjunction with the 

Director of Corporate Governance, to issue a notice of termination to 
Aberdeen Citizens’ Advice Bureau for debt advice services, with the 
termination date being 31 March, 2011;  

(ii) to instruct the Director of Housing and Environment, in conjunction with the 
Director of Corporate Governance, to issue a tender for the provision of 
services currently provided by Aberdeen Citizens’ Advice Bureau, namely (a) 
debt counselling services; and (b) heritable court advice and representation, 
as two separate lots, the contract for which should commence on 1 April, 
2011; and  

(iii) to instruct the Director of Housing and Environment, in conjunction with the 
Director of Corporate Governance, to prepare a robust service level 
agreement as part of the procurement process which would allow for a direct 
comparison of the inhouse debt advice service against that provided by the 
external provider to help inform any future decisions about how these 
services are best delivered in future.  

 
 
 
ST NICHOLAS SITE – LEAKED REPORT – UPDATE  
 
41. With reference to article 48 of the minute of its previous meeting, the 
Committee heard from the Legal Manager (Policy and Advice), who provided an 
update on progress made in relation to the ongoing investigation on the leaking of 
the report on St Nicholas House Site (article 35 of the minute of meeting of this 
Committee of 12 November, 2009 refers). Ms Donnelly advised that the Standards 
Commission had been contacted, as instructed at the previous meeting, and the 
Commission had advised that, whilst those Councillors who declined to be 
interviewed could be referred on the grounds of disrespect by members towards 
the Monitoring Officer, the Commission would encourage local authorities to deal 
with matters such as this in consultation with the Group Leaders.  

Page 42



 3091 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to refer this matter to the Leadership Board for consideration, and that if there was 
no resolution, to refer the members in question to the Standards Commission.  
 
 
 
TOWNSCAPE HERITAGE INITIATIVE – VERBAL UPDATE 
 
42. Reference was made to article 38 of the minute of its previous meeting of 11 
May 2010, and the detailed update provided by the Director of Enterprise, Planning 
and Infrastructure on the progress of the works being carried out to The Green area 
of the city centre under the Townscape Heritage Initiative and also on the concerns 
about access and disruption raised by local businesses affected by the works. The 
resolution of the Committee at the said meeting was (1) that the Convener and the 
Leader of the Council meet with the contractors at a very early date to discuss the 
situation and to progress matters to a more satisfactory level; and (2) that the 
Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure be instructed to prepare a report 
on the project management of the contract for works at The Green, to be 
considered by the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee and, if 
necessary, in that Committee’s view, also by the Audit and Risk Committee. The 
Committee at this point heard the Head of Planning and Sustainable Development 
who advised that the works would be substantially completed by the end of July, 
2010, and that businesses in the area were on the whole content with this, as the 
area would be accessible to pedestrians. Ms Bochel further advised that there was 
a water leak on Carmelite Street and that Scottish Water had a legal right to 
undertake remedial work at their discretion, although they were required to 
reinstate the footways to their present standard.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request that officers write to Scottish Water expressing concern about the 

leak at Carmelite Street, in particular with regard to the timing of repair 
works;  

(ii) to instruct that officers ensure that the footways on Carmelite Street affected 
by the remedial works are reinstated to their present standard by Scottish 
Water; and 

(ii) to note the update as provided by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 3092 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
CORPORATE ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN (CG/10/107) 
 
43. Reference was made to article 39 of the minute of meeting of the 
Committee’s previous meeting, at which time there was under consideration the 
latest report relating to the upgrading of the Council’s Corporate Asset 
Management System by replacing the current stand alone system with a corporate 
solution.  The Committee now had before it a further report on the matter by the 
Director of Corporate Governance.   
 
The report before members provided some background information related to the 
project which had as its main aim the replacement of stand alone systems with a 
corporate solution. As regards the Non Housing Property Module, the report 
provided an indication of the progress made as at 7 May, 2010, as a result of which 
it was stated that work on the link to e-financials was due to be completed by the 
end of June, 2010. The current situation as regards staff training in the new system 
was outlined within the report which also identified the next steps as follows: (1) the 
Non Housing Property Module link to e-financials to allow invoicing and rents to be 
processed, was scheduled for completion in June, 2010; (2) work would commence 
on the Trees Module to enable the Council to record details on all the trees within 
the city, which would support and link to the ‘A Tree for Every Citizen’ planting 
programme; and (3) mobile device replacement was currently being investigated by 
the Worksmart Project to ensure that any devices purchased will be fit for purpose 
and deliver Best Value. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
 (i) to note the progress made to date in replacing the existing stand alone 

systems with the Corporate Asset Management System (CAMS);  and  
(ii) to instruct the Director of Corporate Governance to report back to this 

Committee on 28 September, 2010, regarding further progress. 
 
 
 
CULTER GROUNDS DEPOT SITE AND RUTHRIESTON DEPOT SITE 
(EPI/10/168) 
 
44. Reference was made to (1) article 29 of the minute of meeting of this 
Committee of 17 September, 2009, and (2) article 26 of the minute of meeting of 
this Committee of 28 January, 2010, at which times instructions were given to 
appropriate officers to advertise for sale on the open market, the Council depot 
sites at Culter and Ruthrieston, both of which had been declared surplus to Council 
requirements and neither of which were required or considered suitable for use by 
another Council Service.   The Committee now had before it a report by the 

Page 44



 3093 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure which advised of the outcome of 
the marketing exercise in each case.  
 
The report contained brief descriptions of each site and outlined the process that 
was gone through by the Council in reaching the stage where the sites were 
declared surplus. The outcome of the marketing exercise in respect of each 
property was provided within the report, which also contained an assessment of the 
offers received by the Council’s external property contractors. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
 (i) to instruct that the highest offers received for the former Culter Grounds 

Depot and the Ruthrieston Environment  Site (being those submitted by 
Messrs. Gray and Gray on behalf of Peterhead Land Company Limited 
(Culter) and Messrs. Paull and Williamsons on behalf of Relsha Limited 
(Ruthrieston)), be accepted;   

(ii) to instruct that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services conclude 
missives for the sale of these properties, incorporating various qualifications 
as are necessary to protect the Council’s interests;  and  

(iii) should the highest offer accepted for the former Ruthrieston Environment 
Depot not achieve the necessary planning permission required, to authorise 
the Head of Asset Management and Operations, firstly, to enter into 
negotiations on any proposed amendment to the sale price and, secondly, if 
required, to readvertise the property on the open market subject to reporting 
further thereon to this Committee, on the actions taken.    

 
 
 
 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 

The Vice Convener declared an interest in the following article by 
virtue of his position as Director of Castlegate Arts, and advised that 
this was not a Council appointed position. The Vice Convener did not 
feel it was necessary to withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the article.  

 
 
 
31/33 KING STREET - CASTLEGATE ARTS (EPI/10/172) 
 
45. The Committee had under consideration a report by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure which advised of an approach by the 
Council’s tenants, Castlegate Arts Limited, of the Aberdeen Arts Centre building at 

Page 45



 3094 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
31/33 King Street, Aberdeen, seeking the Council’s approval as Landlords to a 
variation of the existing lease terms and conditions.    
 
The report made reference to the basic terms and conditions of lease between the 
Council and Castlegate Arts Limited relative to the Aberdeen Arts Centre, entered 
into in January, 2000; referred also to the reason for the request by the tenants, 
which was contained in a letter dated 1 March, 2010 appended to the report; and 
contained an assessment by the Head of Asset Management and Operations, of 
the detail of the changes being sought. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
 (i) to approve the extension of the existing lease with Castlegate Arts Limited 

for a further twenty years beyond its current termination date (to 24 January, 
2045), on terms and conditions otherwise identical to those contained in the 
existing lease;  and  

(ii) to reject the proposal put forward by Castlegate Arts as regards the removal 
of the tenants repairing liability (building fabric and condition) from the lease.    

 
 
 
101 GEORGE STREET, ABERDEEN – EXTENSION OF SUB LEASE 
(EPI/10/178) 
 
46. Reference was made to article 59 of the minute of meeting of the former 
Resources Management Committee of 10 March, 2009, at which time it was agreed 
to sub lease 101 George Street, Aberdeen, to the Board of the Third World Centre 
(Fairtrade Goods), who had been required because of ongoing refurbishment works 
to vacate their then premises within St. Nicholas Kirk (St. Mary’s Chapel). The 
Committee now had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which advised with regard to the receipt of a request from the Third 
World Centre, that their sub lease of the premises at 101 George Street, Aberdeen, 
be extended for a further two years on the same terms and conditions.    
 
The report before members (1) advised with regard to the current terms and 
conditions under which the Third World Centre lease the premises at 101 George 
Street from the Council, who themselves are tenants of the property under a Head 
Lease;  (2) made reference to the request received for an extension, a copy of the 
letter from the Chair of the Third World Centre being attached to the report;  (3) 
outlined the financial and other implications for the Council of acceding to the 
request;  and (4) concluded with an assessment by the Head of Asset Management 
and Operations of the wider situation as regards alternative premises for the Third 
World Centre.    
 

Page 46



 3095 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
 (i) to reject the Third World Centre’s request to be granted a further two year 

sub lease of the property at 101 George Street, on identical terms and 
conditions to their existing sub lease; 

(ii) to instruct the Head of Asset Management and Operations to advertise the 
Council’s interest in the shop for sub lease, for the period after 31 March, 
2011;  and  

(iii) to instruct the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to formally conclude 
such a sub lease, on terms and conditions as are necessary to protect the 
Council’s interests.   

 
 
 
KIRKTON AVENUE, DYCE (0.74 ACRE SITE) – FUTURE USE (EPI/10/177) 
 
47. Reference was made to article 39 of the minute of its meeting of 10 
December, 2009, at which time there was under consideration a report by the 
Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure which advised of the receipt of a 
request to buy an area of Council owned ground extending to some 0.74 of an acre 
at Kirkton Avenue, Pitmedden Road Industrial Estate, Dyce.   The resolution of the 
Committee at the time was to instruct the then Head of Resources Development 
and Delivery to enter into negotiations with the prospective purchasers and to 
report further in due course.  The Committee now had before it the further report 
requested. 
 
The report before members advised of the outcome of the provisional negotiations 
and outlined the basis upon which the prospective purchase price was arrived at;  
advised also of the opposition expressed by local roads officials to the creation of 
any access to the site from Dyce Drive, for road safety reasons;  and confirmed that 
the view of the Head of Planning and Sustainable Development was that any 
change of use from amenity land to industrial use would require to be the subject of 
a grant of planning permission. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the proposed sale on the basis outlined within the report;  and  
(ii) to instruct the Head of Asset Management and Operations together with the 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services to formally conclude the sale. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 3096 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
UNIT 5, TILLYDRONE SHOPPING CENTRE (EPI/10/176) 
 
48. The Committee had under consideration a report by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure relative to a request received from the 
Tillydrone Community Council, who currently occupied space at the Portal Centre 
from which they run two projects, that they be permitted to lease Unit 5 at the 
Tillydrone Shopping Centre at a nominal rent in order that these projects may 
continue should the Portal Centre close down. 
 
The report (1) provided an overview of the situation at the shopping centre where 
three units, including Unit 5, have been vacant for some time; (2) alluded to the 
concern on the part of Tillydrone Community Council that the Portal Centre was 
unlikely to remain open and available to it much longer; (3) advised with regard to 
the funding arrangements surrounding Community Councils and their inability in the 
present case to pay a commercial rent for the premises sought; (4) highlighted the 
financial advantage for the Council of letting the vacant unit, even at a nominal rent; 
(5) made reference to changes introduced with effect from 1 June, 2010, under the 
Disposal of Land by Local Authorities (Scotland) Regulations 2010, which 
substantially altered the need to obtain consent from the First Minister in cases 
where property is disposed of for less than the best possible consideration and the 
implications of those changes in relation to the situation under consideration; and 
(6) concluded that a lease as proposed in terms of the report would no longer 
require Scottish Government consent. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the request by Tillydrone Community Council to lease Unit 5 at 

Tillydrone Shopping Centre for an initial period of one year at a rent of £1 
per annum; and 

(ii) to instruct the Head of Asset Management and Operations and the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services to conclude a lease with the Community 
Council. 

 
 
 
QUEEN’S LINKS OUTDOOR SPORTS CENTRE (EPI/10/179) 
 
49. Reference was made to article 41 of the minute of the Committee meeting of 
10 December, 2009, at which time there was under consideration a report by the 
Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure regarding the interest expressed 
by Transition Extreme Sports Limited as tenants of the immediately adjacent area 
of ground at Queen’s Links, in leasing the site of the former Queen’s Links Outdoor 
Sports Centre which the Council had now declared surplus to requirements.  The 
resolution of the Committee at that time, having considered Transition Extreme 

Page 48



 3097 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Sport’s (TES) proposals for the site, was to agree the granting of a new long term 
lease of the former outdoor sports centre site to TES, on similar terms and 
conditions to those currently in place for the adjacent site at Queen’s Links but 
subject to the receipt of confirmation that appropriate loan funding from Social 
Investment Scotland had been received by 31 March, 2010 and also that the 
financial stability of TES had been evidenced to the Council’s satisfaction.  In the 
event that the conditions imposed were not purified by the due date, appropriate 
Council officers were instructed to advertise the outdoor centre site as being 
available for lease for any use capable of achieving planning permission.  The 
Committee had now before it a further report on the matter by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure. 
 
The report (1) made reference to the decision taken by the Committee at its 
meeting of 10 December, 2009, and advised that TES had been unable to purify 
either of the conditions imposed although it had provided an explanation as to why 
the timeframe of 31 March, 2010 had not been met; (2) outlined the current 
situation as regards engagement with Scottish Enterprise, the carrying out of an 
activity feasibility study and meetings with planning and building consultants to 
commence discussion on the physical site preparation and planning; (3) gave an 
indication of the progress made as regards an application to Social Investment 
Scotland (SIS) for grant funding support; and (4) referred to the existing relationship 
between TES and SIS who already regard TES as an award winning social 
enterprise and youth charity.  On the matter of satisfying the Council of its financial 
stability, the report confirmed that TES had provided the Council with audited 
accounts for the year ending March, 2009 and cash projections for 2010 and 2011, 
together with other financial data which were currently being assessed by the Head 
of Finance.  By way of additional information relating to the future use of the former 
outdoor centre at the Queen’s Links, the report made reference to a second 
unsolicited approach received which involved a use similar to the proposals being 
put forward by TES and in respect of which the Council may wish to pursue in the 
event that TES are unable to raise the finance that they require to take their plans 
forward. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to grant Transition Extreme Sports Limited an extension to its previous 

deadline of 31 March, 2010, until 30 September, 2010, to confirm receipt of 
appropriate loan funding from Social Investment Scotland and to evidence 
its financial stability to the Council; 

(ii) that in the event that the appropriate confirmation and evidence is produced 
by the new deadline, to instruct the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
to formally conclude a lease on similar terms and conditions to those 
pertaining to its ground lease of the adjacent site (rent at £1 per annum etc) 
until 29 March, 2047 and subject to such other terms and conditions as are 

Page 49



 3098 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

felt necessary to protect the Council’s interests; 
(iii) that in the event that Transition Extreme Sports Limited cannot either obtain 

appropriate loan funding or evidence its financial stability by 30 September, 
2010, to authorise the Head of Asset Management and Operations, if 
appropriate, to advertise the Queen’s Links Outdoor Centre for lease on the 
open market for any use capable of achieving planning permission; and 

(iv) that in the event that the provisions referred to at (iii) above come to pass, it 
be remitted to appropriate officers to report back to a future meeting of the 
Committee on the responses received to the advertising process. 

 
 
 
8 LINKSFIELD PLACE, ABERDEEN (EPI/10/174) 
 
50. The Committee had under consideration a report by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure regarding the Council owned building at 
8 Linksfield Place, Aberdeen, which was held on the Social Work Account and 
currently in use, without the benefit of a formal lease, for a social service purpose. 
 
The report contained a description of the property and a plan showing its extent 
and location; advised with regard to the current use which although in place for a 
number of years was not supported by a formal lease agreement; provided an 
outline of the extent to which the property is utilised by the voluntary organisation in 
question; and indicated the basis of the lease agreement being proposed.  The 
current cost to the Social Care and Wellbeing budget, which would pertain 
notwithstanding the introduction of a formal lease, was also highlighted within the 
report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve in principle the lease of 8 Linksfield Place, Aberdeen to 

Alcoholics Anonymous on the basis of the provisionally agreed terms and 
conditions outlined; and 

(ii) to instruct the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to formally conclude 
the lease as agreed and otherwise on terms and conditions required to 
protect the Council’s interests. 

 
 
 
STAFF (TIED) HOUSES (EPI/10/175) 
 
51. Reference was made to the minute of meeting of the Audit and Risk 
Committee of 8 September, 2009 (article 5 refers) whereby members instructed 
that each Director report back to their Service Committees detailing how many tied 

Page 50



 3099 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
houses were still in existence, where they were located, and further providing a 
justification for the houses remaining as tied. It was further instructed that this 
Committee take a corporate overview of the reports to the Service Committees in 
this regard. The relevant extracts having been considered at all Service 
Committees, the Committee had before it on this day the report requested back at 
the aforementioned meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee.  
 
The report explained that the Head of Asset Management and Operations had 
responsibility for the ownership and management of 51 staff houses, of which three 
had been identified by the Service Committees as being required to remain as tied 
properties, and presented a number of options in respect of the future management 
of the tied houses.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to instruct that any houses currently vacant, and any other houses that 

become vacant in the future and which are identified as not being required 
for future use as staff houses, are withdrawn from the staff houses stock and 
declared surplus to requirements, and to authorise the Head of Asset 
Management and Operations, in relation to such houses, to follow the 
adopted procedure for dealing with surplus vacant properties, by circulating 
their availability to all Council Services and Partners; if no interest is 
expressed, he would then submit reports to future meetings of this 
Committee to consider their disposal on the open market; if any houses 
which adjoin or are adjacent to other Council properties earmarked for 
closure become vacant, then, pragmatically, consideration should be given 
to departing from the above procedure so that such a vacant house could be 
combined with the earmarked vacant property for a joint disposal; 

(ii) to instruct the Head of Asset Management and Operations to consult the 
tenants of the staff houses on various appropriate issues that may affect 
their future occupancy, including the proposal to remove the rental discounts 
currently applying and to increase the rents payable by them to the levels of 
the prevailing Housing Revenue Account rents, as detailed within the report, 
and to report back to this Committee on 28 September, 2010 with the 
outcome of that consultation; 

(iii) to instruct, in terms of any houses affected by the 3Rs Project or the closure 
of adjoining Council properties, where it is agreed that there is no future 
requirement for a house to be included with the adjoining property for joint 
disposal, that the Head of Asset Management and Operations consults the 
tenants of each house adjoining such a property without commitment, on 
whether (a) they would wish to purchase the house at a market value, or at 
the appropriate reduced value (should the Right to Buy apply in that case), 
or (b) would wish the house, and, therefore, their tenancy, to possibly 
transfer to the Housing Revenue Account, subject to the matter being 

Page 51



 3100 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

referred to the Housing and Environment Committee at the appropriate time 
for its consideration; and to report back to this Committee with the outcome 
of that consultation; 

(iv) to authorise the Head of Asset Management and Operations, in terms of 
those houses currently occupied by retired non janitor staff, and where the 
tenant has transferred to the 3Rs operating company, together with any 
other such situations arising in the future, to take or instruct all necessary 
legal action in order to secure vacant possession of the houses in question, 
with the adopted procedure for dealing with surplus vacant properties 
thereafter being followed in relation to such houses;  

(v) to instruct the Head of Asset Management and Operations to submit a report 
to a future meeting of the Housing and Environment Committee regarding 
the feasibility of appropriate staff houses being transferred to the Housing 
Revenue Account in the future; 

(vi) to instruct that the Head of Asset Management and Operations, in 
consultation with the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, review the 
staff house leases with a view to ensuring they comply with relevant 
statutory provisions; and 

(vii) to refer this report to the meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee of 21 
September, 2010 for its information. 

 
 
 
RETAIL ROCKS (EPI/10/132) 
 
52. With reference to article 24 of the minute of its meeting of 28 January, 2010, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which updated members on the progress of the implementation of the 
Retail Rocks initiative.  
 
The report advised on progress as follows (1) the installation of new CCTV was 
85% complete; (2) the installation of new street lighting was 90% complete; (3) the 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee of 31 May, 2010 had approved 
the completion of a parking and traffic survey for revisions to the parking regime for 
the Torry central area (article 18 of the minute refers); (4) the assembly of project 
and franchise documentation was in the process of being finalised; and (5) Ryden 
(the Council’s agent) had agreed acceptable purchase prices, based on fair market 
value, for all but one of the properties targeted for acquisition.  
 
The report continued to provide an update on the progress with regards setting up 
an arm’s length organisation, Retail Rocks Aberdeen Limited; requested that 
members agree the composition of the proposed new Board, providing two options 
in this regard; and advised of prospective Directors’ statutory responsibilities.  

Page 52



 3101 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
The report provided a breakdown of acquisition and technical costs in relation to 
the structural refurbishment of the two tenements owned by the Council at 24 and 
30 Menzies Road; and concluded by detailing the timescales associated with the 
project. Appended to the report was a chart identifying stakeholders in the Retail 
Rocks project, how they related to each other, and the project documentation 
required.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the progress to date on key aspects of the project including (1) 

property identification and development of costs for refurbishment; (2) 
promotion of multi sector partnership working; (3) development of the 
competition framework within a franchise agreement; and (4) support for the 
wider business community in Torry Town Centre including CCTV, street 
lighting and revised parking and traffic management;  

(ii) to agree to the incorporation of Retails Rocks Aberdeen Limited, and to 
instruct that the overall composition of the Board be five Directors including 
two administration Councillors (namely Councillors Corall and Fletcher) and 
one opposition Councillor (to be agreed outwith this meeting), and to 
authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to sign all appropriate 
documentation;  

(iii)  to note that Retail Rocks Aberdeen Limited would be a wholly owned, limited 
guarantee company, established at arm’s length to the Council; 

(iv) to note that an additional £50,000 budget provision would be made available 
from within the current total Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure budget 
for 2010/2011 for the completion of the Retail Rocks project to cover (a) 
additional unforeseen costs associated with the property acquisition, (b) 
refurbishment and associated legal costs, (c) the creation of a new arm‘s 
length company, Retails Rocks Aberdeen Limited, and (d) community 
engagement linked to the formal announcement of the competition at the 
Torry Gala to be held on 19 June, 2010; 

(v) to approve the estimated costs for construction works as prepared by 
technical officers in the Housing and Environment Service, and to seek open 
competitive tenders in line with financial regulations; 

(vi) to note the revised project timescales, and to authorise officers to negotiate 
revisions to the programme dates as identified in the original Town Centre 
Regeneration Fund award with the Scottish Government; and  

(vii) to instruct that a progress report be submitted on this project at the meeting 
of this Committee on 28 September, 2010.  

 
 
 
 

Page 53



 3102 
 
 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
17 June, 2010 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Councillor Dunbar declared a potential pecuniary interest in the subject 
matter of the following article, and withdrew from the meeting prior to 
consideration of the matter.  
 
The Convener declared an interest in the same article by virtue of his 
position as a member of the Grampian Joint Police Board. The 
Convener advised that he had at no stage discussed this matter at a 
meeting of the Grampian Joint Police Board, and therefore would 
remain in the meeting.  Councillor John West declared an interest by 
virtue of his position as substitute member of the Grampian Joint 
Police Board and also confirmed he had not taken part in any 
discussion of this matter at any meeting of the Board, and therefore 
would also remain in the meeting.  

 
 
 
SUMMERHILL – MARKETING EXERCISE (EPI/10/167) 
 
53. Reference was made to article 49 of the minute of meeting of this Committee 
of 17 September, 2009 whereby it was agreed to appoint Graham and Sibbald as 
external property advisers in relation to the sale and marketing of the Summerhill 
Education Centre. The report before members on this day advised that the site had 
been placed on the market in early 2010, with a closing date for offers of 27 April, 
2010. Eight offers had been received, and details of these offers were circulated to 
members at the meeting, along with the financial implications of each offer and 
recommendations as to the proposed way forward.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to accept the highest scoring offer for the site, identified as offerer A in 

appendix 1 (as circulated at the meeting), as the preferred bidder;  
(ii) to instruct officers to conclude missives for the sale of the property, 

incorporating all qualifications as necessary to protect the Council’s 
interests; and 

(iii) to instruct the Head of Asset Management and Operations to report further 
to this Committee on the actions taken by officers, including the complete 
financial settlement from the disposal of the property and the costs 
associated with relocating all the existing uses. 

- COUNCILLOR KEVIN STEWART, Convener. 
  

Page 54



LORD PROVOST SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 ABERDEEN, 29th April 2010 – Minute of Meeting of the LORD PROVOST 

SUB-COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Lord Provost Peter Stephen, Chairperson; 
Depute Provost Dunbar; and Councillors Cooney, Donnelly (substituting for 
Councillor Wisely) and Malone.   
Also in attendance:-  Beverley Graham, Office of Chief Executive; Catriona 
Gilmour, Accountant, Corporate Governance; Bill Farquhar, Events Team, 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure; Ciaran Monaghan, Office of Chief 
Executive; and Vikki Cuthbert and Lynsey Davidson, Corporate Governance. 

 
 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
1. Apologies were intimated on behalf of John Johnstone, Paula Fullerton and 
Alasdair Ross. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
2. The Sub-Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 4th 
February, 2010. 
 
The Sub-Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
MATTERS ARISING 
 
3. (A) Lord Provost Robes 
 
With reference to item 3, the Lord Provost advised that funding allocated from the 
civic hospitality budget in 2009/10 to the European Curling Championships had 
recently been returned to the Council and, in addition, a sum of £1500 had been 
gifted by the organisation to fund the replacement of the Lord Provost robes.  It was 
also noted that, should any money be left over from this amount, it was to be 
allocated to the Lord Provost Charitable Trust.   
 
The Sub Committee noted its sincere appreciation for this gesture. 
 

(B) Replacement Boarding and Foam in Furniture 
 
With reference to item 3, the clerk provided an update, and intimated that the 
seating in the Lord Provost’s office had been assessed by the Facilities 
Management Team and costings as well as a contractor were being looked at for 
the restorative work. 
 
 
BATTLE OF HARLAW WORKING GROUP MINUTE 
 
4. The Sub Committee had before it for information, the minute of the meeting 
of the Battle of Harlaw Working Group or 15 March, 2010, for information. 

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 55



 2

 
The Lord Provost provided an update on the current work being undertaken by the 
Working Group and advised that any further progress would be reported to the Sub 
Committee in due course. 
 
The Sub-Committee resolved:- 
to note the minute 
 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION BY COUNCILLOR DONNELLY, REFERRED BY FINANCE 
AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE OF 11 MARCH 2010 
 
5. With reference to article 14 of the minute of the Finance and Resources 
Committee of 11 March, 2010, the Sub-Committee had before it a motion in the 
following terms by Councillor Donnelly:- 

"This Council welcomes the Government's move to honour and celebrate 
The Queen's Diamond Jubilee in 2012 with a public holiday and weekend 
event, and calls on this Council to follow suit with a celebration in Aberdeen 
in recognition of The Queen's service to the people of the United Kingdom 
and Commonwealth and her 60 year leadership role within the international 
community of the free world". 

 
Councillor Donnelly spoke in support of his motion. 
 
The Sub-Committee had before it a background report, which provided a summary 
on the current situation, both nationally and locally in regards to celebrating the 
Queens Diamond jubilee in 2012. 
 
The report advised that a statement had been made in the House of Lords in 
January, announcing the Government’s proposals and initial plans to mark the 
Queen’s Diamond Jubilee and in March, the First Minister confirmed that an 
additional Jubilee bank holiday be held on Tuesday 5 June and that the Scottish 
Government was currently working with the UK Government on plans for a series of 
events across Scotland. 
 
The report also identified various other methods of celebration and noted that (1) 
the Government announced there would be a Jubilee medal struck, although it was 
too early to say who would receive it; (2) that competitions were to be run which 
would allow towns to become cities and for the Mayors or Provosts of existing cities 
to bid to become Lord Mayors or Lord Provosts and (3) that a decision had been 
taken to confer Royal Borough status on Greenwich. 
 
Ciaran Monaghan outlined that when the Queen visited Aberdeen as part of the 
Golden Jubilee celebrations, it was as part of the national programme of activity 
and noted that confirmation was still to be received on the national programme for 
the Diamond Jubilee.  As a result, Ciaran advised that it would be more worthwhile 
to report back to the Sub-Committee with ideas and suggestions for the 
commemoration once a national programme had been decided. 
 
During discussion on the report, the following suggestions for local celebrations 
were made:- 

• Inviting those born on the day of the Queen’s accession to the throne for tea 
with the Lord Provost in the Town House 

Page 56



 3

• Involving city schools in the design of a birthday card for the Queen 
• Installing a piper at the entrance to the Town House on the day of the 

Queens Diamond Jubilee in 2012; and 
• Holding a service of thanksgiving for the Queens life 

 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Sub-Committee note the information provided and request that officers 
provide further reports on proposed activities and events for Aberdeen once the 
details of the Government’s proposed arrangements for the Diamond Jubilee 
celebrations are known. 
 
 
The Sub Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
CIVIC HOSPITALITY 
 
6. (A) Financial Report 
 
The Sub Committee had before it for information, the financial information for the 
Civic Hospitality budget for 2010/11 and 2011/12 and the Lord Provost Gift Fund 
Common good budget for 2010/11. 
    
The Sub-Committee resolved:- 
to note the information provided. 
  
 
 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 

Depute Provost Dunbar declared an interest in the following article (1) 
by virtue of Smithfield School being in her ward and (2) by virtue of her 
appointment to the Board of Grampian Police . 
Lord Provost declared an interest in the following article due to being a 
patron of Aberdeen International Youth Festival. 
Councillor Cooney declared an interest by virtue of his membership on 
the Board of Aberdeen International Youth Festival. 
Councillor Donnelly declared a non-pecuniary interest as a Board 
Member of Aberdeen Citizens Advice Bureau.  None of the members 
felt it necessary to leave the room during consideration of the item. 

 
(B) Civic Hospitality Requests 2010/11 

 
The Sub-Committee had before it various applications for the provision of civic 
hospitality for the financial year 2010/11. 
 
 
The Sub Committee resolved:- 
to approve the civic hospitality as follows:- 
 
 

Page 57



 4

Occasion Date of Event Venue Hospitality to be 
granted 

Presentation to 
Boy’s Brigade 
Queens’s Men 
2010 

12 May 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Tea, Coffee, Juice 
and Sandwiches 
for 80 

Grampian Pre 
Retirement Council 
AGM 

1 June 2010 Committee Room 
5 

Tea, Coffee, 
Sandwiches and 
Biscuits for 30 

UK/Norway Cross-
Border Business 
Mentoring Scheme 

1 June 2010 Maritime Museum Wine/Juice and 
Fork Buffet and 50 

Aberdeen 
Endowments Trust 
Centenary 

3 June 2010 St Nicholas Room Wine/Juice and 
Finger Buffet for 60 

Smithfield School 
60th Anniversary 

10 June 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Wine/Juice and 
Finger Buffet for 75 

Grampian Police 
Long Service and 
Good Conduct 
Awards 

14 June 2010 Beach Ballroom Venue Costs only 

Aberdeen Highland 
Games 50th 
Anniversary 

20 June 2010 Hazlehead Park Wine/Juice and 
Finger Buffet for 
150 

Baltimore/Maryland 
Summer School 

6 July 2010 St Nicholas Room Tea, Coffee and 
Biscuits and Tour 
for 50 

Aberdeen 
International 
Football Festival 
Launch 

19 July 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Wine/Juice and 
Finger Buffet for 
100 

City of Aberdeen 
Bowling 
Tournament 

24 July 2010 Westburn Park 
Lounge 

High Tea for 100 

Aberdeen 
International Youth 
Festival Opening 

29 July 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Afternoon Tea for 
100 

Aberdeen 
International Youth 
Festival Farewell 
Party 

6 August 2010 Beach Ballroom Wine/Beer and 
Finger Buffet for 
150, Free Soft 
Drinks for 400 (x3) 
and 
Wine/Beer/Beer 
Vouchers for 100 
(x3) 

Heads of 
University Centres 
for Biomedical 
Science 

9 September 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Wine/Juice on 
arrival for 100 

Robert Burns 
World Federation 
International 

10 September 
2010 

Bruce Room Tea, Coffee, 
Scones and 
Pancakes for 30 

Page 58



 5

Conference 
Aberdeen Citizens 
Advice Bureau 

13 September 
2010 

Town and County 
Hall 

Tea, Coffee and 
Biscuits for 60 

Conference of 
Peripheral 
Maritime Regions 

30 September 
2010 

Beach Ballroom Wine Reception 
and 3 Course 
Dinner for 500 

Cornerstone 
Altonrea 25th 
Anniversary 

6 October 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Afternoon Tea for 
70 

VSA Annual 
General Meeting 

13 October 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Tea, Coffee and 
Biscuits for 50 

Aberdeen Civic 
Society Awards 
Ceremony 

20 October 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Glass of Wine on 
Arrival, Tea/Coffee 
and Biscuits for 
100 

Aberdeen 
Funolympics 

24 October 2010 Beach Ballroom Soft Drinks, Finger 
Buffet and Disco 
for 110 

Instant Neighbour 
25th Anniversary 

3 December 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Sparkling wine and 
Juice on Arrival for 
120 

 
 
 

(C) Civic Hospitality Requests 2011/12 
 
The Sub-Committee had before it one application for the provision of civic 
hospitality for the financial year 2011/12. 
 
The Sub Committee resolved:- 
to approve the civic hospitality as follows:- 
 
  
Occasion Date of Event Venue Hospitality to be 

granted 
Aberdeen 
Grammar School 
Former Pupils 
Hockey Club 
Centenart 

24 June 2011 Town and County 
Hall 

Wine, Juice and 
Finger Buffet for 
150 

 
 

(D) Use of Delegated Powers 
 
 
The Sub-Committee had before it for information, three applications for civic 
hospitality which had been agreed under delegated powers. 
 
Occasion Date of Event Venue Hospitality 

granted 
Squarefest 2010 
Dance Festival 

29 April 2010 Beach Ballroom Drink on Arrival for 
310 

Page 59



 6

Cultural Stratey 
Launch 
Conference 

29 April 2010 Town and County 
Hall 

Wine Reception 
and Canapés for 
50 

Aberdeen Artists 
Society 

30 April 2010 Aberdeen Art 
Gallery 

Drink on Arrival for 
200 

 
 
The Sub-Committee resolved:- 
to note the information provided. 
 
 
AOCB 
 
7. The Lord Provost declared the meeting open for any other competent 
business, whereupon Councillor Donnelly brought to the attention of the Sub 
Committee that at the last meeting of the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee of 20 April, 2010, it was agreed that a grant of £3,125 be awarded to 
bring the Mayor of Gomel, his spouse and an interpreter to Aberdeen to mark the 
20th anniversary of the twin city partnership between Aberdeen and Gomel and that 
an application for civic hospitality may be forthcoming in due course. 
 
The Sub Committee resolved:- 
to note the information provided. 
 
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
8. The Sub-Committee noted that the next meeting was scheduled for 
Thursday 8th July, 2010. 
 
The Sub-Committee resolved:- 
to approve the date. 
-LORD PROVOST STEPHEN - Chairperson 
 
 
 
  

Page 60



 

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

COMMITTEE BUSINESS 
 

SEPTEMBER, 2010 
 

No. Minute 
Reference 

 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

1. Resources 
Management 
Committee 
29/03/07 
article 44 
 
Area 
Committee 
Central 
19/11/08 
article 18 

105-107 Urquhart Road 
 
At its meeting of 19/11/08, the 
Committee resolved:- 
to request that a Planning Brief be 
developed for this property, and 
instruct the Head of Resources, 
Development and Delivery to report 
back thereafter. 
 
 

The Draft Planning Brief will be 
considered by the Development 
Management Sub Committee on 
17 June, 2010.  A report will 
therefore be submitted to the next 
meeting of this Committee. 
 
An update is provided in the 
information bulletin.  

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

 28/09/10 

2. Area 
Committee 
Central 
23/09/08 article 
14; and  
01/04/09 article 
12 

Frederick Street Development Site 
 
At its meeting of 1/4/09, the 
Committee resolved:- 
to recommend to the Resources 
Management Committee that in light 
of the information conveyed to the 
Committee in relation to the 
timescales of NHS Grampian, 
including that capital receipt may not 
be realised until 2011/12, for officers 
to continue discussions with NHS 
Grampian. 
 
 
 
 
 

Update: 
At the present time officers are 
continuing to discuss the detail of 
NHS Grampian’s proposals 
including the proposed multi-
storey car park.  A relocation plan 
for services is also being 
developed. 
  

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

07/01/09 02/12/10 

A
genda Item

 3.3

P
age 61



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

3. Resources 
Management 
Committee 
07/02/07 
article 27; 
Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
53 

Summerhill Education Centre 
 
At its meeting of 17/06/10, the 
Committee resolved: 
to instruct the Head of Asset 
Management and Operations to 
report further to this Committee on 
the actions taken by officers, 
including the complete financial 
settlement from the disposal of the 
property and the costs associated 
with relocating all the existing uses. 
 

A report is on the agenda at 
item 12.11.  
 
Recommended for removal.   

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

  

4. Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
Committee 
12/11/09 article 
33 

Great Southern Road/Holburn 
Street (Disused Public Toilet and 
Advertising Site) 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that the Head of Resources 
Development and Delivery be 
authorised to consider other options 
for the disposal of the site including, 
if appropriate, further negotiation 
with the current neighbour with a 
report back to the Committee at an 
appropriate time.   

Update: 
Further investigation of all issues 
is ongoing, and will be reported 
to next committee.  

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

28/09/10 002/12/10 

5. Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
12/11/09 article 
35, 11/03/10 
article 34, 
11/05/10 article 
48, 17/06/10 
article 41 

St Nicholas House Site 
 
At its meeting of 17/06/10 the 
Committee resolved: 
to refer this matter to the 
Leadership Board for 
consideration, and that if there 
was no resolution, to refer the 
members in question to the 

Update: 
This matter was discussed at the 
Leadership Board meetings of 
23 June and 11 August.  The 
Group Leader of the councillors 
concerned has confirmed that in 
their view as they had nothing to 
report to the Monitoring Officer 
there was no requirement for 

Head of Legal 
and Democratic 
Services   
 
Head of Office of 
Chief Executive  

17/06/10  

P
age 62



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

Standards Commission.  
 

them to attend an interview with 
her.  
 

6. Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
12/11/09 article 
40 

Non Housing Capital Project – 
Evaluation of Contractors’ 
Performance  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to instruct the Head of Resources 
Development and Delivery to report 
back in two cycles; and in one year 
on the level of performance of these 
two contractors on Non Housing 
projects.  
 

Since the report, one of the 
contractors has been 
unsuccessful in all of the tenders 
that they have submitted. The 
second contractor referred to in 
the aforementioned report has 
carried out one minor project in 
the intervening period. This 
project was of such a minor 
nature that it would be 
unreasonable to use it as an 
indicator as to whether they had 
fully addressed the previously 
highlighted shortcomings in their 
performance. As a result, the 
performance of both of these 
contractors will continue to be 
monitored as and when they are 
successful in the tender process. 

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

02/12/10  

7. Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
12/11/09 article 
42 

Ground at Loirston Loch 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that the Head of Resources, 
Development and Delivery and other 
appropriate officials (including the 
City Solicitor and City Chamberlain), 
be authorised to enter into 
discussions with Hermiston 
Securities concerning the creation of 
an appropriate development 
agreement for the long term 
development of the Loirston Loch 

A report is on the agenda.  
 
Recommended for removal.  
 

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

06/05/10 28/09/10 

P
age 63



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

area and that this matter be reported 
back to a future Committee meeting. 
 

8. Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
10/12/09 article 
30 

Physiotherapy Pilot 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the continuation of the 
project and to request that the pilot 
be assessed for impact, including a 
cost benefit analysis; and a report 
submitted to this Committee once 
this evaluation has been completed. 

Update: 
The Physiotherapy pilot is 
complete but the Head of 
Human Resources has asked 
the Occupational Health 
Provider, SERCO, to expand on 
the evaluation report in order 
that meaningful decisions can be 
taken in relation to future 
practice. 

Head of Human 
Resources and 
Organisational 
Development   

11/03/10 02/12/10 

9. Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
10/12/09 article 
42 

8 Alford Place 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to instruct the Head of Resources 
Development and Delivery to 
advertise the property at 8 Alford 
Place for sub-lease from 1 April, 
2010 until the termination date under 
the Council’s head lease, and report 
further. 

Update: 
Ryden advise that property 
market for offices is currently flat 
with no interest currently 
expressed in leasing this 
property.  If necessary a Bulletin 
Report will be prepared for next 
appropriate meeting. 
 
 

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

06/05/10 28/09/10 

10.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
28/01/10 article 
2   
&  11/03/10 
article 31  
& 11/05/10 
article 34 

CAB – Debt Advice Service  
 
(A) At its meeting of 11/03/10 the 
Committee resolved:- 
to request a report back at each 
meeting of this Committee on all 
matters detailed within the report and 
in particular until a Service Level 
Agreement is in place between the 
Council and the CAB. 
 

Update: 
Debt advice services were 
handed over to Social Care and 
Wellbeing Service in July in 
preparation for the merger with 
the Welfare Rights Team.  Social 
Care and Wellbeing will initiate 
the procurement process for 
debt advice services currently 
provided by Aberdeen Citizens 
Advice Bureau. 
 

Director of Social 
Care and 
Wellbeing    

resolution 
(A) every 
cycle 
 
 

 

P
age 64



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

11.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
28/01/10 article 
13 

Altens Community Centre and 
Dyce (Carnegie Hall) Community 
Centre – Remedial Works  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that appropriate officers be 
requested to undertake consultation 
with the community groups 
concerned in order to ascertain 
whether the funding identified is 
actually required and to report back 
to the Committee thereon in due 
course. 
 
 

An officer has consulted with the 
management committee of 
Altens Community Centre who 
wish to advise that they consider 
it is the responsibility of the 
Council as landlord to affect 
repairs to the fabric of the 
building.  Any funds which they 
have are ringfenced for wages 
and funding centre activities.  
Dyce Development & Amenities 
Committee, who manage Dyce 
(Carnegie Hall), have been 
advised in writing of the 
committee decision. They have 
been asked to confirm in writing 
whether or not they are, as 
stated at committee, in a position 
to pay for remedial repairs.  To 
date, no reply has been 
received. 

 

At its meeting of 17/06/10, the 
Finance and Resources 
Committee resolved: 
to request that the Director of 
Education, Culture and Sport 
ascertain as to whether a 
response to the officer’s letter 
had been received to date, and 
advise members of the 
Committee in this regard. 
 

Director of 
Education, 
Culture and 
Sport  

17/06/10  

P
age 65



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

12.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
28/01/10 article 
25 

Capital Planning  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the amended Capital 
Prioritisation Process and instruct 
the Director of Enterprise, Planning 
and Infrastructure to commence its 
implementation for 2011/12, and to 
instruct that regular reports be 
submitted back to this Committee. 
 

A report is on the agenda at 
item 7.6.   

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

28/09/10  

13.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
28/01/10 article 
26 

Status of Surplus Education and 
Other Properties  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(ii) to authorise the Head of 

Resources Development and 
Delivery to market the former St. 
Peter’s Nursery, the former 
public toilets in High Street, Old 
Aberdeen and the former depot 
at Ruthrieston Road, and to 
submit a further report to the 
appropriate meeting of this 
Committee in due course 
detailing the results of the 
marketing;  and 

(iii) to authorise the Head of 
Resources Development and 
Delivery to enter into 
negotiations with the landlord of 
the site of the former Woodlands 
Special School, with a view to 
agreeing an appropriate exit 
strategy for the Council and to 

 
An update is included in the 
information bulletin.   

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

17/06/10 28/09/10 

P
age 66



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

report back to this in due 
course on the outcome. 

14.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
28/01/10 article 
40 

Pinewood/Hazledene 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that the Head of Resources 
Development and Delivery in 
conjunction with the Council’s 
external advisors, be instructed to 
review the future options and risks 
for the Council in dealing with this 
matter, in light of the information now 
available and to report back to 
Committee in May, 2010. 

A report is on the agenda at 
item 12.12.   
 
Recommended for removal.  

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

06/05/10 28/09/10 

15.Education, 
Culture and 
Sport 
Committee 
18/02/10 article 
25 

Essential Car User Scheme  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to request that the Finance and 
Resources Committee look into the 
issue of Essential Car Users 
Schemes for all staff and, in 
particular, the issue of lump sum 
payments. 

This issue was reported to the 
Corporate Management Team 
on 13 May, 2010.  It was 
decided that the Chief Executive 
and Director of Corporate 
Governance would take the 
matter forward in conjunction 
with colleagues in HR.  The 
position will then be reported to 
Committee.  
 
Update: 
Savings in relation to essential 
car user allowances are part of a 
basket of measures currently 
being consulted on in relation to 
the incremental progression 
issue.  As this is currently being 
consulted on, it was considered 
imprudent to report specifically 

Head of Human 
Resources and 
Organisational 
Development  

17/06/10 02/12/10 

P
age 67



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

on this matter at this juncture.  
 
It can be confirmed, however, 
that the allowance has been 
withdrawn from all Chief Officer 
posts. 

16.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/03/10 article 
11 

Common Good Budget  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(vi) to seek a review of Council 

funding for all trusts in order 
to assess Best Value; and 

(vii) to request a report back in the 
near future, on the pension 
liabilities of the CAB and other 
organisations. 

 

In relation to resolution (vi), a  
report will be submitted next 
cycle.  
 
In relation to resolution (vii), a 
report is on the agenda at item 
7.5. This item is recommended 
for removal.  
 
 

Head of Finance  28/09/10 02/12/10 

17.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/03/10 article 
12 

Former Carden School – Dyce 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) that the availability of the 

property be circulated to 
Service Departments and the 
North East Property Group; 

(ii) that failing the identification of 
any future public sector use, 
officers be authorised to 
undertake all other necessary 
investigations, including the 
negotiation of boundaries, 
with the Education, Culture 
and Sports Service with a 
view to exposing the site to 
the market;  and 

(iii) that officers report back to a 

Property included in surplus 
property bulletin.  

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations  

28/09/10  

P
age 68



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

future meeting of the 
Committee on the outcome of 
the foregoing resolutions. 

18.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/03/10 article 
20 

Applications for Financial 
Assistance 2009/10 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to instruct officers to bring forward a 
report detailing ways in which the 
grant application system can be 
streamlined especially with regard to 
reporting to Committee. 
 

A report will be submitted next 
cycle.   
 

Head of Finance  28/09/10  

19.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/03/10 article 
26 

Corporate Asset Management 
System – Progress 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that the Director of Corporate 
Governance be requested to report 
back on progress at every cycle, and 
for the reports to be presented in a 
format that is easily read and 
understood. 
 

 
A report is on the agenda at 
item 12.2.  
 
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Governance 

Every 
cycle  

 

20.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/03/10 article 
28 

Grove Lodge  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that a further report be prepared in 
due course advising the Committee 
of the outcome of the marketing 
exercise.   

Property included in surplus 
property bulletin. 

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

28/09/10  

P
age 69



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

21.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/03/10 article 
33 

Townscape Heritage Initiative  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to request that a verbal update be 
provided at every meeting of this 
Committee on the contractual and 
legal issues associated with this 
project. 

A verbal update will be 
provided at item 12.1 of the 
agenda.  

Head of Planning 
and Sustainable 
Development  

Every 
cycle  

 

22.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/03/10 article 
38 

Landfill Tax Credit Funding 2010-
2013 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve recommendations (a), 
(b), (c) and Option C in relation to 
recommendation (d) (to reject the 
application from Aberdeen 
Greenspace for funding in 2010/11 
and instruct officers to seek funding 
opportunities for projects in 
Aberdeen with other Environmental 
Bodies for 50% of the available 
Landfill Tax Credits and present a 
further report with revised 
recommendations to a future 
meeting of this Committee); and to 
request that this report also contain 
details of the implications for 
Aberdeen Greenspace. 

Update: 
Landfill tax credit funding for 
2010 is now being led by the 
Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure Service.  On 
arrival of the handover 
documents, an officer will be 
assigned to undertake the 
required investigations and 
prepare a report to committee by 
years end. 

Head of 
Environmental 
Services 

28/09/10 02/12/10 

P
age 70



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

23.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/05/10 article 
28 

Creation of a Human Resources 
Service Centre  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to instruct that the structural 
implications are reported to 
Committee as soon as is practicable, 
including details of the transfer of 
staffing posts from all five services. 

Update: 
It is planned to open the HR 
Service Centre in October.  It was 
considered preferable to report on 
progress following the opening of 
the centre. 

Head of HR and 
Organisational 
Development  

28/09/10 02/12/10 

24.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/05/10 article 
30 

Leadside Hall – Future Use  
 
The Committee resolved: 
that the Head of Asset Management 
and Operations be authorised to 
arrange for the combined site to be 
advertised for sale on the open 
market and to submit a further report 
to the appropriate meeting of this 
Committee in due course, detailing 
the outcome of the marketing 
exercise and including the 
appropriate financial and legal 
advice. 

 Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

02/12/10  

25.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/05/10 article 
42 

Station House Media Unit  
 
The Committee resolved: 
that appropriate officers be 
instructed to report again to the 
Committee on the future 
management, maintenance and 
operation of the adjacent car parking 
area which is not to be included 
within the subjects leased. 
 

 Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

02/12/10  

P
age 71



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

26.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
11/05/10 article 
45 

Granitehill Site  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to instruct the Head of Asset 
Management and Operations to (i) 
progress preliminary design and 
costing of the redevelopment of the 
site at Granitehill for Council 
purpose in anticipation of 
submitting a bid to the Non Housing 
Capital Plan appraisal process for 
2011/12, and (ii) maintain a 
watching brief on market conditions 
and report back as and when 
exposure of the site to the market 
might yield a favourable outcome. 

 

 Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

02/12/10  

27.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
19 

Annual Housing and Council Tax 
Benefit Report  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to instruct that an annual report be 
submitted to this Committee in June 
each year, which should detail the 
previous financial year’s Housing 
and Council Tax Benefit Service. 
 

 Head of Finance  16/06/11  

28.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
24 

Kinship Care Service – Business 
Case  
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i) to approve the posts as 

outlined above on a one year 
fixed term basis;  

(ii) to instruct that officers report 

 Head of 
Children’s 
Services  

16/06/11  

P
age 72



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

back, reviewing the situation 
when required.  

 
29.Finance and 

Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
27 

Pay Protection Arrangements – 
Review  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to instruct that officers report back 
with an update on this policy in due 
course.   

 Head of HR and 
Organisational 
Development  

01/02/11  

30.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
33 

Review of Cash Handling 
Arrangements  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to instruct that a report be submitted 
at the meeting of 28 September, 
2010, outlining progress and 
confirming the savings to be 
achieved as a result of this proposed 
reconfiguration. 

A report will be submitted next 
cycle.  

Head of Finance/ 
Head of 
Customer 
Service and 
Performance   

28/09/10 02/12/10 

31.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
49 

Queen’s Links Outdoor Centre 
 
The Committee resolved: 
that in the event that the provisions 
referred to at (c) above come to pass 
(ie if Transition Extreme Sports 
Limited cannot either obtain 
appropriate loan funding or evidence 
its financial stability by 30 
September, 2010, then the Head of 
Asset Management and Operations 
be authorised, if appropriate, to 
advertise the Queen’s Links Outdoor 
Centre for lease on the open market 

Update: 
Transitions are in active 
discussion with their Funder and a 
decision on the award is expected 
in mid September 2010.  If 
positive, Transition's Board 
meeting, on 20 September should 
be able to commit to the lease. 
 
 

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations  

 02/12/10 

P
age 73



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

for any use capable of achieving 
planning permission), it be remitted 
to appropriate officers to report back 
to a future meeting of the Committee 
on the responses received to the 
advertising process. 

32.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
51 

Staff/ Tied Houses  
 
The Committee resolved: 
 (ii) to instruct that the Head of 

Asset Management and 
Operations consults the 
tenants of the staff houses on 
various appropriate issues 
that may affect their future 
occupancy, including the 
proposal to remove the rental 
discounts currently applying 
and to increase the rents 
payable by them to the levels 
of the prevailing Housing 
Revenue Account rents, as 
detailed within the report, and 
to report back to this 
Committee on 14 September, 
2010 with the outcome of that 
consultation; 

(iii) to instruct, in terms of any 
houses affected by the 3Rs 
Project or the closure of 
adjoining Council properties, 
where it is agreed that there is 

A report is on the agenda at 
item 12.9. 
 
Recommended for removal.   

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Operations 

28/09/10  

P
age 74



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

no future requirement for a 
house to be included with the 
adjoining property for joint 
disposal, the Head of Asset 
Management and Operations 
consults the tenants of each 
house adjoining such a 
property without commitment, 
on whether (a) they would 
wish to purchase the house at 
a Market Value, or at the 
appropriate reduced value 
(should the Right to Buy apply 
in that case), or (b) would 
wish the house, and, 
therefore, their tenancy, to 
possibly transfer to the 
Housing Revenue Account, 
subject to the matter being 
referred to the Housing and 
Environment Committee at 
the appropriate time for its 
consideration; and to report 
back to this Committee with 
the outcome of that 
consultation; 

33.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
52 

Retail Rocks 
 
The Committee resolved: 
to instruct that a progress report be 
submitted on this project at the 
meeting of this Committee on 28 
September, 2010.  
 

A report is on the agenda at 
item 12.3.  
 
Recommended for removal.  

Project Director - 
Economic and 
Business 
Development   

28/09/10  

P
age 75



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

34.Finance and 
Resources 
Committee 
17/06/10 article 
7 

Employment Costs  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to concur with the Convener’s 
request to instruct appropriate 
officers to carry out a review of the 
rules and regulations surrounding 
the declaration of interests when 
dealing with Council specific matters 
such as the employment costs 
report, as these may become more 
prevalent given the present 
economic climate, and to report 
thereon to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 

A verbal update will be 
provided at the meeting.  

Head of Legal 
and Democratic 
Services  

  

35.Council  
18/08/10 
article tbc 

Future Funding and Development 
of AECC 
 
The Committee resolved: 
to instruct that reports be submitted 
to the Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure and/or Finance and 
Resources Committees each cycle. 

Update: 
Discussions are currently on-
going between Senior Officers in 
Corporate Governance and EP&I 
and the Board of AECC in respect 
of the financial restructuring and 
Board membership changes to 
asked for as part of the Council’s 
decision to provide AECC with an 
additional £568,000 grant, from 
unallocated reserves, during this 
financial year. 
In accordance with Council’s 
decision to support the creation of 
additional expansion space and 
car parking provision at AECC, to 
enable expansion of the Offshore 
Europe event, discussions are 
currently being held with AECC 
Executives and Reed Exhibitions 

Director of 
Enterprise, 
Planning and 
Infrastructure/ 
Head of Finance  

  

P
age 76



  
No. Minute 

Reference 
 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

Ltd to agree a plan for delivering 
these facilities by 1 June 2011. A 
paper will be submitted to Finance 
and resources committee on 2 
December outlining the financial 
implications of this project and 
requesting appropriate Committee 
approval for the capital spend 
needed to deliver this project. 

 

P
age 77



P
age 78

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

 

MOTIONS LIST 
 

SEPTEMBER, 2010 
 

No. Motion 
Date of 
Council 
Meeting 

Committee Motion referred to / 
 date/ decision of Committee 

Action taken / Proposed Future 
Action 

Responsible 
Head(s)  of 
Service 

Due Date 

Is 
authority 
sought to 
remove 
motion 
from list? 

1.  Motion by Councillor 
Jennifer Stewart 
“That this Council 
consults with occupiers 
in the terraced dwellings 
in Hazlehead Road, 
Hazlehead Gardens, 
Hazlehead Terrace, 
Hazlehead Crescent, 
Hazlehead Place and 
Provost Graham Avenue 
to find out if they can 
acquire or lease 
appropriate proportions 
of the adjacent Council-
owned land as individual 
defensible garden areas 
and that officers then 
report back on their 
findings.” 

09/04/08 At its meeting of 11 March, 
2010, the Committee 
resolved to agree to an 
initial survey being 
conducted by the Housing 
and Environmental Service 
with the local residents by 
means of an explanatory 
letter and questionnaire in 
order to gauge the level of 
interest in the scheme and 
that a further report be 
submitted to the this 
Committee in due course 
containing the results of 
the survey and any other 
detail on the financing of 
such a scheme.  

 Head of Asset 
Management 

28/09/10 No 

2.  Motion by Councillor 
Donnelly 
"This Council welcomes 
the Government's move 
to honour and celebrate 
The Queen's Diamond 
Jubilee in 2012 with a 
public holiday and 

10/02/10 The Committee resolved to 
request that a report on 
this motion be submitted to 
the Lord Provost Sub 
Committee, and for a 
further report detailing any 
financial implications to be 
brought back to this 

Update: 
At its meeting of 29 April, 
2010, the Lord Provost Sub 
Committee resolved to 
request that officers provide 
further reports on proposed 
activities and events for 
Aberdeen once the details 

Head of the 
Office of the 
Chief Executive 

28/09/10 No 

A
genda Item

 3.4

P
age 79



 2

No. Motion 
Date of 
Council 
Meeting 

Committee Motion referred to / 
 date/ decision of Committee 

Action taken / Proposed Future 
Action 

Responsible 
Head(s)  of 
Service 

Due Date 

Is 
authority 
sought to 
remove 
motion 
from list? 

weekend event, and 
calls on this Council to 
follow suit with a 
celebration in Aberdeen 
in recognition of The 
Queen's service to the 
people of the United 
Kingdom and 
Commonwealth and her 
60 year leadership role 
within the international 
community of the free 
world". 

Committee or the relevant 
Service Committee 
thereafter. 
 

of the Government’s 
proposed arrangements for 
the Diamond Jubilee 
celebrations are known.   

 

P
age 80



DRAFT 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
 

24 August, 2010 
 
 
REQUEST FOR DELAGATED POWERS AND THE USE OF WORK NOTICES 
– H&E/10/093  
 
1. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which requested that a number of delegated powers be granted to 
officers.  
 
The report provided background information on Maintenance Orders, 
Maintenance Accounts, Work Notices, and Rent Penalty Notices, and detailed 
how the proposed powers would be exercised.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee:- 
(a) note the content of the report; 
(b) delegates power to the Director of Housing and Environment to authorise 

the Private Sector Housing Officer (Scheme of Assistance), the Private 
Sector Housing Manager, and other officers as appropriate, to sign Work 
Notices and Maintenance Orders under the provisions of the Housing 
(Scotland) Act 2006, and for this delegation to be added to the Scheme of 
Delegation documents; 

(c) to approve the utilisation of £50,000 for the implementation of Work 
Notices from the monies in the 2010/11 Private Sector Housing Grant 
budget originally allocated for Serious Disrepair Notice enforcement 
works; 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 81



(d) to approve that the £50,000 allocation in the 2010/11 Private Sector 
Housing Grant budget for serving and enforcement of Maintenance 
Orders, can also be utilised for Maintenance Accounts; and 

(e) to delegate power to the Director of Housing and Environment to authorise 
the Senior Private Sector Housing Officer (Rented Sector), the Private 
Sector Housing Manager, and other officers as appropriate, to sign Rent 
Penalty Notices under the provisions of the Anti Social Behaviour etc 
(Scotland) Act 2004, and for this delegation to be added to the Scheme of 
Delegation documents.  

 
At this juncture, was noted that the Private Sector Housing Grant budget 
had been approved at the meeting of the Finance and Resources 
Committee of 28 January, 2010 (article 16 of the minute if meeting of the 
Finance and Resources Committee refers), and therefore that resolutions 
(c) and (d) would have to be referred to that Committee for ratification.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve recommendations (c) and (d) subject to the approval of 

the Finance and Resources Committee; and  
(ii) to approve recommendations (a), (b) and (e) as contained within the 

report.  
 

Page 82



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE - Housing & Environment    
 
DATE – 24 August 2010 
 
DIRECTOR - Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT – Request for delegated powers and use of Work Notices 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/10/093   
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
The purpose of this report is to request that delegated powers be given to the 
Senior Private Sector Housing Officer (Scheme of Assistance) and the Private 
Sector Housing Manager to sign Work Notices and Maintenance Orders under 
the provisions of the Housing (Scotland) Act 2006, and approve the use of 
Work Notices and funding to contribute to Maintenance Accounts. The report 
also requests that delegated powers be given to the Senior Private Sector 
Housing Officer (Rented Sector) and the Private Sector Housing Manager to 
sign Rent Penalty Notices under the provisions of the Antisocial Behaviour 
etc. (Scotland) Act 2004. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)   
 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(i) notes the content of the report, and 
 
(ii) delegates to the Director of Housing and Environment, the ongoing 

power to authorize the Senior Private Sector Housing Officer 
(Scheme of Assistance), the Private Sector Housing Manager, and 
other Officers as appropriate, to sign Work Notices and 
Maintenance Orders under the provisions of the Housing (Scotland) 
Act 2006, and for this to be added to the Scheme of delegation 
documents.  

 
(iii) approves the utilisation of £50,000 for the implementation of Work 

Notices, from the monies in the 2010/11 PSHG budget allocated for 
Serious Disrepair Notice enforcement works. 

 
(iv) agrees that the £50,000 allocated in the 2010/11 PSHG budget 

allocated to the serving & enforcement of Maintenance Orders, can  
also be utilised for Maintenance Accounts.  

 
 
 
 

Page 83



 

 

(v) delegates to the Director of Housing and Environment, the ongoing 
power to authorize the Senior Private Sector Housing Officer 
(Rented Sector), the Private Sector Housing Manager, and other 
Officers as appropriate, to sign Rent Penalty Notices under the 
provisions of the Antisocial Behaviour etc. (Scotland) Act 2004, and 
for this to be added to the Scheme of Delegation documents. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS    
 
The Finance & Resources Committee, at their meeting on 28 January 2010, 
resolved to approve a budget of £50,000 for the serving & enforcement of 
Maintenance Orders during the financial year 2010/11. Budgets already exist 
for enforcement activity in respect of Notices of Serious Disrepair, and it is 
proposed to utilize £50,000 from this item in the PSHG budget for the 
implementation of Work Notices. 
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT   
 
This report supports the following National Outcome from the Aberdeen City 
Community Plan & Single Outcome Agreement 2008-2011, namely: 
12. We value and enjoy our built and natural environment, and protect it and 
enhance it for future generations. 
 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 
None identified.  
 
6. REPORT 
 
6.1 The previous Private Sector Housing enforcement legislation was 

repealed at midnight on 31st March 2010, and was replaced by the 
Scheme of Assistance regime under the Housing (Scotland) 2006 Act 
legislation.  

 
6.2 Owners remain responsible for maintaining their properties, but where this 

is not happening, the Housing (Scotland) Act 2006 gives local authorities 
new powers to require owners to maintain their properties to a reasonable 
standard. 

 
6.3 Maintenance Orders 
 
6.3.1 Local authorities may serve a Maintenance Order where an owner(s) 

has not maintained, or is unlikely to maintain, their house to a 
reasonable standard.  A Maintenance Order requires the owner(s) to 
submit a maintenance plan to the local authority.  The plan requires 
owner(s) to demonstrate how they will secure the maintenance of the 
property for up to five years.  The owner(s) is responsible for 
implementing the maintenance plan but the Local authority may 
undertake to carry out the works detailed in the maintenance plan in 
default of the Maintenance Order and recover costs where the owner(s) 
has failed to deliver on the required action.  In this regard, it may be 
necessary for the Local authority to serve a Repayment Charge against 

Page 84



 

 

the property. 
 

6.3.2 The Local authority is responsible for registering the Maintenance 
Order and maintenance plan in the appropriate Land Register.  The 
cost of registering such a document is currently £30, and there is no 
provision in the Act for the Local authority to charge the owner for this 
cost unless enforcement powers are used. 
 

6.3.3 Owners who have been served with Maintenance Orders have a 
statutory 21-day period after the date of service, to appeal the decision 
to the Sheriff. 

 
6.4 Maintenance Accounts 
 
6.4.1 Maintenance Accounts may be set up by part-owners of flatted   

properties for the purpose of paying repair & maintenance costs. Local 
authorities can pay monies into Maintenance Accounts to cover 
missing shares of costs in the circumstances where a part-owner is 
either unable to pay their share or it is unreasonable to expect them to 
pay the share, or where the part-owner cannot be identified. Local 
authorities must also be satisfied that the proposed maintenance is 
reasonable, before paying missing shares of cost. 

 
6.4.2 Where the Local authority has paid monies into a Maintenance 

Account, it can seek to recover its costs by way of the serving of a 
Repayment Charge against the property in question. 

 
6.5 Work Notices 
 
6.5.1 Under the Housing (Scotland) Act 1987, Local authorities could serve 

Serious Disrepair Notices and Improvement Orders.  The Housing 
(Scotland) Act 2006 replaces these with a single Work Notice.  Local 
authorities can serve a Work Notice on the owner of a house to bring 
the house up to a reasonable state of repair.  The Work Notice will 
specify what remedial work the owner requires to undertake to bring 
the house up to a reasonable state of repair and meet the tolerable 
standard.  Where an owner fails to carry out the work, the Local 
authority may undertake to have the work carried out and recover the 
costs, including administration costs, from the owner by way of a 
Repayment Charge.  When serving a Work Notice, the Council no 
longer has a statutory obligation to provide grant assistance, unlike a 
Serious Disrepair Notice. 

 
6.5.2 The Local authority must include Work Notices in the Building 

Standards Register. This is a public Register which mostly details 
Building Warrant decisions. 

 
6.5.3 Owners who have been served with Work Notices have a statutory 21-

day period after the date of service, to appeal the decision to the 
Sheriff. 

 
6.6 Practical implementation of Maintenance Orders, Maintenance 

Accounts & Work Notices 

Page 85



 

 

 
6.6.1 It is proposed to serve Maintenance Orders on part-owners of 

tenement properties, where the Council has already identified that 
effective maintenance is not occurring.  Maintenance Orders may also 
be used, to a lesser extent, in respect of houses where the condition of 
the house is having a negative effect on the neighbourhood. 

 
6.6.2 It is proposed to serve Work Notices on part-owners of tenement 

properties where the majority of the part-owners within the tenement 
have agreed to carry out essential communal repairs but have failed to 
gain the co-operation of the minority of the part-owners OR where a 
part-owner of a tenement property is unable to finance his/her share of 
repair costs.   

 
 
6.6.3 It is also proposed to serve a Work Notice on individual owners who 

refuse to co-operate with their co-owners in any tenemental properties 
contained within the Green Townscape Heritage Initiative, (Green THI) 
so that the owners can capitalise on the unique opportunity of grant 
funding that has been made available through; Heritage Lottery, 
Aberdeen City Council, Heritage Scotland and Scottish Enterprise.  

 
6.6.4 In order for the above proposals to be taken forward, officers require 

delegated powers to serve Work Notices and Maintenance Orders.  
 
6.6.5 If officers are to make effective use of Work Notices and Maintenance 

Orders, they will require to use the enforcement powers contained 
within the 2006 Act.  The proposal is to utilise some of the monies from 
the underspend in the 2008/09 & 2009/10 PSHG budget programme 
which has been reserved by the Resources Management committee on 
16th June 2009 for enforcement of Serious Disrepair Notices. 

 
6.6.6 It is proposed that £50,000 will be utilised to cover payments where an 

owner has defaulted.  These debts will be secured against the property 
by use of a Repayment Charge which can take up to 30 annual 
instalments to recover, although an owner may choose to settle the 
debt in full at any time during that period.  Dependant on particular 
owners’ circumstances, the Council may also choose to pursue 
recovery of the debt more quickly through normal debt recovery 
procedures.  This is new legislation and as yet untested, the first cases 
will therefore be used to inform officers of the success or failure of 
these powers and to fine-tune operating procedures. 

 
6.6.7 It is proposed that the £50,000 sum in the 2010/11 PSHG budget 

allocated to the serving & enforcement of Maintenance Orders, can 
also be utilised for paying monies into Maintenance Accounts to cover 
‘missing’ shares of costs. Costs can be recovered by the Local 
authority by way of the serving of a Repayment Charge against the 
property in question. 

 
 
 
 

Page 86



 

 

 
6.7 Rent Penalty Notices 
 
6.7.1 Part 8 of the Antisocial Behaviour etc. (Scotland) Act 2004   concerns 

the registration of private Landlords, and allows Local Authorities to 
serve Rent Penalty Notices on Landlords who have failed to register. 
The effect of the Rent Penalty Notice is that no rent or other charges 
are payable by the tenant to the Landlord until the Rent Penalty Notice 
is revoked or overturned on appeal. A Landlord may appeal to the 
Sheriff Court against a Rent Penalty Notice, or against the refusal by a 
Local Authority to revoke a Rent Penalty Notice. 

 
6.8 Practical Implementation of Rent Penalty Notices 
 
6.8.1 Where it is confirmed that a Landlord is letting a property, and the 

Landlord is unregistered, a 1st letter will be sent to the Landlord 
advising of the legal requirement to register and the sanctions which 
the Council can impose for failure to register. The letter will set a 4-
week deadline within which time the Landlord should either submit a 
paper application to the Council or register on-line. 
 
Where no registration has occurred by the end of the 4-week period, a 
2nd letter will be sent to the Landlord warning that registration must 
occur within the following 2 weeks, failing which a late application fee 
will be imposed (The Act allows this). The letter will also reiterate the 
sanctions available to the Council. 
 
Where no registration has occurred by the end of the 2-week period, a 
3rd & final letter will be sent to the Landlord advising that a late 
application fee must be paid upon registration. The letter will also state 
that if registration has not occurred with the following 1-week, the 
Council will serve a Rent Penalty Notice. 
 
Prior to serving a Rent Penalty Notice, evidence will be gathered to 
confirm 1) proof by way of a Title Deed that the Landlord owns the 
property in question, and 2) that a Landlord/Tenant relationship exists. 
This will involve interviewing the tenant and obtaining the Tenancy 
Agreement where one exists.   

 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

Ally Thain, Private Sector Housing Manager 
allyt@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Tel. 01224 522870 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

The Scottish Government publication ‘Implementing the Housing 
(Scotland) Act 2006: Advisory Guidance for Local Authorities’. 
Resources Management Committee; 16th June 2009, Serious Disrepair 
Notice - Programme 
 

 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
 

24 August, 2010 
 

 
INTRODUCTION OF FURNISHINGS SERVICE CHARGE – H&E/10/133 
 
1. Reference was made to article 13 of the minute of its previous meeting, 
whereby officers had been instructed to report back detailing costed options in 
relation to the introduction of a furnishings service charge. The Committee had 
before it on this day, the report as requested at the aforementioned meeting.  
 
The report presented one option, which proposed the introduction of a 
furnishings service charge of £300 for a single person or couple, that would 
provide a bed, bedding and a cooker; and £700 for a family, that would provide a 
cooker, fridge, beds and bedding.   
 
On noting that any electrical goods purchased for this purpose required to be 
checked on an annual basis, members queried as to whether officers could 
follow the same procedures that had previously been agreed in relation to gas 
safety checks (article 24 of the minute of meeting of 13 April, 2010 refers).  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to agree to the introduction of a service charge for the provision of 

furnishings to new tenants, subject to the approval of the Finance 
and Resources Committee; 

(ii) to instruct that, subject to the approval of the Finance and 
Resources Committee, the service charge be set on a 48 week per 
annum basis as follows:  

• single person or couple to pay £6 per week 
• families to pay £10 per week; 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 89



(iii)  to instruct that the Director of Housing and Environment report back when 
the service charge has been in effect for six months to provide a review of 
its implementation;  

(iv) to note that if a new member of staff was required, that a business case 
would be submitted at the appropriate time;  

(v) to request that officers share the contact details of the ‘Somebody Cares’ 
charity with appropriate tenants and all elected members; and  

(vi) to instruct that officers ascertain if it would be possible to follow the same 
procedures for the electrical tests, that are followed for the gas checks in 
Council properties (article 24 of the minute of meeting of this Committee of 
13 April, 2010 refers). 

 

Page 90



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:   Housing and Environment 
 
DATE:    24 August 2010 
 
DIRECTOR:   Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Introduction of Furnishings Service Charge 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/10/133 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report provides information on possible options to introduce a service charge for the 

provision of furniture to new tenants following the Committee decision on 25th May 2010to 
agree in principle to the introduction of such a service charge. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

1. Agree to the introduction of a service charge for the provision of furnishings to 
new tenants.  
 

2. Agree that the service charge be set on a 48 week per annum basis at 
 
Single person / couple  = £6 – per week 
Family    = £10 – per week 
 

3. Agree that recommendation (2) be referred to the next meeting of the Finance 
& Resources Committee for ratification. 
 

4. Instruct the Director of Housing & Environment to report back to Committee 
after the service charge has been in operation for 6 months with a review of its 
implementation. 

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

Page 91



3.1 Furnishings have previously been provided for new tenants through two different 
funding streams. The Homeless Strategy Budget provided funding for new tenants 
who were housed following a homeless presentation. The HRA provided funding for 
new tenants who were identified as having a need for assistance by their Housing 
Assistant. 

 
3.2 The assistance with furnishing for new tenants has been very successful in assisting 

tenants move into and sustain a tenancy. To date this has seen furnishings provided 
with no financial return to the Council to offset the costs of furnishing provision. The 
annual expenditure of circa £450,000 is seen as unsustainable in the future. 

 
3.3 The sustainability of furnishing provision could be addressed by the introduction of a 

service charge. Previously furnishings were provided but not maintained or serviced. 
In introducing a service charge furnishings will need to be maintained. This will lead to 
significant costs being incurred in maintaining the furnishings and administering the 
furnishing service, however these costs would be fully recovered through the service 
charge.  

 
3.4 However the introduction of a service charge would lead to a reduction in the overall 

spend for both General Services Housing and the HRA, with the aim of ultimately 
reducing the costs of the furnishing service to zero. Initially furnishings will need to be 
purchased with the service charge income building up slowly as new tenants receive 
the service. The provision of furnishings will require a continuing budget commitment 
but one which will reduce over time. 

 
3.5 The furnishing service charge will normally be eligible for Housing Benefit. 

Discussions have taken place with Housing Benefit Officers to ensure that any charge 
agreed fits with Housing Benefit Regulations. Any tenant not in receipt of benefit will 
need to pay the full service charge if they decide to receive furnishings. It is therefore 
important that the service charges agreed deliver a cost effective solution for all 
tenants. 

 
3.6 The HRA expenditure on furnishings in 2008/9 was £120,000 and the Homeless 

Strategy expenditure was £328,000. 
 
3.7 Without the introduction of a service charge the continued future provision of 

furnishing for tenants is not financially sustainable. 
 

3.8 As the service charge option is new, best estimates have been used. It will therefore 
be essential to closely monitor income and expenditure and review the levels of 
charge to ensure they cover costs and offer good value to tenants. 

 
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 

Page 92



 
4.1 The delivery of the furnishing service aims to provide our citizens with an option on 

how they can ensure the basic furnishing requirements for their home are met. This 
would support the following challenge in the community plan: 

 
Homes Challenge – improving the quality of housing and environment for individuals 
and the community and eradicating homelessness by 2011.  

 
 
5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The continued provision of furnishings will make a significant contribution towards 

ensuring homeless households are able to move into permanent housing. This is not 
only important to ensure homeless households are able to maintain their tenancy but it 
will also have a positive impact in minimising the period during which properties are 
empty awaiting relet. 
 

5.2 ‘Achieving our Potential: Tackling Poverty and Income Inequality in Aberdeen City’ is 
the Council’s anti-poverty strategy. The strategy currently has reference to the 
Council’s previous Furnished Tenancy Grant Scheme. The continuation of a 
furnishings scheme and its development into a long term service will be an important 
contribution to the anti-poverty strategy. 
 

 
6. REPORT 
 
6.1 Aberdeen City Council previously provided basic furnishings which included beds, 

floor coverings, white goods etc for statutory homeless applicants who were entering 
into permanent Council accommodation. 

 
6.2 Funding for this scheme was from General Services Housing budget for Homeless 

Strategy. Aberdeen City Council originally started providing the furnishings in 
November 2005. At this time it was funded by the Scottish Governments Furnished 
Tenancy Grant and their guidance suggested that service charges should be avoided. 
This grant now forms part of the overall Council’s settlement. 

 
6.3 The number of tenants assisted each year 
 

2006 = 395; 
2007 = 320; 
2008 = 484. 
 
The recent rise in the number assisted reflects the policy changes which have been 
introduced to achieve the targets for the removal of priority need by 2012.  

Page 93



6.4 As the take up rate for the furnished tenancy grant has increased and with the budget 
constraints of the Council the value of the grant has decreased. Applicants have 
received furnishings with a value of up to £300 for a single person and £700 for a 
family. 

 
6.6 Furnishings at £300 for a single person normally provided a bed, bedding, cooker and 

2 pairs of curtains / blinds. The £700 for a family normally provided for a cooker, 
fridge, washing machine, beds and bedding. 

 
6.7 The provision of furniture helps sustain tenancies. Previous assessment showed 92% 

of tenants still in their tenancy after 1 year where furnishings have been provided. This 
is seen as very positive success rate and it is believed that the furnishings have been 
a major contributory factor. 

 
6.8 Discussions have been held with Housing Benefit Officers to ensure that any 

furnishing service charge can be fully eligible for Housing Benefit. The key issue is 
that the furnishings must always remain in the ownership of Aberdeen City Council, 
and there should be no intention to pass ownership of the furnishings to the tenant. If 
a tenant ends their tenancy or decides that they no longer want to have the furnishings 
and pay the service charge the Council has to remove all the furnishings. 

 
6.9 As the Council owns the goods and is charging for them we must ensure that the 

goods are maintained and replaced when necessary. Any electrical goods supplied 
will be subject to an annual portable appliance test. It is appropriate to provide the 
goods for a period of 5 years, at the end of which the future use of the goods would be 
reviewed with the tenant. 

 
6.10 The introduction of this service charge will provide an income to the Council to offset 

the cost of the provision of furnishings. This will allow the furnishing service to 
continue and will potentially result in an increased number of households being 
assisted. In the future it may also be possible to give households greater choice when 
selecting the goods that they need.  

 
6.11 A number of Scottish local authorities already charge a service charge for furnishings, 

these include Edinburgh City Council and North Ayrshire Council. The RSLs operating 
in Aberdeen have a similar scheme which they are hoping to relaunch to new tenants 
in the near future. 

 
6.12 In investigating the introduction of a service charge officers have reviewed the various 

options which exist in delivering a furnishing service. Assumptions have been required 
to be made as we do not have information on a number of issues e.g. likely levels of 
bad debt. The development of the service charge has included costs for storage of 
furnishings. Where a tenant requires furnishings to be removed we will organise this 
and where the goods can be reused they will be. Short term storage may be required 

Page 94



until an alternative use can be found for the goods, the intention would be to recycle to 
Council projects or work with appropriate charities to ensure goods are quickly reused 
wherever possible 

 
6.13 If the recommendation is agreed then a number of key tasks need to be actioned to 

prepare for the introduction of a service charge. 
 
6.14 Administration – an additional staff member will be required to manage the ordering 

and payment for furnishings; organising replacement furnishings, the removal of 
furnishings at the end of the tenancy or when tenant ends the furnishing agreement, 
organising storage of goods suitable for re use, organising annual electrical checks, 
ensuring debt recovery where non payment of service charge, liaison with Housing 
Benefit etc. 

 
6.15 Tenancy Agreement/contract – ensure tenancy agreement and furnishings contract is 

developed to ensure responsibilities of Council and the tenant are clear for the use, 
maintenance and replacement of furnishings. 

 
6.16 Two different packages are proposed at this stage. Furnishings at £300 for a single 

person / couple providing a bed, bedding and a cooker. For a family £700 would 
provide for a cooker, fridge, beds and bedding. 

 
6.17 Electrical goods are required to be checked on an annual basis. This means that an 

electrician will need to visit every property with electrical goods on an annual basis. 
This will incur costs and potential access issues may require multiple visits. Basic 
cooking provision is seen as an important contribution that the furnishing service can 
provide.  

 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Graeme Stuart 
Strategist (Policy & Planning – Housing) 
gstuart@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224  523043 
 
Helen Sherrit 
Senior Accountant  
hsherrit@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523566 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Page 95



Appendix 1 
 
Furnishings Service Charge 
 
 
Single person / couple package  
 

Cooker, double bed, bedding and curtains. 
 
 
Family package 
 

Cooker, fridge, washing machine double bed, single bed, bedding, living room carpet. 
 
 
Costs of delivering the service will include a member of staff to administer the service, 
removal of furnishings no longer required, minimal storage costs until goods can be recycled, 
annual electrical testing, disposal of goods which can not be reused and an allowance for 
bad debt. 
 
As these costs are new, best estimates have been used. It will therefore be essential to 
closely monitor income and expenditure and review the levels of charge to ensure they cover 
costs and offer good value to tenants. 
 
All the of costs incurred will be covered by the scheme.  Housing Benefit should be available 
to cover the costs of the service charge for those eligible for Housing Benefit. 
 
The costs of purchasing goods are spread over a 5 year period. 
 
 
 5 year 
Single person / couple £6.00 
Family £10.00 
 
 
 

Page 96



DRAFT 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
 

24 August, 2010 
 
HOUSE IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION (HMO) LICENCE APPLICATION FEES  
 
1. Reference was made to article 7 of the minute of meeting of the Licensing 
Committee of 2 June, 2010, whereby members had instructed that a report they 
had before them for consideration ‘Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) Licence 
Application Fees’ be referred to this Committee, and also that this Committee 
considers (a) the employment of an enforcement officer; (b) the level of 
application fees; and (c) the banding of application fees. The Committee had 
before it on this day, the report as submitted to the Licensing Committee, the 
relevant minute extract in this regard, and further information on (1) the role of 
HMOs; (2) the purpose of obtaining an HMO licence; (3) fees and banding; (4) 
renewal fees; (5) potential income based on 2009/10 applications; (6) the 
financial implications of the options available to the Committee; and (7) legal 
issues associated with the issue in hand.  
 
By way of background the report advised that the financial year 2009/10 saw a 
marked increase in the fees, from £475 to £1000, as well as rebanding. 87% of 
HMO applications received were for properties with three to five occupants, and 
the rebanding in 2009/10 affected all of these properties, more than doubling 
their previous fee.  
 
The report suggested that the fee increase for 2010/11 (from £1,000 to £1,200 
for properties with three to five occupants) should be reconsidered, as a large 
surplus had been created last financial year of £204,920, and it was projected 
that a large surplus would also be created this year, and officers did not feel this 
could be justified.  The report also highlighted the possibility of the Council 
implementing a reduced fee for renewal licences, as had been the case until 

Agenda Item 5.3

Page 97



financial year 2006/07, in order to encourage landlords to maintain their 
properties as HMOs.  
 
The report proposed three options as follows for rebanding the HMO properties 
and setting new fee scales against each, with the potential income being based 
on 2009/10 applications (with the assumption that this would continue throughout 
2010/11 and 2011/12): 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 
Number of 
tenants 

New 
application 

Renewal New 
application 

Renewal New 
application 

Renewal 

3 – 5 £900 £700 £800 £600 £900 £450 
6 – 10 £1,200 £900 £1,100 £825 £1,200 £600 
11 – 20 £1,500 £1,200 £1,400 £1,050 £1,500 £750 
20 plus £1,800 £1,400 £1,700 £1,275 £1,800 £900 
Income by 
application 
type 

 
£86,880 

 
£142,049 

 
£77,090 

 
£122,550 

 
£86,280 

 
£88,208 

Total 
annual 
income 

 
£228,929 

 
£199,640 

 
£174,488 

 
With the three requests for deputation having been agreed at an earlier point in 
the meeting (article 3 of this minute refers), the Convener invited first Mr O’Kane 
to address the Committee, followed by Mr and Mrs Forster, and finally, Mr Parker 
and Mr Kilpatrick.  
 
Mr O’Kane, who was speaking on behalf of a number of private landlords 
throughout the city, advised that he had contacted all Scottish local authorities on 
this issue. Around twenty five Councils had responded and all of those had 
confirmed to him that, unlike Aberdeen City Council, they did not transfer any 
surplus made through HMO licence fees to their General Funds. Mr O’Kane 

Page 98



suggested that fees should reflect the costs only and requested that the 
Committee approve option three as detailed within the report.  
 
Mr and Mrs Forster, who were speaking on behalf of the Scottish Association of 
Landlords (SAL), advised the Committee as to the purpose and set up of SAL, 
and suggested that if HMO licence fee application prices were not reduced, that 
more landlords would chose to rent their properties to two tenants, rather than 
three (as HMO licences were not required for properties where there were only 
two tenants). Mrs Forster requested that the Council consider introducing signed 
declarations of compliance, and also supported option three as detailed within 
the report.  
 
Mr Parker (who was speaking on behalf of Aberdeen University Students’ 
Association) and Mr Kilpatrick (who was speaking on behalf of Aberdeen College 
Students’ Association) also suggested that the rising fees gave landlords no 
incentive to rent to three students, when they could raise their rents and rent to 
two students, or rent to a family and not require an HMO licence. They intimated 
their concern that students may, in some cases, end up renting from 
unscrupulous landlords who may not ensure that their properties were kept to a 
high standard. They suggested that HMO licence numbers should have to be 
displayed alongside any advertisement made by a landlord for a property with 
three bedrooms or more, and requested that the Committee (1) set the 
application licence fees on an annual basis; (2) do not transfer surplus to the 
General Fund as had been previous practice, but ring fence to an HMO budget; 
and (3) that smaller properties be required to pay lesser fees than larger 
properties. With regards to the options outlined in the report, Mr Parker and Mr 
Kilpatrick also indicated that option three would be their preferred option.  
 
The Committee asked a number of questions of all three deputations, and of 
officers. In particular officers confirmed that the Council was currently not 
charged by Grampian Police, Grampian Fire and Rescue Service or the Anti 

Page 99



Social Behaviour Investigations Team for any work they undertake in relation to 
the licence applications, but further that there was no guarantee that this work 
would not be charged for in the future.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee:- 
(a) approve the introduction of a revised fee structure, to include a separate 

initial application and renewal fee; and amend the bed spaces bandings; 
(b) set House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) licence application fees as 

follows, as per option one as detailed within the report: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(c) refer recommendations (a) and (b) above to the meeting of the Finance 

and Resources Committee of 28 September, 2010 for ratification, with an 
implementation date of 1 October, 2010; 

(d) instruct that the appropriate Committee(s) consider the setting of HMO 
licence fees on an annual basis; and that when considering the setting of 
these fees that they ensure that the fees receivable will be sufficient to 
meet the expenses of the Council in exercising their HMO licensing 
function; and 

(e) instruct the Director of Housing and Environment to report to the next 
meeting of this Committee of 26 October, 2010, with a business case 
requesting the employment of appropriate enforcement and administrative 
officers in relation to HMO licensing. 

Number of 
tenants 

New 
application 
 

  
Renewal 
 

3 – 5 £900 £700 
6 – 10 £1,200 £900 
11 – 20 £1,500 £1,200 
20 plus £1,800 £1,400 

Page 100



 
The Convener, seconded by the Vice Convener, moved:- 
 that the Committee:- 

(1) approve the introduction of a revised fee structure to include a 
separate initial application and renewal fee; 

(2) instructs that HMO licence fees and bands be set as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(3) refers recommendations (1) and (2)  to the meeting of the 
Finance and Resources Committee of 28 September, 2010 for 
ratification, with implementation from 1 October, 2010; 

(4) instructs that the appropriate Committee(s) considers the setting of 
HMO licence application fees on an annual basis; and that when 
considering the setting of these fees that they ensure that the fees 
receivable will be sufficient to meet the expenses of the Council in 
exercising their HMO licensing function; 

(5) instructs the Director of Housing and Environment to report to the 
next meeting of this Committee with a business case requesting the 
employment of appropriate enforcement and administrative officers 
in relation to the HMO licensing; 

(6) instructs the Director of Housing and Environment to write to the 
Scottish Government to request a change in legislation to the effect 
that any landlord advertising a House of Multiple Occupancy for 

Number 
of 
tenants 

New 
Application  

 
Renewal  

3 – 5 £900 £700 
6 – 10 £1,200 £900 
11 – 20 £1,500 £1,200 
21 – 50 £1,800 £1,400 
51 plus £2,100 £1,600 

Page 101



rent, would be required to include in the advert, their HMO 
registration number; and 

(7) instructs officers to report back on the possibility of introducing 
signed declarations of compliance in future years. 

 
Councillor Hunter, seconded by Councillor Cooney, moved as an amendment:- 
 that the Committee:- 

(1) approves the introduction of a revised fee structure to include a 
separate initial application and renewal fee; 

(2) instruct that HMO licence fees and bands be set as per option three 
as detailed within the report, as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(3) refers recommendations (1) and (2)  to the meeting of the Finance 

and Resources Committee of 28 September, 2010 for ratification, 
with implementation from 1 October, 2010; 

(4) instructs that the appropriate Committee(s) considers the setting of 
HMO licence application fees on an annual basis; and that when 
considering the setting of these fees that they ensure that the fees 
receivable will be sufficient to meet the expenses of the Council in 
exercising their HMO licensing function; 

(5) instructs the Director of Housing and Environment to report to the 
next meeting of this Committee with a business case requesting the 
employment of appropriate enforcement and administrative officers 
in relation to the HMO licensing; 

Number 
of 
tenants 

New 
Application  

 
Renewal  

3 – 5 £900 £450 
6 – 10 £1,200 £600 
11 – 20 £1,500 £750 
21 – 50 £1,800 £900 

Page 102



(6) instructs the Director of Housing and Environment to write to the 
Scottish Government to request a change in legislation to the effect 
that any landlord advertising a House of Multiple Occupancy for 
rent, would be required to include in the advert, their HMO 
registration number; and 

(7) instructs officers to report back on the possibility of introducing 
signed declarations of compliance in future years. 

 
On a division, there voted:-  for the motion (9) – the Convener; the Vice 
Convener; and Councillors Cormack, Cormie, Dunbar, McCaig, Noble, Robertson 
and Yuill; for the amendment (4) – Councillors Collie, Cooney, Crockett and 
Hunter. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the successful motion.  
 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5 

REPORT 
 
Name of Committee: 
 

Housing and Environment 
Date of Meeting: 
 

24th August 2010 
Title of Report: 
 

HMO Licence Fees  
Lead Officer: 
 

Donald Urquhart, Head of Service, Housing and 
Community Safety 
 

Author of Report: 
 

Andy Pitblado,  
Private Sector Housing Strategy Officer 

 
Summary of Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide elected members with additional information to 
assist the discussion of the report and minute forwarded by the Licensing Committee on 
2nd June 2010. 
 
The report to the Licensing Committee was provided following a challenge from a 
landlord present at a previous Licensing Committee meeting in relation to the increases 
in the licensing fee over the period to 2009/10.  
 
 
The Licensing Committee report showed that the council made an operating surplus of 
£204,920 in 2009/10.  The setting of a licence fee for (HMOs) is prescribed under the 
Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982, which governs all Licenses issued by local 
authorities. 
 
The Licensing Committee resolved: 
 

(i) to remit the report to the Housing and Environment Committee for its 
consideration; and 

 
(ii) to recommend that the Housing and Environment Committee consider in 

particular  
(a) the employment of an enforcement officer;  
(b) the level of application fees; and  
(c)  the banding of application fees. 

 
 

Page 105



Page 2 of 5 

Role of HMO’s 
 
It is not possible for Aberdeen City Council to know how many unlicensed HMOs 
actually operate within the City.  As at 22 July 2010, a total of 791 HMO Licences were 
in force It is assumed that this is only about half of the number that exist.  
 
HMO Licensing became mandatory in 2000 for 5 or more people and on 30th September 
2003 for 3 or more. 
 
Recent discussion with student representatives regarding affordable student 
accommodation has focused on HMOs because HMOs play an integral part in providing 
affordable accommodation for students.  All student halls of residence are registered 
HMOs, but this only covers freshers at Aberdeen University with students having to find 
their own accommodation in years 2 and onwards. 
 
The students believe that there has been a reduction in the number of HMOs with 
landlords leaving the sector due to the cost of a licence and the upgrading works 
required. In many cases the landlord prefers to seek only 2 occupants or a family for the 
same rental income without the outlay incurred in complying with HMO requirements.  
This means that 2 students sharing have to split the rent, electric and gas bills etc as 
opposed to between 3 occupants in a HMO.  This leads to affordability issue in addition 
to the already high rent in Aberdeen. Available information identifies Aberdeen private 
rented sector as the most expensive in Scotland.  HMOs are also known to serve an 
important housing role for the migrant workforce. 
 
 
Compliance for purpose of obtaining a HMO Licence 
 
In order to comply with licensing the landlord must be a “fit and proper person” as should 
any agent acting on behalf of the landlord. There is a statutory requirement that the 
Chief Constable is asked to comment on all applications for a licence which in effect 
means that the Police notify the Council of any relevant criminal convictions.  Adverse 
comments mean automatic referral to the licensing committee.  Landlords must also not 
have contravened housing legislation and should adhere to good management, e.g. 
lease agreements and management of the lease, attention to repair and maintenance of 
the property, adherence to occupancy limits, and most importantly how the landlord 
deals with antisocial behaviour within their tenancies. 
 
Landlords also have to ensure that the property complies with specific safety standards 
such as an annual gas safety certificate, electrical compliance certificates for installation 
and equipment, hard wired smoke detectors and self closing fire doors. 
 
 
Fees and Banding 
 
Item 6.1.2 in the report to Licensing Committee showed the cost of fees and banding of 
properties from 2006 to present.  It will be noted that 2009/10 saw a marked increase in 
fee from £475 to £1,000 as well as a re-banding.  Statistics show that 87% of all HMO 
applications are properties with 3 to 5 occupants and that a further 9% are for 6 to 10 
occupants.  The effect of the 2009/10 re-banding affected almost all HMOs within the 
city by classing them as one band and more than doubled their fee. 

Page 106



Page 3 of 5 

Initial Fee & Groupings  
 
The fee for 2011/12 is set at £1,500 for the entry level of up to 10 persons with no further 
fees set at present for the bands above 10.   
 
Given the surplus revenue for the last financial year and that predicted for this financial 
year the recommendation is that this fee increase should not proceed as officers can 
find no justification for it. 
 
 
Renewal fees 
 
Glasgow, Edinburgh, Dundee and Aberdeenshire all have a reduced renewal fee with 
discounts varying from 11% to 50% on the initial fee.  Aberdeen operated a renewal fee 
at 50% of the initial fee up until 2006/07.  
 
The work involved in dealing with a renewal application is to a large extent the same as 
that for a first application. However to encourage landlords to maintain their property as 
an HMO and renew their application the reintroduction of a lower renewal fee is 
proposed.  In doing so it is important that this be set at a level which would still provide 
adequate income to run the HMO service. 
 
If committee decide to make any change to fees or banding there needs to be an agreed 
implementation date.  For the purpose of the exercise below an assumption was made 
that no refunds would be considered for those who have already applied for a licence.  
 
Potential income based on 2009 - 10 applications 
 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 
Grouping New app Renewal New app Renewal New app Renewal 
3 – 5 900 700 800 600 900 450 
6 – 10 1,200 900 1,100 825 1,200 600 
11 – 20 1,500 1,200 1,400 1,050 1,500 750 
20 -  1,800 1,400 1,700 1,275 1,800 900 
Income by 
application 
type 

 
£86,880 

 
£142,049 

 
£77,090 

 
£122,550 

 
£86,280 

 
£88,208 

Total annual 
income 

 
£228,929 

 
£199,640 

 
£174,488 

 
The table above shows options for re-banding the HMO properties and setting new fee 
scales against each.  The calculation for income is based on the number of applications 
during 2009/10 and makes the assumption that this will continue throughout 2010/11 
and 2011/12.  There has been no allowance made for any income that may or may not 
come from enforcement work as this is an unknown quantity.  This is partly due to the 
fact that we do not know how a landlord who is operating illegally will respond as one 
option is for them is to stop operating an HMO and move out of the HMO sector 
altogether.   
 
If the fee scales and banding remain unchanged then it is anticipated that £350,000 will 
be received in fees this financial year. 

Page 107



Page 4 of 5 

Financial Issues 
 
The legal issues section below highlights the basis for ensuring that fees receivable for 
HMO licenses meets the expenses of the authority in exercising their HMO function. 
 
If as a result of the consideration of the issues by Committee a reduction in the initial 
application and renewal fees is agreed then the income received will be reduced in 
future years.  This will result in a cost pressure of approximately £120,000 in a fulkl year 
fro the (non HRA) housing revenue fund which will require to be off-set by the Director of 
Housing & Environment elsewhere.  Close monitoring of the income and expenditure will 
be essential to ensure that income continues to cover costs particularly if additional 
officers are employed. In employing additional officers, additional licence applications 
should be generated which will off set this additional cost. 
 
 
Legal Issues 
 
The Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 governs all licences issued by the local authority.  It 
narrates that: - 
  
“…the licensing authority shall seek to ensure that from time to time the total amount of fees 
receivable by the authority is sufficient to meet the expenses of the authority in exercising their 
functions…”. 
 
This is again reinforced by the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 as amended by Order 
2003 – Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation, which states: - 
 
"Fees for houses in multiple occupation licences 15. - (1) A licensing authority shall 
charge such fees in respect of houses in multiple occupation licences and applications 
for such licences as may be resolved by them from time to time and shall seek to ensure 
that the 
total amount of fees received in respect of such licences and applications is, taken 
together with any money to which sub-paragraph (2) applies, sufficient to meet the 
expenses incurred by them in carrying out the functions exercisable by them by virtue of 
the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 (Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation) 
Order 2000. (2) The money to which this sub-paragraph applies is any money paid by 
grant to the licensing authority by the Scottish Ministers for the purpose of enabling the 
authority to carry out the functions exercisable by them by virtue of that Order." 
 
The legal advice provided to the Licensing Committee stated that under the terms of the Civic 
Government (Scotland) Act 1982, the Licensing Authority shall seek to ensure that fees 
receivable by them are sufficient to meet the expenses of the Local Authority in carrying 
out their functions under the Act it would be reasonable to have a modest surplus for 
contingencies, and that what was ‘reasonable’ in the circumstances was at the discretion 
of the Local Authority. 
 
The Housing (Scotland) Act 2006 re-enacts the legislation for HMO’s and gives 
additional powers to Council’s.  The HMO sections come into force on 31st August 2011. 
This will provide additional powers which may involve additional work. 
 

Page 108



Page 5 of 5 

Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Committee agrees 
 

1. to introduce a revised fee structure to include a separate initial application and 
renewal fee and amend the bed spaces bandings; 
 

2. that HMO licence fees be set at  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. that recommendations (1) and (2) be referred to the next meeting of the Finance 
& Resources Committee for ratification with implementation from 1st October 
2010; 
 

4. To instruct that the appropriate Committee(s) considers when the setting of HMO 
licence fees on an annual basis;; and that when considering the setting of these 
fees that they ensure that the fees receivable will be sufficient to meet the 
expenses of the council in exercising their HMO Licensing function; 
 

5. The Director of Housing & Environment report to the next Housing & Environment 
Committee with a Business Case requesting the employment of appropriate 
enforcement and administrative officers in relation to HMO licensing. 

 
 

Bed 
spaces 

New 
application 

£ 
Renewal 

£ 
3 – 5 900 700 
6 – 10 1,200 900 
11 – 20 1,500 1,200 
20 -  1,800 1,400 

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
 

24 August, 2010 
 
WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES CONTRACT PROGRESS REPORT – 
H&E/10/122 
 
1. With reference to article 4 of the minute of meeting of the Urgent Business 
Committee of 6 August, 2010, the Committee had before it a report by the 
Director of Housing and Environment, which provided an update on the waste 
management services contract (WMSC) and provided an outline specification for 
the development of an alternative solution to the contract.    
 
By way of background, the report advised that the WMSC had been signed in 
July, 2000 with service commencing in September, 2000.  The contract duration 
was for 25 years (with 15 years still to run) and the main purpose of the contract 
was the construction of a combined materials recycling facility and energy from 
waste plant at the Altens Environmental Park. The report explained that planning 
permission for this facility had been refused in 2004, so an alternative solution 
had been sought, which would complement the Council’s Waste Strategy and 
Transformation Strategy for Waste Management Services.  
 
The Waste Management Services contractor, SITA UK Limited, had continued to 
provide baseline services as envisaged under the WMSC, and had in addition, 
addressed emerging needs required in response to the developing policies of the 
Scottish Government and the Council.  The report detailed the five various 
baseline services, namely (1) to operate transfer facilities at Sclattie; (2) to 
provide transfer facilities in the south of the city; (3) to operate the four recycling 
centres in the city; (4) to provide landfill disposal facilities at Hill of Tramaud; and 

Agenda Item 5.4

Page 111



(5) to manage the restoration and formal closure of the Ness Farm and Tullos Hill 
Landfill Site; and provided a synopsis of the new services developed in 
association with SITA UK Limited since the commencement of the WMSC.    
 
The report advised that the Council’s landfill site at Hill of Tramaud was likely to 
close in December, 2010, and that this situation had been catered for within the 
initial WMSC, but the development of an additional recycling facility and kitchen 
and garden waste facilities at Sclattie meant there was insufficient room for 
general refuse. It had been proposed, at the aforementioned meeting of the 
Urgent Business Committee, that a new building and ancillary works be 
constructed at Sclattie to enable the site to be used for transfer of all types of 
wastes. This would require an additional contract variation of approximately 
£450,000.  The Director of Housing and Environment had been instructed at the 
meeting of the Urgent Business Committee of 6 August, 2010, to sign a contract 
variation with SITA UK Limited, to allow immediate start of works at Sclattie to 
ensure continuation of waste collection services.  
 
The report advised that in addition to the works at Sclattie, it was proposed to 
undertake a limited renovation of the East Tullos Transfer Station to permit safe 
transfer operations to resume, and it was anticipated that it would cost 
approximately £700,000 to bring the facility back into use. The report suggested 
that the £1,244,000 of capital and revenue funding that had been allocated to the 
Council from the zero waste fund be utilised to finance these developments.  
 
The report outlined the alternative solution, and advised that with the exception of 
the residual treatment requirement, all elements were assessed to be able to be 
delivered at best value when considering the capital repayment required for each 
facility. Capital expenditure would be required for the materials recycling facility 
and the organic treatment facility, with both facilities having an operating life of 
around ten years. This would result in capital depreciation being economically 
achieved before the end of the WMSC. The report continued that this was 

Page 112



unlikely to be the case for the residual treatment facility, where the scale of the 
investment was likely to be over £20,000,000 (and possibly as high as 
£50,000,000, dependant on the technology chosen). These facilities would have 
an operating life of around twenty years, with depreciation spread across this 
period. With the WMSC having fifteen years to run, and the timescales involved 
in getting the facility operational, it was likely that the facility would be 
commissioned with ten years or less of the WMSC remaining. The report 
therefore proposed that the residual treatment element of waste management be 
not included in the alternative solution, but instead, that an options appraisal be 
undertaken to consider the most appropriate method of delivering a residual 
treatment solution.  
 
The report continued that in order to ensure that an appropriate and best value 
alternative solution could be achieved (1) the Council would have to provide the 
scope and specification for the alternative solution; (2) SITA UK Limited would 
have to develop a business model based on a contract waste data flow model; 
(3) the Council would have to validate the waste data flow model and instruct 
SITA UK Limited to develop and submit a full business model and proposal 
document; (4) the Council would have to review the business model and 
proposal document and undertake best value analysis which would require each 
element of the proposal to be scrutinised and, where necessary, benchmarked; 
(5) a period of discussion and refinement of proposals and costs would be 
required to ensure that the proposal met the requirements of the Council, and at 
an appropriate cost; (6) a continual review of contract documentation would have 
to be undertaken to ensure that contract terms and conditions were appropriate 
for the services to be provided; (7) officers would have to prepare a full 
alternative solution assessment report for consideration by this Committee; and 
(8) subject to Committee approval, a formal contract variation would be signed by 
the parties.  
 

Page 113



The report concluded that the current resources allocated to the WMSC were not 
adequate to undertake and complete all of the above tasks, and that specialist 
legal, technical, financial and business analysis support would be required.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee:- 
(a) notes the progress made to date on updating the waste management 

services contract; 
(b) recommends that the Finance and Resources Committee approve 

the allocation of zero waste fund monies to development works at 
Sclattie and East Tullos Transfer Stations to allow continuance of 
efficient recycling and waste disposal services; 

(c) approves the continuation of the development of an alternative solution 
based upon the following infrastructure and service development: 

 
• Development of a materials recycling facility at the ‘four fields’ site 

in Altens to handle commingled recyclables collected by the 
Council. 

• Development of two new recycling centres, one at the former Grove 
Nursery Site in Hazlehead and the other in the Bridge of Don area, 
this latter to replace the Scotstown Road site. 

• Operational improvements to the remaining three recycling centres 
(Sclattie, Pitmedden Road and Greenbank Crescent) to achieve 
substantial increase in recycling and landfill diversion. 

• The provision of organic waste treatment services to be defined 
following an options appraisal relating to the collection methods for 
kitchen and garden wastes. 

• The provision of refuse transfer services at two sites in the city until 
the development of a residual treatment facility; and  

• The provision of landfill disposal services. 

Page 114



(d) instructs the Head of Finance, with the assistance of colleagues in 
Housing and Environment, to identify suitable financial and business 
analysis support for the development of an alternative solution; 

(e) approves the decision not to include residual treatment services in the 
alternative solution;  and 

(f) instructs officers to undertake an options appraisal to determine the best 
method of procuring residual treatment services that conform to the 
requirements of the Aberdeen City Waste Strategy and to report back to 
this Committee on 12 January, 2011. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i)  to welcome the initiative of officers in arranging to meet with members of 

the community in relation to the Grove Nursery site, and to instruct that a 
bulletin report be submitted at the next meeting, detailing the outcomes of 
these discussions; 

(ii) to amend recommendation (d) to read as follows: to instruct the Director of 
Housing and Environment to liaise with the Head of Finance to identify 
suitable financial and business analysis support for the development of an 
alternative solution, in consultation with the Convener and Vice Convener 
of this Committee;  and  

(iii) to otherwise approve the recommendations as contained within the report. 
 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE:  Housing and Environment DATE:  24 August 2010 
 
DIRECTOR:  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:   Waste Management Services Contract Progress Report 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  H&E/10/122 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report provides an update on the Waste Management Services Contract 
and provides an outline specification for the development of an Alternative 
Solution to the Contract. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That Committee notes the progress made to date on updating the 
Waste Management Services Contract. 

2. That Committee recommends that Finance and Resources 
Committee approve the allocation of Zero Waste Fund monies to 
development works at Sclattie and East Tullos Transfer Stations to 
allow continuance of efficient recycling and waste disposal services. 

3. That Committee approves the continuation of the development of an 
Alternative Solution based upon the following infrastructure and 
service development: 

 
• Development of a Materials Recycling Facility at the ‘Four 

Fields’ site in Altens to handle commingled recyclables collected 
by Aberdeen City Council. 

• Development of two new Recycling Centres, one at the former 
Grove Nursery Site in Hazlehead and the other in the Bridge of 
Don area, this latter to replace the Scotstown Road site. 

• Operational Improvements to the remaining three Recycling 
Centres (Sclattie, Pitmedden Road and Greenbank Crescent) to 
achieve substantial increase in recycling and landfill diversion. 

• The provision of organic waste treatment services to be defined 
following an options appraisal relating to the collection methods 
for kitchen and garden wastes. 

• The provision of refuse transfer services at two sites in the city 
until the development of a residual treatment facility. 

• The provision of landfill disposal services. 
 

4. Committee instructs the Head of Finance, with the assistance of 
colleagues in Housing and Environment, to identify suitable financial 
and business analysis support for the development of an Alternative 
Solution. 

5. That Committee approves the decision not to include residual 
treatment services in the Alternative Solution. 

Page 117



 

 

6. That Committee instructs officers to undertake an options appraisal 
to determine the best method of procuring residual treatment 
services that conform to the requirements of the Aberdeen City 
Waste Strategy and to report to Committee on 6 January 2011. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Continuation of current waste management practices will result in significant 
increased costs to the Council in coming years.  The continued reliance on 
landfill for waste disposal will increase costs by approximately £1.7 million in 
2011/12 and an additional £720,000 per annum thereafter until 2014/15. 
 
The continued reliance on landfill, combined with expensive and limiting 
kerbside collection of recycling wastes does not demonstrate best value for 
the Council.  In order to expand recycling services it is necessary to develop 
sorting infrastructure that allows efficient collections across all of the city and 
prepares recycling wastes for sale as high-value products.  Without city-wide 
recycling collections, the Council will not achieve its own and national targets. 
 
The development of infrastructure required for the continuation of the Waste 
Management Services Contract can be financed in two ways.  Firstly, the 
WMSC provides for the contractor to develop facilities at its own cost and for 
the capital cost of developments to be incorporated in to the Rates for the 
services (currently on the basis of a tonnage based gate fee that depreciates 
assets across the remaining life of the WMSC).  The second option is for the 
Council to instruct the Contractor to develop the facilities and then make 
payment for the facilities in full upon commissioning. This requires the Council 
to allocate Capital Expenditure for these facilities. 
 
The estimated costs, based on early discussion with the Contractor for 
infrastructure to be developed through the WMSC Alternative Solution are 
shown in Table 1. 
 
Table 1. Aberdeen City Council Capital Infrastructure for Waste 

Strategy 
 
Facility Estimated 

capital cost (£)  
Materials Recycling Facility 4-7 million 
Organic Waste Treatment 2-4 million 
2 New Recycling Centres 1-2 million 
 
It should be noted that Residual Treatment infrastructure, which may be an 
Energy from Waste facility, is estimated to require a significantly higher capital 
commitment of £20-60 million; it is proposed to exclude this infrastructure from 
the Alternative Solution and address this following an options appraisal. 
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
The proposed Alternative Solution to the WMSC is based upon the recycling 
and organic treatment elements of the recently approved Aberdeen City 
Waste Strategy, which in turn is informed by the Vibrant, Dynamic and 
Forward-Looking policy document.  Included in VDFL is a target of 40% 

Page 118



 

 

recycling and a commitment to expand recycling services to all households in 
the city.  An EHRIA was undertaken in the development of the Aberdeen City 
Waste Strategy. 
 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal. Significant legal support is required to ensure that appropriate and 
secure alterations are made to the WMSC.  This specialist support is provided 
by the Council’s external legal advisors. 
Personnel. The proposed WMSC variation is required to support waste 
collection service changes that will expand the extent of collections but also 
reduce the number of personnel required to collect recycling materials from 
existing households.  By contrast, the development of organic treatment 
capacity will enable the introduction of food waste collections in multi-
occupancy areas; this is likely to require additional collection manpower.  The 
net effect of personnel changes on the collection service will be assessed and 
addressed at an early stage. 
Health and Safety. The infrastructure to be delivered through the Alternative 
Solution will result in the cessation of the kerbside sort recycling service which 
requires significant amounts of lifting from ground level of potentially heavy 
items.  Accordingly, a significant manual handling risk is reduced by the 
proposed service.

Page 119



 

 

 
6. REPORT 
 
6.1 Background 
 
The WMSC was signed in July 2000 with service commencing in September 
2000.  The contract duration is 25 (i.e. 15 years extant) with the main purpose 
of the contract being the construction of a combined Materials Recycling 
Facility (MRF) and Energy from Waste (EfW) Plant at a site in Altens (the 
Altens Environmental Park). 
 
Planning permission for this facility was refused in 2004; the contractual 
consequence of this refusal was to require the two parties in the Contract to 
agree an Alternative Solution.  The Council has since developed a new 
Aberdeen City Waste Strategy (adopted in April 2010).  This, combined with 
the Council’s Transformation Strategy for Waste Management Services 
(adopted in February 2008), now provides a clear framework for the 
development of an Alternative Solution. 
 
6.2 Progress to Date 
 
Notwithstanding the failure to secure planning permission for the Altens 
Environmental Park, the Waste Management Services Contractor, NEM/SITA 
(now known, and referred to in this report, as SITA UK Limited) has continued 
to provide ‘baseline’ services as envisaged under the WMSC and has in 
addition addressed emerging needs required in response to the developing 
policies of the Scottish Government and the Council. 
 
The baseline services are: 
 

• Operate Transfer Facilities at Sclattie, Bankhead 
• Provide Transfer Facilities in the south of the city; this was 

provided at the East Tullos Transfer Station until 2006 when the 
site was shut for Health and Safety reasons (un-sound) building 
structure).  Subsequently, SITA UK Limited has engaged 
Shanks Waste Solutions to provide a transfer station also in 
East Tullos. 

• Operate the four Recycling Centres in the city (including a new 
site at Greenbank Crescent, East Tullos, opened under the 
terms of the WMSC in 2003) 

• Provide landfill disposal facilities at Hill of Tramaud 
• Manage the restoration and formal closure of the Ness Farm 

and Tullos Hill Landfill Site 
 
The new services developed in association with SITA UK Limited since the 
commencement of the WMSC are: 
 

• Develop a facility at Sclattie for accepting, sorting and preparing for 
dispatch recycling materials arising from the Council’s kerbside 
collection. 

• Develop a facility for accepting and transferring food and garden 
waste at Sclattie and, via a contract with a third party, to provide In-
vessel Composting facilities for this waste. 

Page 120



 

 

• Modify the operation of the Recycling Centres to allow the 
separation for recycling of Waste Electrical and Electronic 
Equipment and provide for storage of refrigerators at Sclattie and 
arrange for their subsequent recycling. 

• Develop a landfill gas to electricity facility at Hill of Tramaud landfill 
with the Council gaining a share of revenue from electricity sales. 

 
6.3 Current Developments 
 
In parallel with the development of the Alternative Solution, a forthcoming 
change in circumstances within the Contract requires immediate action.  The 
Council’s landfill site at Hill of Tramaud, operated by SITA UK Limited, is likely 
to close in December 2010.  This situation was catered for within the initial 
WMSC whereby should the site be full before the Altens Environmental Park 
was opened, SITA UK Limited would reopen the Sclattie Transfer Station.  
Waste from Sclattie and the East Tullos facility is taken to the Stoneyhill 
Landfill Site near Peterhead.  The contractor would receive a higher gate fee 
to cover the additional costs this would incur. 
 
The development of additional recycling and kitchen and garden waste 
facilities at Sclattie means that there is now insufficient room for general 
refuse transfer at Sclattie.  The proposed solution is to construct a new 
building and ancillary works at Sclattie to enable the site to be used for 
transfer of all types of wastes.  A proposal has been made by SITA UK 
Limited in relation to this project and this will require an additional contract 
variation and the expenditure of approximately £450,000.  The Urgent 
Business Committee of 6 August 2010 instructed the Director for Housing and 
Environment to sign a Contract variation with SITA UK Limited to allow 
immediate start of works at Sclattie to ensure continuation of waste collection 
services. 
 
In addition to the works at Sclattie, SITA UK Limited has assessed options 
and developed proposals for the continued transfer of waste from the south of 
the city.  SITA UK Limited’s proposal is to undertake a limited renovation of 
the East Tullos Transfer Station to permit safe transfer operations to resume 
(the site has been closed on safety ground since 2006).  The redevelopment 
would allow the site to be operated for a further 5-7 years until new residual 
waste treatment facilities are developed in the city.  Costed proposals are 
awaited from SITA UK Limited, however, it is anticipated that a further 
approximately £700,000 is required to bring the facility back into use. 
 
6.4 Funding for Current Developments 
 
In 2007 the Scottish Government introduced the Zero Waste Fund to enable 
delivery of more sustainable waste management practices in Scotland.  The 
final year of support from the fund is 2010/11 and the Council has been 
allocated £1,244,000 in capital and revenue funding for this financial year.  It 
is proposed that this non-repeating additional funding is used to finance these 
important developments that will allow the Council to continue and enhance its 
recycling services in the future. 
 
6.5 Alternative Solution Requirements 
 

Page 121



 

 

The scope for an Alternative Solution to the WMSC has been derived 
following the adoption of the Aberdeen City Waste Strategy and the 
Transformation Strategy for Waste Management Services.  These strategies 
establish the need to: 
 

• Achieve high levels of recycling and composting in the city. 
• Generate value from all waste handled by the Council. 
• By applying the proximity principle, develop waste treatment 

infrastructure in Aberdeen wherever possible. 
• Adopt the most cost-effective waste management system that meets 

the needs of the city. 
 
These principles have been applied to the wastes collected by the Council 
and, as outlined in the Transformation Strategy, the following waste collection 
and disposal model has been developed: 
 
6.6 Waste Collection: 
 

• Introduce Food Waste Collections for all 57,000 households in 
Aberdeen currently without a collection. 

• Review the existing combined kitchen and garden waste collection to 
consider separation of these two streams and identify the most cost-
effective collection and treatment solution (see Waste Disposal below). 

• Introduce commingled on-street and communal recycling collections (to 
include glass, rigid plastics and tetrapak if technically and commercially 
possible) to all parts of the city not served with a kerbside collection. 

• Convert existing kerbside sort recycling collection scheme to 
commingled collections (to include glass, rigid plastics and tetrapak if 
technically and commercially possible) 

• Review the need for Recycling Points following introduction of services 
outlined above). 

 
6.7 Waste Disposal;  
 

• Develop a Materials Recycling Facility at the ‘Four Fields’ site in 
Altens to handle commingled recyclables collected by Aberdeen 
City Council. 

• Develop two new Recycling Centres, one at the former Grove 
Nursery Site in Hazlehead and the other in the Bridge of Don 
area, this latter to replace the Scotstown Road site. 

• Introduce operational improvements to the remaining three 
Recycling Centres (Sclattie, Pitmedden Road and Greenbank 
Crescent) to achieve substantial increases in recycling. 

• Provision organic waste treatment services to be defined 
following an options appraisal relating to the collection methods 
for kitchen and garden wastes.  Options available include In-
vessel composting/open windrow composting/anaerobic 
digestion or a combination of these in/near Aberdeen. 

• Provision of refuse transfer services at Sclattie and East Tullos 
until the development of a residual treatment facility. 

• The provision of landfill disposal services. 

Page 122



 

 

• Develop a residual treatment facility in/near Aberdeen that 
recovers value from waste through further processing for 
recycling, generation of heat and power from waste or a 
combination of the two. 

 
A schematic of the Waste Disposal system is shown in Figure 1. 

Page 123



 

 

20-25% 

5% Reject only Stoneyhill 
Landfill 

Altens 

Energy from Waste 
Plant 

Kerbside 
Refuse 

Kerbside 
Recycling 

Recycling 
Points 

Recycling 
Centres 
Refuse 

Food and 
Garden 
Collections 

Organic Treatment 
Aberdeen 

Recycling 
Reprocessors 
(various) 

Recycling Centres 
Recycling 

Recycling Centres 
Green Waste 

Figure 1. Schematic of Alternative Solution Waste Flows 

Bottom Ash 
Processing to 
Aggregate Market 

3% 

Heat Use Electricity 
Generation 

Soil 
Improver 

(If Anaerobic 
Digestion) 

P
age 124



 

 

6.8 Waste Management Services Contract – Alternative Solution 
 
All of the Waste Disposal activities identified above are within the scope of the 
current WMSC.  With the exception of the residual treatment requirement, all 
elements are assessed to be able to be delivered at best value when 
considering the capital repayment required for each facility.  The major capital 
expenditure required will be for the MRF and the organic treatment facility 
(when this is determined).  Both facilities will have an anticipated operating life 
of approximately 10 years before major refurbishment is required therefore 
capital depreciation can be economically achieved before the end of the 
WMSC. 
 
It is unlikely that this is to be the case for the residual treatment facility.  The 
scale of capital investment is likely to be in excess of £20 million and quite 
possibly in excess of £50 million depending on the technology chosen.  
Facilities of this nature will be designed with an operating life of up to 20 years 
with depreciation spread across this period.  The WMSC has a maximum of 
15 years to run; given time required for design, obtaining permissions and 
construction this is likely to result in a facility being commissioned with 10 or 
less years of the WMSC left to run.  Capital repayment on a facility with a 
design life of 20 years over 10 or fewer years cannot be demonstrated to be 
best value over the term of the WMSC. 
 
SITA UK Limited has submitted outline proposals to provide a residual 
treatment facility however, it is the view of the Council’s technical consultants, 
supported by officers that the options proposed either do not address the 
requirements of the Aberdeen City Waste Strategy, are not contractually 
compliant or do not unequivocally demonstrate that the proposed solutions 
are best value.  As a consequence, it is proposed that the residual treatment 
element of waste management is not included in the Alternative Solution at 
this stage.  Furthermore, it is proposed that the Council undertakes an options 
appraisal to consider the most appropriate method of delivering a residual 
treatment solution with the results reported to Committee on 6 January 2011.  
Subject to appropriate Committee approvals, a procurement exercise will be 
commenced in early 2011. 
 
The remaining elements of waste recycling, treatment and disposal are to be 
incorporated into negotiation with SITA of an Alternative Solution to the 
WMSC. 
 
6.9 Support to Alternative Solution 
 
Work to date with SITA UK Limited in scoping and developing the proposed 
terms of the Alternative Solution has been undertaken by officers within 
Housing and Environment.  From this stage forward the nature and skills 
required to reach agreed Alternative Solution change.  The following series of 
tasks are required to be completed to ensure an appropriate and best value 
Alternative Solution is achieved: 
 

• Aberdeen City Council to provide the scope and specification for 
the Alternative Solution (90% complete) 

Page 125



 

 

• SITA UK Limited to develop a Business Model based on a 
Contract Waste Data Flow model (initial iteration submitted for 
model validation) 

• Aberdeen City Council to validate Waste Data Flow Model and 
instruct SITA UK Limited to develop and submit full a Business 
Model and Proposal document 

• Aberdeen City Council to review Business Model and Proposal 
document and undertake best value analysis.  Best value 
analysis will require each element of the proposal to be 
scrutinised and, where necessary, benchmarked.  The business 
model supplied by SITA will be required to demonstrate unit 
costs for all activities and infrastructure to a level of detail that 
provides transparency.  The Proposal documents will also be 
required to identify what measures SITA has undertaken to 
achieve best value and mitigation of costs to the Council. 

• A period of discussion and refinement of proposals and costs to 
ensure that the Proposal meets the needs of the Council at 
appropriate cost. 

• Throughout this process work in parallel will continue to review 
and amend the Contract documentation to ensure that Contract 
Terms and Conditions are appropriate for the services to be 
provided. 

• Officers to prepare a full Alternative Solution assessment report 
for consideration by Committee. 

• Subject to Committee approval, a formal Contract Variation to be 
signed by the parties. 

 
The current resource allocated to WMSC management is limited and 
inadequate for the tasks outlined.  The Alternative Solution process is 
managed by the Strategist - Waste Management but the following specialist 
skills are required to ensure a robust and best value solution is achieved for 
the Council: 
 

• Legal Support. There is an existing arrangement that legal support 
to the WMSC is provided by the Council’s external legal advisors, 
Brodies LLP; it is proposed this support continues and includes the 
Alternative Solution. 

• Technical Support. The work required to validate and assess 
the value of the solutions proposed by the Contractor is extensive and 
will include benchmarking both of the technical solutions proposed but 
also the proposed cost of those solutions.  The Council has a 
framework provider for Waste Services including contract management 
purposes, the Halcrow Group.  It is proposed that Halcrow is engaged 
to support the delivery of the Alternative Solution and costs to be 
allocated to the Waste Disposal Budget. 

• Financial and Business Analysis Support. The Waste Data Flow 
and Business Model that form the basis of the Alternative Solution are 
very complex but are fundamental to the successful future 
management of the WMSC; an integrated and flexible model will 
ensure that as inevitable changes are made to the WMSC in the future, 
these changes can be incorporated into the Business Model and their 
financial impact assessed easily.  Furthermore, scrutiny of the financial 
proposals is required to ensure best value and to ensure they are in 

Page 126



 

 

accordance with the financial expectations of the existing WMSC.  No 
resource is in place for this essential element of the work.  It is 
recommended that the Head of Finance, with the assistance of 
colleagues in Housing and Environment identifies suitable support for 
this function in early course. 

 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Peter Lawrence 
Strategist – Waste Management 
PLawrence@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 01224 523284 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
 
DATE      7 September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Resourcing a High Quality Planning System  
 
REPORT NUMBER  EPI/10/205 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The Scottish Government has recently published a consultation 

document - Resourcing a High Quality Planning System.  The 
consultation looks at how planning can be resourced more effectively in 
the context of public sector constraints and slower rates of development.  
It explores alternative delivery options and proposes fee structures that 
are more proportionate in the longer term.  This report sets out a 
proposed response to the consultation paper.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
2.1 Agrees the response contained in this report and refer it to the Finance 

and Resources Committee for approval for submission, along with any 
further comments made by this committee and following the Heads of 
Planning Scotland workshop, to the Scottish Government. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The report relates to the future resourcing of the planning service.  The 

consultation paper states that the overall resourcing of the planning 
service is the responsibility of local authorities.  Whilst the consultation 
focuses mainly on planning application fees, it also states that authorities 
require to look at the resourcing of the whole planning service in the 
context of budgets and the role its planning service should play in 
supporting economic recovery, delivering quality developments as part of 
longer term sustainable growth.  While the modernised planning system 
has taken some duties away from some planning authorities, this has 
been outweighed by the introduction of additional duties with no 
additional allocation of resources.  The consultation includes seeking 
views on options for amending the planning application fee structure and 
whilst it is anticipated that this will result in an increase in fee levels, it is 
not yet clear exactly what the implications will be.  As a result of the 
economic downturn there has been a large reduction in the income 
generated through planning application fees.  The reduction in fee 
income has been proportionally significantly greater than the reduction in 
the number of applications received.  Therefore ways of increasing 

Agenda Item 5.5

Page 129



 
income would be something which should be encouraged.  It should be 
noted that these issues are also being looked at by the Service through 
the current Priority Based Budgeting exercise. 

 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
4.1 The Scottish Government has stated that an effective planning service is 

fundamental to achieving its central purpose of sustainable economic 
growth.  As such the proposals in this report relate to a number of Single 
Outcome Agreement Outcomes: 

 1- We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe;  

 2- We realise our full economic potential with more and better 
employment opportunities for our people;  

 10- We live in well-designed, sustainable places where we are able to 
access the amenities and services we need;  

 12- We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and protect it 
and enhance it for future generations;  

 13- We take pride in a strong, fair and inclusive national identity; and   
 15- Our public services are high quality, continually improving, efficient 

and responsive to local people’s needs. 
 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no property, legal and equipment implications arising from this 

report. 
 
6. REPORT 
 
Introduction 
 
6.1 The Scottish Government recognises the importance of planning as a 

key driver to building economic success and to achieving its central 
purpose of increasing sustainable economic growth.  Over the past two 
years the planning system in Scotland has undergone significant change 
with the implementation of the new Planning Act and the introduction of 
e-planning.  The Scottish Government is working with CoSLA, local 
authorities, key agencies and the development industry to ensure there 
is a modern, future-facing planning system which is properly resourced 
to deliver quality outcomes.  As part of that process the Scottish 
Government has recently published a consultation paper - Resourcing a 
High Quality Planning System and is looking for views on how the 
planning system should be best resourced to deliver a quality service 
that supports the delivery of sustainable economic growth.   

 
6.2 The consultation paper stresses the Government’s commitment to 

ensuring that issues relating to resources and quality are linked and 
emphasises the expectation that planning authorities will continue to 
improve beyond their existing performance level (although it does not 
specify what this means). 

 
 
 
 

Page 130



 
Policy and legislative background 
 
6.3 Planning application fees are set by Scottish Ministers and approved by 

the Scottish Parliament.  Fees were raised by 10% in April 2010 for the 
first time since April 2007.  Scottish Ministers have said that they may 
consider a further increase in fees if planning authorities can continue to 
demonstrate convincing and sustained improvements in performance.   
The fee maxima is considerably higher in England and Wales than in 
Scotland.  In addition, some applications are exempt from fees or are 
charged at a reduced rate.   

 
Consultation questions 
 
6.4 The consultation document is presented in three sections relating to 

effective use of resources, reviewing performance and a review of the 
fee structure with a number of specific questions asked in relation to 
each of these.  The following sections of this report provide a brief 
summary of the consultation issues and a proposed response to the 
questions raised.  It should be noted that the Heads of Planning Scotland 
have organised a meeting to help planning authorities formulate their 
responses to the consultation.  This meeting does not take place until 
after the EP&I Committee date so it is proposed that any amendments to 
our responses are reported to the Finance and Resources Committee 
along with this report.  

 
Effective Use of Resources 
 
This section explores how to make the most effective use of resources with 
the aim of improving the quality of service offered and considers issues 
relating to proportionality, quality and new ways of working.  It includes issues 
such as simplifying requests for information to support a planning application, 
improving the quality of applications, charging for pre-application discussions, 
the use of processing agreements, the potential of shared services, joint 
commissioning and accreditation, out sourcing and the use of peer review and 
sharing best practice. 
 
Q1.  What measures could be implemented that would improve the 
quality of application and supporting information? 
 
An element missing from this section in terms of the quality of applications is 
that developers should submit applications that comply with the development 
plan.  Developers should be made aware that this would be the most effective 
means of facilitating faster decisions and high quality outcomes. There should 
be more scope for planning authorities to refuse to register applications that 
do not contain full information. This may require a review of the Development 
Management Regulations.  Consideration could be given to providing an 
incentive for planning authorities to enter into processing agreements (there 
had previously been a suggestion of an enhanced fee).  An accreditation 
scheme for agents, similar to that which exists for engineers in building 
standards or contractors for works in the public highway could be considered. 
 
 
 

Page 131



 
Q2.  Would you be in favour of the introduction of a charge for pre-
application discussions?  In considering your response, should this be 
a one-off payment or should it be discounted against the subsequent 
submission of a planning application? 
 
It is not clear if this relates to national and major applications or local 
applications or both.  However, the principle of charging for pre-application 
discussions should be welcomed on the understanding that this could be 
discounted against the fee for a subsequent planning application.  It should be 
recognised that there are different procedures for different types of application 
and that the fees could be set accordingly.  There are potential consequences 
of introducing a charge for voluntary/discretionary pre-application discussions 
where a charge may discourage engagement and result in poorer quality 
applications.  A further issue is that it is presently unclear is whether the 
introduction of pre-application charges would be legally competent under the 
current legislation.  This is, however, an option currently being considered by 
the Council.   
 
There may also be scope for charging for pre application work in relation to 
delivering supplementary guidance in the form of masterplans or development 
frameworks.  These would have to be subject of an agreement on programme 
and resources.  The parties that enter into this arrangement would need a 
substantial incentive that this provides benefits in the determination of a 
subsequent planning application, for instance, in speed of decision making.  
This is being considered as part of our Priority Based Budgeting exercise. 
 
Q3.  Are you supportive of the ways of working identified above?  If so, 
is there a particular approach that you consider could make a difference 
to the performance of the planning system?  If yes, which one and why? 
 
Aberdeen City Council has already established shared services with 
Aberdeenshire Council for planning gain, Strategic Environmental 
Assessment and the Design Review Panel. The Council already benchmarks 
and shares best practise with other authorities, which has been a very useful 
exercise for a number of years.  Other options, including outsourcing and 
shared services are currently being considered as part of the Council’s Priority 
Based Budgeting exercise. These options are not, however, without risks.  For 
example, for a potential shared service it may not be possible to agree the 
principle and details, there could be blurred lines of accountability and 
governance and the costs of restructuring could be greater than any cost 
savings.  Outsourcing of the planning service could result in the loss of local 
knowledge, create potential conflicts of interest and diminish public perception 
of the democratic process.  The costs of the outsourcing process also mean 
that it is unlikely to achieve efficiencies in the short term, if ever. 
 
Performance 
 
This section stresses the importance of regular monitoring and assessment of 
the quality of service being provided by planning authorities.  It recognises 
that the success of the planning service should not be judged only on the 
speed of decisions but that there are also qualitative aspects of the process.  
It states that the Scottish Government will work with authorities to promote a 
framework of self assessment which reflects the new relationship with local 
government, the new approach to audit and inspection and a culture of 

Page 132



 
continuous improvement.  It also raises the potential of the reintroduction of 
planning audits. 
 
Q4.  What do you consider constitutes a high performing planning 
system?   In considering your response, please reflect on the roles and 
responsibilities of the various parties in the planning system including 
developers, planning authorities, key agencies as well as other 
stakeholders. 
Are you aware of any existing appropriate frameworks currently being 
used that could be used? If not, are there any themes or indicators that 
could be considered as part of a framework to monitor the planning 
system? In considering your response we would also welcome views on 
the introduction of such a framework as well as who is best placed to 
carry out this assessment. 
 
Whilst the aspiration to improve performance is supported in principle, there is 
no indication in the document as to what “a measurable step change in quality 
of service” or “convincing and sustained improvements in performance” would 
look like.  There will be different actions required in different authorities and 
reflected in their Service Improvement Plans depending on what that change 
is - again it is the speed versus quality issue; faster does not necessarily 
mean good quality sustainable places.  A high performing planning system 
should be recognised by the public as such and should be open and 
responsive, whilst making quick decisions that lead to quality development on 
the ground. 
 
Any new assessment framework should be integrated and consistent with 
those already in use by Councils.  Aberdeen City Council has adopted the 
“How Good is Your Council” framework. 
 
It should also be recognised that the quality of the planning service is not 
dependent solely on the planning authority but rather it requires quality and 
timely input from other stakeholders, including key agencies, developers, 
community groups and other Council services.  It is, therefore, important that 
any assessment framework incorporates a mechanism for assessing their 
performance too. 
 
The benefit of relying only on the current Statutory Performance Indicators, 
which measure only the speed of decision making and not the quality of those 
decisions or of the outcomes, and measuring performance between 
authorities with very different issues, development pressures, budget and 
priorities is questionable.  Consideration should be given to using a balanced 
score card approach to judge performance against the five perspectives of 
public interest, private customer, internal business, continuous improvement 
and finance and the targets set by individual planning authorities appropriate 
to their own circumstances.  This would demonstrate, for example, the high 
levels of customer satisfaction with the Council’s planning service, as 
demonstrated through our customer satisfaction survey. 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



 
Review of Fee Structure 
 
It is widely recognised that there is a need for a change in the fee structure for 
planning applications and this section of the consultation document focuses 
on options for reviewing the existing fee structure.  The consultation has been 
developed using the principles that fees should cover costs and be relevant, 
appropriate, fair, evidence based and aid service improvements.  It presents 
five options: 
 
Option 1: Value based approach - where the fee is linked to the value of the 
development. 
 
Option 2: Time based charging model - where the fee is linked directly to the 
time spent processing each planning application. 
 
Option 3: Allowing planning authorities to set their own fees - this would 
require a change in the primary legislation, or for fees for each authority to be 
included within the regulations. 
 
Option 4: Linking fees to hierarchy of developments. 
 
Option 5: Maintain but adjust the current model - with adjustments made to 
reflect the hierarchy and specific sectoral developments. 
 
Fees should at least cover costs, although it is accepted that they should not 
necessarily be used to aid service improvements, although it is difficult to 
identify the true cost of providing a planning service because of the way the 
service integrates with the wider organisation and outside bodies.  It would be 
easier to cover the cost of case officer and administration costs 
 
It is important to acknowledge some of the downsides relating to the options 
presented as well as the potential benefits.  The fact that the RICS data is 
often an area for dispute in building standards suggests that this approach is 
not always simple and transparent.  There is also a question as to whether 
something based on value encourages developers to try and cut costs (and 
thereby quality).  
 
There is a risk that a fee based on time charging may lead to pressure to cut 
corners to minimise time and cost.  The amount of time spent processing an 
application does not necessarily relate to the type or complexity of the 
application.  For instance there may be a well organised campaign of 
opposition or one particular persistent objector so this approach may be seen 
as unfair to applicants.  A time based charging system appears to be fraught 
with difficulty, for example would charging be based on a single rate or would 
it relate to the seniority of the staff involved process an application? 
  
Q5.  Do you think the Scottish Government should amend the current 
fee structure? 
Which is your preferred option (1, 2, 3, 4 or 5)? (Please give any 
comments on why these are you preferred/least favoured options) 
Which is your least preferred option (1, 2, 3, 4 or 5)? 

Page 134



 
What alternative approaches do you feel the Scottish Government 
should consider, if any? In considering your response please give any 
comments on why the option you identified above are you 
preferred/least favoured. 
Option five would be the most attractive in terms of understanding and 
applying in practice.  A time based approach should not be supported as the 
time spent on an application can often be outwith the applicant’s control, for 
example if a lot of objections are raised.  Trying to get extra money at a later 
date from applicants for the current requirement for publicity for applications 
has raised a number of practical difficulties and staged payments is 
considered  to be undesirable. 
This section of the document also considers issues relating to a potential fee 
structure, the use of incentives to improve performance, staged/phased 
payments, the application of a one off single fee and regional variations in the 
number and type of applications.  It also looks at a range of other changes 
which could be made to the existing fee structure, including new charges for 
specific elements of the service and particular types of applications.   
There is an argument that enhanced fees should be required for retrospective 
planning permission.  In practice, this might impact more severely on smaller, 
domestic type of work and it is unlikely to produce significant additional 
income, but it may provide a disincentive to undertake unauthorised works.  
Consideration should also be given to charging the developer for any 
enforcement action that planning authorities are required to take against 
unauthorised development.  This should cover the costs incurred by the 
authority.  
The application fee should cover the cost of neighbour notification, 
responsibility for which has transferred from the developer to the planning 
authority with no additional resources allocated to Councils, despite the 
significant additional burden it places on them. 
Fee Maximum 
Q6.  Do you consider that the maximum fee level should be raised? If so, 
what would you consider to be an appropriate maximum level and 
should this higher fee be dependent on a defined service and timescales 
being delivered by the planning authority? 
Yes. This should be informed by the English system and by the hierarchy of 
developments. The possibility of larger/enhanced fees for applications that are 
significant departures from the development plan should also be examined.  
Allocation of the fee 
Q7.  Do you consider that other consultees should charge the relevant 
planning authority for their input on planning applications? 
It is not clear how this would be implemented.  There is also an issue about 
how planning authorities could resource the potential gap being left by 
agencies stepping back from the system.  Fee calculation and method of 
payment could be potentially so complicated that this option should not be 
pursued.  Consultees also benefit from the planning service as it is a source of 
information to help them in their service delivery and can minimise problems 
which might arise in the future. 

Page 135



 
Incentives 
Q8. Do you consider the use of rebates, discounts or other incentives a 
useful tool in delivering a more efficient service? If so what would be an 
effective discount, rebate or other incentive? 
No. Delays to planning applications are not always caused by planning 
authorities or services that in the control of the planning service, for example 
where there are significant numbers of objections, or where a developer does 
not respond timeously to requests for further information. Incentives could 
have the opposite effect and lead to more refusals.  Sometimes applicants do 
not want a quick decision for contractural reasons.  
Staged / phased payments 
Q9.  Do you think the introduction of staged payments would encourage 
more efficient service and be helpful to developers? If so, are there any 
particular stages within the process that should trigger a payment? 
 
No.  There are potential difficulties of recovering payments if they are staged.  
An example would be the difficulties encountered even with something as 
simple as Neighbour Notification Adverts where it is difficult to get payments 
especially if it looks like an application is going for refusal. 
 
One off single fee 
Q10.  Do you consider there should be a single fee? 
Yes.  This would have significant benefits – applicants would know the size of 
the fee at the outset and the payment system would be much easier to 
administer. 
 
Regional variances 
Q11.  Should the charging scheme take into account the regional 
variations in types of applications and the varying nature of local 
authorities? If so, what factors should be considered? 
No.  There should be a single national fee.  It should perhaps be recognised 
that some authorities have different burdens, for example, neighbour 
notification has placed a greater burden on compact urban authorities such as 
Aberdeen. 
Change of use 
Q12.  Do you consider it appropriate to amend the fees for changes of 
use?  If so, how should this be calculated? 
Yes.  Consideration should be given relating it to the site area or amount of 
floorspace involved. 
 
 

Page 136



 
Environmental Impact Assessments 
Q13.  Do you consider that submission of an EIA should warrant an 
additional fee? If so what might an appropriate charge be? 
Yes.  Processing an EIA application involves a great deal of work.  The fee 
should be set at the same level as the related planning application. 
Fees for application for planning permission in principle 
Q14.  Do you agree that applications for planning permission in principle 
should continue to be charged at half the standard fee? 
No.  There is little justification for this.  Applications for planning permission in 
principle can create as much work as full applications.  The full fee should be 
paid. 
 
Hazardous Substances Consent 
Q15.  Do you agree that the fees for Hazardous Substances Consent 
should be increased inline with inflation? 
Yes.  This has very little impact in Aberdeen. 
Discharge of Conditions 
Q16.  Do you think there should be a fee payable for discharge of 
conditions? If so, should this be refundable where a decision has not 
been made within a set period of time? 
No.  This could discourage compliance with conditions and could lead to more 
enforcement work for which additional resources would be required. This 
could be factored into the initial application fee structure. 
 
Planning agreements 
Q17.  Do you think there should be a fee payable on the conclusion of a 
planning agreement? If so, how should this be calculated? 
 
Most authorities charge for the legal and administrative costs of preparing 
planning agreements.  When the money is handed over is not really an 
incentive.   It is also important to recognise that some of the delay in 
completing planning agreements can lie with the developer.  Continuation of 
the present procedures would appear to be a reasonable approach. 
 
Tailored services 
Q18.  Do you consider that the fee regime should include the ability to 
offer a tailored service for certain developments? 
 

Page 137



 
No.  The design and structure of service to be provided should be left to the 
planning  authority  
Windfarms 
Q19. Do you consider that fees for windfarms should be altered to reflect 
the nature of this industry? If so, do you agree with developing a 
scheme similar to that in operation in England, or are there alternative 
options? 
 
Aberdeen City does not have any experience of dealing with planning 
applications for wind farms.  Other authorities with more experience would be 
better placed to answer this question.     
 
Mineral and Landfill Sites 
Q20.  Should the Scottish Government take forward previous proposals 
to introduce a set fee payable by the operator for each visit subject to a 
maximum number of visits per annum or do you consider that 
monitoring costs should be borne by the planning authorities? 
As for question 19. 
 
Aquaculture/ Fish Farming 
Q21.  Do you consider that a single level fee based only on the 
equipment above the surface, including feed barges and any associated 
equipment, is appropriate? If so, how should this be calculated? 
As for question 19. 
 
Q22.  Do consider that a fee charged for the testing of areas for potential 
shellfish farms is appropriate? 
As for question 19. 
 
Agricultural Buildings 
Q23.  Where an application for an agricultural development under 465 
m2 is not subject to permitted development should a fee be required to 
be paid based on the development size? Should this be a full fee or part 
fee? 
It is considered that there is no justification for reduced fees for agricultural 
buildings. 
 
 

Page 138



 
Q24.  Should fees be reduced for agricultural developments above a 
certain size? 
No. 
 
Any other comments 
Q25.  We welcome any other views and comments that you might have 
on Resourcing a High Quality Planning System that have not already 
been covered within this consultation. 
 

The emphasis on resourcing a planning system which supports economic 
growth is the correct way to go.  At the same time it is important that response 
is not just about how planning can be resourced more effectively in the 
context of public sector constraints and slower rates of development, it should 
be about creating a sustainable model that works both in times of constraint 
and in healthier economic times.  If the focus is on economic recovery there 
is, by implication, an expectation that developments could be approved to 
address a short term problem which we may then live to regret in the longer 
term.  The emphasis must still be on quality development.  It is important to 
recognise that what we are trying to resource is a system which achieves 
better outcomes, not just faster decision making, and that all sectors have to 
play their part in that in terms of the culture change.    
 
The consultation document states that “An element of planning reform is to 
streamline the planning process and to reduce the number of planning 
applications being submitted in order to enable planning authorities to 
concentrate on more significant applications”.  It is important to recognise in 
considering the resourcing of the planning system that this has not been 
implemented, the anticipated efficiencies not realised and the resources not 
freed up as expected.  It is also becoming evident that the anticipated 
reduction in application numbers is unlikely to be achieved without radical 
changes to permitted development, some of which may be controversial. 
 
This must all be achieved at a time of increasing constraints in the public 
sector when Council’s are required to make very difficult decisions about their 
service priorities.  In the case of Aberdeen City Council many of these options 
will be considered through the Priority Based Budgeting exercise currently 
being undertaken which may provide an example of best practice for other 
Councils. 
 
The system must be responsive to changes in the economic position so that 
fluctuations in demand can be accommodated without either incoming 
excessive cost or imposing undue delays. 
 
It is important that whatever charging regime is introduced it does not 
prejudice good will and public support for the planning system and as such is 
seen to be both fair and reasonable. The danger of losing goodwill might 
result in making it more difficult to deliver desirable outcomes. 
 
 
 
 

Page 139



 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development 
� 01224 (52) 3133 
� mbochel@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
Resourcing a High Quality Planning System - a Consultation Paper, Scottish 
Government, July 2010 available from 
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2010/07/07154028/0 

Page 140



1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

COMMITTEE     Finance and Resources Committee  
 
DATE      28th September 2010 
 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR  Stewart Carruth 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Corporate Governance Service � Performance 

Reporting 
 
REPORT NUMBER CG/10/173 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This is a report on the progress and performance of the Corporate Governance 
Service in implementing the approved Service Business Plan 2010/13.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
It is recommended that the Committee:- 

 
i. Note the reported progress and performance; and 
 
ii. Instruct such action as is considered appropriate.  

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no direct implications arising from this report. 
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
The Corporate Governance Service�s success in delivering its approved Service 
Business Plan will have considerable impact on the Council�s services and the wider 
community. 
 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 141



2

6. REPORT 
 
6.1 Background

6.1.1 The Committee, at its meeting on 17th June 2010, approved the Service 
Business Plan 2010/13 for the Corporate Governance Service.  The Service 
Business Plan includes a number of actions with corresponding performance 
indicators which will measure the impact of the actions. 

 
6.1.2 The Corporate Policy & Performance Committee, at its meeting on 29th April 

2010, agreed that Service Committees should receive and consider quarterly 
performance reports from the corresponding Service.  The reports to include: 

 
ÿ progress with actions set out in the relevant Service Business Plan; 
ÿ all Statutory Performance Indicators which fall within the committee�s 

remit; 
ÿ other Key Performance Indicators which the Service and / or the 

Committee deem necessary to manage performance; 
ÿ specifically, data showing actual and projected expenditure on revenue 

and capital budgets, as well as delivery of agreed savings; and 
ÿ the relevant Service Risk Register. 

 

6.1.3 This report presents the first quarterly performance pack for the Corporate 
Governance Service. 

 
6.2 Ongoing Development of Performance Data and Reporting

6.2.1 Members will appreciate that the 3 year Corporate Governance Service 
Business Plan represents significant change.  The Service is committed to 
implementing and monitoring this change through improved use of actionable 
data.  Work is ongoing to put in place processes which capture the 
�necessary� data as opposed to the �readily available�.  As a result a number 
of our agreed performance indicators remain in development.  These will 
quickly become populated as systems are put in place to capture the data. 

 
6.2.2 As set out within the Service Business Plan, the Corporate Governance 

Service intends to move its performance reporting towards a fully �Balanced 
Scorecard� over the coming months.  A significant element of this �Balanced 
Scorecard� requires both self-evaluation and external qualitative feedback to 
be given by the service users of Corporate Governance.  The following 
metrics are currently being developed and will become part of the Service�s 
performance reporting when data is available:- 

 
i. Self-evaluation

ÿ "How Good is Our Council?" Rating 
ÿ "How Good is Our Management?" Rating 
ÿ "How Good are Our Processes?" Rating 
ÿ "How Good is our Leadership?" Rating 
ÿ "How Well do we Meet the Needs of Stakeholders?" Rating 
ÿ "How Good are Our Key Outcomes?" Rating  

 

Page 142



3

ii. Customer Feedback

ÿ Customer Satisfaction with Corporate Governance Services 
ÿ Customer Satisfaction with ICT 
ÿ Customer Satisfaction with Finance 
ÿ % staff satisfaction with the Council as an employer 

 
iii. Processes

ÿ Accumulated increases in productivity 
 

6.3 Exceptional Performance At September 2010

6.3.1 Significant steps have already been taken across the Corporate Governance 
Service towards implementing the 2010/13 Service Business Plan.   Members 
will appreciate that the Service Business Plan commits the Service to many 
new actions and performance indicators, therefore progress and trend 
analysis is at an early stage.  There are a small number of exceptional issues 
which the Service would specifically highlight: 

 
Action Exceptions

1. We will ensure value for money by challenging spend through a Priority 
Based approach to budgeting and planning. 

Exception Reason Timescale Progress Status Note 

Of exceptional current 
significance 

31 Mar 
2011 

The work to produce a corporate business 
plan that bases its expenditure and future 
service delivery on achieving the 
accepted priorities of the council is 
progressing to the plan established for 
this work. Currently the work from all 
Services is being combined to create the 
corporate plan. This production will then 
be shared with elected members and 
taken for wider external engagement 
during October. Formal presentation of 
the proposed business plan will be to the 
Finance & Resources Committee on 
2/12/10. 

2. We will deliver a positive customer experience through a customer 
service centre at the new corporate headquarters and an improved 
combined telephone contact centre. 

Exception Reason Timescale Progress Status Note 

Of exceptional current 
significance 

31 Mar 
2012 

Customer Contact Centre
Building works are scheduled to be 
complete by the end of October 2010. 
Analysis of IT requirements undertaken, 
tender documentation prepared and 
issued and tender responses received. 
Evaluation of responses is ongoing.  

Page 143



4

Performance Indicator Exceptions

1. Value of efficiencies achieved from Improved Procurement (£000) 

Exception 
Reason 

Performance significantly above 
target 

Value £2,100,000 Target £1,467,000 

Analysis The reported performance shows a significantly greater level of savings from 
improved procurement than target.  The figures above are for the financial year 
2009/10.  A further target of £1,178,000 has been set for the current financial 
year.  £818,000 has been delivered to date and the current end of year forecast is 
£1,200,000. 

2. Average number of days lost through sickness absence - Corporate 
Governance 

 
Exception 
Reason 

Performance below target Current 
Value 

12.9 Target 10 

Benchmarking The PI is compared with all other Scottish local authorities.  2009/10 comparative 
data is not yet available.  2008/09 data shows a Scottish average of 12.5 days.  
The Corporate Governance Service, therefore, is broadly similar to the national 
average. 

Analysis Action has been taken to amend the policy, management arrangements and 
monitoring of absence.  The number of days and incidences of absence at which 
point formal action is required has been reduced.  In addition, officers are 
improving the timeliness and detail of the information available to managers to 
monitor absence.  The Corporate Management Team has recently reviewed a 
detailed breakdown of absence and actions are being directed on the basis of this 
information.   

Page 144



5

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Martin Murchie, Performance, Audit & Risk Manager 
mmurchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk
01224 522030 
 

8.   BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Page 145



6

C
o

m
b

in
e
d

A
c
ti

o
n

s
a
n

d
P

Is
R

e
p

o
rt

T
y
p

e
:

A
ct

io
n
s

R
ep

o
rt

R
e
p

o
rt

A
u

th
o

r:
M

a
rt

in
M

u
rc

h
ie

G
e
n

e
ra

te
d

o
n

:
0
9

S
ep

te
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
0

1
.

W
e

m
a
k
e

b
e
s
t

u
se

o
f

th
e

fi
n

a
n

ci
a
l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

a
v
a
il
a
b

le
to

u
s
,

d
e
li
v
e
ri

n
g

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t
in

o
u

r
s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

in
th

e
m

o
s
t

co
s
t

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

m
a
n

n
e
r

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

e
n
su

re
v
a
lu

e
fo

r
m

o
n
ey

b
y

ch
a
lle

n
g
in

g
sp

e
n
d

th
ro

u
g
h

a
P
ri
o
ri
ty

B
a
se

d
ap

p
ro

ac
h

to
b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g

a
n
d

p
la

n
n
in

g
.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

C
o
u
n
ci

l-
w

id
e

e
ff
ic

ie
n
ci

e
s

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f
re

v
e
n
u
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

2
%

2
.3

2
%

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
G

o
v
er

n
a
n
ce

S
er

v
ic

e
e
ff
ic

ie
n
ci

e
s

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f
re

ve
n
u
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

P
I

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

m
ar

ke
t

te
st

a
n
d

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

o
u
r

se
rv

ic
e
s

a
g
a
in

st
b
e
st

in
cl

a
ss

ac
ro

ss
a

ra
n
g
e

o
f
se

ct
o
rs

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
2

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

C
o
st

o
f
o
ve

ra
ll

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

n
cy

fu
n
ct

io
n

p
er

£
1
,0

0
0

o
f

n
e
t

ex
p
en

d
it
u
re

£
6
.3

7

C
o
st

o
f
o
ve

ra
ll

h
u
m

a
n

re
so

u
rc

e
s

fu
n
ct

io
n

p
e
r

£
1
,0

0
0

o
f
n
e
t

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£
6
.4

8
£
6
.4

8

T
o
ta

l
C
o
st

o
f
O

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

p
e
r

IC
T

w
o
rk

st
a
ti
o
n

£
1
,0

3
9
.0

0
£
1
,1

5
4
.1

4

In
te

rn
a
l
A
u
d
it

co
st

p
er

£
1
m

ex
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£
8
6
1
.0

0
£
6
6
4
.0

0

Page 146



7

G
ro

ss
ad

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o
n

co
st

p
er

b
e
n
e
fi
t

ca
se

£
3
6
.0

0
£
4
1
.4

7

C
o
st

o
f

co
lle

ct
in

g
co

u
n
ci

l
ta

x
p
e
r

d
w

e
lli

n
g

£
1
2
.7

5
£
1
2
.9

8

T
h
e

p
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

o
f
C
o
u
n
ci

l
T
a
x

co
lle

ct
ed

d
u
ri
n
g

th
e

y
e
a
r,

n
e
t

o
f
re

lie
fs

a
n
d

re
b
a
te

s
(S

PI
)

3
9
.2

9
%

5
1
%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

e
n
su

re
B
e
st

V
a
lu

e
in

p
ro

je
ct

s
th

ro
u
g
h

a
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

N
o

o
f
p
ro

je
ct

s
d
e
liv

e
re

d
w

h
e
re

a
n
ti
ci

p
a
te

d
b
u
si

n
e
ss

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

ac
h
ie

v
ed

a
s

a
%

o
f
th

o
se

d
e
liv

e
re

d
w

it
h
in

th
e

ti
m

e
p
er

io
d

1
0
0
%

8
0
%

N
o

o
f
p
ro

je
ct

s
d
e
liv

e
re

d
w

it
h
in

a
g
re

e
d

b
u
d
g
e
t

a
s

a
%

o
f

th
o
se

d
e
liv

e
re

d
w

it
h
in

th
e

ti
m

e
p
e
ri
o
d

1
0
0
%

9
0
%

N
o

o
f
p
ro

je
ct

s
d
e
liv

e
re

d
w

it
h
in

a
g
re

e
d

ti
m

e
sc

a
le

a
s

a
%

o
f
th

o
se

d
e
liv

er
e
d

w
it
h
in

th
e

ti
m

e
p
e
ri
o
d

1
0
0
%

9
0
%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

re
v
ie

w
b
u
si

n
e
ss

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s

to
su

p
p
o
rt

d
e
liv

e
ry

to
th

e
C
o
u
n
ci

l's
cu

st
o
m

e
rs

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

%
o
f
co

u
n
ci

l
sp

e
n
d

th
a
t

is
"s

u
p
p
o
rt

se
rv

ic
e
s"

P
I

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

p
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

o
f
re

si
d
e
n
ts

ve
ry

o
r

q
u
it
e

sa
ti
sf

ie
d

w
it
h

th
e

co
u
n
ci

l
4
8
%

4
6
%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

w
o
rk

w
it
h

o
u
r

p
a
rt

n
er

s
to

id
e
n
ti
fy

a
n
d

d
e
liv

e
r

ef
fi
ci

en
ci

e
s

fr
o
m

e
ff
e
ct

iv
e

p
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

V
a
lu

e
o
f
e
ff
ic

ie
n
ci

e
s

a
ch

ie
v
ed

fr
o
m

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t

(£
0
0
0
)

£
1
,4

6
7
,0

0
0

£
2
,1

0
0
,0

0
0

Page 147



8

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

d
e
ve

lo
p

a
n
d

im
p
le

m
e
n
t

a
n

a
p
p
ro

a
ch

to
m

e
as

u
ri
n
g

p
ro

d
u
ct

iv
it
y
.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

T
h
e

p
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

o
f
a
ll

in
v
o
ic

e
s

p
a
id

w
it
h
in

3
0

ca
le

n
d
ar

d
a
y
s

(S
P
I)

8
8
.5

%
6
4
.7

%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

im
p
le

m
e
n
t

a
n
d

e
m

b
e
d

a
m

o
d
e
l
o
f
se

lf
-e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

a
cr

o
ss

th
e

C
o
u
n
ci

l
to

im
p
ro

v
e

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
o
f
o
u
r

b
u
si

n
e
ss

a
n
d

to
co

-o
rd

in
a
te

o
u
r

ef
fo

rt
fo

r
e
x
te

rn
a
l
in

sp
e
ct

io
n
.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

m
o
d
er

n
is

e
th

e
In

te
rn

al
A
u
d
it

fu
n
ct

io
n

in
p
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h

a
n

e
x
te

rn
a
l
p
ro

v
id

e
r

to
p
ro

v
id

e
a
d
d
e
d

v
a
lu

e
th

ro
u
g
h

e
a
ch

a
u
d
it
.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n

w
it
h

In
te

rn
a
l
A
u
d
it

9
0
%

8
8
%

T
a
n
g
ib

le
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

in
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

re
su

lt
in

g
fr

o
m

A
u
d
it

R
ec

o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

P
I

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

In
te

rn
a
l
A
u
d
it

co
st

p
er

£
1
m

ex
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£
8
6
1
.0

0
£
6
6
4
.0

0

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

fu
rt

h
e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

im
p
ro

ve
o
u
r

ri
sk

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

p
o
lic

y
to

b
e
tt

er
m

a
n
ag

e
ri
sk

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

im
p
ro

v
e

o
u
r

co
rp

o
ra

te
IC

T
in

fr
a
st

ru
ct

u
re

to
su

p
p
o
rt

th
e

b
u
si

n
e
ss

in
co

st
e
ff
e
ct

iv
e

w
a
y
s.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
2

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f
IC

T
e
n
a
b
le

d
fl
e
x
ib

le
w

o
rk

in
g

-
%

o
f

E
m

p
lo

y
ee

s
w

h
o

h
a
v
e

fl
e
x
ib

le
w

o
rk

in
g

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
a
s

a
%

o
f
to

ta
l

e
m

p
lo

y
e
es

.
2
0
%

6
.2

5
%

Page 148



9

M
a
jo

r
co

m
p
u
te

r
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

u
p
ti
m

e
9
9
.5

%
9
9
.7

2
%

T
o
ta

l
C
o
st

o
f
O

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

p
e
r

IC
T

w
o
rk

st
a
ti
o
n

£
1
,0

3
9
.0

0
£
1
,1

5
4
.1

4

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

im
p
le

m
e
n
t

a
H

u
m

a
n

R
e
so

u
rc

e
s

sh
a
re

d
se

rv
ic

e
ce

n
tr

e
.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

C
u
st

o
m

er
S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n

w
it
h

H
R

1
0
0
%

5
2
.7

%

C
o
st

o
f
o
ve

ra
ll

h
u
m

a
n

re
so

u
rc

e
s

fu
n
ct

io
n

p
e
r

£
1
,0

0
0

o
f
n
e
t

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£
6
.4

8
£
6
.4

8

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

im
p
le

m
e
n
t

a
Fi

n
a
n
ce

sh
a
re

d
se

rv
ic

e
ce

n
tr

e
.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

C
o
st

o
f
o
ve

ra
ll

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

n
cy

fu
n
ct

io
n

p
er

£
1
,0

0
0

o
f

n
e
t

ex
p
en

d
it
u
re

£
6
.3

7

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

m
a
in

ta
in

st
ro

n
g

g
o
v
er

n
a
n
ce

a
n
d

e
n
su

re
th

e
p
ro

b
it
y

o
f
a
ll

a
ct

io
n
s

ta
k
e
n

b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
ci

l.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
3

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

U
n
su

cc
e
ss

fu
l
Le

g
a
l
C
h
a
lle

n
g
es

P
I

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

Page 149



1
0

2
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

a
fl

e
x
ib

le
,

s
k
il
le

d
a
n

d
m

o
ti

v
a
te

d
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

d
e
ve

lo
p

a
fl
e
x
ib

le
C
o
rp

o
ra

te
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P
la

n
w

h
ic

h
a
lig

n
s

o
u
r

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
w

it
h

a
v
a
ila

b
le

b
u
d
g
e
t

a
n
d

o
u
r

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
2

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

Le
v
e
l
o
f
S
ta

ff
T
u
rn

o
v
er

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
)

1
.2

9
%

Le
v
e
l
o
f
V
ac

a
n
ci

e
s

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
)

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

e
n
su

re
th

a
t

e
ff
e
ct

iv
e

su
cc

e
ss

io
n

p
la

n
n
in

g
is

in
p
la

ce
.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
3

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

Le
v
e
l
o
f
V
ac

a
n
ci

e
s

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
)

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f
in

te
rn

a
l
ca

n
d
id

a
te

s
a
p
p
o
in

te
d

to
p
ro

m
o
te

d
p
o
st

s
5

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

re
v
ie

w
th

e
ra

n
g
e

o
f
sk

ill
s

o
n

a
se

rv
ic

e
b
y

se
rv

ic
e

b
as

is
a
n
d

e
n
su

re
th

e
re

ar
e

h
ig

h
sk

ill
e
d

a
n
d

m
o
ti
v
a
te

d
e
m

p
lo

y
e
es

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
2

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

A
v
er

a
g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f
d
a
ys

lo
st

th
ro

u
g
h

si
ck

n
es

s
ab

se
n
ce

-
C
o
rp

o
ra

te
(S

PI
)

1
0

1
5
.8

7

A
v
er

a
g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f
d
a
ys

lo
st

th
ro

u
g
h

si
ck

n
es

s
ab

se
n
ce

-
C
o
rp

o
ra

te
G

o
v
er

n
a
n
ce

(S
P
I)

1
0

1
2
.9

Le
v
e
l
o
f
V
ac

a
n
ci

e
s

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
)

%
a
p
p
ra

is
a
l
d
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

n
ee

d
s

m
e
t

P
I

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

%
a
p
p
ra

is
a
l
o
b
je

ct
iv

es
m

e
t

P
I

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

Page 150



1
1

Le
v
e
l
o
f
IC

T
U

se
r

C
o
m

p
e
te

n
ce

-
S
co

re
d

1
to

7
(S

O
C
IT

M
1
0
)

5

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

u
n
d
er

ta
k
e

a
n

o
rg

a
n
is

at
io

n
a
l
w

id
e

re
v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

b
u
si

n
e
ss

n
ee

d
s

o
f

th
e

n
e
w

d
e
p
ar

tm
e
n
ts

a
n
d

a
llo

ca
te

su
p
p
o
rt

st
a
ff

w
it
h

th
e

ri
g
h
t

sk
ill

s
to

e
ac

h
o
f

th
e

d
ep

a
rt

m
e
n
ts

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
3

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

H
e
a
d
co

u
n
t

o
f
A
g
e
n
cy

S
ta

ff
-

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
ce

2
2
.4

H
e
a
d
co

u
n
t

o
f
A
g
e
n
cy

S
ta

ff
C
o
u
n
ci

l
w

id
e

5
1
2

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

d
e
ve

lo
p

a
n
d

im
p
le

m
e
n
t

a
fl
ex

ib
le

C
u
st

o
m

e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
o
d
e
l
to

e
n
a
b
le

ef
fi
ci

e
n
t

a
n
d

h
ig

h
q
u
a
lit

y
se

rv
ic

e
d
e
liv

er
y
,

e
n
su

ri
n
g

sk
ill

e
d

a
n
d

m
o
ti
v
a
te

d
e
m

p
lo

y
e
es

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
2

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

im
p
ro

v
e

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

sh
a
ri
n
g

w
it
h
in

th
e

D
ir
e
ct

o
ra

te
a
n
d

w
it
h

o
u
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

co
n
d
u
ct

a
sy

st
e
m

a
ti
c

re
v
ie

w
o
f
st

ru
ct

u
re

s
a
cr

o
ss

th
e

co
m

p
o
n
e
n
t

te
a
m

s
o
f

th
e

D
ir
ec

to
ra

te
,

to
e
n
su

re
th

e
d
e
si

g
n

a
n
d

n
u
m

b
er

o
f
p
o
st

s
p
ro

p
er

ly
re

fl
ec

ts
th

e
n
e
e
d
s

a
n
d

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

o
f
th

e
d
ir
e
ct

o
ra

te
a
n
d

o
u
r

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

a
n
d

st
a
ke

h
o
ld

e
rs

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

%
o
f
co

u
n
ci

l
sp

e
n
d

th
a
t

is
"s

u
p
p
o
rt

se
rv

ic
e
s"

P
I

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

Page 151



1
2

3
.

W
e

li
s
te

n
to

,
a
n

d
a
re

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
to

,
o

u
r

cu
s
to

m
e
rs

,
sh

a
p

in
g

o
u

r
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
ro

u
n

d
th

e
ir

n
e
e
d

s
a
n

d
fo

cu
s
in

g
o
u

r
re

so
u

rc
e
s

w
h

e
re

th
e
y

a
re

m
o

s
t

n
e
e
d

e
d

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

sy
st

e
m

a
ti
ca

lly
e
n
g
a
g
e

in
te

rn
a
l
cu

st
o
m

e
rs

,
ex

te
rn

a
l
cu

st
o
m

er
s

a
n
d

o
u
r

p
ar

tn
e
rs

,
em

b
e
d
d
in

g
th

e
ir

fe
ed

b
a
ck

to
sh

a
p
e

th
e

se
rv

ic
e
s

w
e

d
e
liv

e
r.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

%
w

h
o

fe
e
l
th

e
y

ca
n

in
fl
u
e
n
ce

w
h
a
t

h
a
p
p
e
n
s

in
th

e
ir

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

2
7
%

2
6
%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

d
e
ve

lo
p

a
ch

a
n
n
e
l
m

an
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

st
ra

te
g
y
,

ro
u
ti
n
g

cu
st

o
m

e
r

fa
ci

n
g

se
rv

ic
e
s

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

m
o
st

ap
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

cu
st

o
m

er
co

n
ta

ct
ch

a
n
n
e
ls

to
d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

e
n
h
a
n
ce

d
cu

st
o
m

e
r

se
rv

ic
e

a
n
d

im
p
ro

v
e
d

ef
fi
ci

e
n
cy

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
4

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

T
h
e

p
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

o
f
re

si
d
e
n
ts

w
h
o

a
re

sa
ti
sf

ie
d

w
it
h

th
e

C
u
st

o
m

er
S
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

v
id

ed
b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
ci

l
6
7
%

6
7
%

T
o
ta

l
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
a
cr

o
ss

a
ll

ce
n
tr

a
lis

ed
cu

st
o
m

er
se

rv
ic

e
ch

a
n
n
e
ls

2
9
0
6
8
0
6

T
o
ta

l
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f
o
n
lin

e
tr

a
n
sa

ct
io

n
s

1
1
0
6
6

%
o
f

te
le

p
h
o
n
y

q
u
e
ri
es

re
so

lv
e
d

a
t

th
e

fi
rs

t
p
o
in

t
o
f
co

n
ta

ct
(c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

u
si

n
g

th
e

C
u
st

o
m

e
r

C
o
n
ta

ct
C
e
n
tr

e
d
a
ta

)
7
5
%

9
6
.1

%

%
o
f
fa

ce
-t

o
-f

a
ce

q
u
er

ie
s

re
so

lv
e
d

a
t

th
e

fi
rs

t
p
o
in

t
o
f
co

n
ta

ct
(c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

u
si

n
g

th
e

st
a
ts

g
a
th

e
re

d
b
y

th
e

C
u
st

o
m

er
S
e
rv

ic
e

C
e
n
tr

e
a
n
d

C
u
st

o
m

er
A
cc

e
ss

Po
in

ts
)

7
5
%

9
7
.3

%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

m
a
n
a
g
e

co
n
tr

a
ct

s
a
n
d

su
p
p
lie

r
p
er

fo
rm

a
n
ce

to
e
n
su

re
w

e
m

a
x
im

iz
e

v
a
lu

e
a
n
d

e
ff
ic

ie
n
cy

in
th

e
g
o
o
d
s

a
n
d

se
rv

ic
e
s

w
e

p
ro

cu
re

a
n
d

to
e
n
su

re
th

ey
m

e
e
t

th
e

n
e
ed

s
o
f
o
u
r

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

a
n
d

se
rv

ic
e
s.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t

-
Q

u
a
lit

y
,

P
ri
ce

,
T
im

e
a
n
d

S
er

v
ic

e
P

I
in

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

Page 152



1
3

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

e
n
g
a
g
e

w
it
h

o
u
r

su
p
p
lie

r
b
a
se

to
e
ff
e
ct

iv
e
ly

m
a
n
a
g
e

re
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s

so
th

a
t

th
e

C
o
u
n
ci

l
is

p
er

ce
iv

e
d

a
s

a
n

a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

b
u
si

n
e
ss

p
a
rt

n
er

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t

-
S
u
p
p
lie

r
R
a
ti
n
g

o
f
C
o
u
n
ci

l
a
s

a
n

A
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

P
a
rt

n
e
r

P
I

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t

-
S
u
p
p
lie

r
R
es

p
o
n
se

to
T
e
n
d
er

s
P

I
in

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

d
e
liv

er
a

p
o
si

ti
v
e

cu
st

o
m

er
ex

p
e
ri
e
n
ce

th
ro

u
g
h

a
cu

st
o
m

er
se

rv
ic

e
ce

n
tr

e
a
t

th
e

n
e
w

co
rp

o
ra

te
h
e
a
d
q
u
a
rt

er
s

a
n
d

a
n

im
p
ro

v
ed

co
m

b
in

e
d

te
le

p
h
o
n
e

co
n
ta

ct
ce

n
tr

e
.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
2

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

T
h
e

p
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

o
f
re

si
d
e
n
ts

w
h
o

a
re

sa
ti
sf

ie
d

w
it
h

th
e

C
u
st

o
m

er
S
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

v
id

ed
b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
ci

l
6
7
%

6
7
%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

co
n
ti
n
u
e

to
e
n
g
a
g
e

w
it
h

o
th

e
r

S
er

v
ic

e
s

ac
ro

ss
th

e
C
o
u
n
ci

l
re

g
a
rd

in
g

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

a
n
d

em
b
ed

fe
ed

b
a
ck

to
sh

ap
e

th
e

S
e
rv

ic
e

a
n
d

fo
cu

s
re

so
u
rc

e
s

w
h
er

e
n
e
e
d
ed

.
3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

Page 153



1
4

4
.

W
e

w
o

rk
cl

o
s
e
ly

w
it

h
o

u
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

,
in

cl
u

d
in

g
lo

ca
l
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
,

to
d

e
li
v
e
r

a
s
in

g
le

s
e
t

o
f

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s

fo
r

a
ll

th
e

ci
ti

z
e
n

s
o

f
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

a
ct

iv
e
ly

e
n
g
a
g
e

w
it
h

ex
is

ti
n
g

co
m

m
u
n
it
y

p
la

n
n
in

g
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

a
n
d

b
u
ild

n
ew

re
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s,

to
d
ev

e
lo

p
a
n

in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e

se
rv

ic
e

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
n
d

d
e
liv

er
y

m
o
d
e
l
b
a
se

d
o
n

th
e

T
o
ta

l
P
la

ce
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t.

3
1

M
a
r

2
0
1
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

C
o
u
n
ci

l-
w

id
e

e
ff
ic

ie
n
ci

e
s

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f
re

v
e
n
u
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

2
%

2
.3

2
%

T
h
e

p
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

o
f
re

si
d
e
n
ts

ve
ry

o
r

q
u
it
e

sa
ti
sf

ie
d

w
it
h

th
e

co
u
n
ci

l
4
8
%

4
6
%

%
w

h
o

fe
e
l
th

e
y

ca
n

in
fl
u
e
n
ce

w
h
a
t

h
a
p
p
e
n
s

in
th

e
ir

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

2
7
%

2
6
%

%
o
f

ad
u
lt

re
si

d
e
n
ts

st
a
ti
n
g

th
e
ir

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

a
s

a
�v

er
y

g
o

o
d

�
o

r
�f

a
ir

ly
g

o
o

d
�

p
la

ce
to

liv
e

9
0

%
8

9
%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
o

u
r

S
in

g
le

E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
S

ch
e

m
e

,
e

m
b

e
d

d
in

g
eq

u
a

lit
ie

s
in

a
ll

th
e

se
rv

ic
e

s
w

e
d

e
liv

er
.

3
1

M
a

r
2

0
1

3

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
M

e
a
su

re
s

T
a
rg

e
t

V
a
lu

e
T

ra
ff

ic
L
ig

h
t

Ic
o
n

L
o

n
g

T
re

n
d

S
h

o
rt

T
re

n
d

%
o

f
re

si
d

e
n

ts
ag

re
e

in
g

th
a

t
th

e
y

ar
e

fa
ir

ly
tr

e
a

te
d

in
th

e
ir

co
n

ta
ct

w
it

h
th

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l
(+

n
o

re
p

lie
s)

9
1

%
9

1
%

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

d
e

ve
lo

p
a

n
ap

p
ro

a
ch

to
m

e
a

su
ri

n
g

so
ci

a
l

re
tu

rn
o

n
in

v
e

st
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
o

n
k

e
y

in
v

es
tm

e
n

t
p

ro
je

ct
s.

3
1

M
a

r
2

0
1

1

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

e
n

g
a

g
e

w
it

h
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
to

in
v

e
st

ig
a

te
th

e
p

o
ss

ib
ili

ty
o

f
sh

a
re

d
le

g
a

l
a

n
d

d
e

m
o

cr
a

ti
c

se
rv

ic
e

s.
3

1
M

a
r

2
0

1
2

A
ct

io
n

T
im

e
s
ca

le
S

ta
tu

s
P

ro
g

re
s
s

W
e

w
ill

n
e

tw
o

rk
w

it
h

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
ls

lo
ca

te
d

in
o

th
er

p
u

b
lic

a
n

d
p

ri
v

a
te

b
o

d
ie

s
to

sh
a

re
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l
re

se
ar

ch
a

n
d

b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
in

g
fo

r
o

u
r

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
.

3
1

M
a

r
2

0
1

1

Page 154



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Finance and Resources    
 
DATE      28 September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR   Stewart Carruth,  

Director of Corporate Governance 
 
TITLE OF REPORT   2010/11 FINANCIAL MONITORING 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       CG/10/153 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to  

i) Bring to Committee members notice the current year revenue 
and capital budget performance to date for the Services within 
Corporate Governance which relate to this Committee; and      

ii) Advise on any areas of risk and management action. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 

i) Note this report and the information on management action and 
risks that is contained herein; and 

ii) Note the content of this report in relation to the capital programme; 
and 

iii) Instruct that officers continue to review budget performance and 
report on Service strategies. 

  
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

 Financial Implications are detailed in section 5 Background/Main Issues 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 155



 

 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 This report informs members of the current year revenue budget 
performance to date, for the Service’s budget and provides high level 
summary for the consideration of Members, to period 4 (end of July 
2010). It also outlines whether or not there are any cost pressures that 
are immediately identifiable from the expenditure incurred to date and 
actions being undertaken to manage these. The budgeted and out-turn 
figures have been adjusted to reflect the impact of approved Voluntary 
Service/Early Retirement agreements and other staff savings. 

 
5.2 An overview of the current position with regard to the Capital Budget for 

Corporate Governance is also provided. 
 

Financial Position and Risks Assessment 
 
5.3 The Service report is attached at Appendix A. There are projected net 

additional costs of £1.2 million (4.9%), across the overall current net 
budget of £24.5 million. 

 
5.4 Core activities of Corporate Governance are currently projecting an 

over-spend of £60K. In the main this reflects a favourable variance of 
£300K of expected staffing savings across the Service offset by a 
prudent assessment of net additional costs in respect of the use of 
external Legal of a similar amount.  

 
5.5 Within the area of the Corporate Debt Income Manager, further staff 

savings of £300K have been identified. However this is set against 
projected additional costs relating to housing benefit awards of £1.5 
million. This projection is based on a worse case scenario produced by 
officers after the final figures for 2009/10 indicated additional costs of 
£0.7 million for that year.  

 
5.6 The bulk of the additional costs relate to bed and breakfast and hotel 

accommodation to the homeless, management of which lies within 
Housing and Environment. The situation has arisen due to the failure of 
the Council to secure an HMO license for Aberdon and enable 
additional capacity to be brought on stream to meet the current level of 
demand for temporary accommodation. A further factor is that the level 
of benefit subsidy received to offset costs where non Council facilities 
are used is less than would be the case if Council facilities were 
available. The projected shortfall is calculated based on current 
homelessness expenditure to date with the trend assumed to continue 
until March 2011.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 156



 

 

5.7 Limited additional temporary accommodation has now been made 
available to address this issue which otherwise would have resulted in 
even greater expenditure than detailed above. Officers from relevant 
Services are meeting to explore options and further accommodation 
has been identified which will become available during the next 
financial year. Further financial pressures will result should the Council 
not secure successful re-applications for HMO licenses for its Crown 
Street and Bon Accord Street hostels. 

 
5.8 The detail of the capital programme remains under review by the 

Corporate Asset Management Group. Included in this exercise is the 
treatment of under-spends in last year’s capital programme and 
profiling of expenditure in future years. As a result the usual detailed 
report on expenditure to date against the programme is not available, 
however reviews of the capital programme spend against budget will 
be included in future reports to this Committee. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 The issues referred to in this report impact on the overall financial 

position of the Council. 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Financial ledger data extracted for the period ;( not attached) 
 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Hugh Coleman, Finance Manager 
hcoleman@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522712 

 
 
 
 

Page 157



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2010 / 2011

DIRECTORATE : CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AS AT 31 July 2010 ANNUAL 
BUDGET PLANNED ACTUAL VARIANCE PROJECTED 

TOTALS

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

3,517 1,570 1,462 (108) 3,417           (100) (2.8%)

2,122 789 652 (137) 2,417 295 0.1

4,140 1,419 1,367 (52) 4,057           (83) (2.0%)

367 170 601 431 356 (11) (6.4%)

11,486 4,597 3,819 (778) 11,521 35 (0.9%)

761 270 181 (89) 683              (78) (10.2%)

22,393 8,815 8,081 (734) 22,451 58 0.0

Corporate Debt Income Manager 2,146      771          807         36 3,294           1,148 54%

24,539 9,585 8,888 (697) 25,745 1,206 4.9%TOTAL BUDGET 

APPENDIX A

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 4

PROJECTION TO YEAR END
PROJECTED 
VARIANCE

BUDGET TO DATE

Figures in Brackets represent income or a favourable variance

TOTAL BUDGET (EXCLUDING CDIM)

Operational Support Manager

Head of Finance - S.95 Officer  (Ex CDIM)

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Head of Procurement

Head of Human Resources and Org Dev

Head of Customer Service and Performance 

 

Page 158



 

 
Page 1 of 5 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:   FINANCE AND RESOURCES      
 
DATE:    28 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT BY:  HEAD OF FINANCE   
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  REVENUE BUDGET 2010/11 MONITORING 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/10/178 
 
 
1.  PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to inform Members on the projected outturn 

and current financial position for the Council for financial year 2010/11 and 
to advise on areas of risk and management action that have been 
highlighted by directors. 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
It is recommended that the Committee: 

1. notes the content of the report; and 
2. instructs Directors to continue to take cost reduction opportunities during 

the remainder of the year to achieve a balanced budget position. 
 
3.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 While it is felt that a balanced budget position can be achieved in the 

current financial year, it is worth noting that should the projected outturn 
be reflected by the accounts at the end of the year there will be a 
reduction in the General Fund balance of £0.8 million. 

 
3.2 It is important to recognise that the budget has been set on with the 

intention of increasing the General Fund balance by £3.6 million and 
therefore this would represent a movement against budget of £4.4 million. 

 
3.3 Uncommitted General Fund balances at year end would be £10.5 million 

and therefore below the recommended balance of £11.2 million that the 
Council has previously set, which is defined as between 2.5% and 3% of 
the net revenue budget. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 159



 

 
Page 2 of 5 

4.  SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
4.1. As a recognised top priority the Council must take the necessary 

measures to balance its budget. Therefore, Services are expected to work 
within a financial constraint as defined by their annual budgets. 

 
4.2. Opportunities to balance the budget will be identified by each Director and 

reported as necessary through the relevant service committee. 
 
5.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. Every organisation has to manage the risks inherent in the operation of 

large and complex budgets. These risks are minimised by the regular 
review of financial information by services and corporately by Members.  
This report is part of that framework and has been produced to provide an 
overview of the current operating position. 

 
6.  REPORT 
 
6.1. This is the first opportunity for the Council to consider the overall financial 

position, with specific reference to the General Fund.  During the earlier 
months of the year the Corporate Management Team has received reports 
on the financial performance and is aware of the risks that exist. 

 
6.2. This report considers the projected outturn for the Council as a whole and 

this builds upon information and analysis provided to the individual Service 
Committee reports that have been considered during the current cycle of 
meetings. 

 
6.3. Information within this report provides a high level expenditure projection 

for the consideration of Members and presents actual financial figures to 
the end of July 2010 and the projections based thereon. 

 
6.4. Appendix A includes a summary of the overall Council projected position. 

 
Financial Position 

6.5 In overall terms the statement at Appendix A shows the Council is 
managing risk of £4.4 million in relation to the outturn position varying from 
budget.  This represents less than 1% variance from budget and the 
Corporate Management Team believes that a balanced budget position 
can be achieved for this financial year. 

 
6.6 Within the Service budgets and projections is an assumption that the 

savings from ‘a reduction in employment costs’ of £4.5 million is being 
achieved, despite the fact the issue remains the subject of negotiation. 

 

Page 160



 

 
Page 3 of 5 

6.7 The savings that were approved at a corporate level have all been 
allocated to the service budgets ensuring that there is greater clarity in 
relation to the availability of financial resources in each service. 

 
6.8 The most significant risks and matters arising from the figures that are 

presented include the following: 
 
6.9 Social Care and Wellbeing – An under spend of £1.4 million in relation to 

under commitment of demand led budgets – offset in part by reduced 
grant income.  Staff costs also remain well within budget.  It is recognised 
that to the demand and needs led nature of this Service pose a risk for 
cost pressures to arise at any time.  Continued scrutiny and control is 
absolutely essential to maintain this favourable forecast position. 

 
6.10 Housing and Environment - £0.7 million of income from the Repairs Fund 

and Housing Revenue Account are at risk based on the experience of 
2009/10, where there were reduced recoveries.  This followed a review of 
the method of recharge and the new operational structures that are now in 
place.  Staff savings in relation to vacancies and corporate savings are not 
yet being achieved adding further pressure. 

 
6.11 Corporate Governance – A projection for the year includes the impact of 

the non-recovery of Housing Benefit / Council Tax Benefit Subsidy to the 
value of £1.5 million.  This is primarily due to the increased use of hotel 
accommodation and limited availability of Council housing stock for 
homelessness clients.  Underlying projections for the remainder of the 
Service are that these will be within budget; however pressures around 
fees for professional advice in connection with legal costs are evident at 
this time. 

 
6.12 Corporate Budgets – An estimate is included of an additional sum that 

may be required to cover further capital financing costs in the current year.  
This is based upon the fact that the funding available for capital 
expenditure is less than the full capital programme and there are 
continuing risks that the necessary slippage will not be achieved.  The 
current year capital programme is considered in detail in another report on 
this agenda. 

 
6.13 The figures outlined reflect progress on achieving approved budget 

savings of approx. £25 million which were incorporated into the budget 
and also assume a full commitment at this stage against the budgeted 
contingencies 

 
 Management Actions  
6.14 Directors and Heads of Services are expected to work together and with 

Finance to find the means by which savings are identified, quantified and 
reported, working towards a balanced budget position for the year 

Page 161



 

 
Page 4 of 5 

 
6.15 There continues to be a robust scrutiny of all vacancies and Directors, as 

part of the work towards the 5 year business plan have information to 
reconsider those who’d previously expressed an interest in voluntary 
severance and early retirement. 

 
 
7.  REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Jonathan Belford 
Corporate Accounting Manager 
jbelford@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522573  
 
8.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Financial ledger data extracted for the period, and service committee reports on 
financial monitoring; 
 
 

Page 162



  APPENDIX A 

 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
2010/11 
 
FINANCIAL MONITORING 
 
 
As at end of July 2010

Accounting Period 4 Revised
Budget
£'000

Actual
Expenditure

£'000

Variance
Amount
£'000

Forecast
to be

 Reported
£'000

Variance
Full Year

£'000

Variance
Percent

%
Services
Office of Chief Executive 777 276 423 147 777 0 0.0%
Corporate Governance 25,464 9,586 8,889 (697) 26,670 1,206 4.7%
Enterprise Planning & Infrastructure 27,183 5,667 3,274 (2,393) 27,566 383 1.4%
Housing & Environment 42,886 10,753 3,899 (6,854) 44,276 1,390 3.2%
Education Culture & Sport 183,566 59,214 50,771 (8,443) 184,163 597 0.3%
Social Care & Wellbeing 123,793 42,457 34,595 (7,862) 121,893 (1,900) (1.5)%
Total Service Budgets 403,669 127,953 101,851 (26,102) 405,345 1,676 0.4%

Total Corporate Budgets 42,037 14,952 14,797 (155) 44,494 2,457 5.8%

Total Net Expenditure 445,706 142,905 116,648 (26,257) 449,839 4,133 0.9%

Funding:
Government Support-
General Revenue Grant & Non-
Domestic Rates (343,070) (85,767) (47,424) 38,343 (343,070) 0 0.0%
Local Taxation-
Council Tax & Community 
Charge Arrears (106,207) (42,483) (51,327) (8,844) (105,952) 255 0.2%

Total Funding (449,277) (128,250) (98,751) 29,499 (449,022) 255 0.1%

Net Impact on General Fund (3,571) 14,655 17,897 3,242 817 4,388

Full Year
 Revised
Budget
£'000

Year To Date Projection to Year End

 
 
 

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Finance and Resources 
 
DATE  28 September 2010 
    
DIRECTOR  Stewart Carruth 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Unrecoverable Income 
 
REPORT NUMBER CG/10/148  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek Committee approval on Business Rates debts recommended as 
unrecoverable during 2009/10 and in excess of £25,000, as required in terms of 
Financial Regulations 11.3.7. 
 
To advise numbers and values, up to £10,000, of Council Tax, Business Rates, 
Community Charge, Housing Benefit Overpayments and Rent Arrears deemed to 
be unrecoverable during 2009/10 after all approved recovery procedures have 
been followed, as required in terms of Financial Regulations 11.3.6 and 11.3.9. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
The Committee is asked to : 
 
• note the value of Council Tax, Business Rates, Community Charge, Housing 
Benefit Overpayments and Rent Arrears deemed by the Director of Corporate 
Governance as unrecoverable and shown in Appendices I to V. 

 
• approve that the > £25,000 amounts for Business Rates shown in Appendix 
VI are also deemed as unrecoverable and be written off. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The sums deemed as unrecoverable are fully provided for in terms of bad debt 
provision. With regard to Business Rates, these sums are met by the Rating Pool 
and have no impact on the Council’s finances. 
 
The total value in Appendices I to V is 8,762 cases with a value of £2,864,335 
compared to 9,775 and £3,299,306 in 2008/09.  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7.2

Page 165



 

 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
5.   BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Financial Regulations, it is policy to report 
annually on the levels of Council Tax, Business Rates, Community Charge,  
Housing Benefit Overpayments and Rent Arrears deemed unrecoverable.  
      
The figures included within this report relate to those debts treated as 
unrecoverable during the financial year 2009/10. Apart from Sequestrations, 
debts are not deemed unrecoverable where there is ongoing liability. The sums 
mostly relate to previous years where all approved procedures have been 
followed. Full bad debt provision has been made in the accounts. 
 
It must be emphasised that prior to completing the list, full advice, where 
appropriate, has been received from Legal Services and the Council’s Debt 
Recovery Agents (Sheriff Officers) in determining that debts are indeed 
unrecoverable. 
 
It should be noted that despite being deemed unrecoverable at this time, should 
the debtor be subsequently located, the debt will be reinstated and pursued. As 
an example, Former Tenants Arrears debts with a value of £557,283 were 
reinstated during 2009/10 after finding new addresses for the debtors. 
 
2009/10 saw a continuation in the amount of people being sequestrated and the 
total of £1,009,183 represents 35% of personal debt deemed unrecoverable 
(excluding Business Rates) compared to £645,854 and 26% in 2008/09. 
 
To put the level of unrecoverable debt into some sort of context, the annual sums 
raised in 2009/10 for Council Tax (including water charges) and Business Rates 
were £134m and £144m respectively. Rent was £37.8m. The sums deemed 
unrecoverable cover a number of financial years. 
 
A breakdown identifying the reasons and the financial year in which the debt was 
first raised are shown for each category of debt as follows : 
 
Council Tax : 
                                            
In total 5,721 debts were deemed unrecoverable with a value of £1,104,630.  
After allowing for £119,281 in recoveries and reinstatements, the net amount is  
£985,349.  A breakdown over the years and reasons are shown in Appendix I. 
 
No individual accounts exceeded the £10,000 limit, which requires specific 
Committee approval.  
 
 
 
 

Page 166



 

 

 Community Charge:  
 
In total 125 debts were deemed unrecoverable with a value of £29,035. A  
breakdown over the years and reasons are shown in Appendix II.  
 
 

 Housing Benefit Overpayments:  
 
 In total 1,094 debts were deemed unrecoverable with a value of £285, 441. 
 A breakdown of the reasons are shown in Appendix III. 
 

Rent Arrears : 
 
 In total 1,584 debts were deemed unrecoverable with a value of £1,463,920  
 relating mostly to Former Tenants Arrears. After allowing for £557,283 in  
 recoveries, the net amount is £906,637. 
  
 
Business Rates :  
 
In total 238 debts were deemed unrecoverable with a value of £850,611. After 
allowing for £192,737 in recoveries, the net amount is £657,873. A breakdown 
over the years and reasons are shown in Appendix V. 
 
Appendix VI shows 3 debts with values above £25,000 and reasons are shown.  
The Committee is asked to deem the value of £151,484 as unrecoverable (totals 
also included in Appendix V). 
 
6.   IMPACT 
 
Managing uncollectable debt in accordance with the Council’s Financial 
Regulations promotes good practice in the administration of local taxes and other 
sources of income. The non-collection of the amounts owed will not affect 
services because full account has been taken in budgets. 
 
The public need to be aware that debts are pursued vigorously but there is no 
option but to class debts as unrecoverable when businesses fail and when 
individuals are sequestrated (made bankrupt). This Council only writes-off debts 
in exceptional circumstances but reinstates amounts owed regularly when further 
information becomes available. 
 
7.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 
 
8.  REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Ken Taylor, Corporate Debt / Income Manager, Corporate Governance. 
kent@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
Tel: (01224) 814868 

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



C
O

U
N

C
IL

T
A

X
W

R
IT

E
-O

F
F

S
20

09
/1

0
A

pp
en

di
x

I

R
ea

so
n

C
as

es
P

ri
o

r
Y

ea
rs

20
01

/0
2

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

T
o

ta
l

U
na

bl
e

to
T

ra
ce

53
7

27
,1

99
.7

2
13

,8
44

.8
8

14
,9

85
.1

4
21

,3
17

.2
5

29
,0

53
.6

1
37

,5
59

.6
0

27
,9

71
.6

0
12

,8
68

.2
0

9,
76

0.
02

1,
96

6.
50

19
6,

52
6.

52

D
ec

ea
se

d
74

6
45

,7
38

.5
2

8,
73

0.
92

9,
68

9.
85

8,
59

7.
83

10
,8

24
.7

9
7,

91
3.

97
12

,0
12

.1
6

13
,8

46
.9

1
13

,4
65

.5
0

1,
11

2.
13

13
1,

93
2.

58

S
eq

ue
st

ra
tio

n
2,

36
2

88
,8

88
.8

7
39

,0
55

.6
5

51
,1

67
.0

1
60

,5
20

.5
7

73
,8

74
.1

5
83

,3
05

.4
7

83
,5

73
.2

7
11

4,
99

2.
96

12
5,

08
1.

10
39

,6
13

.0
6

76
0,

07
2.

11

A
br

oa
d

10
31

6.
09

90
4.

41
93

1.
14

93
7.

01
21

4.
27

3,
30

2.
92

U
nr

ec
ov

er
ab

le
-

11
6

3,
21

1.
06

10
0.

00
35

5.
24

27
7.

85
81

3.
48

15
1.

82
4,

90
9.

45
no

as
se

ts

U
ne

co
no

m
ic

al
1,

95
0

1,
32

3.
55

59
1.

46
29

2.
71

38
5.

26
56

9.
72

90
5.

02
39

0.
58

98
8.

18
1,

87
4.

69
56

4.
86

7,
88

6.
03

5,
72

1
16

6,
36

1.
72

62
,2

22
.9

1
76

,2
34

.7
1

91
,1

76
.1

5
11

4,
60

0.
12

13
0,

00
0.

15
12

4,
85

2.
02

14
3,

62
7.

39
15

1,
93

1.
80

43
,6

22
.6

4
1,

10
4,

62
9.

61

Le
ss

ad
dr

es
s

fo
un

d
an

d
-1

8,
17

1.
65

-3
,4

42
.3

9
-3

,4
13

.9
6

-4
,8

02
.2

1
-4

,9
76

.6
4

-3
,9

67
.1

7
-5

,5
26

.4
4

-2
,1

75
.4

1
-1

0,
22

6.
45

-4
,3

20
.9

3
-6

1,
02

3.
25

pr
ev

io
us

w
rit

e-
of

fr
ev

er
se

d

Le
ss

pr
ev

io
us

ly
w

rit
te

n
of

f
-5

,2
43

.2
0

-3
,5

31
.7

7
-2

,1
79

.8
8

-1
,2

20
.4

0
-1

,0
53

.2
5

-3
,1

77
.7

3
-3

,3
07

.3
1

-5
,8

28
.4

5
-1

1,
36

5.
76

-2
1,

34
9.

69
-5

8,
25

7.
44

no
w

re
co

ve
re

d
5,

72
1

14
2,

94
6.

87
55

,2
48

.7
5

70
,6

40
.8

7
85

,1
53

.5
4

10
8,

57
0.

23
12

2,
85

5.
25

11
6,

01
8.

27
13

5,
62

3.
53

13
0,

33
9.

59
17

,9
52

.0
2

98
5,

34
8.

92

Page 169



C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
C
H
A
R
G
E
W
R
IT
E
-O
F
F
S
20
09
/1
0

A
pp
en
di
x
II

R
ea

so
n

C
as

es
T

o
ta

l

U
na
bl
e
to
T
ra
ce

36
8,
41
5.
29

D
ec
ea
se
d

19
6,
68
3.
35

S
eq
ue
st
ra
tio
n

38
13
,3
76
.0
2

U
ne
co
no
m
ic
al

32
56
0.
12

1
25

2
9,

03
4.

78

Page 170



H
O
U
S
IN
G
B
E
N
E
F
IT
O
V
E
R
P
A
Y
M
E
N
T
W
R
IT
E
-O
F
F
S
20
09
/1
0

A
pp
en
di
x
III

R
ea

so
n

C
as

es
T

o
ta

l

D
ec
ea
se
d

92
52
,8
88
.7
6

S
eq
ue
st
ra
tio
n

16
5

87
,8
54
.1
9

U
na
bl
e
to
tr
ac
e

53
14
,0
46
.8
3

U
ne
co
no
m
ic
al

28
2

11
,9
32
.4
0

U
nr
ec
ov
er
ab
le
-

50
2

11
8,
71
8.
73

no
as
se
ts

1,
09

4
28

5,
44

0.
91

Page 171



R
E
N
T
A
R
R
E
A
R
S
W
R
IT
E
-O
F
F
S
20
09
/1
0

A
pp
en
di
x
IV

R
ea
so
n

C
as
es

T
o
ta
l

D
ec
ea
se
d

58
25
,6
24
.9
5

S
eq
ue
st
ra
tio
n

14
7

14
7,
88
0.
46

U
na
bl
e
to
tr
ac
e

39
3

51
7,
04
3.
66

A
br
oa
d

3
2,
51
4.
19

U
ne
co
no
m
ic
al

60
3,
57
7.
34

U
nr
ec
ov
er
ab
le
-

92
3

76
7,
27
9.
69

no
as
se
ts

1,
58
4

1,
46
3,
92
0.
29

Le
ss
ad
dr
es
s
fo
un
d
an
d

pr
ev
io
us
w
rit
e-
of
fr
ev
er
se
d

-5
57
,2
82
.8
4

1
,5
84

9
06
,6
37
.4
5

Page 172



B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
R
A
T
E
S
W
R
IT
E
-O
F
FS

20
09
/1
0

A
pp
en
di
x
V

R
ea
so
n

C
as
es

P
ri
o
r
Y
e
ar
s

20
01
/0
2

20
02
/0
3

20
03
/0
4

20
04
/0
5

20
05
/0
6

20
06
/0
7

20
07
/0
8

20
08
/0
9

20
09
/1
0

T
o
ta
l

U
na
bl
e
to
T
ra
ce

6
74
4.
63

45
.1
0

5.
33

62
.1
8

1,
62
8.
71

2,
48
5.
95

R
ec
ei
ve
rs
hi
p/

90
3,
90
2.
40

8,
07
4.
37

7,
55
8.
31

49
,2
01
.4
6
20
9,
54
5.
00

19
6,
26
0.
63

47
4,
54
2.
17

Li
qu
id
at
io
n

C
ea
se
d
T
ra
di
ng

13
8,
59
2.
97

4,
72
2.
05

33
,8
40
.6
4

13
,2
15
.9
7

60
,3
71
.6
3

P
er
S
he
rif
fO
ffi
ce
r

76
44
8.
79

3,
69
9.
80

10
,2
66
.7
3
10
0,
15
8.
06

13
2,
93
7.
88

38
,9
71
.5
7

28
6,
48
2.
83

U
ne
co
no
m
ic
al
/N
o

53
38
2.
32

2,
46
8.
62

1,
87
6.
81

1,
90
6.
24

1,
90
5.
77

1,
85
6.
17

1,
76
6.
05

6,
35
6.
94

8,
20
9.
10

26
,7
28
.0
2

re
co
ve
ry
pr
os
pe
ct

23
8

1,
19
3.
42

38
2.
32

2,
51
3.
72

1,
88
2.
14

5,
80
8.
64

13
,6
79
.9
4

28
,2
74
.1
8
15
5,
90
9.
80

38
2,
68
0.
46

25
8,
28
5.
98

85
0,
61
0.
60

Le
ss
pr
ev
io
us
ly

w
rit
te
n
of
fn
ow

re
co
ve
re
d

-2
9,
43
5.
65

-2
0,
67
8.
47

-2
9,
51
0.
37

-3
0,
43
1.
49

-2
4,
89
3.
14

-3
0,
71
3.
18

-3
,0
57
.3
3

-1
,8
55
.2
5
-2
2,
11
5.
40

-4
7.
10

-1
92
,7
37
.3
8

23
8

-2
8,
2
42
.2
3
-2
0,
2
96
.1
5
-2
6,
9
96
.6
5
-2
8,
5
49
.3
5
-1
9,
0
84
.5
0
-1
7,
0
33
.2
4

25
,2
16
.8
5
15
4,
05
4.
55

36
0,
56
5.
06

25
8,
23
8.
88

65
7,
87
3.
22

Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00007181\20102011CommonGoodBudgetMonitorin
gReport0.doc 

Page 1 of 8 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:  Finance and Resources  
 
DATE:   28th September 2010 
 
REPORT BY:  Head of Finance 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: 2010/2011 Common Good Budget – Monitoring Report 

Update 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  CG/10/154 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The purpose of this report is to  
a)  Inform the committee of the income and expenditure status of the 
Common Good for the four months to 31 July 2010 along with the 
estimated out-turn for the year 

b)  Provide an indication on the forecast status of the cash balances. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 

It is recommended that the Committee  
a) Notes the income and expenditure position as at 31 July 2010 and the 
estimated out-turn for the year; and 

b) Notes the estimated cash balances as at 31 March 2011 of £5.3 million 
based on projected current forecasts. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

The financial implications are detailed in the report at section 6. 
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 

The management of the Common Good contributes towards the most efficient 
and effective use of the Council’s funds. 

 
It is essential that the value of the Common Good is preserved in such a way 
that it continues to be able to support the wide range of artistic and other 
ventures it presently does, in the long term. 

Agenda Item 7.3

Page 175



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00007181\20102011CommonGoodBudgetMonitorin
gReport0.doc 

Page 2 of 8 

 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

6. REPORT 
 

Spend to Date (as at 31 July 2010) and Updated Estimated Out-turn 
 
6.1 There has been no change to the estimated out-turn, it remains the same as 

the budgeted net deficit of £450k. The approved budget for the Common 
Good for 2010/11 is given at Appendix 1.  

 
6.2 Further supporting details can be found at Appendices 2, 3 and 4 in relation to 

Analysis of Other Expenses Income and Expenditure (Appendix 2), 
Donations, Grants, Contributions, etc (Appendix 3) and Other Projects 
(Appendix 4). 
 
Cash Balances   
 

6.3 The projected cash balances as at 31 March 2011 is £5.3 million as follows: - 
 
 £M 
Cash balance as per unaudited accounts 1 April 2010 6.1 
Less:  
Commitment for Greenfern Development Site 0.3 
Cash balance available for use 5.8 
Less:  
Estimated Out-turn 0.5 
Projected Cash Balance as at 31 March 2011 5.3 
  

 
6.5 The Council has previously agreed an underlying principle that the cash 

balance should be no less than £4.8 million, after adjusting for the Greenfern 
Development Site, as at 31 March 2011. This utilises the Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) as a basis for calculating indicative cash balances to ensure that 
the value of the Fund is not eroded over time. 

 
6.6 As trustee of the Common Good, the Council has a duty to ensure that cash 

balances are maintained at levels to generate sufficient annual income to fund 
the expenditure from the Common Good. 

 

Page 176



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00007181\20102011CommonGoodBudgetMonitorin
gReport0.doc 

Page 3 of 8 

 
7. AUTHORISED SIGNATURE 
 

Barry Jenkins – Head of Finance 
� (52)2551 
Email bajenkins@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Catriona Gilmour - Accountant 
� (81)4615 
Email cgilmour@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None. 

Page 177



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00007181\20102011CommonGoodBudgetMonitorin
gReport0.doc 

Page 4 of 8 

COMMON GOOD Appendix 1
REVENUE BUDGET 2010/11

ACTUAL T0 ESTIMATED
BUDGET 31st JULY OUT-TURN
2010/11 2010/11 2010/11
£s £s £s

1 General Properties/Estates 25,800                 198                            25,800 Appendix 2

2 Other Expenses 29,528                  (1,231) 29,528 Appendix 2

3 Central Support Services 141,834               -                                 141,834            Note 1

4 Donations, Grants, Contributions 678,025               224,395                     678,025 Note 2/Appendix 3

Civic Hospitality
5 Civic  Administration Unit 293,615 63,175                       293,615
6 Receptions, etc 165,000 2,825                         165,000
7 Entertainment for Elderly/Disabled Citizens 195,000 -                                 195,000 Note 1
8 Older Persons Development Officer 17,410 -                                 17,410 Note 1
9 Hospitality for Children and Community Centres 4,000 -                                 4,000 Note 1

10 Misc. Civic Hospitality Expenditure 23,000                 1,084                         23,000 Appendix 2
11 Sub-Total Civic Hospitality 698,025               67,084                       698,025            

12 Upkeep of Civic Car 51,292                 8,846                         51,292              Appendix 2
13 Funding - Twinning Activities 137,352 -                                 137,352 Note 1
14 Archivist Unit 181,476 49,132                       181,476
15 Christmas Illuminations and Festivals 213,000 -                                 213,000 Note 1
16 Contributions to Trusts & Festivals 325,000 -                                 325,000 Note 1
17 Other Projects 85,876 -                                 85,876 Note 1/Appendix 4
18 Other Recurring Expenditure 40,250                 4,309                         40,250 Appendix 2
19 Sub-Total Recurring Expenditure 2,607,458            352,731                     2,607,458         

ACTUAL T0 ESTIMATED
BUDGET 31st JULY OUT-TURN
2010/11 2010/11 2010/11
£s £s £s

20 Income from Properties and Estates  (2,246,691)  (1,109,664)  (2,246,691)

21 Interest on Invested Funds  (54,000)  (1,884)  (54,000)

22 Miscellaneous Income  (60,150)  (55)  (60,150) Note 1,Appendix 2
23 Total Recurring Income  (2,360,841)  (1,111,603)  (2,360,841)

24 Budgeted (surplus)/deficit on recurring items 246,617  (758,872) 246,617

RECURRING EXPENDITURE

RECURRING INCOME

 

Page 178



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00007181\20102011CommonGoodBudgetMonitorin
gReport0.doc 

Page 5 of 8 

 ACTUAL T0 ESTIMATED
BUDGET 31st JULY OUT-TURN
2010/11 2010/11 2010/11
£s £s £s

 Non Recurring Expenditure Items
25 Gordon Highlanders Statue 125,000                -                              125,000             
26 Charity Shop Refurbishment 15,000                  -                              15,000               
27 Battle of Harlaw 10,000                  -                              10,000               
28 CLAN 55,000                  55,000                        55,000               
29 Sub-Total Non-Recurring Items 205,000 55,000 205,000

30 Budget Deficit after Non-Recurring Items 451,617  (703,872) 451,617

31 Cash Balances as at 1 April   (5,750,722)  (5,750,722)

32 Estimated Cash Balances as at 31 March  (5,299,105)  (5,299,105)

33 Indicative Cash Balance  (5,271,382)  (5,271,382) Note 3

34 Adjustment for Greenfern Development Site 470,873 470,873

35 Revised Cash Balance to maintain value using CPI  (4,800,509)  (4,800,509)

EXPLANATORY NOTES

Note 1

Note 2
The timing of payments under this heading varies from organisation to organisation. Some
receive the full sum at the start of the year, some are paid in stages over the year, and other
expenditure is only met at the year end. The actual spend to date is shown in Appendix 3.

Note 3
Indicative cash balance using CPI

Reconciliation of Revised Budget to Budget Approved 11 March 2010

Decision Committee £000s
Approval of Budget RMC 11.03.10 396,617
CLAN RMC 11.05.10 55,000
Revised Budget 451,617

RMC - Resources Management Committee

NON-RECURRING ITEMS 

Although  there is no "spend to date", the expenditure for these items is committes and will be met by a transfer to 
services to meet expenditure they have incurred. This is done as part of the preparation of the final accounts. It is 
expected that final expenditure for these items will be close to budget and estimated outturn.

 

Page 179



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00007181\20102011CommonGoodBudgetMonitorin
gReport0.doc 

Page 6 of 8 

Appendix 2

ANALYSIS OF OTHER EXPENSES
INCOME & EXPENDITURE HEADINGS ACTUAL T0 ESTIMATED

BUDGET 31st JULY OUT-TURN
2010/11 2010/11 2010/11

£s £s £s
General Properties/Estates
Rates and Insurance 1,800 -                     1,800
Repairs and Maintenance 24,000 198                    24,000
Sub-Total General Properties/Estates 25,800 198 25,800

Miscellaneous expenditure
St. Nicholas Carillon 5,928 -                     5,928 Note 1
 Printing, Advertising and Sundry /outlays, etc. 6,600 269                    6,600
Official Catering 17,000  (1,500) 17,000
Sub Total Miscellaneous expenditure 29,528 -1,231 29,528

Civic Hospitality
 Promotional Civic Hospitality 8,000 72                      8,000
 Hospitality to Visitors/Groups to the Town House 15,000 1,012                  15,000
Total Misc. Civic Hosp. 23,000 1,084 23,000

Other recurring Expenditure
 Lord Provost's Gift Fund 18,000 3,576                  18,000
 Lord Provost - Lord Lieutenancy and other duties 6,750 427                    6,750
 Display of Flags and Regimental
       Colours and Armistice Day Expenses 5,500 306                    5,500
Picture Loan Scheme 10,000 -                     10,000 Note 1
Total Other recurring Expenditure 40,250 4,309 40,250

Misc. Income
 Lands of Skene/Torry - Share of Surplus  (60,000) -                      (60,000) Note 1
 Burgesses of Guild and Trade  (150)  (55)  (150)
Total Misc. Income  (60,150)  (55)  (60,150)

Note 1 - Although  there is no "spend to date", the expenditure for these items is committes and w ill be met by a transfer to services to 
meet expenditure they have incurred. This is done as part of the preparation of the f inal accounts. It is expected that f inal expenditure for 
these items w ill be close to budget and estimated outturn.

 

Page 180



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00007181\20102011CommonGoodBudgetMonitorin
gReport0.doc 

Page 7 of 8 

COMMON GOOD BUDGET 2010/2011 Appendix 3

4.  DONATIONS, GRANTS, CONTRIBUTIONS, ETC.
ACTUAL T0 ESTIMATED

BUDGET 31st JULY OUT-TURN
2010/11 2010/11 2010/11

£s £s £s

Aberdeen Citizen's Advice Bureau 263,025       131,513                  263,025              
Techfest 36,500         18,250                    36,500               
Satrosphere 35,000         8,750                     35,000               
Bulawayo Trust 50,000         21,000                    50,000               
Gomel Trust 7,800           7,800                     7,800                 
Mary Garden Prize 1,500           1,500                     1,500                 
Presentations Prizes Etc. 1,000           -                             1,000                 
Quincentenary Prizes Etc. 3,200           3,082                     3,200                 
Stage 1 Agreement - 
Aberdeen Performing Arts Contribution 75,000         -                             75,000               
Aberdeen Safer Community Trust 57,000         28,500                    57,000               
Youth Activities small grant funding 50,000         -                             50,000               Note 1
Castlegate Arts Rent Grant 8,000           4,000                     8,000                 
Events Funding 50,000         -                             50,000               
Lemon Tree Rent 40,000         -                             40,000               Note 1
Sub Total 678,025       224,395 678,025

Note 1 - Although  there is no "spend to date", the expenditure for these items is committes and will be met by a transfer to services to meet 
expenditure they have incurred. This is done as part of the preparation of the final accounts. It is expected that final expenditure for these items will be 
close to budget and estimated outturn.
 

Page 181



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00007181\20102011CommonGoodBudgetMonitorin
gReport0.doc 

Page 8 of 8 

COMMON GOOD BUDGET 2010/2011
16. OTHER PROJECTS Appendix 4

PROJECT ACTUAL T0 ESTIMATED
BUDGET 31st JULY OUT-TURN

2010/11 2010/11 2010/11
£s £s £s

Home Safety Check Scheme 71,376 -                          71,376 Note 1

Charity Shop 13,000 -                          13,000 Note 1

Community Safety Initiatives 1,500 -                          1,500

85,876 -                          85,876

Note 1 - Expenditure is settled as part of year end procedures and expected to be in line with budgeted 
figures
 

Page 182



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE:  Finance and Resources Committee 
 
DATE:   28th September 2010 
 
REPORT BY:  Head of Finance 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: 2010/2011 Common Good Budget – Request by 

Scottish Opera for support  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  CG/10/155 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report provides details of a request by Scottish Opera for support from the 
Common Good towards the costs of a project entitled “One Day in Aberdeen: a 
12 hour photo marathon”. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
It is recommended that the Committee  
a) Consider whether or not to approve this funding request of £6,000 by Scottish 

Opera. 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The financial implications are detailed in the report at section 6.  
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
If the funding for Scottish Opera was to be agreed then it would promote local 
culture and community participation for the citizens of Aberdeen. 
 
 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 

Agenda Item 7.4

Page 183



 

 

 
6. REPORT 
 

Background 
 

6.1 A request has been received (Appendix A) from Scottish Opera to help 
fund a project entitled “One Day in Aberdeen: a 12 hour photo 
marathon”. The project aims to create a snap shot of Aberdeen across 
one day in May 2011 by asking the people and visitors to Aberdeen to 
take a photograph of something they see and upload it to a website. 
These images will then be projected onto the outside walls of His 
Majesty’s Theatre before some performances in June 2011. 

 
6.2 The photographs will also be uploaded onto public websites and a CD 

of the photography collection will be created to be circulated amongst 
the leading partners (who have yet to be confirmed) to be used as a 
promotional tool. 

 
6.3 The project will cost £17,500 and is entirely funding dependant. 

Scottish Opera is seeking support of £6,000 from the Common Good in 
order to attract other funders. Scottish Opera would be happy to agree 
that if Common Good support were given then no application for a 
cultural grant would be made. 

 
6.4 If funding for the project is approved then it would not be released until 

Scottish Opera provided assurance that sufficient monies have been 
raised, from other sources, for the remaining £11,500. 

 
6.5 Scottish Opera have also applied to Aberdeen Endowment Trust and 

David Gordon Memorial Trust for funding of £500 each. The outcome 
of these applications is not known at present. 

 
 Criteria for Common Good Support 
 
6.6 The purposes to which the funds held in the Common Good can be applied 

have to be taken into consideration. 

Page 184



 

 

 
6.7 A report on the origin, history and purposes to which the Common Good 

may be used was prepared in January 1976, by the then Town Clerk of the 
City of Aberdeen District Council. The report outlined the following purposes 
as meeting the required criteria: - 

 
• Upholding the dignity of the City. 
• The prudent management, upkeep and improvement of Council Property 
which forms part of the Common Good. 

• Safeguarding the corporate rights of the community and defending its 
interests. 

• Granting of donations to public institutions or charities, providing it is in the 
interests of the general public of the City. 

• Any other purpose, which is in the bona fide and reasonable judgement of 
the Council, is for the good of the community as a whole or which the 
inhabitants at large may share. 

 
It was also outlined that the prime role of the Council in managing the 
Common Good Fund is to ensure that the Common Good is prudently 
conserved. 

 
6.8 In addition, recent practice has excluded any activity from receiving 

assistance from the Common Good for which Aberdeen City Council or 
other public body has a statutory duty to support. 

 
6.9 It has been assessed in consultation with officers within Legal and 

Democratic Services, that this application meets with the criteria to be 
eligible for assistance from the Common Good. 

 
6.10 The most recent similar application for funding from the Common Good 

was for the Archie Foundation to support a new Sick Children’s Hospital. 
In that instance £60,000 was approved over two years as part of the 
budget setting process on 15 February 2001. 

 
Common Good Cash Reserves and Balances   

 
6.11 The Common Good cash reserve is projected to be £5.3 Million as at 31 
 March 2011. 
 
6.12 The Council agreed that the cash balances of the Common Good should 

be no less that £4.8 million. This is after adjusting for the Greenfern 
Development Site and has taken account of movements in the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) so that its value is preserved 

Page 185



 

 

 
6.13 Projected cash balances for future years along with indicative 
 balances required to maintain the value are as follows. 

 
Year 2011 

£M 
2012 
£M 

2013 
£M 

Projected Cash 
Balance as at 31 
March. 

 
 

(5.3) 
 
 

(5.1) 
 
 

(5.1) 
Indicative Cash 
Balance as at 31 
March. 

 
 

(4.8) 
 
 

(5.0) 
 
 

(5.0) 
 

6.14 The figures outlined above reflect projected cash balances in excess of 
indicative levels at least until 31 March 2013 even if assistance to Scottish 
Opera is granted. 

 
 
7 AUTHORISED SIGNATURE 
 

Name Barry Jenkins – Head of Finance 
� (52)2551 
Email bajenkins@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
8 REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Author Catriona Gilmour - Accountant 
� (81)4615 
Email cgilmour@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
9 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

There were no background papers used in the writing of this report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 186



 

 

 

Page 187



 

 

 

Page 188



 

 

 

Page 189



 

 

 
 
 

Page 190



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

COMMITTEE    Finance and Resources    
 
DATE      28 September 2010   
 
DIRECTOR     Stewart Carruth   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Admitted bodies within the Aberdeen City 

Council Pension Fund with links to 
Aberdeen City Council 

 
REPORT NUMBER:       CG/10/181 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To provide elected members with details of those organisations that 
have admitted body status within the Pension Fund and have links to 
Aberdeen Council in terms of grants or service contracts. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 
It is recommended that the Committee note this report 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
Confirmation of the guarantee commitments to the Pension Fund by 
the City Council for several of the admitted bodies is detailed in the 
report. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Other implications may include the impact that funding these deficits by 
the individual bodies could have on the services delivered by them, 
which could have a knock on effect to the Council.  It has the potential 
to affect the way that services are delivered and will also impact upon 
the individuals employed in those bodies. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 Introduction  

 
The Convener of the Finance and Resources Committee instructed 
officers to bring forward a report to a future meeting of the Committee 
detailing those organisations which are defined as admitted bodies in 
the Aberdeen City Council Pension Fund, and have financial links to 
the City Council. 
 

Agenda Item 7.5

Page 191



6.2 
 
6.2.1

6.2.2

Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (LGPS) 
 
Aberdeen City Council is the administering authority for the Aberdeen 
City Council Pension Fund. The Scheme was established under the 
Superannuation Fund Act 1972, it is a statutory scheme and is 
contracted out of the Second State Pension.  The scheme is open to 
all employees of the scheduled bodies, except for those whose 
employment entitles them to belong to another statutory pension 
scheme (e.g. Police, Fire and Teachers). Employees of admitted 
bodies can join the scheme subject to their individual admission criteria 
which are out with the control of Aberdeen City Council. 
 
There are 14 scheduled bodies, including: Aberdeen City Council, 
Aberdeenshire Council, The Moray Council, Grampian Police and Fire 
non uniform staff, Aberdeen College and several other organisations. 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) regulations further 
allows an administering authority (Aberdeen City Council) to admit into 
the Pension Funds bodies as �admitted bodies� which either can be 
defined as community of interest body or transferee body: 
 
A Community of Interest Body is defined as an organisation which is:

(a) a body, which provides a public service in the United Kingdom 
otherwise than for the purposes of gain and which either� 
(i) has sufficient links with a Scheme employer for the body and the 
Scheme employer to be regarded as having a community of interest 
(whether because the operations of the body are dependent on the 
operations of the Scheme employer or otherwise); or 
(ii) is approved by the Scottish Ministers for the purposes of admission 
to the Scheme; 
(b) a body to the funds of which a Scheme employer contributes; 
(c) a body representative of� 
(i) local authorities; 
(ii) local authorities and officers of local authorities; 
(iii) officers of local authorities where it is formed for the purpose of 
consultation on the common interests of local authorities and the 
discussion of matters relating to local government; or 
(iv) Scheme employers; 
(d) A voluntary organisation engaged in the provision of services 
under� 
(i) Part III of the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978(a); 
(ii) Part III of the National Assistance Act 1948(b); 
(iii) The Disability Discrimination Act 1995(c); 
(iv) The Mental Health (Scotland) Act 1984(d) or the Mental Health 
(Care and Treatment) (Scotland) Act 2003(e); or 
(v) Section 14 of the Social Work (Scotland) Act 1968 (which places a 
duty on local authorities to provide domiciliary services and laundry 
facilities to certain households)(f). 
 

Page 192



5.2.3 A Transition Body is defined as an organisation which provides: 
 
(a) a service or assets in connection with the exercise of a function of a 
Scheme employer as a result of� 
(i) the transfer of the service or assets by means of a contract or other 
arrangement; or 
(ii) guidance provided under section 2 of the Local Government in 
Scotland Act 2003(a) (requiring a local authority to have regard to 
guidance provided by the Scottish Ministers on performance of its 
duties) or a statement of findings under section 3 of that Act (which 
allows Audit Scotland to take certain actions following a report on a 
local authority by the Controller of Audit); or (b) a public service and 
which is approved by the Scottish Ministers for the purposes of 
admission to the Scheme. 
 

5.3 Guarantee and Bonds  
 

5.3.1 Recent changes to the LPGS require that surety is put in place when a 
body is admitted to the Fund.   
 
In the instance of a community of interest body the regulations require 
a guarantee from a Scheme employer (i.e. Aberdeen City Council), by 
which the guarantor agrees to meet the liabilities (calculated at the 
time of transfer) of the admission body, should that body cease to 
exist. 
 
In the instance of a Transferee body the regulations require that, 
�where the level of risk identified by the assessment (prepared by the 
Scheme Actuary) is such as to require it, the transferee admission 
body shall enter into an indemnity or bond to meet the level of risk 
identified.� 
 

5.4 Admitted Bodies  
 

5.4.1 The Pension Fund currently has a total of 46 Community of Interest or 
Transferee Bodies within the Fund of which 33 have been identified as 
having links to Aberdeen City Council. 
 
Appendix A breaks down those organisations with financial links to the 
City Council into either Community of Interest Bodies or Transferee 
Bodies. 
 
The major of bodies shown in Appendix A are not covered by either a 
guarantor or an indemnity body as they were admitted to the Fund 
prior to the recent regulatory changes. 
 
Those bodies which are covered either by a guarantor or a bond are 
highlighted separately at Appendix A, 
 

Page 193



The City Council acts a guarantor for the following bodies: 
ÿ Aberdeen Performing Arts 
ÿ Aberdeen Heat and Power 
ÿ Station House Media Unit 
ÿ Regional Sports Village (split 50% with the University) 
ÿ Sport Aberdeen  
 

5.4.2 Several of the organisations detailed at Appendix A met with the 
Scheme Actuary and the Convener of the Pensions Panel, Councillor 
Fletcher in June of this year  and then separately with the Scottish 
Executive to raise their concerns regarding the costs of the LGPS and 
the resultant on-going costs in tendering for Local Government 
contracts. 
 
For the year 2010/11 employers contributions to the Aberdeen Fund 
are 19.2% of Pensionable Payroll in comparison to 6% to the average 
defined contribution scheme. 
 

5.5 Scheme Deficit Position and 2011 Actuarial Valuation  
 

5.5.1 As at 31 March 2008 the Pension Fund Actuary estimated that the 
Fund was 83% funded with an overall Scheme deficit of £372.3 million.  
This valuation is based upon a number of actuarial assumptions.  Each 
admitted body within the Fund carries a portion of the deficit dependant 
on their employee profile and history. 
 
Details of the deficit are specific to each employer and are not publicly 
available to other employers within the Fund. However as at 31 March 
2008, the total deficit figure in respect of those admitted bodies with 
ties to Aberdeen City Council was £24 million. 

5.5.2 Discussions are currently taking place with the Pension Fund scheme 
actuary with regard to the possible grouping of employers ahead of the 
2011 actuary valuation.  Calculation of their employer contribution rate 
may dependant on their covenant, i.e the length or strength of the 
contract with a scheme employer. For example, in the event that an 
employer may not have security of contract with Aberdeen City Council 
this may result in a higher employer contribution rate to protect the 
Pension Fund from any potential loss in the event that the employer 
ceases to exist. 
 
.

Page 194



6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate � There are links to the 5 year costed business plan in 
relation to the potential for cost increases relating to the funding 
required to continue the delivery of services with employers having to 
contribute additional funding, as determined by the Fund actuaries 
every three years.   In delivery of services it is important to recognise 
the partnership working and involvement with other organisations in 
finding and securing the most effective service delivery model for the 
Council 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Joanne Hope, Pensions Manager,  
jhope@accpf.org.uk
01224 814940 

 

Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Finance & Resources     
 
DATE     28 September 2010     
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh and Stewart Carruth  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Review of General Service Capital Programme 

2010/11 
 
REPORT NUMBER EPI/10/255 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  

The report advises of a review of this year’s Capital Programme.  It 
identifies that the revised total programme is now £108.5m, whilst the 
Head of Finance has confirmed that the Council has made revenue 
provision for capital expenditure of £69m.  The report details possible 
courses of action to remedy the position.  It outlines the consequences 
for future financial years. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 The Committee is asked to agree that:- 
 

1)  confirm the Capital Programme 2010/11 at £69m, and instruct the 
relevant officer to proactively manage spending to be within this 
spending limit through the Scrutiny Process detailed in the report; 
furthermore 

 
2) the Corporate Asset Group is instructed to review the Capital 
Programme for 2011/12 onwards, ensuring that it links into the 
Priority Based Budget exercise, reporting to the next Committee 
meeting.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The report details the current position with this year’s Capital 
Programme, setting out steps to ensure that the programme is 
delivered within sustainable limits. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 

Agenda Item 7.6

Page 197



 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

Capital Programme 2010/11 
 

The CMT instructed the Corporate Asset Group (CAG) to review this 
year’s Capital Programme.  This was on the basis that the approved 
programme by Council in February 2010 of £95m was unsustainable in 
revenue terms, with the Head of Finance advising that a programme of 
£69m was the amount provided for in terms of revenue expenditure. 
 
The CAG identified that there was up to an additional £13.5m “in the 
system”, being Carry Forward from last financial year (i.e. the total 
programme could be £108.5m).   
 
A detailed exercise was undertaken to determine the current level of 
expenditure this financial year. The view was taken that, in most cases, 
any Carry Forward had not been spent or legally committed by a 
Service that logistically it was no longer required. To date £65m would 
appear to either have been spent or legally committed. 
 
Services were then asked to determine the levels of further expenditure 
that they desired to expend this financial year (both minimum and 
maximum) and to review how expenditure could be reprofiled into 
2011/12.  This determined that Services would wish to spend a 
minimum of a further £14m this financial year.  On the basis of this 
spend profile approximately £29m would “move” into 2011/12. 
 
CMT has instructed that the General Manager – Asset Management 
and the Senior Accountant (Capital & Treasury) meet monthly with all 
appropriate Service representatives to determine the actual and likely 
level of expenditure for each project to ensure that the Programme is 
brought back into a sustainable position; this being over and above the 
Scrutiny already agreed with the implementation if the Capital Planning 
Process instructed by this Committee on 28 January 2010.  
Furthermore this will help to quickly determine further slippage or 
additional expenditure demands. 
 
The Heads of Finance and Asset Management & Operations are of the 
view that, with this new active supervision of the Capital Programme in 
place, a programme based upon a spend profile of £79m (i.e. £65m 
(spent/legally committed) plus £14m) is manageable, with an actual 
budget of £69m.  It is recognised that there are risks associated with 
this, as there must be assumptions about the level of slippage 
(particularly in building/engineering projects).  Furthermore such a 
course of action will mean delaying the completion of several major 
projects, albeit, as yet, there is no proposal to cancel any project. 
 
The Heads of Finance and Asset Management & Operations reported 
the above to the CMT on 9 September, advising that there were two 
main options in relation to this year’s Capital Programme:- 
 

Page 198



1) Stop all further expenditure that has not been legally committed i.e. 
cap the programme at £65m; or 

 
2) Confirm a Capital Programme at £69m. 
 
CMT advised that its recommendations to today’s Committee was that 
the Capital Programme 2010/11 should be confirmed at £69m, with all 
appropriate measures put in place to ensure that the Programme 
remains within the revenue supported funding limits. 
 
The current position with capital expenditure is detailed in the attached 
Appendix 1. 
 
Capital Programme 2011/12 
 
The Estimated Capital Budget for 2011/12 approved by the Finance 
and Resources Committee in February 2010 is £66.9m.  If the 
proposals detailed above are accepted as much as £39m would be 
theoretically moved into the coming financial year.  The Head of 
Finance has indicated that the Council, in Revenue terms, can only 
sustain a Programme at the original agreed level.  Furthermore next 
year’s Programme does not yet include any Projects identified as 
priorities from the Priority Based Budget exercise. 
 
The CMT on 9 September also instructed the CAG to investigate 
“reprofiling” next year’s Programme.  This may mean that many of the 
projects already identified may not be deliverable, either within the 
envisaged timescale, or at all. Officers will therefore have to investigate 
other procurement solutions. 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 None  
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Mike Duncan 
General Manager – Asset Management 
� mjd@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 52(2166) 
 
 

Page 199



Appendix 1 
 

 
 

(Council 
Feb 10) 
Approved 
Budget 
2010/2011  

Adjustments 
& Carry 
Forward 
from 

2009/2010 
Revised 
Budget 
2010/2011 

Minimum 
Required 
2010/2011 

Actual 
Spend 
at 
Aug 
2010 * 

(Council 
Feb 10) 
Estimated 
Budget 
2011/2012 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Expenditure       
Corporate 
Governance 

12,720 850 13,570 8,403 1,546 4,204 
Education, 
Culture and 
Sport 

13,524 3,312 16,836 8,120 1,907 24,196 

Enterprise, 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

56,234 2,735 58,969 51,116 12,017 28,975 

Housing and 
Environment 

12,174 4,817 16,991 11,791 4,476 9,352 
Social Care 
and 
Wellbeing 

2,108 0 2,108 545 0 200 

Expenditure 96,760 11,714 108,474 79,975 19,946 66,927 
Add: Prior 
Year 
Slippage 
(100%) 

1,915 0 0 0 0 29,603 

Expenditure 98,675 11,714 108,474 79,975 19,946 96,530 
Less: 
Slippage 

(29,603) 0 (39,402) (10,273) 0 (28,959) 
Expenditure 69,072 11,714 69,072 69,072 19,946 67,571 
Capital Fund 
Projects 

812 (277) 535 535 0 0 
Total 
Expenditure 

69,884 11,437 69,607 69,607 19,946 67,571 
       
Funding       
Supported 
Borrowing 

10,321 0 10,321 10,321 10,321 10,321 
Un-supported 
Borrowing 

35,325 0 35,325 35,325 2,803 15,896 
General 
Capital Grant 

13,286 42 13,328 13,328 5,553 13,286 
Specific 
Capital Grant 

365 0 365 365 0 0 
Capital 
Receipts – 
Sales 

2,775 0 2,775 2,775 958 19,215 

Capital 
Receipts - 
Contributions 

4,000 0 4,000 4,000 311 8,612 

Capital 
Receipts - 
Sponsorship 

3,000 0 3,000 3,000 0 0 

Use of 
Capital Fund 

812 (277) 535 535 0 0 
Total 
Income 

69,884 (235) 69,607 69,607 19,946 67,571 
Projected 
Over/(Under) 
Spend 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Page 200



 

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE   Finance and Resources  
 
DATE     28th September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Tax Increment Financing for the City Garden 

Project 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/10/239 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To outline the main issues associated with the possible establishment of a 
Tax Increment Financing scheme to help fund public infrastructure investment 
in the City Garden project. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

i.) To approve the inclusion of several other important city centre projects, 
within an expanded TIF business case. These are projects which the 
Council would wish to progress regardless of whether or not the City 
Garden project is realised. 

 
ii.) To note that a subsequent paper may require to be submitted to the 
next Finance and Resources Committee meeting to seek approval for 
a Council contribution1 towards additional consultancy costs - over 
and above the agreed £100K being provided by Scottish Enterprise - 
which are directly related to the inclusion of additional projects within 
an expanded TIF business case.  

 
iii.) To note the fact that a final TIF Business Case Report will be 
presented to Council for approval on 27 April 2011. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

                                                 
1 The amount of any contribution will not be known until a revised quotation has been received from 
PWC. It is possible that no additional contribution will be needed. However SE have made it clear that 
they cannot contribute more than £100K. Therefore any expansion to the scope of work, asked for by 
Council Officers, will need to be paid for by the Council. Alternatively, a more focussed, less 
expansive (and probably weaker) report will be produced 

Agenda Item 7.7

Page 203



 

The business case for a TIF scheme, currently being prepared by 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PWC) will set out, in some detail, the financial and 
other risks associated with the project.  
 
The terms of PWC’s assignment make it clear that they are required to 
produce a business case that ensures zero financial risk to the Council.   
 
The business case will therefore be constructed to ensure that there will be no 
revenue and/or capital implications for the Council, in current and future years, 
or any financial risk arising from the project. The business case document will 
identify the exact means by which this will be achieved. 
 
Therefore, although there will be additional consultancy costs relating to the 
production of an expanded TIF Business Case (as outlined in section 5) this 
project will have no other financial implications for the Council.  
 
Finally, given the Council’s stated position that they will make no financial 
contribution to the City Garden project, there are likely to be few State Aid 
implications associated with this project. If there are any State Aid 
implications, these are most likely to arise in connection with lease 
arrangements pertaining to any Council controlled land that will be needed for 
the development.  This will therefore be investigated, in some detail, before 
creating of the Special Purpose Vehicle that will take the project forward into 
the planning and construction phases. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
In order to determine their support for the City Garden Project, Aberdeen City 
Council will need to satisfy themselves that the: 
 
a) business case, in terms of the expected economic benefits and the project 
financing arrangements are realistic and achievable 

 
b) Scottish Futures Trust have approved the business case and agreed to 
recommend approval of a TIF scheme to Scottish Ministers 

 
c) project can be delivered without any financial input from the Council. 
 
Numerous legal, resource, personnel, property, sustainability, environmental, 
health and safety and/or policy implications and risks will inevitably need to be 
dealt with as the project progresses. These will become clearer as the work 
plan is progressed and will be flagged up to Council at the appropriate time. 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
There has been much debate, mostly in the local press, as to what a TIF 
scheme and what it is not. 

 
At various stages this debate has suggested that a TIF scheme will; 

Page 204



 

 
• Expose the Council to a situation whereby they will inevitably need 
to put money (either revenue or capital funding) into the 
construction of the City Garden project and this will therefore 
inevitably impact on resources available for other capital projects 
that the Council may wish to initiate. 

 
• Expose the Council to a situation whereby they will need to pay 
interest and capital on any funds borrowed from the Public Works 
Loan fund as part of the TIF scheme, which will place an 
unreasonable burden on the Council at a time of financial 
constraint. 

 
• Expose the Council to a situation where they will need to contribute 
to the ongoing operational costs of the City garden development, 
after it has been built. 

 
• Directly increase business rates in the immediate vicinity of the City 
Garden Project 

 
It must be stressed that a TIF scheme will not lead to any of the above 
scenarios, for the following reasons: 

 
Firstly, although the TIF business case needs to demonstrate a justifiable 
need for public sector funding, this funding will be supplied by additional 
borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board.  This additional borrowing can 
be afforded because the capital and interest on these borrowings will be 
repaid from incremental tax revenues generated as a result of increased 
business activity and property values that will be generated as a result of the 
investment made in the City Garden project and associated developments in 
the immediate vicinity. The fact that additional borrowings are being used 
means that there will be no impact upon the Council’s currently available 
capital budgets. Therefore there will be no impact on other Council projects 
that are due to be funded from the Council’s capital budget. 

 
  

Secondly, although a certain level of incremental tax revenues must be 
generated to cover the interest and capital payments on the borrowings, the 
TIF business case will need to demonstrate that there is absolutely no risk of 
the Council having to make up any shortfall in the expected level of 
incremental tax revenues - by confirming that any shortfall will be guaranteed 
by a third party, for example. Therefore, since the Council will never be 
required to contribute revenue or capital funds to meet capital and interest 
payments on the debt, there will be no impact on the amount of revenue funds 
available for other Council services. 

 
Thirdly, once completed the business plan for the City garden development 
will need to be approved by the various stakeholders in the project. The 
Council has made it clear that this business plan cannot include any possibility 
that the Council will provide capital or revenue funding for the project. An 

Page 205



 

agreement to this affect will be drafted as part of the arrangements for 
establishing and funding the special purpose development company that will 
be established to take the development forward into the planning and 
construction phases. 

 
Fourthly, TIF schemes do not increase business rates. Potential business rate 
increases arise from new investment, which leads to more business activity 
and increased property values in the surrounding area. TIF simply enables the 
Council to capture the incremental increase in tax revenues and use this to 
repay debt and interest on borrowings used to finance public infrastructure 
works that enable new investment. Without a TIF scheme these incremental 
tax revenues would flow into the Scottish Government for re-distribution (or 
not, as the case may be) through the normal local government funding 
formula/mechanism. An explanation of how a TIF scheme works is attached 
as Appendix 1. This has been prepared by PWC. 

 
As previously stated, PWC have been tasked with producing a TIF Business 
Case. This business case will describe how the City Garden project, together 
with a number of other nearby developments, can create a vibrant and 
dynamic cultural and leisure quarter in and around the Union Terrace/Belmont 
Street area of the City. The business case will also demonstrate how this can 
be done without any financial risk to the Council. 

 
The current draft, outline content of the proposed TIF business case report is 
attached as Appendix 2. This is in the process of being amended to take 
account of the additional activities associated with expanding the TIF business 
case. Nevertheless, it gives a good idea of the scope of the work and the 
issues that will be dealt with as part of the business case. 

 
From this it can also be seen that the rationale behind the business case, and 
the expected economic impact of the project, will form a substantial element of 
the business case - which will need to be robust and open to rigorous 
challenge, from both the Scottish Futures Trust and the various stakeholders 
with an interest in the project.  

 
It should also be noted that the Council will need to approve the TIF Business 
Case before they submit it to the Scottish Futures Trust, for subsequent 
Scottish government approval. Consequently, if the TIF business case fails to 
clearly mitigate all possible financial risks to the Council, they are under no 
obligation to approve and submit it to the Scottish Futures Trust. The Council 
will therefore have the final say in determining whether they wish to apply for a 
TIF scheme. 

 
With regard to the costs associated with producing the TIF business case, 
Scottish Enterprise has agreed to meet these, up to a maximum cost of 
£100,000. 

 
However Committee should be aware that Council Officers have requested a 
considerable extension to the scope of this study, to encapsulate other 
possible developments within the immediate area surrounding the City 

Page 206



 

Garden project.  Such an expanded business case would include the following 
additional projects: 
 

a) Public realm works associated with the creation of a high quality 
pedestrian route linking Union Square, the City Garden, Aberdeen 
Art Gallery, the Bon-Accord Centre and St Nicholas House (in 
anticipation of its future redevelopment). [Note: This would not 
necessarily involve the pedestrianisation of any roads] 

 
b) Demolition, site preparation and enabling infrastructure related to 
regeneration of Upper Denburn (incl. Denburn Health Centre and 
Car Park) 

 
c) Enabling infrastructure and construction costs related to Aberdeen 
Art Gallery extension 

 
d) Demolition, site preparation and enabling infrastructure relating to 
the redevelopment of St Nicholas House. 

 
The request to include these projects in an expanded TIF business case has 
been made to ensure that the economic impact benefits of these projects are 
also captured within TIF business case, together with the public infrastructure 
costs associated with each project. 

 
This will mean that the expanded business case can be readily modified to 
ensure the proposed TIF scheme might still be used to fund these projects, 
even if the City Gardens Project does not go ahead (for whatever reason).   

 
If these projects are not included in an expanded TIF business case, at this 
point in time, and the City Gardens Project does not proceed, an entirely new 
business case would need to be produced for the other projects. This would 
greatly increase the time needed to gain approval for any TIF scheme based 
on these projects alone (i.e. without the City Garden Project). In such a 
scenario, Aberdeen could miss out on the initial round of TIF schemes, with 
no guarantee that a second round would be forthcoming. 

 
However, including as many projects as possible in this initial TIF Business 
Case means that the overall cost of preparing the TIF business case could 
exceed the £100,000 allocated by Scottish Enterprise. 

 
Whilst appreciating the Council’s desire to avoid contributing to any costs 
associated with the City Garden Project, including the projects mentioned 
above in the TIF business case is viewed as a reasonable use of Council 
funds. 

 
Committee are therefore being asked to note that a subsequent paper may be 
presented to the next Finance and Resources Committee seeking approval for 
a contribution towards any additional consultancy costs, over and above 
£100,000 being met by Scottish Enterprise, which are directly related to the 

Page 207



 

inclusion of additional projects in an expanded TIF business case - at the 
Council’s request.  

 
As yet the final cost of producing an expanded TIF Business Case is not 
known and it could be that it does not exceed £100K. Once the total cost is 
known any required Council contribution will be sought on the understanding 
that, if approved, these additional funds will be met from the current EP&I 
budget. 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
Corporate  
  
This project is seen as a critical project with regard to the future 
attractiveness, vitality and connectivity of the City Centre and links to  both the  
Single Outcome Agreement and Community Plan 2008, which outline a 
vision for Aberdeen City which wealthier, greener and safer and delivers the 
following National Outcome’s: 
 

  1  We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe 

  2  We realise our full economic potential with more and better 
employment opportunities for our people 

10  We live in well-designed, sustainable places where we are able 
to access the amenities and services 

12  We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and 
enhance it for future generations. 

13  We take pride in a strong, fair and inclusive national identity 
15  Our public services are high quality, continually improving, 

efficient and responsive to local people’s needs. 
 

The project also contributes to the City’s Vibrant, Dynamic & Forward 
Looking: policy document, since a fully functioning and well utilised City 
Gardens represents a vital piece of social, cultural and leisure infrastructure 
that can contribute to the delivery of the Aberdeen City and Shire Economic 
Future’s ‘Building on Energy - An Economic Manifesto for Aberdeen City 
and Shire’. This in turn supports the strategic vision of Aberdeen City and 
Shire, which is to be recognised as one of the most robust and resilient 
economies in Europe with a reputation for opportunity, enterprise and 
inventiveness that will attract and retain world-class talent of all ages. 

 
 
Public  
 
This report, like all reports pertaining to the City garden Project will be of 
interest to the general public, particularly to those people who oppose any 
type of development in Union Terrace Gardens. 
 

Page 208



 

It is also anticipated that the project will have a positive impact in terms of the 
Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment, as a direct result of 
linkages to the Economic Development theme of Vibrant Dynamic and 
Forward Looking and it’s expected impact on the future sustainable 
development of the Aberdeen City and Shire economy, by making a major 
contribution to Aberdeen’s business and social infrastructure that supports 
local businesses and provides a venue for major social, leisure and cultural 
events for all Aberdeen citizens.  
 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None applicable. 
 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Gerry Brough 
Project Director, Economic and Business Development 
52(3197) 
gbrough@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 

Page 209



 
Appendix 1 

 
Tax Increment Finance (“TIF”) Basic Facts 

 
Page 210



 

Appendix 2 
 

TIF Business Case Report – Draft Contents2 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1. Introduction 

 
• Key sponsor(s) 
• The vision, aims and objectives of the TIF 
 

2. Context of the Scheme 
• Outline the regeneration vision for the proposed TIF area and how the 
proposals fit into a wider development plan for the area 

• Consider how the TIF delivers / fits with other local, regional and 
National policy objectives and initiatives 

• Identify key stakeholders, land owners and partners and their likely 
roles and resources in relation to the TIF 

• Describe the scope of the TIF proposals e.g. a description of the 
proposed TIF area (or “Red Line”), infrastructure needs and early 
priorities, expected overall private sector development unlocked 

• Highlight the But-For case – setting out the status / funding sources 
and prospects for the area / proposals without TIF (the “counterfactual”) 
and the range of options considered in determining the suitability of TIF 
for the proposed area – i.e. an options appraisal in terms of considering 
other forms of delivery / financing for the proposed area. This should 
also relate to economic analysis undertaken in support of the TIF 
proposals 

• The likely private sector / additional development that would be created 
by the TIF enabling infrastructure / investment and its certainty, both in 
terms of construction and revenues. 

• Details of the likely revenue sources created by the TIF, along with the 
rationale for their availability and use 

 
3. Infrastructure Investment Plan and Prioritised Assets 

• The overall infrastructure requirements within the TIF area, classified 
along the lines of enabling (i.e. necessary to initiate development), 
reactive (i.e. necessary in the longer term) and enhancements ([i.e. 
quality of life enhancements])  

• A high level description of the proposed infrastructure 
• Costings (including risk allowances and optimism bias) for 
infrastructure and details of any supporting advice, work or 
consideration to date   

• Proposed programme (referring to wider development and prioritised 
programme) 

                                                 
2  This is currently in the process of being amended by PWC, to reflect the inclusion of  the additional 
projects highlighted in the paper , which will form the basis of an expanded TIF business case 

Page 211



 

• Sources of finance and related certainty, particularly if private sector 
funding  

• Any existing / other available sources of funding and finance, both 
public and private (outwith the TIF) e.g. s75 contributions, existing 
budgets, efficiencies, etc, with an aim of identifying the funding gap for 
the infrastructure elements potentially financeable through TIF (both for 
an overall and prioritised assets basis). 

• Proposals around any prioritised assets / infrastructure, if applicable, 
including basis of selection and related options appraisal, potential 
revenue outputs and costs 

• How the principles of sustainable development have been incorporated 
into any proposals 

 
4. Economic Analysis 
The outturn of the economic analysis should be incorporated into the financial 
analysis, to understand the revenue generation capability of the TIF area and 
its ability to meet its obligations going forward (e.g. debt service)  
The ex-ante assessment of the economic case should incorporate: 

• Assessment of the market failure / failure of equity addressed by the 
intervention 

• An assessment of the counterfactual i.e. what would have happened if 
the TIF did not occur  

• An assessment of the economic impact of the intervention showing 
minimum, most likely and maximum impact over a 25 year appraisal 
period 

• An evaluation of factors such as potential displacement, deadweight 
and leakage as a percentage of economic impact at both a local and 
regional level showing minimum, most likely and maximum cases – 
noting that as the geographic area increases, the certainty of analysis 
reduces 

• In terms of potential impact at a national level, consideration should be 
given as to how any TIF proposals will deliver benefits nationally, the 
likely form these will take and how they fit with the strategic objectives 
of the Scottish Government   

Further guidance in relation to the economic analysis will be attached as a 
separate Annex. 
 
Economic assessments to be carried out:  

• Specifically based upon the circumstances of the TIF scheme (not from 
historic parallels) 

• Utilising interviews with and submissions from key stakeholders, local 
organisations / bodies affected by the TIF and other relevant parties 

• According to recognised best practice methodologies methodologies 
• By an objective economist with a recognised track-record of economic 
assessment for public bodies 

 

Page 212



 

5. Financial Analysis 
Financial analysis of the TIF proposals should be undertaken through 
modeling the project over a 25 year period. The Financial Model and its 
outputs should include:   

• Uses of funds linked to the TIF infrastructure investment plan 
• Forecast tax increment available for financing to include non-domestic 
rates and other identified incomes, net of the economic assessment of 
most-likely displacement and leakage 

• Sources of funding e.g. s75 contributions, other existing forms of 
funding (both public and private), prudential borrowing, including 
deliverable draw-down / repayment assumptions and a funding cost 
buffer; 

• Profiling of costs and revenues 
• Key assumptions (e.g. cost and source of any funding, inflation) and 
ratios (where applicable) utilised in the Financial Model 

• Details of the proposed levels of non-domestic rates and other 
identified incomes utilised by the TIF e.g. % of NDRs, % of transport 
revenues 

• Details of any request for underwriting / guarantee at a Government 
level, including details of potential exposure for Government, and the 
basis upon which the position would be remedied going forward 

• How, if applicable, would the public sector share in the value creation / 
outcomes of the private sector development  

• Details in relation to the sharing of enhanced outcomes (i.e. greater 
upside than forecast e.g. increased property values from initial 
infrastructure investment and overage provisions), proposed 
mechanisms and who would benefit (i.e. SG, the Local Authority, 
Developers, etc) 

• Sensitivity analysis considering key variables: delay, interest rate 
movements, inflation rate movements, displacement range, increased 
construction costs, etc 

 
6. Risk 

• Consideration of risk: including risk identification, allocation and 
management. Such elements may include: 

• Key viability risk considerations including: 
o LA vires (including asset ownership issues and access to 
funding); 

o Procurement approach and strategy; 
o State aid; 

• Key delivery risk considerations including: 
o Linking infrastructure to development 
o Incentivising the development partner 
o Project risks e.g.: 

� Cost over runs 
� Delays in starting / finishing construction 
� Lower than anticipated occupancy rates 
� Changes in economic environment 

Page 213



 

• Details of key agreements / contracts likely to be required, and where 
applicable / available, an outline of the basis of such documents 

• The Business Case should include a description of the opportunities for 
transferring risk to the private sector (and the likely pricing of that risk)  

 
7. Delivery 

• Delivery structure /options 
• Proposed governance and management structures and roles of key 
parties / individuals 

• How the overall structure addresses the key risks and issues identified 
under section 6. Risk 

• Procurement and how Value for money will be delivered / assessed 
• The delivery section should also consider: 

o How will the TIF be monitored and managed e.g. details of likely 
KPIs, reporting regime 

o Resourcing at different levels e.g. Local Authority, overall 
delivery and any, if required, additional vehicles 

o Internal / external resources available, and their suitability, for 
the delivery / management of the TIF 

o How both the public and private sectors are incentivised, and 
details of any underlying payment mechanisms, key payment 
milestones, etc  

o Details of key individuals 
 

8. Next Steps 
• Should include discussion of: 
• Programme and key milestones 
• Critical next steps towards delivery 
• The strategy for taking forward the project and responsibility for doing 
so 

 
9. Conclusion 
 

Page 214



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
COMMITTEE   Finance & Resources 
 
DATE     28 September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Proposed Fee Structure – Landlord’s Consents etc. 
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/10/229 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report advises Members of a proposal to introduce charging for 

dealing with requests from tenants relating to subjects within the Council’s 
non-operational property portfolio and for the preparation of condition 
reports. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee:- 
 

a)   approves the introduction of charging for dealing with tenants’ 
requests and the preparation of schedules as described within the 
report,   

 
b) delegates powers to the Head of Asset Management and 

Operations to vary the charges periodically as deemed appropriate 
in line with operating costs etc. and for this to be incorporated into 
the Scheme of Delegation documents 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1  If approved the proposed charging could result in an additional income of 

up to £50,000 pa.  There would be negligible risk and no State Aid 
implications. 

 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 

Agenda Item 7.8

Page 215



 

 

4.1  The vast majority of the subjects are non-operational and do not impinge 
on City Council core functions and the priorities within the SOA. 

 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  There are no significant implications 
 

6. REPORT 
 
6.1 The City Council’s non-operational portfolio comprises a variety of 

property types, which are held on a variety of lease types. Typically 
ground leases are for a period of between 60 and 125 years. Building 
leases are generally for a period between 1 and 25 years. Business 
Centre leases are generally on a month to month basis. 

 
6.2 During the course of these leases it is not uncommon for tenants to 

request the consent of the Council as landlord for various things. Such 
requests would typically be for assignations of the tenant’s interest, the 
sub letting of the tenant’s interest, or a part of it, or to make physical 
alterations to the premises. It is normal for these requests to be dealt with 
under delegated powers. 

 
6.3 In the past these requests have generally been dealt with free of charge. 

In the light of the ongoing review of statutory functions within the priority 
based budgeting exercise the tasks associated with such requests are 
dealt with by staff who could be deployed on other activities and therefore 
the workload is additional to current requirements. It is therefore 
considered appropriate that a charge for completion of such tasks is 
introduced. 

 
6.4 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services has advised that, regardless 

of any lack of provision in the leases, it is not unreasonable for the Council 
to try to recover costs of staff time associated with dealing with tenants’ 
requests. If it transpires that the matter cannot be dealt with under 
delegated powers it is proposed that there should be an additional fee 
reflecting the time involved in preparing a Committee Report.  

 
6.5 A table of charges is attached as Appendix 1.  
 
6.6 It is emphasized that in most cases these are a minimum level of charge. 

In terms of staff time to deal with requests there is an analogy with a taxi 
meter, what should be a short job may become more complicated and if 
those complications are the result of action or inaction by the tenant there 
should be the scope to increase the charge accordingly.  

 
6.7 It is difficult to quantify the numbers of such request and the income which 

would be generated. At the time of writing there are some 21 ongoing 
assignations of which 3 are of minor subjects. The cases may take some 
considerable time to conclude, though landlord’s consent is occasionally 
almost an afterthought and there is pressure to release the request within 

Page 216



 

 

a very short period. Charging consent for the currently ongoing cases 
would yield an income of approximately £4,500. An annual income of 
between £10,000 and £20,000 might be anticipated from assignations and 
sub-leases. Charging for landlord’s consent to alterations is likely to yield 
approximately £10,000 per annum.  

 
6.8 The section deals with a number of subjects which could not be described 

commercial. This would include pigeon lofts, garages and sites for 
garages and small parcels ground adjacent to former railway lines now 
leased as extensions to gardens of adjacent houses. Rents on these 
subjects are typically less than £100 per annum. The level of charge 
described in this report would be disproportionate to the rents for these 
types of subject and the imposition of such charges would be 
unreasonable.  

 
6.9 Any charges introduced would be in addition to those already charged by 

the Head of Legal and Democratic Services in respect of the Council’s 
legal expenses for issuing such consents.  

 
6.10 The management of leased subjects includes the preparation of schedules 

of condition and dilapidations. The former would normally be prepared at 
the commencement of the lease and at intervals during the lease. The 
latter would be prepared at the end of the lease and details works required 
of the outgoing tenant. In the past these have been prepared without 
charge to the tenant. This is not typical of the situation with privately 
owned leased premises. It is proposed that the charging of tenants for 
these schedules is also introduced.  If this work is undertaken by the 
Council’s external property contractor (currently Ryden) the tenant will be 
responsible for fully reimbursing this cost.  These schedules can be the 
catalyst for considerable follow up work in terms of liaising with tenants to 
ensure that works are done satisfactorily.  

  
6.11 Leases are currently silent on this issue. An obvious point is that these 

reports are not the result of requests from tenants. The advice from the 
Head of Legal Democratic Services is that while leases don’t specify that 
the costs to prepare such reports can be charged, the leases also don’t 
specify that they can’t. It’s her advice that if the level of charge is 
reasonable and clearly linked to the cost of staff time in dealing with the 
work, then tenants are unlikely to complain or challenge the legality of our 
charging system. On the other hand, if we set charges that are punitively 
high and bear no relationship to staff time, then there is much more scope 
for the charging system being legally challenged by tenants. In future, our 
commercial leases will make it clear that tenants will meet the landlord’s 
reasonable cost in preparing such reports.  

 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
7.1 Richard Fleming 
  Surveyor, Asset Policy (Non Housing),  
 ph.  (52) 3142 

Page 217



 

 

 email -  richardf@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
8.1 No background papers were used in preparing this report. 

Page 218



 

 

 
          Appendix A 
 
 
   
PROPOSED PROPERTY SERVICES CHARGES  
   
ITEM DEFINITION MINIMUM 

CHARGE EX VAT 
      
Tenant request to 
purchase Landlord's 
interest  

Fee should the matter require to be 
referred to Committee for consideration 
after officer refusal. 

£250 

  Fees reimbursed if sale is concluded, 
however non refundable otherwise. 

 

      
Landlord's consent under 
lease to : 

    

     
Assign  For checking lease compliance, 

confirmation of covenant offered by 
prospective assignee and instructing Head 
of Legal and Democratic Services 

£250 
 
  

   
Sub lease For checking lease compliance and 

granting approval 
£150 

      
Alterations to the property Consideration of works and granting 

consent 
  

  Minor works £150 
  Major works £500 
 Retrospective Consent £250 
   
Schedules of condition  Business Centre subjects (internal only) £400 

  Smaller premises - shops, offices, small 
industrial  

£750 
  Larger premises - usually industrial or 

complicated by unauthorised works 
£1400 

      
Schedules of dilapidation Business Centre subjects (internal only) £300 
  Smaller premises - shops, offices, small 

industrial  
£550 

  Larger premises - usually industrial or 
complicated by unauthorised works 

£1100 

 

Page 219



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Finance & Resources          
 
DATE      28th September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR     Annette Bruton 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Application for Round 2 Funding -Youth 

Activities Small Grants Fund 2010/11 
 
REPORT NUMBER: ECS/10/075 
 
 
1.  PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The report sets out the recommendations made by the Youth Activities Grant 
Funding Group for the second round of funding for the financial year 2010/11, 
the closing date for which was 22 July 2010. 
 
2.  RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
The committee is asked to: 
 
a. consider the summary of applications and ratify the Funding Groups 

recommendations and 
b. Instruct the Head of Service Communities, Culture and Sport to arrange 

for distribution of the funds. 
 
3.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The council approved the Youth Activities Grant Budget for £50,000 from the 
Common Good Fund for the year 2010/11 at Finance and Resource Committee 
on 11 March 2010.   
 
4.  SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
The report supports priorities of a Vibrant, Dynamic and Forward Looking 
Aberdeen, and the Council’s Partner’s commitment to develop integrated 
services for children and young people.  In the policy statement “Vibrant, 
Dynamic and Forward Looking” the Council sets out its aims to make Aberdeen 
an even better place to live and work.  The Youth Activities Small Grant Funding 
by promoting the involvement of young people contributes to this aim.  It links to 
the Strengthening Local Democracy Strategy, Getting Involved and 
Neighbourhood Action Challenges of the Community Plan.  It also links to the 
Community Safety Strategy and the Action Plan for Crime Reduction. 
 
The Youth Activities Small Grants Fund contributes positively to  
equal opportunities.  In particular, clear positive impacts have been identified for 
the following groups:  young people in general; young people with disabilities 
both in terms of the impact of the activities funded and in terms of involving 
young disabled people; (there is a requirement under the Disability Equality Duty 

Agenda Item 7.9

Page 221



to encourage participation by people with disabilities in public life); young 
Gypsy/Travellers; and Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual young people. 
 
The Youth Activities Small Grant Funding offers young people opportunities to 
contribute to the life of the city and to their communities.  Young people receiving 
funding are likely to benefit in terms of experience, confidence and skills, and 
therefore contribute to Single Outcome Agreement 4. 
 
5.  OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
 
6.  REPORT 
 
a. Representatives from: The Aberdeen City Youth Council, the Convenor of 

Resources Management, the Chair of the Aberdeen Children and Young 
People’s Services Strategic Planning Group or their nominated 
representatives and one other elected member consider the applications 
on behalf of the Finance and Resources Committee and are known as the 
Funding Group. 

 
b. The closing date for this round of funding was 22 July 2010.  The Funding 

Group considered the applications on 03 August 2010. 
 
c. 12 new applications were received for this round, with 1 deferred from 

round 1.  It is recommended that 11 of those are funded and 2 denied.  
Appendix 1 holds the detail of applications received and the 
recommendations made. 

 
d. The total sum recommended for approval in this round is £12,058.60.  If 

the recommendations outlined are approved there will be an uncommitted 
budget of £13,245.40 remaining.  As is usual, a folder containing the full 
original copies of all the applications received will be available in the 
Members’ Library.  The Funding Group has also requested that a copy of 
all reports provided by groups, following the spending of their award, is 
also made available in the Members Library as and when the reports are 
available.  

 
 
7.   REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Madelene MacSween 
Dialogue Youth Information Service Manager 
01224 497178 
mmacsween@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Appendix 1 – shows the detail of received applications and recommendations 
being made to committee regarding funding. 
 
 

Page 222



Youth Activities Small Grants  
 

Appendix 1 
Round 2 - Closing Date 22 July 2010 
  
          
Group Name & No. Summary of Application Amount 

Requested 
Amount 
Awarded 

Decision & Comment 

YAG010/16 
Kittybrewster 
Congregational Church 
- Youth Film Group 

Funding requested to purchase equipment to set 
up a film club. 
 
Deferred from round 1, as the application was 
lacking in detail about what was actually going to 
happen at the club. 

£1,121.30 £450.00 After receiving additional information the Funding 
Group have agreed to part fund for the 6 young 
people within the 12-25 age group. 

YAG010/25 Inchgarth 
Youth Club 

Funding requested for cost of karaoke machine, 
discs and mics, and also to pay for trips to 
carnival, bowling and girls pampering night. 

£1,479.79 £0.00 The Funding Group agreed not to fund as Inchgarth 
has received funding on a number of occasions and 
priority must be given to first-time applicants. 

YAG010/26 Oldmachar 
XL Club 

Funding requested to purchase gardening 
equipment e.g. tools, landscaping materials, 
compost, plants etc. with the aim of converting an 
area of school into an outdoor classroom/garden. 

£1,500.00 £1,500.00 Fully fund 

YAG010/27 Fersands & 
Fountain Community 
Project Youth Groups 
12-18 

Funding requested to provide 4 different groups 
with a monthly activity budget of £30 for 12 
months. 

£1,440.00 £1,440.00 Fully fund 

YAG010/28 Aberdeen 
City Ladies Football 
Club 

Funding requested to pay towards the costs of  
transportation, training facilities and coaching 
certificates for the club. 

£1,500.00 £1,500.00 Fully fund 

YAG010/29 Aberdeen 
& District Battalion - 
The Boy's Brigade 

Funding requested for cost of tents, stoves, 
rucksacks, compasses, maps and karrimats. 

£1,316.10 £1,316.10 Fully fund 

YAG010/30 VSA - 
Friends for Life 

Funding requested towards the cost of equipment 
for an area in the community centre to enable the 
Friends for Life group to run a successful club. 

£1,500.00 £1,500.00 Fully fund 

P
age 223



Group Name & No. Summary of Application Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Awarded 

Decision & Comment 

YAG010/31 Parents for 
Parents 

Funding requested for games equipment, vacuum 
cleaner, fruit and cooking ingredients. 

£1,445.95 £1,000.00 The Funding Group agreed to part fund and advises 
the group to shop around for better deals on some of 
the items requested. 

YAG010/32 66th 
Aberdeen Scout Group 

Funding requested for the purchase of kayaks, 
associated safety equipment and a trailer. 

£1,500.00 £0.00 This group to re-apply as their application is lacking in 
detail i.e. costs, benefits etc. 

YAG010/33 Child & 
Family Service 

Funding requested to offer young people one to 
one outings with caseworker. 

£300.00 £300.00 Fully fund 

YAG010/34 Filipino 
Community of 
Aberdeen 

Funding requested for venue hire, sports 
equipment and costumes for Dance Troupe and 
Basketball Sport.  

£1,500.00 £500.00 The Funding Group agreed to part fund for the 10 
young people within the 12-25 age range. 

YAG010/35 Act Daft - 
Aberdeen Arts Centre 

Funding requested for costumes, set, lights etc. to 
stage a show. 

£1,500.00 £1,500.00 Fully fund 

YAG010/36 Fusion 
Youth Dance Company 

Funding requested to deliver dance workshops - 
candidate costs, studio hire etc. 

£1,052.50 £1,052.50 Fully fund. This group to be congratulated on their 
application. 

          
    Total 

Amount 
Requested 

Total Amount 
Recommended 

  

  Total Amount Requested £17,155.64 £12,058.60 
  

          

  Balance c/f after round 1 £25,304.00   
  

          
  Balance: £13,245.40     
          
          

 

P
age 224



Karen Algie 
President
Head of Human Resources 
Falkirk Council 
Municipal Buildings 
West Bridge Street 
Falkirk
FK1 5RS 

Tel: 01324 506223 
Fax: 01324 506061 

12 July 2010 

Dear Colleague 
Society of Personnel Directors Scotland

Annual Conference, Old Course Hotel, St. Andrews, 
3rd – 5th November 2010

The Society's annual conference will be held at The Old Course Hotel, St. Andrews 
from 2pm on Wednesday 3rd November until lunchtime on Friday 5th November. The 
Old Course has proved to be an excellent conference venue over the years for 
delegates and sponsors alike.  

It is well recognised that time is precious at the moment with many challenges facing 
all of us.  In such times it is even more important to share good practice, build 
partnerships and learn from each other.  To help, and in recognition of the current 
economic climate, I'm pleased to tell you that there will be no increase in the 
conference fee from last year, i.e. £380 for SPDS members and £400 for non-
members. This represents outstanding value for money when compared with other 
similar events.

The Society's conference planners have worked particularly hard to ensure that the 
conference programme reflects the challenges faced by public sector HR 
professionals in their everyday work. I am confident that our event will prove a 
valuable learning and networking experience for delegates at a very reasonable cost. 
I hope my letter and the attached booking information has sufficient detail to enable 
you to arrange your attendance at what promises to be another first class conference 
for the Society.  Please register your attendance at the conference by visiting  
www.shsceventsbookings.co.uk/spds  If you have any questions regarding your 
online registration please contact mhart@nhs.net or  tel 0131 275 7746. 

The full conference programme will be sent to you in due course and I look forward to 
seeing you at St. Andrews in November. 

Yours sincerely 

Karen Algie 
President
Society of Personnel Directors Scotland

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 225



C:\DOCUME~1\LYNDAV~1.ACC\LOCALS~1\Temp\XPgrpwise\SODOPs 
programme.doc 

SPDS Conference Programme 2010: 200710

�Extraordinary times � extraordinary challenges�

Wednesday 3rd November

Exhibitions open from 1.00 pm with tea and coffee available in the 
conservatory from 1.30 pm 

 
14.00 � 14.15 Welcome/ President�s address. 
 Hugh Mackenzie, President � Elect 
 
14.15 � 15.00 The SOLACE position 

Bernadette Malone, Chief Executive of Perth and Kinross 
Council (President SOLACE Scotland) 

 Chaired by Hugh Mackenzie, Perth and Kinross Council 
 

15.00 � 16.00 Title to be confirmed 
 Rob Whiteman, Chief Executive of IDeA 

Chaired by (to be confirmed) 
 

Exhibition open to delegates until 17.00 
 

Page 226



C:\DOCUME~1\LYNDAV~1.ACC\LOCALS~1\Temp\XPgrpwise\SODOPs 
programme.doc 

Thursday 4th November

09.30 � 10.30 �Wellbeing, engagement and leadership� 
Nita Clark. IPA 
Chaired by (to be confirmed) 

 

10.30 � 11.00 Morning Coffee and exhibition in the conservatory  
 
11.00 � 12.30 The Guardian Lecture: Title to be confirmed 

Iwan Thomas 
Chaired by Karen Algie, Falkirk Council 

 

12.30 � 13.30 Lunch and exhibition 
 
13.30 � 15.00 The Herald Debate 

Chaired by Ian McWhirter, political columnist, the Sunday 
Herald  
Panelists TBC but include Dean Shoesmith, PPMA 
President 
Hosted by (tbc) 
 

15.00 � 15.30 Afternoon Tea and exhibition in the conservatory 
 
15.30 � 16.30 Title to be confirmed 

Harry Burns, Chief Medical Officer for Scotland 
 Chaired by (to be confirmed 

Page 227



C:\DOCUME~1\LYNDAV~1.ACC\LOCALS~1\Temp\XPgrpwise\SODOPs 
programme.doc 

Friday 6th November 

09.30 � 10.20 Title to be confirmed  
Vicky Jack � mountaineer  
Chaired by Martin Rose, East Ayrshire Council  

 

10.20 � 10.40 Morning coffee and exhibition in the conservatory 
 

10.40 � 11.30 The Equality Act and related developments  
Paul McMahon, Partner, Harper MacLeod  

 Chaired by (to be confirmed) 
 

11.30 � 12.20 Lessons from MacRoberts� employment case files: a 
review of approaches which worked�and those which 
didn�t! 
 Stephen Miller, Partner and Head of Employment Law, 
MacRoberts. 

 Chaired by incoming vice president once known 
 

12.20 � 12.30 Prize draw from the exhibition and closing remarks, Vice 
President, SPDS 

 

Page 228



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Finance and Resources    
 
DATE     28th September 2010  
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Access from the North Proposals (“Third Don 

Crossing”), Compulsory Purchase Order.  
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/10/225  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise the Committee of the extent of land to be acquired though 

compulsory purchase order (CPO) to facilitate the construction of the 
Access from the North Proposals (“Third Don Crossing”). 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
a) notes the contents of this report; 
b) resolves to make an Order in terms of the draft Compulsory 
Purchase Order attached to this Report and authorise the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services to implement the statutory 
procedures following on from the making of the Order; 

c) approves delegated powers to the Head of Legal & Democratic 
Services and the Head of Asset Management & Operations, in 
consultation with the Convenor, to purchase land required for the 
scheme by a negotiated process in advance of a CPO assuming 
such purchases represent Market Value and are within the scheme 
budget; 

d) authorises Officers to seek Scottish Minister approval for the 
transfer of required land from the Housing Revenue Account to the 
Roads account at Market Value, subject to the approval of the 
Housing and Environment Committee; 

e) authorises transfer of required land from the Common Good 
account to the Roads account at current market value; 

f) notes that officers will provide regular updates to Committee in 
relation to progress with land acquisition against budget; 

g) authorises the issuing of a guidance document to parties whose 
properties are affected by the scheme which outlines the CPO 
process and its implications. 

  
 
 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 229



3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

3.1 Land acquisition will be funded from the project’s capital budget 
allocation. The transfer of Housing and Common Good Land will take 
place in future financial years. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Resources from both Enterprise Planning & Infrastructure and Legal & 

Democratic Services will be required to complete the land acquisitions 
required to implement the scheme. EP&I’s Asset Policy Team’s term 
contractor will act as land agent for land purchase negotiations.  

 
4.2 The scheme is currently subject to an application for planning 

permission. 
 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 Following submission of a report to the Environment and Infrastructure 

Committee (22nd March 2007) and subsequently the Resources 
Management Committee (29th March 2007), Full Council (25th April 
2007) approved progression of a CPO whilst appointed agents 
continued to negotiate with affected owners.  

 
5.2 Subsequent to this approval, the Reporter to the Public Local Inquiry on 

the finalised Aberdeen Local Plan recommended that the project 
should not be included in the then new Local Plan since it had 
inconsistencies with transportation and planning policy. As a result of 
this, progress on the land acquisition for the project was temporarily 
suspended. 

 
5.3 Since then the scheme has now been included in numerous Council 

policies such as the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan, the 
Regional Transport Strategy and the Local Transport Strategy.  
Following the introduction of these policy updates a new Planning 
Application was submitted in January 2010. 

 
5.4 It is now intended to fulfil the outstanding remit to progress the land 

acquisition required to construct this project. As before, it is proposed 
to progress the CPO whilst negotiations are carried out with land 
owners to purchase land by agreement, where possible.  Current 
indications are that it is likely that a CPO will be necessary to acquire 
some of the land. The Council’s Asset Policy Team has instructed 
Ryden LLP, to act as land agent on behalf of Aberdeen City Council. 

 
5.5 Additionally, some land needs to be transferred from the Housing 

Revenue Account to the Roads Account. Land held on the HRA 
requires Scottish Minister approval to be transferred to the General 

Page 230



Services Account.  The HRA is ringfenced and any transfer has to be at 
Market Value.  This report also seeks approval for appropriate officers 
to seek Scottish Minister approval for transfer of required land between 
the Housing and Roads accounts. 

 
5.6 Similarly, there is a need to transfer some land from the Common Good 

account to the Roads account. Land that has been registered as 
Common Good land requires Committee approval for alternative uses.  
Again, any transfer of land is required to be at Market Value. The 
Market Value of Common Good Land will be determined by the 
Council’s external valuation contractor. 

 
5.7 Given that some land owners may not be fully aware of the implications 

of the use of a CPO it is proposed to issue a guidance document 
outlining the process and its implications.  A copy of this document in 
draft is attached in Appendix B.  
. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
6.1  The proposal to promote the CPO is in accordance with the Council’s 

Community Plan where it assists in the delivery of the aim to “maintain 
and improve the range of transport choices available to, from and 
within the city”. 

 
6.2  The promotion of the CPO will facilitate the construction of the scheme, 

make a significant contribution to the achievement of outcomes 10, 12 
and 14 within the Single Outcome Agreement which, in a local context, 
seek to improve sustainable travel options. 

 
6.3  Vibrant, Dynamic and Forward Looking states, under transport, the 

desire to “Improve Aberdeen’s transport infrastructure – including 
delivering the Third Don Crossing and addressing other “pinch points” 
in the city’s roads network”. The promotion of the CPO is considered a 
prerequisite of constructing the scheme. 

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 A report approved by Council on 29 November 2009 provides 

background information on the scheme. 
 
7.2 Reference is made to the Compulsory Purchase Order 2010 plan; 

1/R/R4669/CPO/1, a copy of which is appended to this report 
(Appendix A). 

 
7.3 Reference is made to the leaflet produced by Asset Management on 

the compulsory purchase process, a copy of which is appended to this 
report (Appendix B). 

 

Page 231



7.4 Reference is made to Article 11 of the Minute of Meeting of Aberdeen 
City Council on 25th April 2007. The report advised Members of the 
likely need for the promotion of a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) 
to facilitate the acquisition of land required for the purpose of 
progressing the third River Don crossing aspect of the access from the 
North proposals. The Council resolved to authorise the appropriate 
officers to progress the CPO. 

 
 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Laura Howie 
Engineer 
lahowie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522 687 

 
 
(Note: Appendix A will be issued immediately prior to Committee meeting.) 
 
 
 

Page 232



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

APPENDIX B 

ACCESS FROM THE NORTH PROPOSALS  
(�THIRD DON CROSSING�)  

 

A GUIDE TO THE COMPULSORY PURCHASE PROCESS AND 
COMPENSATION 

Page 233



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

CONTENTS 
SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION 

 
SECTION 2 COMPULSORY PURCHASE PROCESS 
 
COMPULSORY PURCHASE PROCEDURE 
ÿ Outline of Procedure 
ÿ Individual Notices 
ÿ Objections 
ÿ Public Local Inquiry (PLI) 
ÿ Site Visit 
ÿ PLI Costs 
ÿ Post Inquiry Procedure 
ÿ Decision 
ÿ Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) 
ÿ Possession 
ÿ Short Tenancies 
 
RELATED PROCEDURES 
ÿ Severance 
ÿ Blight 
ÿ Voluntary Purchase as an Alternative to Compulsory Purchase 
 
SECTION 3 COMPENSATION 
 
ÿ Introduction 
 
COMPENSATION WHEN PROPERTY IS PURCHASED 
ÿ General Principles 
ÿ Value of Property 
 
VALUE OF RELATED EFFECTS 
ÿ Severance and other Injurious Affection 
ÿ Disturbance 
ÿ Residential Disturbance 
ÿ Business Disturbance 
ÿ Individual Assessment 
 
OTHER ISSUES 
ÿ Loans 
ÿ Home Loss Payment 
ÿ Farm Loss Payment 
ÿ Planning Permission after Acquisition 
ÿ Advance Payment of Compensation 
ÿ Interest 
ÿ Lands Tribunal for Scotland 
 
SECTION 4 CONTACT DETAILS 

Page 234



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This brochure provides guidance on the statutory procedures which 

Aberdeen City Council (�the Council�) follows for the compulsory 
purchase of land and the payment of compensation for same, in 
relation to any scheme promoted under the relevant legislation by the 
Council, as roads authority, for the construction of a new road or the 
improvement of an existing road.  The proposed new access road, 
popularly known as �The Third Don Crossing�, from Bridge of Don 
across the River Don is such a scheme.  The Council do not need to 
purchase property for a scheme on a compulsory basis if owners are 
willing to sell their properties to the Council voluntarily on terms which 
are acceptable to both parties. This guidance applies only where the 
Council is exercising compulsory powers to purchase property.  It will 
be of most interest to those who have businesses or property which are 
directly affected by a scheme. In terms of the relevant legislation, the 
Council is the acquiring authority responsible for promoting the 
Compulsory Purchase Order for the Third Don Crossing Ryden LLP 
(Commercial Property Consultants) in Aberdeen have been appointed 
by the Council to  deal, on the Council�s behalf, with negotiations for 
land acquisition and the assessment of compensation for any land 
compulsorily acquired. 

 
1.2 The law and procedure relating to compulsory purchase and 

compensation is complex.  Of necessity the information set out in this 
brochure is a simplification and cannot cover every circumstance that 
may arise.  The information contained in this brochure is not intended 
to be a complete guide to the law and carries no legal force.  However, 
it aims to provide an understanding of the compulsory purchase 
procedure and the principles to be applied in assessing compensation. 

 
1.3 This guidance should not be regarded as a substitute for professional 

advice.  If any interest you have in a business or property is affected by 
the scheme, the Council recommends that you seek advice from a 
professionally qualified person such as a surveyor or solicitor.  They 
can advise you on the rights that you have and act on your behalf if 
appropriate.  Whilst the Council will not meet the costs of your 
obtaining general professional advice, it will meet the fees of any 
professionally qualified person you appoint to negotiate the amount of 
compensation you will receive for the compulsory purchase of your 
property in line with a set scale.  If you are in any doubt as to whether 
your professional costs will be met you should consult a professional 
advisor. 

 
1.4 The Council�s Environment & Infrastructure technical specialists are 

responsible for the design and development of the road scheme.  
 

Page 235



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

SECTION 2 COMPULSORY PURCHASE PROCESS 
 
COMPULSORY PURCHASE PROCEDURE 
 
Outline of Procedure 
 
2.1 Where the Council has proposals to construct a new road or improve 

an existing road, it commissions design and development work, 
including environmental impact assessments to bring the proposals to 
reality.  Once this initial design and development work has been 
completed to the level necessary to enable the Council to determine 
the proposed line of the road, the Council is in a position to identify the 
extent of the property required for the scheme. 

 
2.2 Where the Council intends to purchase property on a compulsory 

basis, they promote and make a Compulsory Purchase Order (�CPO�).  
The CPO identifies the land and rights over land (which for simplicity 
are referred to in this guidance as �property�) required for the scheme 
by reference to a schedule and a map.  The owners and occupiers are 
identified as accurately as possible and their details are included in the 
schedule.  Each owner and occupier listed in the schedule, together 
with certain other parties as required by statute, will be served with the 
relevant notices under the statutory procedure along with explanatory 
literature. 

 
2.3 The Council advertises in the local press the making of the CPO.   

Public exhibitions may be held and information on the scheme may be 
available on an internet website. 

 
2.4 The assessment of compensation is covered in Section 3. 

 
Individual Notices 

2.5 The Council must serve notice on certain parties specified by statute, 
including every owner and tenant (except for tenants for a month or 
less) of any property comprised in the CPO, stating the effect of the 
CPO.   If the name or address of any party, eg an owner of a piece of 
property, is not known and there is no person on the property to which 
the notice may be delivered, notices are posted on the property. 

 
2.6 The content of both the press notice and the individual notices is very 

similar, and each will: 
� State that a CPO has been made. 
� Specify the manner in which objections to the CPO may be lodged. 
� Say where in the locality the CPO and map may be inspected. 

 

Page 236



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

Objections 
 
2.7 This guidance is about the CPO procedure and compensation issues 

only. Any other statutory orders, which may be published, and any 
Environmental Statement published, follow their own statutory 
procedures, which are set out fully in the notices accompanying their 
publication. 

 
2.8 Anyone who wishes to object to the CPO must do so in writing to the 

Scottish Ministers at the address given and by the date specified in the 
press and in the individual CPO notices which have been served.   This 
objection period is normally, and cannot be less than, 21 days and runs 
from the date of service of individual notices or of the first date of 
publication of the press notice. 

 
2.9 There is no specific format for an objection to the CPO other than it 

must be in writing. 
 
2.10 Following the period for objections, the Scottish Ministers will consult 

the Council on any written objections received by them. Only objections 
relating solely to matters of compensation will be disregarded. 

 
2.11  The Scottish Ministers will liaise with all objectors and the Council with 

a view to resolving the objections.  
 

2.12  If this process does not result in all objections being withdrawn or 
otherwise resolved it is normal for those objections to be considered at 
a Public Local Inquiry (PLI) arranged by the Scottish Government. 

 
Public Local Inquiry (PLI) 
 
2.13 The PLI is held before a Reporter appointed by the Scottish 

Government.   The Reporter determines how the inquiry is to proceed.    
Generally he or she will try to keep proceedings informal whilst 
ensuring that all parties are able to have their say in an organised and 
orderly manner to ensure that the case for and against the compulsory 
purchase of property is fully tested. 

 
Site visit 
 
2.14   The Reporter will visit the site before, during or after the close of the 

PLI.   Objectors are entitled to attend and the arrangements for the visit 
will be announced.   However, the Reporter will not discuss the merits 
of the case on the visit. 

 

Page 237



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

PLI Costs 

2.15  The costs incurred by people in attending or being represented at the 
PLI are generally only met by the Council where their property is 
included in the CPO,  they object, and the hearing into their objection 
results in their property being removed or partly removed from the 
CPO.   Where only part of their property is removed from the CPO, only 
part of their costs is normally met. 

 
Post Inquiry Procedure 
 
2.16 After the close of the inquiry, the Reporter will produce a report for the 

Scottish Government setting out his or her conclusions and putting 
forward recommendations. 

 
Decision 
 
2.17 After considering the Reporter�s recommendations, the Scottish 

Ministers will decide whether or not to confirm the CPO. 
 
2.18 The Scottish Ministers may make a decision, which is contrary to the 

Reporter�s recommendations. 
 
2.19 When the Scottish Ministers have reached their decision, they will 

inform the objectors and any other person who appeared at the inquiry 
and asked to be notified.   The decision letter will set out the reasons 
for the decision.   Any party can request a copy of the Reporter�s 
report. 

 
Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) post confirmation 
2.20 If the Council has decided not to proceed with the compulsory 

purchase that brings an end to the matter. If the Council decides to 
proceed with the compulsory purchase then those parties specified by 
statute, including each owner listed in the schedule to the CPO, will be 
served with the relevant notices under the statutory procedure along 
with explanatory literature outlining the effects of the CPO and a form 
for claiming compensation.   At the same time the Council will advertise 
the confirmation of the CPO in a notice in the press. 

 
2.21 The date of publication of the above mentioned notice is relevant in 

terms of the timetable for the following two actions: 
� For you to mount a legal challenge against the validity of the CPO.  

The time limit for this is 6 weeks.   The challenge can only be made 
by way of a formal Court action.  There is therefore a need to act 
very quickly.   If you think there are valid grounds for challenge, you 
should take legal advice. 

� For the Council to take title to and possession of your property. 
Details relating to this are contained in the following sections. 

 
2.22 Following completion of the statutory procedure the next stage is for 

the Council to take title to and possession of the property included in 
the CPO. 

Page 238



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

 
2.23 There are a number of different methods of achieving this. The Council  

normally proceed by way of what is called a General Vesting 
Declaration (�GVD�).  

 
2.24  The GVD cannot be executed until 2 months after the publication of the 

notice referred to at 2.20 and 2.21 above. This notice will have included 
notification of the Council�s intention to proceed by way of a GVD.  The 
Council will serve a notice of the making of the GVD on the affected 
parties.   The notice will specify a date, which must be at least 28 days 
away, when the Council will take title and entry to, and possession of, 
the property. 

 
Short Tenancies 

2.24 Tenancy agreements are normally included in the GVD process.   
However this is not the case for a short tenancy.   A short tenancy is a 
lease for less than a year or from year to year. The Council cannot 
purchase a short tenancy by the GVD route. There are several 
alternative procedures open to the Council and the method chosen will 
depend on the individual circumstances of the short tenancy in 
question.   Alternatively, the Council may decide that the best course of 
action is to let the tenancy run its course. 

 
RELATED PROCEDURES 
 
Severance 
 
2.25 Where part of your property is included in the CPO and GVD, and you 

consider the effect on the remainder of the property is particularly 
severe, then you may be entitled to serve a notice of objection to 
severance. If successful the Council would be required to purchase the 
whole of your property. There is a strict 28-day time limit for formally 
objecting to severance. That period runs from the date you are served 
with the notice that the Council has made the GVD. If you are 
concerned about severance you should consult your professional 
advisor. 

 
Blight 
 
2.26 Blight is a procedure whereby you can require the Council to buy your 

property without going through the whole CPO process. In certain 
limited circumstances a property may be blighted as a result of the 
CPO. Your property could also be blighted by the scheme over and 
above the CPO, for example by road orders. The rules governing when 
a property is blighted are complex. If you think your property may be 
blighted then you should consult your professional advisor. 

 

Page 239



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

Voluntary purchase as an alternative to compulsory purchase 
 
2.29 Notwithstanding the fact that the Council is exercising compulsory 

powers of purchase for the scheme nothing prevents them at any time 
from purchasing property for the scheme on a voluntary basis.   Where 
the purchase proceeds on a voluntary basis, the terms, including the 
price, must be agreed. In those circumstances the compensation 
provisions explained in this brochure do not apply. 

 

Page 240



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

SECTION 3 COMPENSATION 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
3.1 This Section provides guidance on compensation which is payable for 

property compulsorily purchased for the scheme.   It includes guidance 
for both business and residential owners and occupiers. This guidance 
is not intended to be a complete guide. The statutory provisions and 
case law that govern the eligibility for and assessment of compensation 
is complex. It is stressed again that you should seek advice from a 
professionally qualified person such as a surveyor or solicitor.  

 
3.2 Where the Council do not purchase any of your property, compensation 

may still be payable for the effects of the actual construction of the 
scheme as following its completion. General guidance on this will be 
available at the relevant time. 

 
3.3 Ryden LLP will assess the level of compensation and will discuss same 

with you or your professional advisor. 
 
COMPENSATION WHEN PROPERTY IS PURCHASED 
 
General Principles 
 
3.4 The assessment of compensation will depend on individual 

circumstances. The underlying principle is to put you, in financial terms, 
so far as money can do so, in the same position as if your property had 
not been taken from you. Basically, the assessment of compensation 
will take into account the value of your property and the value of related 
effects (known as Severance, Injurious Affection and Disturbance).   
However, the level of compensation is assessed without any increase 
or decrease in value attributable to the scheme itself. 

 
3.5 The amount of compensation payable cannot exceed your total 

financial loss. There is a duty on you to mitigate that loss. 
 
Value of Property 
 
3.6 There are 6 basic rules for assessing the value of property compulsorily 

purchased. These rules are set out in an Act of Parliament. A brief 
summary of the rules is set out below. 

 
Rule 1 
 
3.7 In assessing the compensation, no addition to or reduction from the 

value of the property is made to reflect the fact that it is being 
compulsorily purchased. The purchase of the property is assumed to 
be an open market transaction between willing parties. 

 

Page 241



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

Rule 2 
 
3.8 The value of the property is based upon what the property might be 

expected to realise if sold in the open market to a willing seller. 
 
3.9 In most circumstances the open market value will be based on the 

existing use of the property, provided proper consents are in place. 
 
3.10 The property may have potential for development if planning 

permission for that development could be obtained. If the Council 
accept the property has development potential then this will be taken 
into account in assessing compensation. 

 
3.11 If the Council do not accept that your property has development 

potential then you can apply to your local planning authority for a 
Certificate of Appropriate Alternative Development. This will determine 
whether or not your proposed development would have received 
planning permission had the scheme not gone ahead. The rules 
governing such an application are linked to planning law and are 
complex and outwith the scope of this guidance. You should refer any 
query on this aspect to your professional advisor or your local planning 
authority. 

 
Rule 3 
 
3.12 This rule applies in specialist circumstances where certain uses of 

property can only be undertaken by a statutory authority. In assessing 
compensation no account is taken of these special circumstances. 

 
Rule 4 
 
3.13 Any increase in the value of property which is attributable to a use of 

the property which is unlawful or detrimental to the health of the 
occupants of the premises or to public health, is not taken into account. 

 
Rule 5 
 
3.14 It may not be possible to arrive at a market value where the property to 

be purchased is (and but for the CPO would continue to be) devoted to 
a purpose for which there is no general demand or market (eg a 
church). In such circumstance, compensation may be assessed on the 
basis of how much it would cost to reinstate the facility elsewhere. 

 
Rule 6 
 
3.15 The provisions of Rule 2 do not affect the assessment of compensation 

for disturbance or any other matter not directly based on the value of 
the property. The compensation you receive, therefore, may not only 
reflect the open market value of your property, but may also take into 
account the value of related effects, as described in the following 
paragraphs.                                                                                                                  

 

Page 242



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

 
Value of related effects 
 
SEVERANCE AND OTHER INJURIOUS AFFECTION 
 
3.16 Severance is where only part of your property is purchased for the 

scheme. Compensation may be payable for the adverse physical 
effects the severance has on the remainder of your property, eg the 
purchase of part of your property may result in the loss of access to the 
remainder. 

 
3.17  In circumstances where you consider the effects of severance on the 

remainder of your property are particularly severe, then you may be 
entitled to serve a notice of objection to severance. If successful the 
Council would be required to purchase the whole of your property.   
There is a strict 28-day time limit for formally objecting to severance.   
That period runs from the date you are served with the notice that the 
Council have made the GVD. If you are concerned about severance 
you should consult your professional advisor. 

 
3.18 Injurious affection can also arise where only part of your property is 

purchased for the scheme. Compensation may be payable for any 
injurious affection, the term used to describe the adverse effects (such 
as noise and vibration) the scheme and its construction can have on 
the remainder of your property. 

 
3.19 Any claim for severance or other injurious affection must be consistent 

with the remainder of the claim. If you claim compensation based on 
the potential your property would have had for development that may 
have an effect on any claim for severance and injurious affection. 

 
3.20 There may be instances where the scheme does not have an adverse 

effect on your remaining property. On the other hand the scheme may 
increase the value of your remaining property. In such circumstances, 
any compensation will take into account any increase in value of your 
remaining property. 

 
3.21 The compulsory purchase of your property may involve in costs or 

expenses such as removal expenses, loss of goodwill, loss of profits, 
professional fees etc. These items are generally referred to as 
disturbance. Any disturbance would be included in your overall 
compensation but any disturbance element of the claim must be 
consistent with the remainder of the claim. Compensation will normally 
only include a payment for disturbance if the value of the property is 
based on existing use and not its development potential. 

 

Page 243



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

Residential Disturbance 
 
3.22 In the case of a residential property you can claim reasonable costs 

and expenses if you have to leave that property. The claim can include 
the costs associated with purchasing a replacement property (but not 
the purchase price of the property itself) and the costs of moving into 
the property. Examples of additional items, which may be claimed, are 
legal fees and surveyor�s fees. 

 

Business Disturbance 
 
3.23 In the case of a business property depending upon the particular 

circumstances of the purchase, disturbance compensation may be 
based on either the costs of relocating the business or extinguishing 
the business. Normally you would be expected to relocate your 
business. If this is not possible it may be necessary for the business to 
close, in which case compensation will be based on the cost of the total 
extinguishment of the business. 

 
3.24 There may be circumstances where the costs of relocating the 

business are greater than the value of the business. In these 
circumstances there is a case that can be made that compensation is 
based on extinguishment, as no prudent businessman would incur the 
costs of relocating the business. However each case must be looked at 
on its own merits.  

 
3.25 If you relocate your business you may be entitled to claim the 

reasonable costs and expenditure arising, including for example, 
removal expenses, legal fees, surveyor�s fees and architect�s fees. 

 
Individual Assessment 
 
3.26 Every loss will be considered on its merits. The onus is on you to justify 

your claim. It is up to you to prove that you should be compensated.  
Accordingly, it is of the utmost importance that you keep a detailed 
record of losses sustained and costs incurred in connection with the 
compulsory purchase of your property. You should keep all relevant 
documentary evidence such as receipts, invoices and fee quotes. 

 
OTHER ISSUES 
 
Loans 
 
3.27 If a loan is secured over your property the lender is entitled to be 

compensated. All or part of your compensation may need to be paid to 
the lender to redeem all or part of your loan. 

 

Page 244



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

Home Loss Payment 
 
3.28 If you are actually living in the property you may be entitled to a home 

loss payment in addition to any other compensation due. The home 
loss payment is an additional sum to reflect and recognise your distress 
and discomfort at being compelled to move out of your home. 

 
Farm Loss Payment 
 
3.29   If you are occupying an agricultural unit and are displaced from that 

unit, you may be entitled to a farm loss payment in addition to any other 
compensation due. The farm loss payment recognises that as a result 
of a move to unfamiliar land, you may be faced with temporary losses 
of yield. 

 
Planning Permission after Acquisition 
 
3.30   If during the period of ten years after the purchase of your property by 

the Council, planning permission is granted for the additional 
development of that property, you may be entitled to additional 
compensation to reflect any increase in the value of your property. 

 
Advance Payment of Compensation 
 
3.31 It is not unusual for final compensation to take a considerable time to 

be agreed. You are entitled to request an advance on your 
compensation. The Council are obliged to make the payment within 
three months of receipt of the request provided they have taken 
possession of the property. 

 
3.32 The level of advance payment is normally 90% of either the agreed 

compensation, or where there is no agreement, the Council�s estimate.   
If there are outstanding loans on the property then the advance 
payment may be reduced. 

 
Interest 
 
3.33 Simple interest, at a prescribed rate, is payable from the date the 

Council takes possession of your property until the compensation is 
paid. 

 
Lands Tribunal for Scotland 
 
3.34 If the amount of compensation payable for the compulsory purchase of 

your property is not agreed, then it can be referred to the Lands 
Tribunal for Scotland for determination. 

 

Page 245



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

SECTION 4 CONTACT DETAILS 
 
4.1 If having read this brochure you are still unclear about the compulsory 

purchase process and compensation and require further explanation, 
or simply wish to discuss any particular aspect in more detail, please 
get in touch with: 

 
Stephen Booth    Richard Lang  
Principal Surveyor    Partner 
Aberdeen City Council   Ryden LLP 
St Nicholas House    25 Albyn place 
Aberdeen     Aberdeen  
AB10 1GY     AB10 1YL 
 
Tel: 01224 522675     01224 588866 
Email: stbooth@aberdeencity.gov.uk Richard.lang@ryden.co.uk 

 

Page 246



___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Access from the North Proposals (�The Third Don Crossing�) 

Location Plan  
Not to Scale 

Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings. Aberdeen City Council 100023401, 2010. 
 

Page 247



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Finance & Resources    
 
DATE     28 September 2010  
 
DIRECTOR  Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Property Asset Management Plan Update 2010  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/10/251 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 

Update members of the progress made since the approval of the 
Property Asset Management Plan in 2009. The attached document 
also includes a review of the Council’s Tenanted Non-Residential 
Property (TNRP), which is an appendix to the main document. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

PAMP Update 2010 
 
a) The Finances & Resources Committee appoint an elected 

member with responsibility for promoting Asset Management 
and participating in the Corporate Asset Group.  

b) Approve the Property Asset Management Plan Update 2010. 
 
Tenanted Non Residential Portfolio Review 
 
1) The Head of Asset Management & Operations is instructed to 

report to the next Finance & Resources Committee on the 
potential disposal of Shops and Ground Lease (Shops). 

 
2) The Head of Asset Management & Operations is instructed, in 

conjunction with the Head of Finance, to prepare a schedule of 
property reviews with a view to completing within 18 months and 
to report on these reviews to the appropriate Finance & 
Resources Committee meetings. 

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
There are no immediate financial implications flowing from this Report.  
However the recommendations in the review of Tenanted Non-
Residential Property may lead to assets being identified for disposal. 
This links in with the Corporate Business Plan options for Enterprise, 
Planning & Infrastructure relating to the tactical disposal of assets. 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 249



 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Staff resources will have to be identified to undertake the detailed 
property reviews. All other work associated with the PAMP will be 
undertaken by the new Asset Management Team.  

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
The Council’s first Property Asset Management Plan (PAMP) was 
approved by the Resources Management Committee in June 2009. It is 
recognised as good practice to update the Property Asset Management 
Plan on an annual basis. This ensures elected members are kept 
informed on progress and helps refocus attention on key areas. This 
update identifies key areas of progress since 2009 as well as 
highlighting areas for development.   
 
The attached shows the completed Property Asset Management 
Update 2010. This document was presented at a meeting of the 
Corporate Asset Group meeting on 10 August and subsequently 
approved, with minor alterations. The document will also be presented 
to CMT on the 9 September. Some of the key points/findings from the 
PAMP Update are as follows:- 

 
Objectives & Priorities 
 
Those stated in the 2009 PAMP remain active but have been amended 
slightly to reflect the priority based budgeting project and the Council’s 
5 year Business Plan. 
 
Current Asset Management performance 
 

• 83% of operational assets are rated as suitable 
• 83% of operational assets are in satisfactory or good condition 
• 69% of operational assets are in both suitable and in 
satisfactory/good condition. 

• 84% of operational assets are publicly accessible 
• There is £82 million of required maintenance in our operational 
assets, equating to £156 per sqm 

 
Key Challenges & Achievements  
 
Challenges – These include the continuing financial challenges and 
pressures on revenue/capital spending. The further need to rationalise 
the school estate and adapt to changing school roles. High levels of 
required maintenance and assets in poor condition. Rising energy 
costs and targets associated with carbon reduction. 
 
Achievements – These include the completion of four new schools 
through the 3R’s project. The completion of the first Condition Survey 

Page 250



Programme. The use of key performance data in property reviews and 
subsequent decision making. 

 
Delivery Arrangements 

 
The Corporate Asset Group has been reconstituted with the Head of 
Asset Management & Operations chairing. Representatives from all 
Services have been identified and regular meetings take place. The 
main focus of these meetings is the 5 year Business Plan and the 
review of the Non-Housing Capital Plan. 
 
Service Asset Management Plans are now being drafted by Services 
with the completion of this work being targeted for the end of November 
2010. These are an essential element of effective Asset Management 
Planning. 
 
The Council continues to work closely with its public sector partners 
through the Public Sector Property Group. A shared database is now in 
place allowing partners to see the location of all public sector assets as 
well as the key property information associated with them.  
 
Investment Planning 
 
For the current and forthcoming financial year the review of capital 
projects is being linked with the Priority Based Budgets project and the 
5 Year Business Plan. For future years the process will be as follows:- 
 

Report 
 

Key dates 
Discussions with Directors / Key 
Members 

 
June 

Completion and submission of Capital 
Pro forma to SMTs 

 
July 

Submission of Capital Business Case 
to the Corporate Asset Group 

 
September 

Report to CMT 
 
 

October / November 

Report to Council as part of overall 
budget setting process 

 
December 

 
Quarterly reports to Cabinet and 
Scrutiny Board 

 
July / October / January and 

May (outturn) 
 
 
 

Page 251



Performance Management 
 
The PAMP 2009 identified that a review of the Council’s 
commercial/investment portfolio was a key priority. Included as an 
appendix to the PAMP update is a high level review of these assets. 
Throughout the attached document the commercial/investment portfolio 
is referred to as Tenanted Non-Residential Property Portfolio (TNRP), 
which is the recognised terminology for these assets.  
 
The review shows the groups of asset performing well and that should 
be retained. In addition groups of assets have been identified as 
performing poorly. Consideration should be given to disposing some of 
the assets within those groups. 
 
Key Priorities 
 

• Service Asset Management Plans by November 2010 
• Suitability Assessments by December 2010 
• Full Audit of all Property Data by December 2010 
• Implementation of Communications Strategy by September 
2010 

• Continued Implementation of Capital Prioritisation 
• Development of the Property Modules within CAMS by 
September 2010 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - The continued implementation of the Property Asset 
Management Plan will ensure that the Council is utilising its property 
portfolios to support Services in implementing the Single Outcome 
Agreement. The approved property visions and asset objectives 
already support Vibrant, Dynamic & Forward Looking. They will also be 
reviewed by the Corporate Asset Group to link to the 5 Year Corporate 
Business Plan. 

 
Public - The TNRP review and it’s recommendations may be of interest 
to the tenants of these assets, developers and investors.  

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Property Asset Management Plan 2009 (Non-Housing) 
Corporate Asset Management Plan Report, Resources Management 
Committee 16 June 2009 
RICS: Public Sector Asset Management Guidance 2008 
CIPFA: A Guide to Asset Management & Capital Planning 2008 
Audit Scotland: Asset Management in Local Government 2009 
 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Alastair Reid 

Page 252



Principal Technical Officer (Estates) 
� alareid@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 52(2627) 

Page 253



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Property Asset Management Plan Update 2010 

Page 255



 

 1 

 
 
Contents 

 
 

1. Background 
 

2. Corporate and Property Objectives and Priorities 
 

3. Current Asset Management Performance 
 

4. Key Challenges and Achievements 
 

5. Delivery Arrangements 
 

6. Investment Planning 
 
7. Performance Management 

 
8. Key Priorities 2009 - 2011 

 
9. Glossary of Terms 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendix 1  Required Maintenance - Services 
 
Appendix 2  Operational Properties Aligned to Services 
 
Appendix 3  Tenanted Non-Residential Property Review 
 
Appendix 4  TNRP Questionnaire Results 
 
Appendix 5  Surplus Assets Summary 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 256



 

 2 

 1. Background           
 
1.1   Property Asset Management Plan 2009 
 
1.1.1 The Councils first Property Asset Management Plan (PAMP) was approved by the 

Resources Management Committee in June 2009. Since then effective Asset 
Management Planning has come to the fore for the Council as the new Services 
make every effort to meet the current and future financial challenges. 

 
1.2 Context of Update 
 
1.2.1. It is recognised as good practice to update the Property Asset Management Plan on 

an annual basis. This ensures elected members are kept informed on progress and 
helps refocus attention on key areas. This update identifies key areas of progress 
since 2009 as well as highlighting areas for development.   

 
1.2.2. It should be noted that the key document, with its associated strategic policies and 

procedures is the PAMP 2009. 
 

Page 257



 

 3 

 2. Corporate Property – Objectives and Priorities    
 
2.1    Council’s Vision and Asset Objectives 
 
2.1.1 Those stated in the 2009 PAMP remain active and are restated below, with some 

minor amendments. However these will be reviewed by the Corporate Asset 
Group to link to the 5 year Business Plan. 

 
2.1.2 To deliver our vision for the City we are focusing on key priorities that we have 

shaped around: 
 

• The national outcomes set out in the Single Outcome Agreement 
• Partnership Agreement ‘Vibrant, Dynamic, and Forward Looking’ 
• Corporate Improvement Plan 
• The constant desire to provide efficient, effective and joined up public 

resources 
 
2.1.3 Within the Council’s Single Outcome Agreement we have an aspiration that people 

who live and work in Aberdeen will: 
 

• be well informed and actively supported to achieve their full potential 
• acknowledge, and act on, their shared responsibility to shape the 

City’s future 
• support and celebrate cultural diversity, and share a commitment to 

social justice 
• have access to services of a high quality that meet their needs 

 
So that Aberdeen will be a City with a strong, vibrant local democracy and a sense 
of civic pride. 

 
2.1.4   In effectively managing the Council's financial resources and assets it has further 

been identified that the aim is to produce a coherent balanced budget which is 
realistic and reflects the Council’s priorities and encourages the efficient and 
effective use of the Council’s resources, by: 

 
Budget Monitoring 

• Rigorous monitoring of spend income against budget (revenue; capital; 
headcount; savings programme) 

• Ensure rigorous challenge of monitoring by Officers and Members 
• Rigorous monitoring and review of income/charging 

 
Budget Planning 

• Develop and observe a budget timetable for planning, consulting and 
deciding on options necessary to produce a balanced budget  

• Develop and continually review projected 2009/10 position 
Financial Planning 

• Develop and continuously review Medium Term Financial Plan 
Use of Resources 

Page 258



 

 4 

• Develop a rigorous programme of change aimed at improving the 
efficiency of the Council; and ensure that programme is properly 
resourced and performance managed for complete and timely delivery 

• Asset management strategy to be developed and implemented for the 
effective management of the property portfolio 

• Benchmarking information used to improve decisions on effective 
planning and budget choices. 

 
2.1.5 In order to do this we need to: 
 

• Identify areas where robust asset management can help support the 
delivery against these priorities 

• Develop alignment between asset management and our strategic 
priorities into property strategies, plans and programmes  

• Ensure that our approach to performance management is 
appropriately focused on priority areas 

 
 
2.1.6   The above approach is being progressed as part of a priority based budgeting 

project and will be set out within the Council’s 5 year Business Plan by the of 
2010. 

 
2.2    Asset Objectives 
 
2.2.1  We have recently developed a vision for our property assets to assist us to deliver 

the Council’s overall vision. The developed vision and property aims for our 
property assets are still relevant in 2010. They are restated below. 

 
2.2.2 Our approved vision for property assets is:- 
 
 “The Council will provide property, working with partners, where 

appropriate, which supports the Council in the delivery of quality services by 
being fit for purpose, accessible, efficient, suitable and sustainable.” 

 
2.2.3  In designing our approach to asset management within Aberdeen, in order to 

deliver out Strategic Priorities, we have identified 5 overarching property aims and 
objectives that will seek to ensure that the Council’s assets are fit for purpose 
within the current budgetary restraints. 

 
• Assets must meet the needs of those that use them.  This includes 

staff, members, visitors, customers and the general public, people with 
disabilities or special needs and other minority groups.  This means 
creating a comfortable and accessible environment that makes a positive 
contribution to the use to which the asset is put.  It also means asking 
people what they think about our property assets and responding to their 
needs.  

• Assets must be economically sustainable.  This means keeping 
running costs down, prioritising capital spending, proper option appraisal 
incorporating whole life costing and assessing opportunity costs.   

Page 259



 

 5 

• Assets must be safe and comply with current legal requirements and 
any future requirements.  This means ensuring that regular surveys and 
inspections for asbestos, legionella, fire and health and safety as well as 
physical conditions surveys and Disability Discriminations Act (DDA) 
audits are undertaken. 

• Asset must make a strategic impact. Ensuring that our property 
decisions are linked to decisions on other Council resources (staff, IT, 
finance) and that asset management contributes to our strategic priorities 
and challenges. 

•  Assets must be environmentally sustainable.  Monitoring and 
reducing energy consumption and CO2 emissions, ensuring that asset 
decisions take into account both the local and global environment and 
make a positive contribution to a sustainable community. 

Page 260



 

 6 

 3. Current Asset Management Performance     
 
3.1 Statutory Performance Indicators 
 
3.11 The Statutory Performance Indicators (SPI’s) submitted for 2009/10 to Audit 

Scotland were Suitability, Condition and Public Access. In addition the Council also 
chose to report on Required Maintenance. Although not a statutory indicator it is 
subject to the same level of audit and is reported in an identical manner. 

 
3.2 Suitability 
 
3.2.1 All primary and secondary schools were assessed during 2009 by using the 

“Suitability Core Fact” spreadsheets issued by the Scottish Government. As 
recommended the spreadsheets were completed by the Head Teachers and then 
consistency checked by appropriate Council officials. The approved “Non-School” 
suitability form has yet to be rolled across the services but has been used for 
assessing a handful of assets. 

 
3.2.2 Properties rated A and B are deemed as suitable (performing well and operating 

efficiently, or performing well but with minor issues), with those properties rated C 
and D being unsuitable. 

 
3.2.3 The results for 2007/08, 2008/09 and 2009/10 are based on the current operational 

portfolio during those periods and are as follows: 
 

SUITABILITY 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 

Suitable Schools* 64 63 44 
Unsuitable 
Schools* 4 4 21 
Suitable 
Non-Schools 254 240 236 
Unsuitable 
Non-Schools 44 38 36 
Total 366 345 337 

*School Nurseries are not part of the School Estate core facts and are classed as Non-Schools. 
 
3.2.4 Suitability as a percentage dropped from 87.8%, to 83.1%. A drop was predicted 

due to the implementation of the new suitability survey forms. This led to a large 
number of schools dropping into unsuitable. In addition almost all of the assets 
removed from this years SPI, due to closure, transfer, etc were graded as suitable. 
The combined effect resulted in a drop. It is anticipated that the roll out of the non-
school form will result in a further drop in next years figure. 

 
 
3.2.5 All Operational Council properties (excluding schools) will be re-assessed by the 

end of this calendar year. 
 

 
 
 

Page 261



 

 7 

3.3 Condition 
 
3.3.1 The first condition survey programme was completed in late 2009. This took around 

three and half years to complete, with the recommended period being a 5 year 
cycle. The next programme is underway with the school estate being tackled first.  

 
3.3.2 The surveys will continue to be based on the Scottish Government guidance but 

with additional notes taken on specific condition issues, which are available for 
Services use. Properties rated A and B are deemed as being satisfactory 
(performing as intended and operating efficiently, or performing as intended but 
showing minor deterioration), with those properties rated C and D being 
unsatisfactory.  

 
3.3.3 The results for 2007/08, 2008/09 and 2009/10 are based on the current operational 

portfolio during those periods and are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*
S
c
*School Nurseries are not part of the School Estate core facts and are classed as Non-Schools. 

 
3.3.4 Assets in a satisfactory condition as a percentage of floor area rose to 83.8%, with 

the percentage improving by 9.1%. Improvement is predominately due to the roll out 
of the 3R’s schools. Most notably the closure of the ‘C’ grade secondary schools, 
Bankhead Academy and Cults Academy. Further improvement will come from the 
completion of the remaining 3R’s primary schools. In addition the closure of 
Summerhill Education Centre will also contribute. Further closures resulting from the 
relocation to Marischal College will not impact on the figure until future years. 
Improvement will slow in future years, as these significant capital projects reach 
completion. The lack of investment in maintenance in previous years will potentially 
start to show through and the overall maintenance backlog may continue to grow. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONDITION 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 

Satisfactory Schools* 20 53 58 
Unsatisfactory 
Schools* 48 14 7 
Satisfactory  
Non-Schools 178 212 214 
Unsatisfactory  
Non-Schools 120 66 58 
Total 366 345 337 

Page 262



 

 8 

 
 
3.4 Overall Property Performance 
 
3.4.1 The updated Property Appraisal Grids are shown below using a combination of the 

Condition and Suitability SPI data for 2009/10 to show the percentage of buildings 
and number which are performing well in both Suitability and Condition. The data for 
2008/09 is shown alongside for comparison.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Su
ita

bil
ity

 G
rad

e  D 0 4 4 0 

C 1 33 15 0 

B 17 121 40 1 

A 33 63 5 0 

Per 
Building 

A B C D 
Condition Grade 

2009/10 – All Properties 
 

Su
ita

bil
ity

 G
rad

e  D 0 3 6 0 

C 1 17 15 0 

B 13 124 43 2 

A 27 80 14 0 

Per 
Building 

A B C D 
Condition Grade 

2008/09 – All Properties 
 

Su
ita

bil
ity

 G
rad

e  D 0 1.2 1.2 0 

C 0.3 9.8 4.4 0 

B 5.0 35.9 11.9 0.3 

A 9.8 18.7 1.5 0 

As a % A B C D 
Condition Grade 

2009/10 – All Properties 
 

Su
ita

bil
ity

 G
rad

e  D 0 0.9 1.7 0 

C 0.3 4.9 4.4 0 

B 3.8 35.9 12.5 0.6 

A 7.8 23.2 4.0 0 

As a % A B 0.9 1.7 
Condition Grade 

2008/09 – All Properties 
 

Page 263



 

 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4.2 The 2010 grids show 69.4% of the portfolio (comprising 234 properties) is in a 

satisfactory position, which is in good/satisfactory condition and high/medium 
suitability. This is less than the figure of 70.7% reported in 2009. The decrease is 
due to the assessment of the schools through the Core Fact Guidance. It is 
desirable for all properties to be either amber or green, however there has been no 
real progress in reducing the number of assets coloured red. 

 
3.5  Public Access 
 
3.5.1 The Public Access SPI is a well established reporting tool. This has aided services 

in the identification of assets requiring investment, with work being carried out 
through the Corporate Property Replacement/Renewal programme. It should be 
noted that accessible does not mean that the building is fully adapted to all needs of 
disabled people.  

 
 
 
 
 

Su
ita

bil
ity

 G
rad

e  D 0 1 0 0 

C 0 20 0 0 

B 3 25 7 0 

A 4 5 0 0 

Per 
Building 

A B C D 
Condition Grade 

2009/10 – Schools 
 

Su
ita

bil
ity

 G
rad

e  D 0 1 0 0 

C 0 2 1 0 

B 0 26 8 0 

A 3 21 5 0 

Per 
Building 

A B C D 
Condition Grade 

2008/09 – Schools 
 

Su
ita

bil
ity

 G
rad

e  D 0 1.5 0 0 

C 0 30.8 0 0 

B 4.6 38.4 10.8 0 

A 6.2 7.7 0 0 

As a % A B C D 
Condition Grade 

2009/10 – Schools 
 

Su
ita

bil
ity

 G
rad

e  D 0 1.5 0 0 

C 0 3 1.5 0 

B 0 38.8 11.9 0 

A 4.5 31.3 7.5 0 

As a % A B C D 
Condition Grade 

2008/09 – Schools 
 

Page 264



 

 10 

3.5.2 The results for 2007/08, 2008/09 and 2009/10 are shown as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5.3 The Public Access SPI figure has continued to improve with an increase of 3.6% 

compared to 2008/09. The increase was mainly obtained through the reopening of 
buildings which were assessed as accessible and the refurbishment of Kingswells 
Nursery for Adventure Aberdeen. Enhancement works were also carried out at a 
number of properties already assessed as accessible in conjunction with other 
improvements. 

 
3.6 Running Costs/Energy Consumption/Carbon Emissions  
 
3.6.1 The establishment of Asset Management & Operations within Enterprise, Planning & 

Infrastructure has enabled much closer collaborative working between asset 
management, energy management, maintenance & design to ensure that every 
opportunity is taken to improve the condition, suitability and operational cost of every 
building. 

 
3.6.2 Gas, Electric and Water costs have been moved to electronic billing, which in 

conjunction with closer scrutiny has helped identify inconsistencies and potentially 
incorrect charging. Future work will see the use of Unique Property Reference 
Numbers (UPRN’s) will make data matching far more efficient.  

 
3.6.3 We are now moving to a position where running costs will be easily obtained, 

compared and reviewed. This will allow us to consider methods of assessing 
individual assets as well as benchmark effectively against other local authorities.  

 
3.6.4 Our property assets contribute considerably to the Council’s carbon emissions. As 

such we must recognise the importance of managing these assets effectively and 
their role in meeting the targets set out in the Carbon Management Programme 
(CMP). Our statutory obligations in terms of the Carbon Reduction Commitment 
(CRC) also need to be linked back to our property decision making. The CRC 
presents financial incentives but also the possibility of financial penalties. 

 
3.6.5 Every effort is being made to ensure that work flowing from the PAMP supports the 

goals associated with carbon emissions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 
No. required to be 

compliant 156 155 152 
No. of compliant buildings 121 125 128 
% 77.6 80.6 84.2 

Page 265



 

 11 

3.7 Required Maintenance 
 
3.7.1 As part of the SPI process, Required Maintenance was included for the first time. 

This is widely recognised as a core performance indicator and is included in 
CIPFA’s Scottish Benchmarking indicators. A total figure of £82 million was 
calculated with the costs being £156/sqm. These are high but not unexpected as the 
2009 Property Asset Management Plan indicated that the required maintenance 
figure was around £80 million (which excluded Fire Risk/Asbestos costs). A target of 
£146/sqm has been set for next year. 

 
3.7.2 The breakdown against Service and property type is shown in Appendix 1. It should 

be noted that these figures are for properties that were open at that time of the data 
submission. 

Page 266



 

 12 

 4. Key Challenges and Achievements       
 
4.1 External Change 
 
4.1.1 The financial challenges identified in the 2009 PAMP have been felt keenly in 

Aberdeen. There is now even more pressure on both capital and revenue 
expenditure, and highlights the importance of asset management throughout the 
Council.  Underperforming or underutilised properties (either investment or 
operational) must be identified and challenged to ensure that the Council’s overall 
property portfolio is as efficient as possible. 

 
4.2  Key Asset Management Challenges 
 
4.2.1 The challenges still are:- 
 

• School estate rationalisation: The overall school estate strategy articulates 
with the Aberdeen City of Learning Strategy which will be presented to 
Committee in September. Stakeholder Engagement on the secondary school 
estate is currently underway and a further report will be presented to 
committee in October, 2010. This is likely to recommend a reduction in the 
number of secondary schools in the city as well as promote a longer term 
strategy to bring all schools up to a standard equivalent to that of the schools 
being delivered under the 3Rs programme. This is intended to address issues 
of under and over-occupancy, condition and suitability. The educational 
benefits of larger schools and a longer strategy taking account of housing 
allocations under the structure plan are integral to the effective management 
of the estate. 

• Class size and falling roll: Falling school rolls are a key aspect of planning 
the pattern and provision of school places to ensure that surplus places are 
removed in order to make local authority education provision cost effective 
and demonstrate best value.  Maintaining high numbers of surplus places 
results in a disproportionate amount of the available budget being expended 
on buildings, management and administration compared to investment in 
quality teaching and learning provision.  The risk associated with falling rolls 
for individual schools is a negative impact on their ability to raise educational 
standards and the long term future of the school. There are also significant 
curricular issues associated with secondary schools where the roll is small. 
Particularly in the middle and upper school, subject choice is limited and 
some schools have had to make alternative consortium arrangements to 
attempt to offer a wider subject choice. 
The limits on class sizes placed on primary schools P1 and secondary 
schools S1 and S2 (for English and Maths) have required school capacities to 
be revisited and further review is required if the Council is to be proactive in 
ascertaining its schools’ capacities to understand the potential wishes of the 
Scottish Government of progressing towards class sizes of 18 for P1 to P3. 
Scottish Government intends to bring forward legislation to align the variety of 
regulations which determine maximum class sizes at different stages, with 
the overall intention to reduce these in order to improve pupils’ educational 
experience. 

Page 267



 

 13 

• Asset Alignment: Alignment of services to customer needs is paramount 
and this creates a significant challenge in ensuring that our asset portfolio is 
aligned to changing service delivery models, supporting transformation and at 
the same time delivering efficiency gains to reinvest in services.  

• Required Maintenance: This currently stands at £82m, with a budget spend 
for revenue maintenance of around £4.13m and £7.78m from the Non-
Housing Capital Programme identified for 2010/11. The amount the Council 
allocates to maintenance of buildings makes reducing the required 
maintenance figure very challenging. Property rationalisation can lead to 
improvements and more effective targeting of spending, however there is still 
a real danger that our properties will continue to deteriorate faster than we 
can repair them. 

• Building Condition: From our survey programmes it can be seen that 83.8% 
of the operational portfolio is classed as either in good or satisfactory 
condition. A further 16.16% is classed as poor and is showing major defects 
and/or not operating as intended. A very small proportion is categorised as 
bad and is life expired. 
The tenanted non-residential property (i.e. the commercial portfolio) is not 
part of the current programme of condition surveys. As a result no detailed 
information is available; however the properties for the most part are in 
decline and require investment. 

• Planned Maintenance: Maintenance associated with statutory obligations 
(including cyclical) and imminent health & safety risks are given priority. 
Remaining budget is limited and goes to essential maintenance. Other than 
cyclical maintenance, which accounts for 10% - 15% of the maintenance 
budget, there are no planned maintenance programmes in place. 

• Disability Discrimination Act (DDA): We now have accessibility audits in 
place for all publicly accessible buildings and from these it can be seen that 
approximately 84% of these are DDA compliant.   

• Office Accommodation: Ongoing work to ensure that there is appropriate 
office accommodation and supporting facilities for all Council employees, 
recognising the challenges from “New Ways of Working”.  The Corporate 
Asset Group has taken on the responsibility for the strategic management of 
the Council’s corporate office accommodation. A review of the offices linked 
to the Marischal College project has established a clear future for each 
associated asset. 

• Energy Consumption: This remains a key issue and the Council is 
committed to reducing carbon emissions. Data quality and availability has 
improved significantly over the last year. This will allow us to assess our 
current position and take appropriate steps from there. 

• Water consumption: Another key operating cost that the Council is seeking 
efficiencies through. As with Energy Consumption improvements in data will 
allow us to assess the current position and take appropriate steps from there. 

• Best Value: The Corporate Improvement Plan was prepared to enable the 
Council to undertake the required improvements highlighted by the Audit of 
Best Value and Community Planning.  The development of this Property 
Asset Management Plan along with the associated detailed analysis of the 
Council’s property portfolio will assist in ensuring that operational assets can 
be better utilised for the delivery of Council services. 

Page 268



 

 14 

• Commercial Estate: An important area of asset management is the tenanted 
non-residential portfolio, commonly known as the commercial estate.  A high 
level review has been carried out with follow up work to be programmed. The 
Council must ensure that these assets are performing well and tie in with 
Council policies. 

 
4.3 Key Asset Management Achievements 
 

• The completion of two new secondary schools and two primary schools through the 
Schools 3R’s project. 

• Completion of 60% of the Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) Programme and 
the medium/long term plan being built around this work 

• The use of key performance data in property reviews and subsequent decision 
making 

• The completion of the first Condition Survey Programme 
• The going ‘Live’ of Uniform (part of the CAMS project) 
• Alignment of Operational Assets against new Services (See Appendix 2) 
 
 

Page 269



 

 15 

 5. Delivery Arrangements         
 
5.1   Embedding Asset Management 
 
5.1.1 After initial successes the progress of Asset Management slowed during the period 

immediately following the restructuring of the Council’s services. With key officials 
moving on and responsibilities being redistributed this was inevitable. However, 
following the appointment of key officials and Services recognising the importance of 
Asset Management Planning, progress is now being made rapidly. 

 
5.2  Service Asset Management Planning 
 
5.2.1 Services have been given a timescale for completing the Service Asset 

Management Plans’ (SAMP’S) of November 2010. It was agreed that the 
abbreviated SAMP be used as recommended in the 2009 PAMP. Officials within 
each Service have been identified for coordinating the completion of these 
documents.   

  
5.3   Corporate Property Officer 
 
5.3.1 Under the new organisational structure the previous post holding this position was 

removed. The Head of Asset Management & Operations has selected the post of 
General Manager, Asset Management to fulfil this role. A member of staff has been 
matched into this post. The duties of this role will largely remain unaltered.  

 
5.4  Asset Management Team (Function) 
 
5.4.1 This team will report to the Asset Management Manager, who in turn reports to the 

General Manager, Asset Management. Consideration is being given to expanding 
the team to cope with the rapidly growing workload and in future to link the other 
‘assets’ to produce and overall Corporate Plan including Roads, Fleet, Green 
Spaces and ICT. 

 
5.5 Engagement of Elected Members 
 
5.5.1 The 2009 AMP identifies the need to appoint an elected member who will champion 

Asset Management within the Council. The Finances & Resources Committee of 28 
September 2010 is being requested to appoint an elected member to participate in 
the Corporate Asset Group. The Corporate Asset Group will give consideration to 
the engagement of all the other elected members.  

 
5.6 Corporate Asset Group 
 
5.6.1 The implementation of the new organisational structure meant that the membership 

of the existing group required to be reviewed. The Head of Asset Management & 
Operations chairs the reconstituted group. With the following Service 
representatives:- 

 
- Head of Finance, Corporate Governance 
- Head of Environment Services, Housing & Environment 

Page 270



 

 16 

- Head of Regeneration and Housing Investment 
- Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive 
- Head of Customer Service and Performance 
- Operational Support Manager, Social Care and Wellbeing 
- Head of Educational Development, Policy and Performance 
- General Manager, Asset Management 

 
5.6.2 The group are currently meeting on a fortnightly basis to coincide with the work on 

the 5 year Business Plan and the review of the Non-Housing Capital Plan. 
 
5.7 Partnership & Collaboration 
 
5.7.1 The Council continues to work closely with its public sector partners through the 

Public Sector Property Group (PSPG). A shared database is now in place allowing 
partners to see the location of all public sector assets as well as the key property 
information associated with them. New working subgroup’s have recently been set 
up to look at Shared Services amongst partners; a key subgroup is Asset 
Management Planning which is to be led by officers of the City Council. 

 

Page 271



 

 17 

 6. Investment Planning          
 
6.1   Capital Prioritisation Approach 
 
6.1.1 Addressing a major weakness identified in the PAMP 2009, the Finance & 

Resources Committee agreed in 28 January 2010 to the introduction of a new 
Capital Prioritisation Process, allowing all future capital bids to be developed and 
reviewed corporately. 

 
6.1.2 The Capital Prioritisation Process and Procedures seeks to regularise all future bids 

for capital funding including improving the monitoring of capital projects and the post 
evaluation of completed projects.  Improvements include the proposal that the 
Corporate Asset Group become responsible for:- 

 
• Initial review of the proposed scheme and sources of finance for each scheme; 
• Priority re-scoring of Capital Bids 
• Approval or rejection of Capital Bids where the criteria is not met; 
• Timescales for the preparation of reports to members; 
• Consultation on the preparation of reports to members; 
• Review proposed new emergency in year schemes, and make 

recommendations to the Corporate Management Team and Council for the 
inclusion of such new schemes in the Capital programme 

• Review and challenge slippage and variance in the Capital Programme 
• Review closure and outcomes of completed capital schemes, and to prepare 

and present regular reports to the Corporate Management Team and elected 
members as appropriate. 

 
6.1.3 Staff within Enterprise Planning & Infrastructure will in the near future take specific 

responsibility for the following areas of work:- 
 

• Monthly progress of each scheme, with comments relating to expenditure to 
date, anticipated completion date and projected outturn position to be provided to 
the Head of Finance; 

• Review closure and outcomes of completed capital schemes; 
• Quarterly monitoring of expenditure of all capital schemes within the Capital 

Programme, and the preparation of quarterly update reports to the Corporate 
Management Team and elected members; 

• Review of proposed new emergency in-year schemes, and make 
recommendations to the Corporate Asset Group for the inclusion of such 
schemes in the programme 

• In conjunction with the Head of Finance a detailed review of the appropriate 
source of finance for each scheme;   

• Review and challenge slippage and variances in the Capital Programme; 
• Review closure and outcomes of completed capital schemes, and to prepare and 

present regular reports to the Corporate Management Team and elected 
members as appropriate. 

 
6.1.4 One of the main changes is the introduction of a clear Options Appraisal process 

which will include Whole Life Costing.  The Appraisal process for larger projects will 

Page 272



 

 18 

be based upon the “Green Book” which is HM Treasury’s Option Appraisal for all 
Capital Projects.  Furthermore Whole Life Costing will ensure that the long term 
revenue costs are evaluated, allowing the Council to consider potentially approving 
an option which whilst costing more initially, from a capital point of view, may have 
significant reduced revenue costs through out its projected life. 

 
6.1.5 For the current and forthcoming financial year the review of capital projects is being 

linked with the Priority Based Budgets project and the 5 Year Business Plan. For 
future years the process will be as follows:- 

 
   

Report 
 

Key dates 
Discussions with Directors / Key 
Members 

 
June 

Completion and submission of Capital 
Pro forma to SMTs 

 
July 

Submission of Capital Business Case 
to the Corporate Asset Group 

 
September 

Report to CMT 
 
 

October / November 

Report to Council as part of overall 
budget setting process 

 
December 

 
Quarterly reports to Cabinet and 
Scrutiny Board 

 
July / October / January and 

May (outturn) 
 
 
6.2 Capital Receipts 
 
6.2.1 £3.404 million in capital receipts were achieved in 2009/10, £1.024 of which related 

to the sale of Common Good assets and the rest was General Services. No target 
was set for 2009/10. The target for General Services Account in 2010/11 has been 
set at £2.5 million.  

Page 273



 

 19 

 7. Performance Management                
 
7.1   Performance Management 
 
7.1.1 The authority continues to be a member of the Scottish Benchmarking Group which 

is run by Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). We are 
now entering a third year of inputting data, which will start to make it possible to 
assess long term trends.  

 
7.1.2 The benchmarking figures for 08/09 have been inputted where data was available, 

with the 09/10 module set to be available shortly. It is anticipated that improvements 
in data quality and working relationships will allow the Asset Management Plan 
Team to compile data for the vast majority of the indicators.  

 
7.1.3 Regular reporting will be provided to the Corporate Asset Group as the 

Benchmarking Group’s National return is published. 
 
7.2   Surplus Property & Disposal Procedures 
 
7.2.1 The lack of forward planning within services with regards to properties continues to 

impact on the management of surplus property and disposals. Insufficient thought is 
put to the costs of holding vacant assets and in some cases are effectively 
abandoned by departing services. This leads to a re-active rather than pro-active 
Estates Service the consequences of which create security issues, dilapidation/ 
obsolescence issues, unnecessary costs (e.g. energy and rates) and leads to 
difficulties in handing the assets. Handover forms have been created to assist 
services in effective handover and they are gradually being adopted by Services.  

 
7.2.2 The SAMP’s as described in section 5.2.1 are key in alleviating some of the issues 

surrounding surplus/vacant assets. The reconfiguration of the Corporate Asset 
Group will also enhance communications between Services and ensure that the 
vacation of buildings is planned in advance.  

 
7.2.3 The process of selling assets is problematic and can leads to long vacant periods at 

many stages of the process. The Property Transaction Protocol recently introduced, 
is being reviewed to increase efficiency along with the regular review of other 
elements of the process and compliance monitoring to dovetail with the introduction 
of Uniform.  

 
7.2.4 The status of assets declared surplus as a result of Service reviews are show in 

Appendix 5. 
 
7.3 Programme of Property Reviews 
 
7.3.1 Limited progress in the last year apart from assisting Education, Culture and Sport 

with the Learning Estate Strategy and Community Learning Hubs. The office 
accommodation review has been incorporated within the regular Reports on the 
development of Marischal College and the consolidation of the Council’s corporate 
offices primarily in Marischal College, Kittybrewster and Balgownie 1, continuing to 

Page 274



 

 20 

recognise the need to relocate from the leased City Centre accommodation as soon 
as practical.  

 
 
 
7.4  Tenanted Non-Residential Portfolio 
 
7.4.1 The PAMP 2009 identified that a review of the Council’s Tenanted Non-Residential 

Property Portfolio (TNRP) was a key priority. An initial overview of this review is 
attached as Appendix 3 (which includes a summary of the property groupings). 

 
7.4.2 The review shows that large groupings of assets are performing well and should be 

retained. However, there are groups of assets that are not performing well and that 
consideration should be given to disposing some of the assets within those groups. 
Subject to approval a follow up report will be produced identifying these poor 
performing assets and the reasons for recommending their disposal. 

 
7.4.3 A further recommendation is that the Property Investment Manager liaises with the 

Head of Finance to agree a programme of detailed performance assessments. This 
will ensure that priorities are based around the Council’s policies in terms of revenue 
income and capital receipts. 

 
 
7.5  TNRP Customer Questionnaire 
 
7.5.1  A customer satisfaction questionnaire was recently circulated to tenants. 212 

questionnaires were issued in total to the main commercial tenants. This does not 
equate to the number of properties due mainly to the number of tenants who have 
more than one property leased from the Council. Forty nine (23%) completed forms 
were returned.  

 
7.5.2 The questions were intended to establish the tenants’ opinion on the service 

provided by the section. Results of the questionnaire are shown in Appendix 4. Key 
findings were:- 

 
Positive 
• 91% thought the service provided was excellent or good 
• 91% had a positive experience of being a Council tenant 
• 93% rated the rent invoicing and collection process as excellent or 

good 
• 95% thought the section was fair and reasonable in its dealings in the 

role as landlord 
 

Negative 
• 86% thought the speed at which their queries are dealt with was 

unacceptable or poor 
 

7.5.3 The results are in the main very pleasing, in particular the positive outcomes shown 
above. It is perhaps difficult to reconcile such positive responses with 86% of 
respondents feeling that the speed at which their queries were dealt with were 

Page 275



 

 21 

unacceptable or poor. This clearly is an area of concern. It may be that the question 
was not well phrased and that the response reflects time taken (for example) to 
complete repairs, which is not wholly within the Team’s control, rather than to 
instruct repairs or advise tenants that repairs are instructed. Consideration will be 
given to shorten any perceived delay in replying to tenants, though it may prove 
necessary to make expectations of action more realistic. 

 
7.5.4 Most of the negative comments related to specific issues or incidents. There was 

very little in the negative comments which could be the basis of a trend, with the 
possible exception that a number of tenants were unsure as to their initial point of 
contact within the section. This is in part the product of staff turnover. Efforts will be 
taken to address that gap. It is intended to issue a ‘Tenants’ Handbook’ which would 
include contact details, and these details would be updated as and when required in 
response to staff changes.  

 
7.5.5 From the findings the following actions have been identified:- 

 
• Complete Tenant Handbook by end of 2010 
• Ensure all tenants are advised of timescales associated with their queries 

and expectations are managed accordingly 
• Programme a further questionnaire for 2013 

 

Page 276



 

 22 

 8. Key Priorities 2010 – 2012        
 
8.1 Key Priorities 
 
8.1.1 Future Corporate Property Asset Management Plans will have to continue to show 

clearly the linkages between the Financial Plan and the utilisation of property (in 
both capital and revenue terms). This will be reflected not only with the management 
of the Capital Prioritisation Process but also in the development and implementation 
of SAMP’s, which are fundamental in the development of Asset Management 
throughout the City Council. 

8.1.2 At this stage therefore, it is not possible to set out the complete investment 
requirement in the property portfolio due to the need to fully develop/analyse 
SAMP’s and the fact that there is not yet complete data on the overall estate.  

8.1.3 As there are still some concerns over the reliability of sections of data e.g. running 
costs the AMP Team should continue to audit relevant property related data to help 
inform the future investment strategy of the Council. 

8.1.4 Based on current condition data alone there is a required need of some £82m to 
maintain the existing building stock and does not allow for any investment in new 
buildings. 

8.1.5 The Council have a large and valuable asset base which is used to deliver services 
and outcomes for the communities in Aberdeen. Any improvement in the strategic 
operational management of these assets could have a real impact on the financial 
resources available to the Council as well as to other public sector bodies which 
collaborate with the Council in Community Planning or in order to secure cross-
public sector efficiencies in pursuance of the Scottish Government’s Efficient 
Government agenda. 

8.1.6 How the Council manage their assets will impact upon the ability to deliver key aims 
and objectives and it is therefore vital that asset management plans are effectively 
integrated with the rest of policy decision making and corporate service planning 
activities and fully complement and integrate with the financial management 
processes of the Council. 

8.1.7 Asset Management Planning should be embraced to ensure the proper 
management and monitoring of assets but also as a tool for robust and sound 
investment decision making. 

8.1.8 Asset Management is a key element of achieving and demonstrating Best Value.  
The appropriate use of assets in the right location can make the difference between 
good and poor service delivery.  Effective asset management should ensure that the 
front line services provided by the Council are delivered from the most effective and 
efficient property portfolio. 

8.1.9 The Council is fully signed up to the principles of asset management, however it is 
not possible at this time to accurately set out the investment requirement in the 
property portfolio for the aforementioned reasons. In addition there is also a 
considerable amount of work to be done to put in place the necessary systems and 

Page 277



 

 23 

processes that are required for the Council to fully embrace strategic asset 
management. 

8.1.10 To be fully effective this Property Asset Management Plan is dependant on the 
output from the SAMP’s, which have yet to be developed. This is now being done as 
a matter of some urgency, supervised by the Corporate Asset Group. 

8.1.11 Corporate Asset Management System (CAMS) – The implementation of the 
property modules is now at an advanced stage and all relevant staff have received 
training. Work is ongoing to bring the data in line with the obsolete system and staff 
continue to work with software suppliers to resolve issues. Early indications are that 
the new system will improve existing processes and create ways of working more 
effectively. 

 
8.1.12 The updated priority areas are as follows:- 
 
 

Priority Area Revised Start 
Date 

Revised 
Completion 

Date 
Service Asset Management Plans July 2010 November 2010 

Suitability Assessments September 
2010 

December 2010 

Refocusing Corporate Asset Group May 2010 Complete July 
2010 

Commercial Property Review (High Level Review) March 2010 Complete 
August 2010 

Full Audit of all Property Data None December 2010 
Implementation of Communications Strategy July 2010 September 2010 

Implementation of Capital Prioritisation August 2010 Ongoing 
Development of the Property Modules within CAMS None September 2010 

Page 278



 

 24 

 9. Glossary of Terms          
 
 
ACROYNM TITLE SUMMARY 

 Audit Scotland Statutory body providing services to the 
Auditor General fro Scotland and the 
Accounts Commission. Together they 
ensure that the Scottish Government and 
public sector bodies in Scotland are held to 
account for the proper, efficient and effective 
use of public funds. 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance & 
Accountancy 

Accountancy body for public services, 
whether in the public or private sectors.  

CAMS Corporate Asset 
Management System 

Software being implemented and developed 
within a variety of Council services. 

CMP Carbon Management Plan Document setting out the Councils plans to 
reduce carbon emissions.  

CRC Carbon Reduction 
Commitment 

UK wide mandatory carbon trading scheme. 

EPC Energy Performance 
Certificate 

Statutory document that requires to be 
produced for public buildings that have a 
floor area above 1000sqm. 

PSPG Public Sector Property 
Group 

Sub-group of the North East Scotland Joint 
Public Sector Group. 

PAMP Property Asset 
Management Plan 

Strategic document covering the 
management of all property assets. 

SAMP Service Asset 
Management Plan 

Asset Management Plan looking specifically 
at individual services and their requirements. 

SPI Statutory Performance 
Indicators 

Suite of National Performance Indicators 
administered by Audit Scotland. 

TNRP Tenanted Non-Residential 
Property 

Assets not held for operational purposes 
and leased to third parties. Excludes 
housing including Staff Houses. 

UPRN Unique Property 
Reference Number 

A UK wide numbering system that gives 
every asset a unique number. 

 

Page 279



Page 280

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
-
R
eq
u
ir
ed
M
ai
n
te
n
an
ce
C
o
st
s
p
er
S
er
vi
ce

S
er
vi
ce

T
o
ta
l

T
o
ta
lG
IF
A

C
o
st
p
er

S
q
m

T
o
ta
la
s
%

P
ro
p
er
ty
G
ro
u
p
in
g

R
eq
u
ir
ed

M
ai
n
te
n
an
ce
P
er

G
ro
u
p
in
g

C
or

po
ra

te
G

ov
er

na
nc

e
£1

81
,4

90
18

78
£9

7
0.

22
D

ep
ot

s/
S

to
re

s/
W

or
ks

ho
ps

£0
O

ffi
ce

s
£1

81
,4

90

E
du

ca
tio

n
C

ul
tu

re
&

S
po

rt
£6

8,
71

0,
81

6
40

81
22

£1
68

83
.3

6
C

om
m

un
ity

C
en

tr
es

£5
,5

28
,7

86
D

ep
ot

s/
S

to
re

s/
W

or
ks

ho
ps

£5
55

,2
00

E
du

ca
tio

n
no

n-
sc

ho
ol

s
£3

62
,2

55
Le

is
ur

e
F

ac
ili

tie
s

£5
,0

13
,2

00
A

be
rd

ee
n

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

A
rt

s
£1

,4
35

,0
80

Li
br

ar
ie

s
£6

85
,3

75
M

us
eu

m
s

&
G

al
le

rie
s

£1
,1

32
,8

75
O

ffi
ce

s
£1

2,
00

0
S

ch
oo

ls
£5

2,
97

7,
62

0
S

po
rt

A
be

rd
ee

n
£8

70
,7

25
R

em
ai

ni
ng

S
po

rt
s

F
ac

ili
tie

s
£1

37
,7

00

E
nt

er
pr

is
e

P
la

nn
in

g
&

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
£7

,5
65

,3
50

65
94

3
£1

15
9.

18
D

ep
ot

s/
S

to
re

s/
W

or
ks

ho
ps

£2
19

,7
85

M
ul

ti-
S

to
re

y
C

ar
P

ar
ks

£1
,2

33
,2

60
O

ffi
ce

s
£6

,1
12

,3
05

H
ou

si
ng

&
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
£4

,0
15

,1
18

25
27

5
£1

59
4.

87
C

re
m

at
or

ia
£1

0,
95

0
D

ep
ot

s/
S

to
re

s/
W

or
ks

ho
ps

£3
,2

07
,3

25
H

om
es

/H
os

te
ls

/D
ay

C
ar

e
£1

13
,7

20
O

ffi
ce

s
£5

57
,9

83
P

ub
lic

C
on

ve
ni

en
ce

s
£1

25
,1

40

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e

&
W

el
lb

ei
ng

£1
,9

53
,8

85
28

46
9

£6
9

2.
37

C
om

m
un

ity
C

en
tr

es
£3

5,
16

5
D

ep
ot

s/
S

to
re

s/
W

or
ks

ho
ps

£3
44

,4
00

H
om

es
/H

os
te

ls
/D

ay
C

ar
e

£1
,1

88
,7

15
O

ffi
ce

s
£3

85
,6

05

£8
2,
42
6,
65
9

52
96
87

£1
56

10
0

£8
2,
42
6,
65
9

Page 281



A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
-
O
p
er
at
io
n
al
P
ro
p
er
ti
es
A
lig
n
ed
to
S
er
vi
ce
s

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
N
A
M
E

A
D
D
R
E
S
S

P
O
S
T
C
O
D
E

U
P
R
N

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
T
Y
P
E

S
T
A
T
U
S

C
H
A
P
E
L
S
T
R
E
E
T
M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
E
Y
C
A
R
P
A
R
K

C
H
A
P
E
L
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
10
1S
S

90
51
12
15
84

C
A
R
P
A
R
K
(M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

W
E
S
T
N
O
R
T
H
S
T
R
E
E
T
M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
E
Y
C
A
R
P
A
R
K

M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
E
Y
C
A
R
P
A
R
K
W
E
S
T
N
O
R
T
H
S
T
R
E
E
TA
B
25
1D
Q

90
51
31
16
62

C
A
R
P
A
R
K
(M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
N
B
U
R
N
M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
E
Y
C
A
R
P
A
R
K

S
P
A
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
25
1Q
B

90
51
31
15
84

C
A
R
P
A
R
K
(M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

T
H
E
B
U
S
H
P
E
T
E
R
C
U
LT
E
R
R
O
A
D
S
D
E
P
O
T

T
H
E
B
U
S
H
D
E
P
O
T

C
U
LT
E
R

A
B
14
0U
X

90
51
00
14
20

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
A
R
P
A
R
K
W
A
R
D
E
N
S
O
F
F
IC
E
S
/W
O
R
K
S
H
O
P

54
F
R
E
D
E
R
IC
K
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
24
5H
Y

90
51
31
29
42

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

O
F
F
IC
E
54
F
R
E
D
E
R
IC
K
S
T
R
E
E
T

54
F
R
E
D
E
R
IC
K
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
24
5H
Y

90
51
08
42
92

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

K
IN
G
S
T
R
E
E
T
,2
7/
29
S
U
IT
E
7A
,0
8A

&
8B

A
R
C
H
IB
A
LD

S
IM
P
S
O
N
H
O
U
27
/2
9
K
IN
G
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
24
5A
A

In
pu
tR
eq
ui
re
d
O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
A
R
K
A
N
D
R
ID
E

B
R
ID
G
E
O
F
D
O
N

E
X
H
IB
IT
IO
N
A
V
E
N
U
E

P
A
R
K
W
A
Y
E
A
S
T
B
R
IA
B
23
8B
L

90
51
31
27
65

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
A
R
K
A
N
D
R
ID
E
-
K
IN
G
S
W
E
LL
S

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
A
N
D
LA
N
D

P
A
R
K
A
N
D
R
ID
E

A
B
15
8P
J

90
51
31
27
66

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

F
O
R
M
E
R
LI
G
H
T
IN
G
D
E
P
O
T
B
A
N
K
H
E
A
D
A
V
E
N
U
E

F
O
R
M
E
R
LI
G
H
T
IN
G
G
A
R
A
GB
A
N
K
H
E
A
D
A
V
E
N
U
E
A
B
21
9H
B

90
51
31
31
55

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
P
O
T
B
U
C
K
S
B
U
R
N
(F
O
R
M
E
R
LI
G
H
T
IN
G
)

B
A
N
K
H
E
A
D
A
V
E
N
U
E

B
A
N
K
H
E
A
D

A
B
21
9H
B

90
51
11
96
39

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
IT
E
33
(T
U
LL
O
S
D
E
P
O
T
)
C
R
A
IG
S
H
A
W
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
T

D
E
P
O
T

C
R
A
IG
S
H
A
W
C
R
E
S
C
E
A
B
12
3A
N

90
51
07
70
77

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

G
A
R
LO
G
IE
S
T
O
R
E

D
E
P
O
T

A
B
32
6S
X

15
11
08
88
5

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
O
U
N
C
IL
O
F
F
IC
E
(T
O
W
N
H
O
U
S
E
)

T
O
W
N
H
O
U
S
E

C
A
S
T
LE

S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
11
5B
Q

90
51
31
02
35

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

T
O
W
N
H
O
U
S
E

C
A
S
T
LE

S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
10
1B
D

90
51
31
32
03

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

O
F
F
IC
E
S
(U
P
P
E
R
F
LO
O
R
S
)
74
-7
6
S
P
R
IN
G
G
A
R

74
-7
6
S
P
R
IN
G
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

A
B
25
1G
N

90
51
31
23
89
O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

O
LD

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
H
O
U
S
E

O
LD

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
H
O
U
S
E

D
U
N
B
A
R
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
24
3U
J

90
51
08
97
52

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
R
O
W
N
H
O
U
S
E

C
R
O
W
N
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
11
6H
A

90
51
06
24
70

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
U
M
M
E
R
H
IL
L
E
D
U
C
A
T
IO
N
C
E
N
T
R
E

S
T
R
O
N
S
A
Y
D
R
IV
E

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
15
6J
A

90
51
02
00
56

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
E
D
U
C
A
T
IO
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
T
N
IC
H
O
LA
S
H
O
U
S
E

S
T
N
IC
H
O
LA
S
H
O
U
S
E

B
R
O
A
D
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
10
1B
W

90
51
31
27
64

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

W
O
O
D
H
IL
L
H
O
U
S
E
R
C
C
B
U
IL
D
IN
G
O
N
LY

W
E
S
T
B
U
R
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
16
5G
A

90
51
31
28
47
O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
A
LG
O
W
N
IE
1
A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
C
IT
Y
C
O
U
N
C
IL

B
A
LG
O
W
N
IE
1

C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
W
A
Y

A
B
23
8A
Q

90
51
31
26
91

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

M
A
R
IS
C
H
A
L
C
O
LL
E
G
E

M
A
R
IS
C
H
A
L
C
O
LL
E
G
E

B
R
O
A
D
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
10
1A
P

90
51
31
04
64

O
F
F
IC
E

V
A
C
A
N
T
(O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L)

O
F
F
IC
E
S
(U
P
P
E
R
F
LO
O
R
S
)
74
-7
6
S
P
R
IN
G
G
A
R

74
-7
6
S
P
R
IN
G
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

A
B
25
1G
N

90
51
31
23
89

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

F
R
E
D
E
R
IC
K
S
T
B
.C
.

F
R
E
D
E
R
IC
K
S
T
R
E
E
T
B
.C
.
F
R
E
D
E
R
IC
K
S
T
R
E
E
T
A
B
24
1H
Y

B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
C
E
N
T
R
E

V
A
C
A
N
T
(O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L)

E
n
te
rp
ri
se
,P
la
n
n
in
g
an
d
In
fr
as
tu
ct
u
re

Page 282



A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
-
O
p
er
at
io
n
al
P
ro
p
er
ti
es
A
lig
n
ed
to
S
er
vi
ce
s

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
N
A
M
E

A
D
D
R
E
S
S

P
O
S
T
C
O
D
E

U
P
R
N

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
T
Y
P
E

S
T
A
T
U
S

C
R
E
M
A
T
O
R
IU
M
(J
E
S
S
IE
F
IE
LD
)

S
K
E
N
E
R
O
A
D

A
B
15
8P
J

90
51
12
44
15

C
R
E
M
A
T
O
R
IU
M

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
U
T
H
IE
P
A
R
K
W
O
R
K
S
H
O
P
S

D
U
T
H
IE
P
A
R
K
W
O
R
K
S
H
O
PD
U
T
H
IE
P
A
R
K
,P
O
LM
U
IR
A
B
11
7W

E
90
51
31
26
98

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
T
A
U
C
H
IN
Y
E
LL
T
C
E

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
A
U
C
H
IN
Y
E
LL
T
E
R
R
A
C
E
A
B
10
7D
T

90
51
02
89
10

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
P
O
T
C
A
IR
N
W
E
LL
D
R
IV
E

D
E
P
O
T
C
A
IR
N
W
E
LL
D
R
IV
E
M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
16
5N
D

90
51
02
18
46

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
T
M
A
N
S
E
F
IE
LD

P
LA
C
E

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
M
A
N
S
E
F
IE
LD

P
LA
C
E

A
B
11
8J
U

90
51
09
24
66

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
T
M
A
R
C
H
B
U
R
N
C
R
E
S

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
M
A
R
C
H
B
U
R
N
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
A
B
16
7N
J

90
51
02
46
11

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
T
M
ID
D
LE
F
IE
LD

P
LA
C
E

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
M
ID
D
LE
F
IE
LD

P
LA
C
E

A
B
24
4P
B

90
51
03
74
05

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
&
W
D
E
P
O
T
S
IL
LE
R
T
O
N
LA
N
E

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
S
IL
LE
R
T
O
N
LA
N
E
,K
IN
C
OA
B
12
5D
F

90
51
31
08
05

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
T
S
C
H
O
O
L
R
O
A
D

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
&
W
O
R
K
S
D
E
P
O
S
C
H
O
O
L
R
O
A
D

A
B
24
1T
U

90
51
31
20
27

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
D
E
P
O
T
S
IL
LE
R
T
O
N
LA
N
E

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
D
E
P
O
T

S
IL
LE
R
T
O
N
LA
N
E

A
B
12
5D
F

90
51
05
47
51

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
S
U
B
D
E
P
O
T
G
IL
C
O
M
S
T
O
N
LA
N
D
,M
IN
IS
T
E
R
LA
NC
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
S
U
B
D
E
P
O
T

G
IL
C
O
M
S
T
O
N
LA
N
D

A
B
10
1T
A

90
51
31
22
40

S
T
O
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
S
U
B
D
E
P
O
T
S
P
A
S
T
R
E
E
T

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
S
U
B
D
E
P
O
T

S
P
A
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
25
1Q
B

90
51
31
28
63

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
S
U
B
D
E
P
O
T
V
IC
T
O
R
IA
S
T
R
E
E
T

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
S
U
B
D
E
P
O
T

V
IC
T
O
R
IA
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
21
7B
J

90
51
31
23
99

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
S
U
B
-D
E
P
O
T

W
E
S
T
N
O
R
T
H
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
25
1D
Q

90
51
31
23
95

S
T
O
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

N
O
R
T
H
LO
IR
S
T
O
N
F
A
R
M

N
O
R
T
H
LO
IR
S
T
O
N
F
A
R
M

B
O
T
H
Y
/T
O
O
LS
H
E
D
/S
T
E
AA
B
12
3L
J

90
51
31
20
38

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

JO
H
N
S
T
O
N
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

JO
H
N
S
T
O
N
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

B
O
T
H
Y
/T
O
O
LS
H
E
D

A
B
15
7X
G

90
51
31
20
37

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
D
E
P
O
T

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
D
E
P
O
T

B
O
T
H
IE
S
/O
U
T
H
O
U
S
E
/S
TA
B
15
8B
J

90
51
31
26
95

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
C
R
E
M
A
T
O
R
IU
M
D
E
P
O
T

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
C
R
E
M
A
T
O
R
IU
B
O
T
H
Y
/T
O
IL
E
T
/S
H
E
D
/Y
A
A
B
15
8P
T

90
51
31
23
83

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
T
P
E
T
E
R
'S
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y
,K
IN
G
S
T
R
E
E
T

S
T
P
E
T
E
R
'S
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y
,
K
IN
G
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
24
3B
X

90
51
31
29
01

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

LI
N
K
S
F
IE
LD

D
E
P
O
T
G
O
LF
R
O
A
D

LI
N
K
S
F
IE
LD

D
E
P
O
T
,G
O
LF
B
O
T
H
Y
/T
O
IL
E
T
/S
T
O
R
E
S
A
B
24
5Q
A

90
51
31
71
56

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

T
R
IN
IT
Y
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y
,E
R
R
O
LL
S
T
R
E
E
T

T
R
IN
IT
Y
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y

E
R
R
O
LL
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
24
5P
P

90
51
31
27
79

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
IL
T
O
N
S
P
O
R
T
S
C
E
N
T
R
E
,H
IL
T
O
N
D
R
IV
E

H
IL
T
O
N
S
P
O
R
T
S
C
E
N
T
R
E
H
IL
T
O
N
D
R
IV
E

A
B
24
4N
D

90
51
31
21
21

S
T
O
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
T
E
W
A
R
T
P
A
R
K
A
N
D
E
R
S
O
N
R
O
A
D

S
T
E
W
A
R
T
P
A
R
K
A
N
D
E
R
S
OB
O
T
H
Y
/T
O
IL
E
T
/T
O
O
LS
H
A
B
24
4N
Z

90
51
31
28
52

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

G
R
O
V
E
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y
,M
U
G
IE
M
O
S
S
R
O
A
D

G
R
O
V
E
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y
,M
U
G
IB
O
T
H
Y
/G
A
R
A
G
E
/T
O
IL
E
T
A
B
21
9N
P

90
51
31
27
78

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
A
N
K
H
E
A
D
A
V
E
N
U
E

B
A
N
K
H
E
A
D
A
V
E
N
U
E

G
A
R
A
G
E
/T
O
IL
E
T
/B
O
T
H
Y
A
B
21
9E
G

90
51
31
32
08

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
P
R
IN
G
H
IL
L
F
A
R
M

S
P
R
IN
G
H
IL
L
F
A
R
M
,S
P
R
IN
B
O
T
H
Y
/S
H
E
D
S
/G
A
R
A
G
E
A
B
21
9S
R

90
51
11
98
04

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

N
E
W
H
IL
LS

C
H
U
R
C
H
Y
A
R
D
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y

K
IN
G
S
W
E
LL
S
T
O
T
Y
R
E
B
A
GN
E
W
H
IL
LS

A
B
21
9S
Q

90
51
31
29
68

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
E
A
T
O
N
P
A
R
K
D
O
N
S
T
R
E
E
T

S
E
A
T
O
N
P
A
R
K
,D
O
N
S
T
R
E
B
O
T
H
Y
/T
O
O
LS
H
E
D

A
B
24
1R
Q

90
51
31
16
10

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

N
E
LL
F
IE
LD

C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y
,G
R
E
A
T
W
E
S
T
E
R
N
R
O
A
D

N
E
LL
F
IE
LD

C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y

G
R
E
A
T
W
E
S
T
E
R
N
R
O
A
D
A
B
10
6D
H

90
51
31
28
49

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
P
O
T
,U
N
IO
N
T
E
R
R
A
C
E
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

U
N
IO
N
T
E
R
R
A
C
E
G
A
R
D
E
N
B
O
T
H
Y
/T
O
O
LS
H
E
D
/T
O
IL
A
B
10
1N
N

90
51
31
24
02

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

R
U
T
H
R
IE
S
T
O
N
O
U
T
D
O
O
R
S
P
O
R
T
S
C
E
N
T
R
E
D
E
P
O
T

R
U
T
H
R
IE
S
T
O
N
S
P
O
R
T
S
C
P
IT
S
T
R
U
A
N
T
E
R
R
A
C
E

A
B
10
6Q
U

90
51
31
24
08

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
LB
U
R
Y
S
P
O
R
T
S
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
F
F
IC
E
/B
O
T
H
Y
/T
O
O
LS
T
O
RA
LB
U
R
Y
S
P
O
R
T
S
C
E
N
T
RA
B
11
6T
N

90
51
31
28
53

S
T
O
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
P
O
T
W
E
S
T
B
U
R
N
P
A
R
K
W
E
S
T
B
U
R
N
R
O
A
D

B
O
T
H
Y
/S
H
E
D
S
/G
A
R
A
G
E
S
W
E
S
T
B
U
R
N
P
A
R
K
,W

E
S
TA
B
25
3D
E

90
51
31
23
94

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

V
IC
T
O
R
IA
P
A
R
K
,W

A
T
S
O
N
S
T
R
E
E
T

V
IC
T
O
R
IA
P
A
R
K
,

W
A
T
S
O
N
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
25
2Q
B

90
51
31
27
80

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
o
u
si
n
g
an
d
E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t

Page 283



A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
-
O
p
er
at
io
n
al
P
ro
p
er
ti
es
A
lig
n
ed
to
S
er
vi
ce
s

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
N
A
M
E

A
D
D
R
E
S
S

P
O
S
T
C
O
D
E

U
P
R
N

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
T
Y
P
E

S
T
A
T
U
S

S
T
O
R
E

44
-
56
P
O
R
T
A
L
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
T

A
B
24
2S
P

90
51
31
32
05

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
P
O
T
S
H
A
R
E
D
,D
E
N
M
O
R
E
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

D
E
N
M
O
R
E
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

B
R
ID
G
E
O
F
D
O
N

A
B
22
8L
Q

90
51
08
99
04

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
C
C
O
M
M
O
D
A
T
IO
N
A
S
S
E
S
S
M
E
N
T
U
N
IT
,7
7/
79
B
O
N
-A
C
C
O
R
D
A
C
C
O
M
M
O
D
A
T
IO
N
A
S
S
E
S
77
-7
9
B
O
N
-A
C
C
O
R
D
S
T
R
A
B
11
6E
D

90
51
31
28
07

H
O
S
T
E
L

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
O
S
T
E
L
(A
C
C
O
M
O
D
A
T
IO
N
A
S
S
E
S
S
M
E
N
T
U
N
IT
)

95
B
O
N
-A
C
C
O
R
D
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
11
6E
D

90
51
06
18
79

H
O
S
T
E
L

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

16
5/
16
7
C
R
O
W
N
S
T
R
E
E
T
A
C
C
O
M
M
O
D
A
T
IO
N
A
S
S
E
S
S
M
E
N
T
U1
65
/1
67
C
R
O
W
N
S
T
R
E
E
T
A
C
C
O
M
M
O
D
A
T
IO
N
A
S
S
EA
B
11
6H
T

90
51
31
28
06

H
O
S
T
E
L

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

M
O
R
T
U
A
R
Y

Q
U
E
E
N
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
10
1A
N

90
51
31
24
06

M
O
R
T
U
A
R
Y

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K
H
O
U
S
IN
G
O
F
F
IC
E

S
P
E
Y
R
O
A
D

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
16
6S
F

90
51
02
45
22

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

LO
G
IE
H
O
U
S
IN
G
O
F
F
IC
E

2A
LO
G
IE
P
LA
C
E

M
ID
D
LE
F
IE
LD

A
B
16
7T
P

90
51
03
68
05

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

LO
C
A
L
H
O
U
S
IN
G
O
F
F
IC
E
20
A
S
A
N
D
IL
A
N
D
S
D
R
I

20
A
S
A
N
D
IL
A
N
D
S
D
R
IV
E

A
B
24
2Q
A

90
51
05
05
99

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

LO
C
A
L
H
O
U
S
IN
G
O
F
F
IC
E
37
A
B
E
D
F
O
R
D
A
V
E
N
U
E

37
A
B
E
D
F
O
R
D
A
V
E
N
U
E

T
IL
LY
D
R
O
N
E

A
B
24
3Y
N

90
51
07
36
55

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

T
IL
LY
D
R
O
N
E
H
O
U
S
IN
G
O
F
F
IC
E

F
O
R
M
A
R
T
IN
E
R
O
A
D

A
B
24
2O
X

90
51
07
30
72

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
O
U
N
C
IL
O
F
F
IC
E
E
S
T
A
T
E
C
A
R
E
T
A
K
E
R
'S
O
F
F
IC
E

27
B
S
A
N
D
IL
A
N
D
S
D
R
IV
E

A
B
24
2Q
E

90
51
05
07
19

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
O
U
N
C
IL
O
F
F
IC
E
E
S
T
A
T
E
C
A
R
E
T
A
K
E
R
'S
O
F
F
IC
E

20
A
LO
G
IE
A
V
E
N
U
E

A
B
24
7T
S

90
51
03
80
71

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
E
Y
C
A
R
P
A
R
K

C
H
A
P
E
L
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
10
1S
S

90
51
31
16
30

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
E
Y
C
A
R
P
A
R
K

D
E
N
B
U
R
N
C
O
U
R
T

S
P
A
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
25
1P
U

90
51
31
16
31

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
(F
O
O
T
D
E
E
)

B
E
A
C
H
E
S
P
LA
N
A
D
E

A
B
11
5D
X

90
51
31
16
36

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
LO
W
E
R
P
R
O
M
E
N
A
D
E

LO
W
E
R
P
R
O
M
E
N
A
D
E

B
E
A
C
H
E
S
P
LA
N
A
D
E

A
B
24
5N
S

90
51
31
16
38

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
S
T
N
IC
H
O
LA
S
H
O
U
S
E

U
P
P
E
R
K
IR
K
G
A
T
E

A
B
10
1A
J

90
51
31
16
37

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
M
U
LT
I-
S
T
O
R
E
Y
C
A
R
P
A
R
K

W
E
S
T
N
O
R
T
H
S
T
R
E
E
T

B
O
T
H
Y
(F
O
R
M
E
R
T
O
IL
E
TA
B
25
1D
Q

90
51
31
16
39

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
A
U
T
O
M
A
T
IC
P
C

A
U
T
O
M
A
T
IC
P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
VS
T
O
N
E
H
A
V
E
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
12
5X
J

90
51
31
16
33

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
,N
O
R
T
H
D
E
E
S
ID
E
R
O
A
D
,A
B
14
0U
L
A
U
T
O
M
A
T
IC
P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
VN
O
R
T
H
D
E
E
S
ID
E
R
O
A
D
A
B
14
0U
L

90
51
12
24
76

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
,N
O
R
T
H
D
E
E
S
ID
E
R
O
A
D
,A
B
15
9S
X
A
U
T
O
M
A
T
IC
P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
VN
O
R
T
H
D
E
E
S
ID
E
R
O
A
D
A
B
15
9S
X

90
51
31
16
32

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

JO
H
N
S
T
O
N
G
A
R
D
E
N
S
P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E

V
IE
W
F
IE
LD

R
O
A
D

A
B
15
7X
G

90
51
31
32
11

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

K
IT
T
Y
B
R
E
W
S
T
E
R
D
E
P
O
T

K
IT
T
Y
B
R
E
W
S
T
E
R
D
E
P
O
T
38
P
O
W
IS
T
E
R
R
A
C
E
(O
F
A
B
24
3L
J

90
51
31
27
73

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

K
IT
T
Y
B
R
E
W
S
T
E
R
D
E
P
O
T
C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
IN
G
S
E
R
V
IC
E

P
O
W
IS
T
E
R
R
A
C
E

F
R
O
N
T
B
U
IL
D
IN
G
W
O
R
K
A
B
25
3Q
B

N
P
U
T
R
E
Q
U
IR
E
DD
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
LL
E
N
V
A
LE
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y

A
LL
E
N
V
A
LE
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y

A
LL
E
N
V
A
LE
R
O
A
D

A
B
10
7F
F

90
51
31
71
51

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
P
O
T
W
A
T
C
H
M
A
N
B
R
A
E

D
E
P
O
T

W
A
T
C
H
M
A
N
B
R
A
E
/M
ID
D
A
B
21
9W

B
90
51
12
53
83

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
S
K
E
N
E
S
T
R
E
E
T

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
S
K
A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
10
1Q
P

90
51
31
23
86

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
T
R
A
T
H
B
U
R
N
S
T
R
E
E
T
D
E
P
O
T

S
T
R
A
T
H
B
U
R
N
S
T
R
E
E
T
D
E
S
T
R
A
T
H
B
U
R
N
S
T
R
E
E
T
A
B
12
3L
J

90
51
31
24
04

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
P
R
IN
G
B
A
N
K
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y
D
E
P
O
T

S
P
R
IN
G
B
A
N
K
C
E
M
E
T
E
R
Y
C
O
U
N
T
E
S
S
W
E
LL
S
R
O
A
DA
B
15
7Y
H

90
51
31
20
41

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
O
M
M
O
N
R
O
O
M
S
,8
LO
G
IE
P
LA
C
E

C
O
M
M
O
N
R
O
O
M
S

8
LO
G
IE
P
LA
C
E

A
B
16
7T
P

90
51
03
55
33

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
E
D
U
C
A
T
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
T
O
R
E
,H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
T

S
T
O
R
E
,H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
C
R
E
SH
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D

A
B
15
8E
X

90
51
31
24
15

S
T
O
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
P
O
T
S
P
A
S
T
R
E
E
T
-
W
A
R
D
E
N
S
B
O
T
H
Y

C
LE
A
N
S
IN
G
S
U
B
D
E
P
O
T

S
P
A
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
25
1Q
B

90
51
31
23
88

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

15
0
G
A
LL
O
W
G
A
T
E

C
O
M
M
O
N
R
O
O
M
S

A
B
25
1D
T

In
pu
tR
eq
ui
re
d
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
E
D
U
C
A
T
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
o
u
si
n
g
an
d
E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t

Page 284



A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
-
O
p
er
at
io
n
al
P
ro
p
er
ti
es
A
lig
n
ed
to
S
er
vi
ce
s

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
N
A
M
E

A
D
D
R
E
S
S

P
O
S
T
C
O
D
E

U
P
R
N

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
T
Y
P
E

S
T
A
T
U
S

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
S
T
E
W
A
R
T
P
A
R
K

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
S
T
H
IL
T
O
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
24
4N
Z

90
51
31
19
38

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

V
IC
T
O
R
IA
P
A
R
K
T
O
IL
E
T
S

V
IC
T
O
R
IA
P
A
R
K
(A
P
C
)

W
A
T
S
O
N
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
25
2Q
B

90
51
31
23
97

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E
S
E
A
T
O
N
P
A
R
K
(A
P
C
)

D
O
N
S
T
R
E
E
T

S
E
A
T
O
N

A
B
24
1R
Q

90
51
31
71
73

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

U
N
IT
12
W
E
LL
H
E
A
D
S
T
E
R
R
A
C
E

W
E
LL
H
E
A
D
S
IN
D
U
S
T
R
IA
L
D
Y
C
E

A
B
21
7G
F

90
51
12
12
57

F
A
C
T
O
R
Y
-
A
D
V
A
N
C
E
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

U
R
Q
U
H
A
R
T
T
R
A
D
E
C
E
N
T
R
E
U
N
IT
5

10
9
U
R
Q
U
H
A
R
T
R
O
A
D

A
B
24
5N
H

90
51
31
19
42

P
R
E
M
IS
E
S
(C
O
M
M
E
R
CO
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

LO
C
A
L
H
O
U
S
IN
G
O
F
F
IC
E
(U
N
IT
4)
C
O
R
N
H
IL
L

F
O
R
E
S
T
E
R
H
IL
L
R
O
A
D

C
O
R
N
H
IL
L

A
B
16
5U
T

90
51
31
24
16

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
H
O
P
-
33
R
IC
H
M
O
N
D
S
T
R
E
E
T

33
R
IC
H
M
O
N
D
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
25
2T
S

90
51
06
81
23

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
P
A
R
K
,P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
P
A
R
K
,P
U
B
LI
C
H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
P
A
R
K

90
51
31
24
12

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
U
T
H
IE
P
A
R
K
P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
E

D
U
T
H
IE
P
A
R
K
(A
P
C
)

R
IV
E
R
S
ID
E
D
R
IV
E

90
51
31
16
08

P
U
B
LI
C
C
O
N
V
E
N
IE
N
C
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
S
E
A
F
O
O
D
P
A
R
K
(U
N
IT
4)

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
S
E
A
F
O
O
D
P
A
RP
A
LM
E
R
S
T
O
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
5R
P

90
51
08
01
22

F
A
C
T
O
R
Y
-
A
D
V
A
N
C
E
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
S
E
A
F
O
O
D
P
A
R
K
(U
N
IT
5)

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
S
E
A
F
O
O
D
P
A
RP
O
Y
N
E
R
N
O
O
K
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
5R
P

90
51
08
01
23

F
A
C
T
O
R
Y
-
A
D
V
A
N
C
E
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
S
E
A
F
O
O
D
P
A
R
K
(U
N
IT
7)

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
S
E
A
F
O
O
D
P
A
RP
O
Y
N
E
R
N
O
O
K
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
5R
P

90
51
08
01
25

F
A
C
T
O
R
Y
-
A
D
V
A
N
C
E
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
S
E
A
F
O
O
D
P
A
R
K
(U
N
IT
13
)

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
S
E
A
F
O
O
D
P
A
RP
A
LM
E
R
S
T
O
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
5R
P

90
51
08
01
30

F
A
C
T
O
R
Y
-
A
D
V
A
N
C
E
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
H
O
P
-
3
F
IN
N
A
N
P
LA
C
E

3
F
IN
N
A
N
P
LA
C
E

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
11
8R
G

90
51
09
47
36

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

F
A
R
M
(L
O
C
H
IN
C
H
)

LO
C
H
IN
C
H
F
A
R
M

R
E
D
M
O
S
S
R
O
A
D

A
B
12
3L
L

90
51
31
71
63

F
A
R
M

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

Z
O
O
LO
G
IC
A
L
P
A
R
K
(P
E
T
S
C
O
R
N
E
R
)

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
Z
O
O

A
B
15
8B
J

90
51
12
39
63

LE
IS
U
R
E
F
A
C
IL
IT
Y

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

E
M
E
R
G
E
N
C
Y
P
LA
N
N
IN
G
O
F
F
IC
E
S

1
Q
U
E
E
N
S
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

A
B
15
4Y
D

90
51
04
57
00

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
LA
N
T
N
U
R
S
E
R
Y

H
A
Z
LE
D
E
N
E
R
O
A
D

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D

A
B
15
8L
D

90
51
12
39
41

N
U
R
S
E
R
Y
G
A
R
D
E
N
S
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
G
O
LF
C
O
U
R
S
E
S
T
O
R
E

H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
G
O
LF
C
O
U
R
S
H
A
Z
LE
H
E
A
D
A
V
E
N
U
E

A
B
15
8B
D

90
51
31
77
89

S
T
O
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
U
T
H
IE
P
A
R
K
S
T
O
R
E

D
U
T
H
IE
P
A
R
K

P
O
LM
U
IR
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
7T
H

90
51
31
77
91

S
T
O
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
o
u
si
n
g
an
d
E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t

Page 285



A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
-
O
p
er
at
io
n
al
P
ro
p
er
ti
es
A
lig
n
ed
to
S
er
vi
ce
s

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
N
A
M
E

A
D
D
R
E
S
S

P
O
S
T
C
O
D
E

U
P
R
N

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
T
Y
P
E

S
T
A
T
U
S

B
A
LN
A
G
A
S
K
C
O
U
R
T

16
B
A
LN
A
G
A
S
K
C
O
U
R
T

T
O
R
R
Y

A
B
11
8T
Z

90
51
12
30
66

H
O
S
T
E
L

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
H
O
M
E

2
G
IL
B
E
R
T
R
O
A
D
2
G
IL
B
E
R
T
R
O
A
D

B
U
C
K
S
B
U
R
N

A
B
21
9A
J

90
51
01
37
55

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

K
IN
C
O
R
T
H
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
H
O
M
E

41
F
A
U
LD
S
G
A
T
E

K
IN
C
O
R
T
H

A
B
12
5Q
X

90
51
05
75
34

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

F
E
R
G
U
S
H
O
U
S
E

F
E
R
G
U
S
P
LA
C
E

D
Y
C
E

A
B
21
7D
D

90
51
12
42
00

H
O
M
E
F
O
R
T
H
E
E
LD
E
R
LY

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
E
E
S
ID
E
F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

D
E
E
S
ID
E
F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
G
IR
D
LE
N
E
S
S
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
8T
G

90
51
09
37
45

F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
IL
LY
LA
N
D
S
-
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
S
P
E
C
IA
L
2
C
R
O
F
T
R
O
A
D

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
16
6R
B

90
51
10
55
29

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
-
LE
A
R
N
IN
G
D
IS
A
B
IL
IT
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

T
H
E
Q
U
A
R
R
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

35
C
U
M
M
IN
G
S
P
A
R
K
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
T

A
B
16
7A
S

90
51
03
69
68

F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
H
O
IC
E
S
(W
E
S
T
B
U
R
N
R
E
S
.C
E
N
T
R
E
11
6
W
E
S
T
B
U
R
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
25
2Q
A

90
51
04
83
39

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
-
P
H
Y
S
IC
A
LL
Y
H
A
N
D
IC
V
A
C
A
N
T
(O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L)

D
E
E
S
ID
E
F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
LE
A
S
E
D
O
D
E
E
S
ID
E
F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
G
IR
D
LE
N
E
S
S
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
8T
D

90
51
12
81
85

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
A
LN
A
G
A
S
K
D
A
Y
C
A
R
E
C
E
N
T
R
E

P
R
O
V
O
S
T
H
O
G
G
C
O
U
R
T

A
B
11
9N
F

90
51
09
50
83

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
-
E
LD
E
R
LY

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

LI
N
K
S
F
IE
LD

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

8
LI
N
K
S
F
IE
LD

P
LA
C
E

A
B
24
5Q
Q

90
51
08
69
64

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
-
E
LD
E
R
LY

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

W
IL
LI
A
M
S
O
N
F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K
C
LO
S
E

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
16
6X
Z

90
51
02
18
45

F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
U
LT
E
R
P
O
P
IN
C
E
N
T
R
E

31
5
N
O
R
T
H
D
E
E
S
ID
E
R
O
A
P
E
T
E
R
C
U
LT
E
R

A
B
14
0U
L

90
51
00
04
67

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
E
D
U
C
A
T
IO
N
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

T
IL
LY
D
R
O
N
E
D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

P
E
N
N
A
N
R
O
A
D

T
IL
LY
D
R
O
N
E
(F
A
M
IL
Y
C
EA
B
24
2U
D

90
51
07
34
14

F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
T
F
IT
T
IC
K
S
H
O
U
S
E

36
C
R
O
M
B
IE
R
O
A
D

T
O
R
R
Y

A
B
11
9Q
Q

90
51
08
09
18

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
R
A
IG
T
O
N
R
O
A
D
D
A
Y
C
A
R
E
C
E
N
T
R
E
C
R
A
IG
T
O
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
15
7X
W

90
51
03
10
53

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
-
E
LD
E
R
LY

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

N
E
W
R
O
S
E
W
E
LL
H
O
U
S
E

19
4
K
IN
G
S
G
A
T
E

A
B
15
6D
P

90
51
02
13
10

H
O
M
E
F
O
R
T
H
E
E
LD
E
R
LY

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
A
LN
A
G
A
S
K
H
O
U
S
E

N
O
R
T
H
B
A
LN
A
G
A
S
K
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
8L
Q

90
51
09
47
29

H
O
M
E
F
O
R
T
H
E
E
LD
E
R
LY

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
H
O
M
E
T
H
E
W
IL
LO
W
S

T
H
E
W
IL
LO
W
S
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
SW
IL
LO
W
B
A
N
K
R
O
A
D
/H
A
A
B
11
6Y
U

90
51
12
96
39

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

K
A
IM
C
O
U
R
T
,2
4
P
IT
M
E
D
D
E
N
T
E
R
R
A
CK
A
IM
C
O
U
R
T

24
P
IT
M
E
D
D
E
N
T
E
R
R
A
C
A
B
10
7H
R

90
51
31
29
67

H
O
S
T
E
L

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
O
U
S
E
(S
O
C
IA
L
W
O
R
K
)
11
C
R
A
IG
E
N
D1
1
C
R
A
IG
E
N
D
A
R
R
O
C
H
P
LA
C
E

A
B
16
5S
E

90
51
02
27
37

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

18
1
N
O
R
T
H
B
A
LN
A
G
A
S
K
R
O
A
D

18
1
N
O
R
T
H
B
A
LN
A
G
A
S
K
R
T
O
R
R
Y

A
B
11
8L
N

90
51
09
37
14

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

8
M
A
R
C
H
B
U
R
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
16
7N
N

90
51
02
59
12

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

V
A
C
A
N
T
(O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L)

H
O
U
S
E
(S
O
C
IA
L
W
O
R
K
)
57
LO
N
G
W
A
57
LO
N
G
W
A
LK

R
O
A
D

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
16
5Q
L

90
51
02
31
66

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
T
O
C
K
E
T
P
A
R
A
D
E
H
O
S
T
E
L

16
S
T
O
C
K
E
T
P
A
R
A
D
E

A
B
16
5Q
N

90
51
03
51
64

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

D
O
M
IN
IE
S
R
O
A
D
H
O
S
T
E
L

1-
3
D
O
M
IN
IE
S
R
O
A
D
&
26
A
A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
16
5E
D

90
51
03
55
83

H
O
S
T
E
L

V
A
C
A
N
T
(O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L)

C
R
A
IG
IE
LE
A
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
C
E
N
T
R
E

C
R
A
IG
IE
LE
A
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
CC
R
A
IG
T
O
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
15
7U
U

90
51
03
09
02

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
O
C
IA
L
W
O
R
K
O
F
F
IC
E
S

80
S
P
R
IN
G
80
S
P
R
IN
G
G
A
R
D
E
N
(U
N
IT
3)

A
B
25
1G
N

90
51
11
94
38

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
D
O
P
T
IO
N
&
F
O
S
T
E
R
IN
G
T
E
A
M
S
O
C
77
-7
9
K
IN
G
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
24
5A
B

90
51
08
40
01

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
U
R
N
S
ID
E
C
E
N
T
R
E

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K
D
R
IV
E

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
16
6U
E

90
51
13
02
40

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
-
LE
A
R
N
IN
G
D
IS
A
B
IL
IT
V
A
C
A
N
T
(O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L)

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K
A
R
E
A
S
O
C
IA
L
W
O
R
K
O
F
F
IG
R
E
E
N
F
E
R
N
R
O
A
D

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
16
6S
H

90
51
02
44
99

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

K
IN
C
O
R
T
H
A
R
E
A
O
F
F
IC
E
F
A
U
LD
S
R
O
K
IN
C
O
R
T
H
A
R
E
A
O
F
F
IC
E
SF
A
U
LD
S
R
O
W

A
B
12
5N
P

90
51
05
74
78

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

O
F
F
IC
E
S
1S
T
&
2N
D
F
LO
O
R
S
E
X
C
H
E
E
X
C
H
E
Q
U
E
R
H
O
U
S
E

3
E
X
C
H
E
Q
U
E
R
R
O
W

A
B
11
5B
W

90
51
08
28
41

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

T
O
R
R
Y
N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
F
F
IC
E
T
O
R
R
Y
N
E
IG
H
B
O
UO
S
C
A
R
R
O
A
D

A
B
11
8E
R

90
51
12
84
96

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
o
ci
al
C
ar
e
an
d
W
el
lb
ei
n
g

Page 286



A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
-
O
p
er
at
io
n
al
P
ro
p
er
ti
es
A
lig
n
ed
to
S
er
vi
ce
s

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
N
A
M
E

A
D
D
R
E
S
S

P
O
S
T
C
O
D
E

U
P
R
N

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
T
Y
P
E

S
T
A
T
U
S

H
O
R
IZ
O
N
S
R
E
H
A
B
IL
IT
A
T
IO
N
C
E
N
T
R
E
2
E
D
A
Y
W
A
LK

S
U
M
M
E
R
H
IL
L

A
B
15
6L
N

90
51
31
28
98

H
E
A
LT
H
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
W
O
R
K
S
H
O
P
11
W
IL
LO
W
D
A
LE
P
LA
C
E

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
24
5A
Q

90
51
08
36
46

W
O
R
K
S
H
O
P

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

H
O
U
S
E
S
6
-
12
B
A
C
K
H
IL
T
O
N
R
O
A
D
6
-
12
B
A
C
K
H
IL
T
O
N
R
O
A
D
A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
25
3S
T

90
51
06
95
02

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

R
O
S
E
H
IL
L
H
O
U
S
E

R
O
S
E
H
IL
L
H
O
U
S
E

20
2
A
S
H
G
R
O
V
E
R
O
A
D
W
A
B
16
5E
H

90
51
03
53
86

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
-
LE
A
R
N
IN
G
D
IS
A
B
IL
IT
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

K
IR
K
G
A
T
E
H
O
U
S
E
U
P
P
E
R
K
IR
K
G
A
T
E
K
IR
K
G
A
T
E
H
O
U
S
E

S
T
N
IC
H
O
LA
S
C
E
N
T
R
E
A
B
10
1B
A

90
51
31
24
01

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
O
C
IA
L
W
O
R
K
O
F
F
IC
E
S
13
7
G
A
LL
O
W
G
/F
O
F
F
IC
E
S
U
IT
E

13
7
G
A
LL
O
W
G
A
T
E

A
B
25
1B
U

90
51
08
49
05

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

K
IN
G
S
W
O
O
D
C
O
U
R
T
D
A
Y
C
A
R
E
C
E
N
K
IN
G
S
W
O
O
D
C
O
U
R
T

IN
V
E
R
C
A
U
LD

R
O
A
D

A
B
16
5R
X

90
51
02
33
05

D
A
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E
-
E
LD
E
R
LY

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
H
O
M
E
K
IN
G
S
F
IE
LD

53
2
K
IN
G
S
T
R
E
E
T

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N

A
B
24
5S
S

90
51
08
97
93

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

4
M
IL
T
O
N
F
O
LD

4
M
IL
T
O
N
F
O
LD

C
O
U
R
T

B
U
C
K
S
B
U
R
N

A
B
21
9D
S

90
51
01
34
37

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

25
C
LO
V
E
R
H
IL
L
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
T
,G
R
O
U
P
25
C
LO
V
E
R
H
IL
L
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
B
R
ID
G
E
O
F
D
O
N

A
B
22
8R
P

90
51
09
99
79

G
R
O
U
P
H
O
M
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

U
N
IT
S
3/
4
W
E
LL
H
E
A
D
S
R
O
A
D

F
A
R
B
U
R
N
IN
D
U
S
T
R
IA
L
E
S
D
Y
C
E

A
B
21
7H
G

90
51
12
15
08

F
A
C
T
O
R
Y
-
A
D
V
A
N
C
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
D
V
A
N
C
E
F
A
C
T
O
R
Y
U
N
IT
3
C
R
O
M
B
IU
N
IT
S
3
&
4
C
R
O
M
B
IE
R
O
AT
O
R
R
Y

A
B
11
9Q
Q

90
51
31
05
54

F
A
C
T
O
R
Y
-
A
D
V
A
N
C
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

P
H
O
E
N
IX
C
LU
B
D
A
Y
C
N
T
R
F
O
R
D
IS
A
N
O
R
T
H
B
A
LN
A
G
A
S
K
R
O
A
DT
O
R
R
Y

A
B
11
8L
Q

90
51
09
47
35

Y
O
U
T
H
C
E
N
T
R
E

N
O
N
O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

A
S
H
G
R
O
V
E
F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

G
IL
LE
S
P
IE
P
LA
C
E

A
S
H
G
R
O
V
E

A
B
25
3B
E

90
51
04
99
34

F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

S
E
A
T
O
N
F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

S
E
A
T
O
N
P
LA
C
E
E
A
S
T

S
E
A
T
O
N

A
B
24
1X
E

90
51
31
32
10

F
A
M
IL
Y
C
E
N
T
R
E

V
A
C
A
N
T
(O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L)

S
o
ci
al
C
ar
e
an
d
W
el
lb
ei
n
g

Page 287



A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
-
O
p
er
at
io
n
al
P
ro
p
er
ti
es
A
lig
n
ed
to
S
er
vi
ce
s

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
N
A
M
E

A
D
D
R
E
S
S

P
O
S
T
C
O
D
E

U
P
R
N

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
T
Y
P
E

S
T
A
T
U
S

P
E
T
E
R
C
U
LT
E
R
A
R
E
A
O
F
F
IC
E

10
2
N
O
R
T
H
D
E
E
S
ID
E
R
O
A
D

P
E
T
E
R
C
U
LT
E
R

A
B
14
0Q
B

90
51
00
19
61

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

B
U
C
K
S
B
U
R
N
A
R
E
A
O
F
F
IC
E

23
IN
V
E
R
U
R
IE
R
O
A
D

B
U
C
K
S
B
U
R
N

A
B
21
9L
J

90
51
01
30
52

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K
IN
D
E
S
T

U
N
IT
1A
W
H
IT
E
M
Y
R
E
S
A
V
E
N
U
E

M
A
S
T
R
IC
K

A
B
16
6H
Q

90
51
31
32
09

P
R
E
M
IS
E
S
(C
O
M
M
E
R
C
IA
L)

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

T
A
X
II
N
S
P
E
C
T
IO
N
D
E
P
O
T

38
P
O
W
IS
T
E
R
R
A
C
E

A
B
24
3L
J

90
51
31
27
72

D
E
P
O
T

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

R
E
C
O
R
D
S
S
T
O
R
A
G
E
F
A
C
IL
IT
Y
W
H
IT
E
M
Y
R
E
S

W
H
IT
E
M
Y
R
E
S
A
V
E
N
U
E

A
B
16
6H
Q

90
61
02
18
32

P
R
E
M
IS
E
S
(C
O
M
M
E
R
C
IA
L)

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

W
O
O
D
H
IL
L
H
O
U
S
E
R
C
C
B
U
IL
D
IN
G
O
N
LY

W
E
S
T
B
U
R
N
R
O
A
D

A
B
16
5G
A

90
51
31
28
47

O
F
F
IC
E

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
G
o
ve
rn
an
ce

Page 288



Appendix 3 
 

Tenanted Non-Residential Property Review 
 

High Level Review of Property Groupings 
 

July 2010 

Page 289



1

1. Background 
 

This report is a review of the financial performance of the tenanted non-
residential property (TNRP) portfolio presently held by the City Council. The 
definition of TNRP within the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors document 
�Local Authority Asset Management Best Practice: TNRP� is as follows:- 

 
�Tenanted Non-Residential Property� (TNRP) covers local 
authority assets which are let to third parties (other than housing 
stock), such as retail spaces, offices, industrial, warehousing and 
farms. CIPFA define such assets as �operational� or �non-
operational�; also known as �commercial� or �investment� property� 

 
This report does not include assets held on Common Good, they will be 
assessed separately in conjunction with the appropriate Finance Manager. The 
remaining non-operational properties described in this report have an aggregate 
Asset Valuation at 31 March, 2010 of £73.9 million approx. They also produce 
an aggregate revenue income for the City Council of circa £5.6 million approx.  
 
The Property Asset Management Plan approved in 2009, identifies the 
completion of the review as a Key priority, with a completion date set in 2010. It 
also emphasizes the importance of demonstrating that these assets represent 
best use of resources and expertise and that their rate of return is assessed. 
Ultimately the TNRP portfolio can be a sensible use of resources but it must 
support the Council�s strategies and the need to balance revenue/capital 
expenditure. 
 
Furthermore it is widely recognised as good practice to review TNRP portfolios 
and how well they link with performance management. Quite simply the Council 
needs to assess why they hold these assets, do they need to continue to hold 
these assets and do they represent value for money. 
 
This report does not go into detail of each asset and has been carried out with 
view to identifying high level data which can be used to prioritise more detailed 
reviews of the groupings. Any further work will require to be carried out in 
conjunction with the Head of Finance so that the Council�s future revenue and 
capital spending is taken into account. 
 

Page 290



2

2. Our TNRP Portfolio 
 
2.1  The Councils TNRP is broken down as follows:- 
 

Asset Type Number Category 
Children's Homes 2 Social 
Civic Amenity Sites 4 Social 
Club Rooms 1 Social 
Electricity Sub-Station Sites 15 Economic Development 
Garages (Lock Up) 3 Social 
Gas Governor Sites 8 Economic Development 
Group Homes 17 Social 
Halls 1 Social 
Health Centres 2 Social 
Hostels 2 Social 
Leisure Facilities 8 Social 
Outdoor Sports Facilities 9 Social 
Refuse Tips 2 Social 
Sites - Ground Lease (Amenity) 53 Social 
Sites � Ground Lease (Garage), 37 Social 
Sports Centres 2 Social 
Stores 4 Social 
Advertising Sites 10 Investment 
Business Centres 2 Investment 
Car Parks 12  Investment 
Factories (Advance) 87 Investment 
Farms/Grazing 13 Investment 
Fishings 1 Investment 
Land for Future Development 3 Investment 
Offices 7 Investment 
Premises (Industrial) 23 Investment 
Public Houses 6 Investment 
Shops 106 Investment 
Site for Golf Course or Clubhouse 4 Investment 
Sites - Ground Lease (Misc.) 9 Investment 
Sites - Ground Lease (Industrial) 64 Investment 
Sites � Ground Lease (Shop) 18 Investment 
Sites � Ground Lease (Shopping Centre) 2 Investment 
Telecom. Sites 7 Investment 

2.2 Each property Asset Type on the above table has been put into three 
basic categories, namely:- 

 
a) - Investment properties are those held with the primary aim 
of providing the City Council with revenue income; 

 
b) - Economic Development properties are those held with the 
primary aim of fostering economic development by providing 

Page 291



3

property leasing opportunities for the benefit of new, start-up 
businesses; and 

 
c) - Social properties are those held with the primary aim of 
providing property leasing opportunities for the benefit of local 
communities.  
 

In the remainder of this report, the Asset Types that aren�t specifically 
discussed are:- Children�s Homes, Civic Amenity Sites, Club Rooms, 
Electricity Sub-Station Sites, Garages (Lock Up), Gas Governor Sites, Group 
Homes, Halls, Health Centres, Hostels, Leisure Facilities, Outdoor Sports 
Facilities, Refuse Tips, Sites � Ground Lease (Amenity), Sites � Ground 
Lease (Garage), Sports Centres and Stores. 
 
The reasons for excluding these are that they are either leased to third parties 
for the provision of non-commercial services (e.g. Children�s Homes) or are 
de minimis (e.g. Sites Ground Lease {Amenity}). That isn�t to say that some of 
these Asset Types don�t have substantial capital values. In order to realise 
these, however, the City Council would require to make a decision to 
discontinue their present uses at the end of their existing leases (e.g. Group 
Homes, Halls) rather than continue their present use. In the context of this 
report, however this would have a relatively minor financial effect.  
 
The Asset Types that are further discussed here and potentially would  have 
an early realisable capital value in their present use are:- Advertising Sites, 
Business Centres, Car Parks, Factories (Advance), Farms/Grazing, Fishings, 
Land for Future Development, Offices, Premises Industrial, Public Houses, 
Shops, Sites for Golf Course or Clubhouses, Sites - Ground Lease (Misc.), 
Sites - Ground Lease (Industrial), Sites - Ground Lease (Shop), Site Ground 
Lease (Shopping Centre) and Telecom Sites. 
 

Page 292



4

3. General Comments on Performance of Assets 
 
Appendix A summarises the performance of each asset group. Assets have 
not been assessed on an individual basis, so generalisations have been 
made. In some cases this will mean that significant differences between 
individual assets will not be evident. 
 
Advertising Sites � (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £379,600, Current 
aggregate rents = £71,088).These are often marginal sites that, if they weren�t 
used for the erection of advertising hoardings, wouldn�t have an obvious 
alternative use that could generate revenue income or a capital receipt. There 
might be reasons why the City Council doesn't want to sell individual sites, 
e.g. road improvements, but potentially individual sites might be of interest to 
the advertising Companies who currently lease them. Because of the national 
recession the demand for these sites isn�t as strong as it might have been, a 
few years ago.  

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Business Centres - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £866,000 Current 
aggregate rents £88,021) No significant investment has taken place in these 
properties in the last 10 years. There is a need to investigate whether or not 
these properties are fulfilling the functions for which they were originally 
developed.  

 
Recommendations
Ongoing review to be completed at an early date. 
 

Car Parks � (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £773,600, Current 
aggregate rents = £68,441).This consists of 12 sites, which is a mix of car 
parks, garage sites and individual car park spaces. They produce a 
reasonable aggregate rental and, in many cases, they wouldn�t have an 
obvious alternative use. In capital terms these leases wouldn�t have an 
obvious appeal to an institutional investor but might be more appealing to their 
present tenants.  

 
Recommendation 
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Factories-Advance - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £11,623,250, 
Current aggregate rents = £1,330,065). The majority are in Dyce and have 
been strong performers over many years, with minimal voids and good rental 
growth that doesn't seem to be affected by the fact that some of them are very 
old-fashioned, by modern standards. There is a need to investigate if capital 
expenditure (as a spend to save) might not accelerate growth.  

 

Page 293



5

Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Farms - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £860,790, Current aggregate 
rents = £33,860). Farms are retained for their development potential, with 
rental income being low. It is therefore difficult to assess their performance. 

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Fishings - (Current Asset Valuation = £34,000, Current rent = £1,750). These 
are Fishing rights to part of the River Dee.  

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Land for Future Development - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = 
£2,176,000 Current aggregate rents = £0). This is a small grouping of 
potential development sites; it may be that some of them will fall into the 
Development Company proposals. As such, any analysis of their present 
revenue performance is probably inappropriate, at this point. 

 
Recommendation
Retain and manage these properties, in the short-term and pursue all options 
to promote their change of use to a financially more lucrative alternative. 
 

Offices � (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £4,660,475, Current 
aggregate rents = £392,495). Even within the grouping these properties are 
remarkably varied. As a packaged portfolio they provide a reasonable 
investment portfolio. Two of these properties are more esoteric and may not 
be suitable for disposal.  

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Premises Industrial � (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £9,661,100, 
Current aggregate rents = £727,089). This includes a variety of assets 
including a number of buildings in Dyce which perform well. There are assets 
within this groupings which do not perform so well. So it may be able to 
identify assets for potential disposal.  
 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Page 294



6

Public Houses - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £1,223,800, Current 
aggregate rents = £82,501). These are pubs and the sites on which pubs are 
built, leased on a variety of short-term and long-term leases. There are a few 
good properties on the list, producing good secure rental income, which might 
be of interest to an institutional investor, or the sitting tenants, if the City 
Council was ever minded to contemplate their sale. 

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Shops - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £6,042,500 Current aggregate 
rents = £671,705) A large number of these shops are located in Council 
House schemes, where as part of their original planning, the statutory 
predecessor of the City Council determined to create parades of shops for the 
local community. For many years, this worked well and the shops were fully 
let with conventional mixes of tenants (e.g. butcher, baker, grocer, newsagent 
etc.) In the last 15 � 20 years, however, as retail spending patterns have 
changed in Britain, the conventional shop tenants have largely ended their 
leases, moved out or ceased trading altogether and left the shops to be 
leased by a more varied, unconventional mix of new tenants.  

 
Advising on these properties is difficult. On one hand their management takes 
up a lot of staff time. Many of the scheme shops are in poor trading locations 
with low rents, second-rate tenants (from the point of view of rental income 
security), a greater tendency to voids and little or no rental growth. On the 
other hand, the City Council�s retained contractor for valuation services, 
Messrs. Ryden, Chartered Surveyors, are sceptical that, in present market 
conditions, anyone would want to purchase these parades of shops, or small 
shopping centres (or if they did, would make us low capital offers).  

 
To gauge the interest in such assets it would seem reasonable to carry out a 
�market testing� exercise. For example, if we offered to sell our parade of six 
tenanted shops at Summerhill Drive, (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = 
£135,800, Current aggregate rents = £25,950) we would gain a direct insight 
into the strength or weakness of present market conditions, that would help us 
to decide on future strategy. 
 
The few exceptions to this are Belmont Street shops a group of shops in 
George Street, (which are categorised as sounder, more secure leases) and 
four cafes on the Beach Esplanade (which are always fully let and produce 
good revenue income).   

 
Recommendations
Report to Finance & Resources Committee with a list of shops to be disposed 
and a phased programme for their disposal. 
 

Sites for Golf Course or Clubhouses - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation 
= £362,000, Current aggregate rents = £31,410). These are long-term ground 

Page 295



7

leases to Golf Clubs. The sites don�t have obvious alternative, more financially 
lucrative, uses and their modest aggregate rentals are the best presently 
achievable, in the circumstances. In view of the current depressed capital 
value for golf courses (and arguably the over-supply of golf courses in the 
Aberdeen area), it's hard to see that these properties would be of interest to 
an institutional investor, though the potential purchase of the ground leases 
may be of interest to the Clubs themselves.  

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Sites - Ground Lease (Miscellaneous) - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation 
= £7,537,00, Current aggregate rents = £492,649) There are a few valuable 
sites on the list, specifically at the Beach and the Exhibition Centre, which 
produce a good revenue return. Whether the City Council would ever 
contemplate selling sites at either location, for strategic reasons, is another 
question. The A.E.C.C. site is included in the Development Company's 
proposals.  

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Sites - Ground Lease (Industrial) - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = 
£20,873,100, Current aggregate rents = £1,126,980). These ground leases 
have earned the City Council many millions, in revenue income, over the 
years and there�s every reason to expect them to go on providing strong, 
secure revenue income into the future.  
 
Sites held on the Property Account, includes sites in Cotton Street, Crombie 
Road and the Bridge of Don that again gives us strong, secure revenue 
income. In capital terms, these ground leases might form part of a potential 
portfolio offer, but this would need further investigation.  
 
The City Council's interest in the sites of the Science and Energy/ 
Science & Technology Parks is a good asset where the ground rent received 
is directly linked to the number of sub-leases granted by the tenant/ 
developer. Apart from the potential value of this property asset to an 
institutional investor it may have an extra �marriage� value to the current 
tenant/ developer.  

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Site Ground Leases (Shop) - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = 
£943,500, Current aggregate rents = £83,691). The majority of these sites are 
within Housing schemes and can be viewed in the same way as the shops 
above.  

Page 296



8

Recommendation
Report to Finance & Resources Committee with a list of sites to be disposed 
and a phased programme for their disposal. 
 

Site Ground Lease (Shopping Centre) � (Current aggregate Asset 
Valuation = £5,680,000, Current aggregate rents = £398,419). 
These are the ground leases for the Bon Accord and St. Nicholas Centres. 
Revenue income is calculated by a formula in which the aggregate rentals 
paid by individual shop tenancies in the two Shopping Centres is the main 
component.  
 
Scottish Retail Partnership expressed an interest in purchasing the Council�s 
interest in the past but it never progressed. At present, shopping centre 
investments look a lot less attractive to institutional investors than they did a 
couple of years ago. This potential sale might be worth further investigation 
but my advice would be retaining the revenue income, at least at present, is 
the more attractive option. 
 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Telecom Sites - (Current aggregate Asset Valuation = £180,400, Current 
aggregate rents = £30,975). As per Advertising Sites.  

 
Recommendation
Retain and programme detailed review. 
 

Page 297



9

4. Future Strategy 
 
Due to the extensive and varied make-up of the Council�s portfolio it is difficult 
to draw up a strategy which encompasses all the different property types. It is 
for that reason that it is recommended that specific strategies are prepared.  
 
There are however other non property factors which require to be determined, 
which will have major influences on these strategies. These include;- 
 

a) The Investment Portfolio�s relationship with the emerging Development 
Company. 

 
b) The desire of the Council to maximise either its revenue or capital 

streams. 
 

c) The extent of additional capital that can be identified to strengthen the 
portfolio�s performance. 

 
d) The need to explore how the portfolio can be utilised, working in 

partnership with third parties including possible joint ventures. 
 

e) Recognising the current economic environment with the associated 
potential difficulties in disposing of property assets.  

 

Page 298



10

5. Recommendations 
 
From this high level analysis there are three key tasks that have been 
identified:- 
 

1) Report to the Finance & Resources Committee in early course on the 
potential disposal of Shops and Ground Lease (Shops). 

 
2) Quickly agree a programme of review in conjunction with the Head of 

Finance, with a view to completing within 18 months. 
 

3) Report to the Finance & Resources Committee on the findings of the 
review. 

 

Page 299



A
p
p
en
d
ix
A
-
T
en
an
te
d
N
o
n
-R
es
id
en
ti
al
P
ro
p
er
ty
R
ev
ie
w
20
10

G
o
o
d
=

M
ed
iu
m
=

P
o
o
r
=

A
ss
et
T
yp
es

A
ss
et
V
al
u
e

20
10

R
ev
en
u
e

In
co
m
e

E
as
e
o
f

M
an
ag
em
en
t

R
en
ta
lG
ro
w
th

P
ro
sp
ec
ts

D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t

P
o
te
n
ti
al

M
ar
ke
ta
b
ili
ty

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s

A
dv
er
tis
in
g
S
ite
s
(8
)

£3
79
,6
00

£7
1,
08
8

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

B
us
in
es
s
C
en

tr
es

(2
)

£8
66
,0
00

£8
8,
02
1

R
ev
ie
w
O
ng

oi
ng

C
ar

P
ar
ks

(1
2)

£7
73
,6
00

£6
8,
44
1

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

F
ac
to
rie

s
(A
dv
an
ce
)
(8
7)

£1
1,
62
3,
25
0

£1
,3
30
,0
65

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

F
ar
m
s
(1
3)

£8
60
,7
90

£3
3,
86
0

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

F
is
hi
ng
s
(1
)

£3
4,
00
0

£1
,7
50

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

La
nd

fo
r
F
ut
ur
e
D
ev
el
op

m
en

t
(3
)

£2
,1
76
,0
00

£0
N
/A

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

O
ffi
ce
s
(7
)

£4
,6
60
,4
75

£3
92
,4
95

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

P
re
m
is
es

(I
nd

us
tr
ia
l)
(2
3)

£9
,6
61
,1
00

£7
27
,0
89

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

P
ub

lic
H
ou

se
s
(6
)

£1
,2
23
,8
00

£8
2,
50
1

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

S
ho

ps
(1
06

)
£6
,0
42
,5
00

£6
71
,7
05

R
ep

or
to

n
D
is
po

sa
l

S
ite

fo
r
G
ol
fC

ou
rs
e
or

C
lu
bh
ou

se
(4
)

£3
62
,0
00

£3
1,
40
1

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

S
ite
s
-
G
ro
un
d
Le

as
e
(M

is
c.
)
(9
)

£7
,5
37
,0
00

£4
92
,6
49

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

S
ite
s
-
G
ro
un
d
Le

as
e
(I
nd

us
tr
ia
l)
(6
4)

£2
0,
87
3,
10
0

£1
,1
26
,9
80

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

S
ite
s
�
G
ro
un

d
Le

as
e
(S
ho

p)
(1
8)

£9
43
,5
00

£8
3,
69
1

R
ep

or
to

n
D
is
po

sa
l

S
ite
s
�
G
ro
un

d
Le

as
e
(S
ho

pp
in
g
C
en
tr
e)

(2
)

£5
,6
80
,0
00

£3
98
,4
19

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

T
el
ec
om

.S
ite
s
(7
)

£1
80
,4
00

£3
0,
97
5

R
et
ai
n
&
R
ev
ie
w

A
ss
et
V
al
u
e

R
ev
en
u
e
In
co
m
e

E
as
e
o
f
M
an
ag
em
en
t

R
en
ta
lG
ro
w
th
P
ro
sp
ec
ts

D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t
P
o
te
n
ti
al

M
ar
ke
ta
b
ili
ty

A
pr
of
es
si
on

al
as
se
ss
m
en

to
ft
he

liq
ui
di
ty
of

th
e
as
se
tw

he
n
co
m
pa

re
d
w
ith

th
e
re
st
of

th
e
pr
op

er
ty
se
ct
or

i.e
.l
ik
el
y
m
ar
ke
td

em
an

d
an

d
ea

se
of

sa
le
.

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s

A
su
m
m
ar
y
of

th
e
re
po

rt
re
co
m
m
en

da
tio
ns
.

N
ot
e:

T
hi
s
sp
re
ad

sh
ee

ts
ho

ul
d
be

re
ad

in
co
nj
un

ct
io
n
w
ith

th
e
C
om

m
er
ci
al
P
ro
pe

rt
y
R
ev
ie
w
.T

he
ca
te
go
ris
at
io
n
of
di
ffe

re
nt

as
pe

ct
s
of

A
ss
et

T
yp
es

as
"P
oo

r"
,"
M
ed

iu
m
"
or

"G
oo

d"
is
a
"b
ro
ad

br
us
h"

as
se
ss
m
en

t.
W
ith
in
ea

ch
A
ss
et

T
yp
e
th
er
e
m
ay

be
in
di
vi
du

al
pr
op

er
ty
le
as
es

w
he

re
th
e
as
se
ss
m
en

td
oe

sn
't
ap
pl
y.

A
pr
of
es
si
on

al
as
se
ss
m
en

to
ff
ut
ur
e
re
nt
al
gr
ow

th
ba

se
d
on

pa
ss
in
g
re
nt
,r
ev
ie
w
pa

tte
rn
s,
cu
rr
en

te
st
im
at
ed

re
nt
al
va
lu
e
an

d
re
ce
nt

m
ar
ke
tt
re
nd

s.

G
oo

d,
M
ed

iu
m

an
d
P
oo

r
is
an

as
se
ss
m
en

to
ft
he

po
te
nt
ia
la
lte
rn
at
iv
e
us
es

w
hi
ch

m
ay

le
ad

to
im
pr
ov
ed

as
se
tp

er
fo
rm

an
ce
.

T
he

C
ap

ita
lV

al
ua

tio
n
as

as
se
ss
ed

in
th
e
20

10
A
ss
et

V
al
ua

tio
n.

T
he

re
ve
nu

e
in
co
m
e
at

th
e
tim

e
of

20
10

A
ss
et

V
al
ua

tio
n.

G
oo

d,
M
ed

iu
m

an
d
P
oo

r
is
an

as
se
ss
m
en

to
ft
he

am
ou

nt
of

tim
e
an

d
ef
fo
rt
ex
pe

nd
ed

by
of
fic
er
s
in
m
an

ag
in
g
th
es
e
pr
op

er
tie
s.
G
oo

d
m
ea

ns
a
pr
op

er
ty

th
at

do
es
n'
tn

ee
d
m
uc
h
m
an

ag
em

en
ti
nt
er
ve
nt
io
n
ot
he

r
th
an

le
as
e
te
rm

in
at
io
ns
,r
en

tr
ev
ie
w
s
et
c.
M
ed

iu
m
m
ea

ns
a
pr
op

er
ty
th
at

ne
ed

s
so
m
e

m
an

ag
em

en
ti
nt
er
ve
nt
io
n.

P
oo

r
m
ea

ns
a
pr
op

er
ty
th
at

re
qu

ire
s
a
lo
to

fm
an

ag
em

en
tt
im
e.

Page 300



A
pp
en
di
x
4
-
T
N
R
P
Q
ue
st
io
nn
ai
re
R
es
ul
ts

Q
ue
st
io
n

R
es
po
ns
e

T
ot
al

P
er
ce
nt
ag
e

S
ec
tio
n
A

1.
H

o
w

o
ft

en
d

o
yo

u
co

n
ta

ct
th

e
A

ss
et

P
o

lic
y

(N
o

n
H

o
u

si
n

g
)

S
ec

ti
o

n
Le
ss

29
63
%

M
on
th
ly

5
11
%

6
M
on
th
ly

9
20
%

M
or
e

3
7%

46
2.

F
o

r
w

h
at

p
u

rp
o

se
h

av
e

yo
u

co
n

ta
ct

ed
th

e
A

ss
et

P
o

lic
y

(N
o

n
H

o
u

si
n

g
)

S
ec

ti
o

n

In
vo
ic
in
g

10
16
%

R
ep
ai
rs

22
36
%

Le
as
e
T
er
m
s

17
28
%

O
th
er

12
20
%

B
ro
ke
n
lo
ck
s,
B
re
ak
in
s,
U
nt
id
y
Y
ar
d

61
3.

H
o

w
d

o
yo

u
g

en
er

al
ly

co
n

ta
ct

th
e

A
ss

et
P

o
lic

y
(N

o
n

H
o

u
si

n
g

)
S

ec
ti

o
n

T
el
ep
ho
ne

38
69
%

F
ax

1
2%

E
m
ai
l

13
24
%

Le
tte
r

3
5%

V
is
it

55
S
tu
ar
t's
w
ee
kl
y
at
te
nd
an
ce

4.
D

o
yo

u
kn

o
w

w
h

o
m

to
co

n
ta

ct
re

g
ar

d
in

g
th

e
p

ro
p

er
ty

in
cl

u
d

in
g

te
l.

n
o

./
fa

x
n

o
./

em
ai

l/
ad

d
re

ss

Y
es

39
83
%

N
o

8
17
%

no
tn
ot
ifi
ed
of
ch
an
ge
s

47
5.

W
h

at
is

yo
u

r
o

p
in

io
n

o
f

th
e

d
ay

to
d

ay
se

rv
ic

e
th

at
yo

u
re

ce
iv

e?

E
xc
el
le
nt

9
20
%

G
oo
d

32
71
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

3
7%

P
oo
r

1
2%

Page 301



A
pp
en
di
x
4
-
T
N
R
P
Q
ue
st
io
nn
ai
re
R
es
ul
ts

45
6.

W
h

at
is

yo
u

r
o

p
in

io
n

o
f

th
e

sp
ee

d
at

w
h

ic
h

yo
u

r
q

u
er

ie
s

ar
e

d
ea

lt
w

it
h

?

E
xc
el
le
nt

0
0%

G
oo
d

6
14
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

32
74
%

P
oo
r

5
12
%

43
7.

W
h

at
is

yo
u

r
o

ve
ra

ll
ex

p
er

ie
n

ce
o

f
b

ei
n

g
a

C
o

u
n

ci
lt

en
an

t?

E
xc
el
le
nt

5
11
%

G
oo
d

37
80
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

3
7%

P
oo
r

1
2%

46
8.

A
re

yo
u

aw
ar

e
o

f
al

ly
o

u
r

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
as

te
n

an
t

in
te

rm
s

o
f

th
e

le
as

e?

Y
es

43
93
%

N
o

3
7%

46
9.

W
h

at
is

yo
u

r
o

p
in

io
n

o
f

th
e

re
n

t
in

vo
ic

in
g

an
d

co
lle

ct
io

n
p

ro
ce

ss
?

E
xc
el
le
nt

8
21
%

G
oo
d

28
72
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

3
8%

P
oo
r

0
0%

39
10

.W
h

at
is

yo
u

r
o

p
in

io
n

o
f

th
e

se
rv

ic
e

p
ro

vi
d

ed
b

y
th

e
A

ss
et

P
o

lic
y

(N
o

n
H

o
u

si
n

g
)

in
m

ee
ti

n
g

yo
u

r
b

u
si

n
es

s�
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

E
xc
el
le
nt

6
13
%

G
oo
d

38
83
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

1
2%

P
oo
r

1
2%

46

Page 302



A
pp
en
di
x
4
-
T
N
R
P
Q
ue
st
io
nn
ai
re
R
es
ul
ts

11
.W

h
at

is
yo

u
r

o
ve

ra
ll

o
p

in
io

n
o

f
th

e
A

ss
et

P
o

lic
y

(N
o

n
H

o
u

si
n

g
)

S
ec

ti
o

n
o

f
A

b
er

d
ee

n
C

it
y

C
o

u
n

ci
la

s
a

la
n

d
lo

rd
?

in
it

s
d

ea
lin

g
s

w
it

h
yo

u
?

E
xc
el
le
nt

6
14
%

G
oo
d

35
81
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

1
2%

P
oo
r

1
2%

43
12

.D
o

yo
u

co
n

si
d

er
th

at
th

e
A

ss
et

P
o

lic
y

(N
o

n
H

o
u

si
n

g
)

S
ec

ti
o

n
in

th
e

ro
le

as
yo

u
r

la
n

d
lo

rd
is

fa
ir

an
d

re
as

o
n

ab
le

Y
es

40
95
%

N
o

2
5%

N
ot
ha
d
a
lo
to
fd
ea
lin
gs

42
13

.W
h

er
e

w
o

u
ld

yo
u

lo
o

k
fo

r
co

m
m

er
ci

al
p

re
m

is
es

to
le

t?
N
ow
he
re
el
se

14
.D

o
yo

u
u

se
th

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l�s
w

eb
si

te
an

d
if

so
w

h
at

fo
r?

Y
es

11
27
%

N
o

30
73
%

C
ou
nc
il
co
nt
ra
ct
or
in
da
ily
co
nt
ac
t

41

S
ec
tio
n
B

1.
W

h
er

e
d

id
yo

u
h

ea
r

ab
o

u
t

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l�s

co
m

m
er

ci
al

p
re

m
is

es
?

A
dv
er
t

2.
W

h
at

is
yo

u
r

o
p

in
io

n
o

f
th

e
h

el
p

an
d

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

yo
u

re
ce

iv
ed

fr
o

m
o

ff
ic

er
s

in
d

ea
lin

g
w

it
h

yo
u

ri
n

it
ia

ls
ea

rc
h

fo
r

p
re

m
is

es
?

E
xc
el
le
nt

3
30
%

G
oo
d

7
70
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

0
0%

P
oo
r

0
0%

10

Page 303



A
pp
en
di
x
4
-
T
N
R
P
Q
ue
st
io
nn
ai
re
R
es
ul
ts

3.
W

er
e

o
ff

ic
er

s
p

o
lit

e
an

d
co

u
rt

eo
u

s
in

d
ea

lin
g

w
it

h
yo

u
r

en
q

u
ir

y?

E
xc
el
le
nt

5
50
%

G
oo
d

5
50
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

0
0%

P
oo
r

0
0%

10
4.

W
h

at
is

yo
u

r
o

p
in

io
n

o
f

th
e

ti
m

e
ta

ke
n

b
et

w
ee

n
yo

u
r

en
q

u
ir

y
an

d
yo

u
r

ta
ki

n
g

en
tr

y
to

th
e

p
re

m
is

es
?

E
xc
el
le
nt

4
44
%

G
oo
d

4
44
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

1
11
%

P
oo
r

0
0%

9
5.

N
o

w
th

at
yo

u
ar

e
in

o
cc

u
p

at
io

n
,d

o
yo

u
fe

el
th

at
o

ff
ic

er
s

su
p

p
lie

d
en

o
u

g
h

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

to
en

ab
le

a
sm

o
o

th
tr

an
si

ti
o

n
to

o
cc

u
p

an
cy

?

E
xc
el
le
nt

4
40
%

G
oo
d

6
60
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

0
0%

P
oo
r

0
0%

10
6.

H
o

w
w

o
u

ld
yo

u
ra

te
yo

u
r

sa
ti

sf
ac

ti
o

n
w

it
h

th
e

p
ro

ce
ss

fr
o

m
st

ar
t

to
fi

n
is

h
?

E
xc
el
le
nt

4
40
%

G
oo
d

6
60
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

0
0%

P
oo
r

0
0%

10

7.
D

u
ri

n
g

th
e

in
it

ia
lp

er
io

d
o

f
yo

u
r

te
n

an
cy

d
id

yo
u

re
q

u
ir

e
an

y
su

p
p

o
rt

fr
o

m
th

e
A

ss
et

P
o

lic
y

(N
o

n
H

o
u

si
n

g
)

S
ec

ti
o

n
?

If
�y

es
�w

h
at

is
yo

u
r

o
p

in
io

n
o

f
th

e
su

p
p

o
rt

g
iv

en
?

Page 304



A
pp
en
di
x
4
-
T
N
R
P
Q
ue
st
io
nn
ai
re
R
es
ul
ts

N
o

4
40
%

Y
es

6
60
%

10

E
xc
el
le
nt

1
25
%

G
oo
d

3
75
%

U
ns
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

0
0%

P
oo
r

0
0%

4
8.

D
id

yo
u

en
co

u
n

te
r

an
y

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r

p
ro

b
le

m
s

in
re

sp
ec

t
o

f
th

e
le

as
in

g
p

ro
ce

ss
?

If
�y

es
�,

p
le

as
e

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

et
ai

ls
b

el
o

w
.

Y
es

0
0%

N
o

9
10
0%

9
9.

D
o

yo
u

co
n

si
d

er
th

at
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

co
u

ld
b

e
m

ad
e

to
th

e
o

ve
ra

ll
p

ro
ce

ss
,w

h
ic

h
w

o
u

ld
h

el
p

fu
tu

re
p

ro
sp

ec
ti

ve
te

n
an

ts
?

If
�y

es
�,

p
le

as
e

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

et
ai

ls
b

el
o

w
.

Y
es

1
11
%

N
o

8
89
%

9

Page 305



Appendix 5 � Surplus Assets Summary 

Appendix 5 � Surplus Assets Summary 
 

Property Address Date 
Surplus 

Current Activity 
 

20 Whinhill Road Feb 06 Sold for £925,000 on 15 March 2010 
 

Bon Accord Baths Mar 08 Currently on Market - Little active interest. 
To be reviewed. 
 

Summerhill 
Academy 

N/A Preferred bidder approved. 
Subject of Report to Committee on 28 September 2010. 
 

2 West Craibstone 
Street 
 

28/11/08 Under Offer 
 

11 Fonthill Terrace 25/09/08 Sold for £430,000 on 12 August 2010. 
 

Carden School Feb 10 Availability has been circulated. 
Option appraisal is being undertaken. 
 

Woodlands Special 
School 

08/10/09 Ground Lease interest only on relatively restrictive terms.  
Currently under review. 
 

58 Polmuir Road 25/11/08 Sold for £405,500 on 06 September 2010. 
 

Former Ruthrieston 
Depot 

19/08/08 Under Offer 
 

Former Johnston 
Gardens East Depot 

05/02/09 Under Offer - Awaiting planning consent 
 

54/55 Springbank 
Terrace 

05/05/09 Under Offer - Awaiting planning consent 
 

Victoria House 26/02/08 Authority to transfer to HRA. To be considered by Housing 
& Environment Committee on 24 August 2010. Thereafter, 
if authority is obtained from that Committee, approval from 
Scottish Minister is required. 
 

Former Public Toilet, 
Old Aberdeen 

19/11/08 Authority to market.Closing date of 03 August 2010. 
Subject of Report to Committee on 28 September 2010. 
 

17 Affleck Street 26/08/08 Under Offer 
 

Former Leadside 
Road Community 
Hall 

21/11/06 Authority to market. 
Awaiting resolution of tenancy issue for adjoining property 
to facilitate joint marketing. 
 

St Peter�s Nursery 08/10/09 Authority to market. Closing date of 03 August 2010. 
Subject of Report to Committee on 28 September 2010. 
 

Croft House 
 

27/05/09 Transfer to HRA approved. Currently awaiting Scottish 
Minister approval. 
 

Page 306



Appendix 5 � Surplus Assets Summary 

 

Aberdon House 
 

27/05/09 Transfer to HRA approved. Currently awaiting Scottish 
Minister approval. 
 

Weavers Shed 08/10/09 Awaiting advice of Head of Legal on access difficulties and 
title. 
 

Former Broadhill 
Depot 
 

08/10/09 Demolition costs being considered at present. 
 

Hazlehead Lodge 08/10/09 Options for future use under consideration given location 
within Park. 
 

105 - 107 Urquhart 
Road 
 

21/12/07 Planning Brief approved by the Development Sub-
Committee on 17 June 2010. Subject of a Bulletin Report 
to Committee on 28 September 2010. 
 

Park House, 
Westburn Road 

Feb 07 Lease to CLAN approved 11 May 2010 with occupancy of 
site taken by them on 01 August 2010. 
 

Causeywayend 
Primary School 

01/03/10 Draft Planning Brief completed. Awaiting submission to 
appropriate meeting of Development Sub-Committee. 
 

Victoria Road 
Primary School, 
Torry 
 

08/10/09 HRA confirmation that no longer interested. Currently 
under consideration by City Development Company. 

26-38 Union Street N/A Sale of airspace.  Applicant has requested time extension.  
Unlikely to proceed. 
 

Tarves Road, Bridge 
of Don. 

Not 
surplus 

Option with developer subject to new Local Development 
Plan. Extension to option being considered. 
 

Hilton Nursery 
School 

08/10/09 Surplus asset only part of building. Decision to be made on 
adjoining site (CLDC). Part of building leased to NHS, 
discussions have been initiated on relocation.  
 

St Fitticks (Kirkhill) 
Farmhouse 

Oct. 99 Number of options under consideration including HRA use 
and marine study centre. 
 

Former Grove 
Cemetery Lodge 

28/01/10 Approval to market, however, resolution of issues 
concerning establishment of boundaries and of the 
adjoining Operational Properties currently being pursued. 
 

Page 307



Page 308

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Fiona’s H Drive/Committee Reports/Brodies Extension 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   FINANCE & RESOURCES     
 
DATE     28th September 2010   
 
DIRECTOR    STEWART CARRUTH     
 
TITLE OF REPORT  LEGAL SERVICES – ARRANGEMENTS FOR 
    EXTERNAL PROVISION OF SERVICES  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  CG10/176     
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report seeks approval of Committee to extend the Council’s 
contract for the provision of external legal services with Brodies LLP for 
a six-month period to allow future delivery of these services to be 
considered and re-tendered for as appropriate. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
  
 It is recommended that the Committee:- 
 
 (a) Approves the extension of the external legal services contract with 
Brodies LLP for a six-month period from 1st October 2010 to 31st March 
2011. 

 
 (b) Notes that a further report will be submitted to Committee prior to 
inviting future tenders for the approval of estimated expenditure to be 
incurred. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The original contract with Brodies LLP was fully tendered.    The 
estimated cost of a six-month’s extension of the contract is likely to be 
in the region of £400,000 based on costs over the last two years.   This 
will be managed to ensure a limited amount of new work is referred 
and that the majority of costs will represent work in progress. 
 
The services to date have been funded from various sources, including 
allocation of fees against project budgets, from unfilled staff positions 
and offset against Capital receipts. 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 309



 

Fiona’s H Drive/Committee Reports/Brodies Extension 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The use of external legal agents reduces the corporate risk to the 
Council and provides assistance in more complex legal transactions 
and specialized areas of the law. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
The Council entered into a contract for the provision of external legal 
services with Brodies LLP in October 2005 for a period of five years.   
No specific volume of work is guaranteed to the provider and the 
services are called upon on an as-and-when-necessary basis 
depending on the extent/complexity of the transaction. 
 
Legal and Democratic Services, like other services, are currently 
engaged in the Priority Based Budgeting exercise.   It is thought 
prudent to examine the preferred options emerging from this exercise 
prior to undertaking a further tendering exercise.   Furthermore, given 
the timescales required to re-tender services, a six-month extension to 
the existing contract is required whilst future delivery is assessed. 
 
It should also be noted that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
has engaged in preliminary discussions with her counterparts in 
Aberdeenshire and Moray Councils, Police and Fire, with a view to 
preparing a tender notice which would include these bodies.    It is 
envisaged that a contract for the provision of legal services for a 
number of public bodies would lead to a reduction in rates to be 
charged by a provider. 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

NONE 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Jane MacEachran 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
E-mail:  janem@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
Tel:  (01224) 523097 

 
 
 

Page 310



 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Finance and Resources DATE 28.09.10 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Property Services – Contract Extension and re-tender 
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/10/242 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report  updates the Committee on the current provision of valuation and 
other property services, advises on the proposed re-tendering exercise for these 
replacement of services and seeks an extension to the current contract to tie in 
with the Council asset valuation cycle and to meet the timescales for contract re-
tendering.   
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
It is recommended that the Committee :- 
 

a) Approves the extension of the Property Valuation Services Contract with 
Ryden LLP from 1 December 2010 until 30 March 2011.  The current 
contract allows an extension to November 2011 if required. 

b) Note the position with regard to the re-tendering of services.  The post of 
Head of Service Resource Development and Delivery will now be 
undertaken by the Head of Asset Management and Operations. 

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
A budget is found for each valuation exercise currently instructed on an 
instruction by instruction basis, these being a mixture of capital and revenue 
costs from Asset Management and Service budgets.  
 
The extension of the current contract to 30 March 2010 will align the contract with 
the most significant piece of work this being the five yearly (quinquennial) asset 
valuation exercise.  
 
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
The continued appointment of an external property consultant will enable the 
Asset Policy (non-housing) section to support other services in ensuring the 
efficient use of Property Assets. 

Agenda Item 10.2

Page 311



 
 
 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 

 
Whilst a degree of work can be outsourced to the consultant, significant staff time 
is required to properly instruct, manage and monitor the consultants. 
 
The use of external property consultants reduces the corporate risk to the 
Council when compared with advice from internal staff.  This should be 
considered against the risks associated with internal staff having a lower level of 
market interaction and potentially, over a period of time, a weakened skill set 
when external consultants are used.  These issues continue to be monitored and 
have been considered as part of the priority based budgeting exercise. 
 
 
6. REPORT 
 
On 12 November 2009 a report was presented to the Finance and Resources 
Committee entitled ‘External Property Valuation Consultants – EPI/09/103’.  The 
Committee resolved to:-  
 

(a) Approves the extension of the Property Valuation Services Contract with 
Ryden LLP for a 12 month period from 1 December 2009 to 30 November 
2010. 

 
(b) Authorises the Head of Resources Development and Delivery to 

undertake tender exercises, in consultation with the Head of Procurement 
and the City Solicitor, for the appointment of one or more external 
consultants to provide various property services to the Council as detailed 
in this Report. 

 
Since this report was approved there has been an ongoing restructuring of the 
Asset Management and Operations and alternative delivery options for a number 
of functions have been considered.  Detailed discussions have also been 
advanced with the Council’s Central Procurement Unit and other Local 
Authorities with regard to models for outsourcing property services. 
 
The outcome of these deliberations is that it is now recommended that the most 
cost effective solutions to engaging new consultants would be via single 
tendering exercise rather than the 3seperate exercises (Rating, Asset Valuation 
and General Property Services) identified in the previous report.  It is considered 
that a single tendering exercise conducted in 3 lots is the best course of action. 
One external contractor will be instructed to undertake the Rating Revaluation 
Appeals, one contractor will be appointed for the next 4 years Asset Valuation 
and a framework agreement will be put in place for up to 5 external contractors 
for general property advice. 
 
The most significant revenue cost implication relates to the Quinquennial Asset 
Valuation.  Procurement legislation states that the maximum period for a 
framework agreement is 4 years except in exceptional circumstances.  In terms 

Page 312



 
of the current cycle 2010/11 represents the HRA account which is independent of 
the other cycles.  As such if the Asset Valuation exercise was to be tendered for 
a 4 year period the most appropriate year to exclude in 2010/11.  According the 
most obvious timescale to tender for this is for the financial year 2011/12 for a 4 
year period. 
 
Based on the above a revised procurement timetable has been discussed.  This 
will be by way of a 2 step process involving and initial Pre-tender Questionnaire 
(PTQ) followed by and Invitation to tender (ITT).  It is the intention of officers to 
issue the tender documents during September with final submissions in 
December, evaluation in January, allowing commencement in April 2010. 
 
Consideration has also been given to utilising other property services 
Frameworks including the appointment of the District Valuer (Valuation Office 
Agency - VOA) and the Buying Solutions framework agreement.  It is felt that the 
VOA does not offer the full range of services required and the fee agreements 
attached to Buying Solutions are deemed to be higher than current market rates, 
with limited local contractor participation.  I(f required these other frameworks 
could be used on a case by case basis. 
 
The appointment of Rating Advisors to appeal against the 2010 revaluation was 
previously discussed as being a joint instruction with Aberdeenshire Council.  
This along with other aspects of the Contract is still being considered by the 
‘Shire’.  In the meantime Valuation Notices have been served on all properties 
which have seen significant rises in some asset categories.  At this stage Council 
staff have submitted a block appeal on all Council occupied properties until such 
time as advisors are instructed. 
 
In relation to the extension of current arrangements Ryden LLP were appointed 
from 1 December 2007 to 30 November 2009.  The contract allows the Council to 
extend the contract for a maximum of two, 12-month periods i.e. for a total 
maximum period of 2 years and their first extension was from December 2009 to 
November 2010.  It is proposed to extend now until 30 March 2011.  Officers 
remain satisfied with the service delivered by Ryden, although it is necessary to 
re-tender future service provision in order to comply with the public contracts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2006 and in order to secure best value. 
 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Stephen Booth,  
Principal Surveyor,  
� stbooth@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 52(2675) 
 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Page 313



Page 314

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Finance & Resources     
 
DATE    28 September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR   Stewart Carruth 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Supply & Delivery of Vehicles & Items of Plant – 

Permission to Procure & Award 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/10/161 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To obtain approval to: 
  

i) Conduct a tendering exercise for the Supply and Delivery of 
Vehicles and Items of Plant and to award contracts as a result of 
the tendering exercise. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 

It is recommended that the Committee approve: 
  
i) The Central Procurement Unit (CPU) conducting a competitive 

tendering exercise in line with the Council’s Standing Orders, 
Financial Regulations and EU Procurement Legislation for the 
Supply and Delivery of Vehicles and Items of Plant. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

This will be a joint tender between Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire 
Councils. 

 
The value of the tender for the supply and delivery of vehicles and 
items of plant is estimated to be in the region of £ 700,000.  All 
contracts resulting from the tendering exercise will be run over a period 
of 2 years,  

 
The costs can be met from the existing Service Capital Expenditure 
Budget. Should the Service Capital Expenditure Budget 
increase/decrease for any reason during the contractual period, the 
purchases anticipated as a result of the tendering exercise will be 
adjusted to reflect any such budget change(s). 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 10.3

Page 315



 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Fleet Services Replacement Programme 2010-2012 has been 
previously approved by Committee and the proposed vehicles and 
items of plant to be purchased from this exercise form part of this 
programme. 
 
If this tendering exercise does not progress and the vehicles and items 
of plant are not purchased to replace those earmarked on the 
programme then higher maintenance costs will be incurred. This in turn 
would have downtime implications as not all of the fleet would be 
operating to full capacity. In turn additional costs would be accrued 
through hiring vehicles and plant items whislt maintenance and repairs 
are undertaken. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council currently purchase a 
large proportion of their vehicles and items of plant requirements 
through existing Scotland Excel national contractual arrangements 
and/or existing contracts within the two Councils.  This particular 
tendering exercise is required to source vehicles and items of plant 
which do not fall under any of the existing Scotland Excel contracts or 
any existing current contracts within Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire 
Councils. 

 
There will be a joint collaborative tender between Aberdeen City 
Council and Aberdeenshire Council with both Councils implementing 
the contracts that flow from the tendering exercise. This approach 
reflects the need to purchase similar vehicles and items of plant giving 
both Councils the added benefits derived by undertaking larger scale 
contracts. 

 
The requirement will be advertised in accordance with EU Procurement 
Legislation and the Council’s Standing Orders on Procurement & 
Contracting. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

This report links to the Interim Business Plan 2010-2013 as we 
continue to strive for best value for money and to maximize efficiency in 
service delivery. 

 
 The report also accords to the Carbon Management Plan 2010-2015 as 

we strive to reduce carbon emissions when refreshing our fleet. 
 
 The Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 has set challenging targets to 

reduce carbon emissions by 42% by 2010 and 80% by 2050. The First 
Minister announced the launch of the Low Carbon Vehicle Procurement 
Support Scheme at the 2020 Climate Change Conference on 16 June 

Page 316



 

2010. This procurement exercise will see Aberdeen City Council 
complying with the recommendations of the Green Fleet Review that 
was completed by the Energy Saving trust in July 2010, namely to 
improve fuel and mileage management. 

 
This report has no direct implications in relation to Equalities & Human 
Rights Impact Assessment. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 N/A 
  
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Tracey Boylan 
Category Manager, Central Procurement Unit 
Tel. No. 01224-664104 
Email tboylan@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 317



Page 318

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Finance & Resources     
 
DATE    28 September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR   Stewart Carruth 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Roads and Quarry Material Testing Services – 

Permission to Procure & Award 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/10/162 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To obtain approval to: 
  

i) Conduct a tendering exercise for the provision of Roads and 
Quarry Materials Testing Services and to award a contract as a 
result of the tendering exercise. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 

It is recommended that the Committee approve: 
  
i) The Central Procurement Unit (CPU) conducting a competitive 

tendering exercise in line with the Council’s Standing Orders, 
Financial Regulations and EU Procurement Legislation for the 
provision of Roads and Quarry Material Testing Services. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

This will be a joint tender between Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire 
Councils. 

 
The value of the tender for Aberdeen City Council is in the region of  
£ 45,000 pa which equates to an estimated contract value of £180,000, 
spread over a 4 year contact period. 

 
The costs can be met from the existing Service Revenue Budgets. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This report has no other implications. 
 

Agenda Item 10.4

Page 319



 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

In accordance with the British Standards Institute (BSI) Quality 
Management System it is a requirement that all materials are tested 
periodically.  
 
The materials fall within 5 main categories: Aggregates; Asphalt; 
Concrete; Road Pavement Surfaces; Soils and Stablilised Soils. 
 
There will be a joint collaborative tender between Aberdeen City 
Council and Aberdeenshire Council with both Councils implementing 
the contract that flows from the tendering exercise. This approach 
reflects the services that are presently in place giving both Councils the 
added benefits derived by undertaking a larger scale contract. 

 
The requirement will be advertised in accordance with EU Procurement 
Legislation and the Council’s Standing Orders. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

This report links to the Interim Business Plan 2010-2013 as we 
continue to strive for best value for money and to maximize efficiency in 
service delivery. 

 
This report has no direct implications in relation to Equalities & Human 
Rights Impact Assessment. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 N/A. 
  
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Tracey Boylan 
Category Manager, Central Procurement Unit 
Tel. No. 01224-664104 
Email tboylan@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 320



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Finance & Resources     
 
DATE    28 September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR   Stewart Carruth 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Cash in Transit Services 2010-2013 – Award of  

Contract  
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/10/160 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Committee of the recent tender exercise for the provision of 

Cash in Transit Services for Aberdeen City Council and to seek 
approval to award the contract to the preferred bidder. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

2.1 It is recommended that the Council approve the award of the contract 
for Cash in Transit Services, for a period of 3 years, commencing on 1 
October 2010, to Loomis UK Ltd. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The total cost of the resulting contract for Aberdeen City Council will be 

£ 330,264.90 over the 3 year contract period. 
 

3.2 The current level of expenditure for the Council is £137,164.04 per 
annum. Compared to the new contract, annual savings of £27,075.40 
will be made. 

 
3.3 The costs can be met from the existing Service Revenue Budgets.  

Furthermore, the identified savings will be allocated to appropriate 
Services and these budgets will be reduced accordingly.   

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The savings will be partly accrued through a reduction in the number of 

cash uplifts from particular sites which also saves staff time in the 
processing of monies. 

 
4.2 The cash uplift rota for the pay and display machines has been re-

assessed to reduce the amount of collections where it is permissible to 
do so. In turn this also reduces the logistical costs of the provider which 
are factored back to us. 

Agenda Item 10.5

Page 321



 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The agreement with the Council’s current Cash in Transit Services 

provider expires on 30 September 2010 and a new tender exercise was 
led by the Central Procurement Unit (CPU) to cover future needs. 

 
5.2 The Council has a mandatory requirement to ensure that all monies 

being stored and banked by Services are accounted for accordingly in 
a clear and robust manner.  An onsite cash safe option slightly 
increases cash uplift charges but in turn allows for a reduced number of 
collections leading to a reduced overall uplift charge for sites with the 
safes.  The tender specification required tenderers to demonstrate safe 
option capability or similar innovations which could provide for a 
reduced overall cash handling charge combined with an improvement 
in cash storage and security. 

 
5.3 All tenderers were required to be members of the British Security 

Industry Association with BS7858, Security and Screening Vetting 
accreditation. 

 
5.4 This is a joint tender between Aberdeen City Council and 

Aberdeenshire Council with both Councils implementing the contract 
that flows from this procurement process. This approach reflects what 
is presently in place giving both Councils the added benefits derived by 
undertaking a larger scale contract. 

 
5.5 The requirement was advertised in accordance with EU Legislation and 

the Council’s Financial Regulations. Only two tender responses were 
received from interested bidders and this was expected as the 
marketplace is very limited. A comprehensive evaluation was led by the 
CPU with representatives from both Aberdeen City Council and 
Aberdeenshire Council participating.   

 
5.6 The two received bids were from Loomis UK Ltd and G4S Cash 

Solutions UK Ltd.  Both firms have branches in Aberdeen.   
 
5.7 The undernoted table shows the evaluation criteria and weightings 

used to assess the bids.  The bid received from G4S Cash Solutions 
UK Ltd did not address the requirements of the specification in full and 
was therefore non-compliant.  The offer received from Loomis UK Ltd 
returned an overall evaluation score of 84.71%. 

 

Page 322



 

 
 

Criteria 
 
Percentage 
 

Overall Price 50% 
Ability to meet service requirements stated in 
the Specification 

35% 
Minimised operational impact of 
implementation/transfer arrangements 

10% 
Evidence of quality of service from Service 
Quality & Qualification Questionnaire 

5% 
Total Percentage 100% 

 
 
6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 This report links to the Interim Business Plan 2010-2013 as we 

continue to strive for best value for money and to maximize efficiency in 
service delivery. 

 
6.2 This report has no direct implications in relation to Equalities & Human 

Rights Impact Assessment. 
 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 N/A 
  
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Tracey Boylan 
Category Manager, Central Procurement Unit 
Tel. No. 01224-664104 
Email tboylan@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 323



Page 324

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Finance & Resources     
 
DATE    28th September 2010    
 
DIRECTOR   Stewart Carruth   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Estates Management Contracts  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  CG/10/158 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report seeks the approval of the Committee to conduct tender 
exercises, participate in collaborative procurements, and undertake 
mini-competitions under pre-tendered frameworks for the provision of 
Estates Management contracts. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

 It is recommended that the Committee approve: 
 

(i) The Central Procurement Unit (CPU) in conjunction with 
colleagues from Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure conducting 
competitive tendering exercises in line with Council Standing Orders, 
Financial Regulations and EU Procurement Legislation. Wherever 
possible taking part in procurements on a collaborative basis for the 
provision of Estates Management services using both framework 
contracts and direct contracts as required.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The annual budget figure for the Council’s current provision of these 
Estates Management requirements is £2.805 million per annum 
currently (for a full breakdown please see table 1 in Section 5 
Background/Main Issues).  Market research indications are that the 
provision of these requirements will be met in full within the current 
budget allocation. Joint tendering with other North East public bodies 
and the harmonisation of specifications with other Councils will 
potentially achieve savings if critical economies of scale can be 
achieved on relevant contracts. The duration of the majority of 
subsequent contracts will be for a minimum of 3 years with the Council 
and other public bodies having the option to extend for at least a further 
12 months.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 10.6

Page 325



4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no EHRIA implications, as any Service delivery to 
accompany the goods will be delivered as it has previously. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
The details of the current contracts and annual spends follow in Table 
1. See below. 
 
In some cases the Council currently have three current contracts (due 
to previous Neighbourhood Service Delivery) and the proposals are to 
merge these into one city wide contract.   
 
 

TABLE 1 
 
 

CONTRACT 
NO WORK TYPE AREA 

CURRENT 
CONTRACT 
START DATE 

CURRENT 
CONTRACT END 

DATE 
ESTIMATED 
ANNUAL 

EXPENDITURE 
            

6166 Roof Repairs North 01 October 2006 30 September 2011 
 £       650,000  6600 Roof Repairs Central 01 April 2007 31 March 2011 

6329 Roof Repairs South 01 April 2006 31 March 2011 
            

6562 Glazing Repairs North 01 January 2007 31 December 2010 
 £       400,000  6247 Glazing Repairs Central 01 January 2006 31 December 2010 

6164 Glazing Repairs South 01 July 2006 30 June 2011 
            

6326 Refrigeration Plant Maintenance North 01 April 2006 31 March 2011 
 £         60,000  6167 Refrigeration Plant Maintenance Central 01 October 2006 30 September 2011 

6601 Refrigeration Plant Maintenance South 01 April 2007 31 March 2011 
            

6327 Lift Plant Maintenance North 01 April 2006 31 March 2011 
 £       100,000  6814 Lift Plant Maintenance Central 01 December 2008 30 November 2011 

6602 Lift Plant Maintenance South 01 April 2007 31 March 2011 
            

6168 Legionella Prevention North 01 July 2006 30 June 2011 
 £       130,000  6563 Legionella Prevention Central 01 January 2007 30 June 2011 

6629 Legionella Prevention South 01 July 2007 30 June 2011 
            

6444 Fire Fighting Equipment North 01 July 2006 30 June 2011 
 £         45,000  6564 Fire Fighting Equipment Central 01 January 2007 31 March 2011 

6248 Fire Fighting Equipment South 01 April 2006 31 March 2011 
            

6249 Emergency Lighting/Fire Alarms North 01 April 2006 31 March 2011 
 £       175,000  6442 Emergency Lighting/Fire Alarms Central 01 Sept 2007 30 June 2011 

6565 Emergency Lighting/Fire Alarms South 01 January 2007 31 March 2011 
            

6169 Boiler Plant/Automatic Controls North 01 October 2006 30 September 2011 
 £       850,000  6603 Boiler Plant/Automatic Controls Central 01 April 2007 31 March 2011 

6328 Boiler Plant/Automatic Controls South 01 April 2006 31 March 2011 

Page 326



TABLE 1 
 
 

CONTRACT 
NO WORK TYPE AREA 

CURRENT 
CONTRACT 
START DATE 

CURRENT 
CONTRACT END 

DATE 
ESTIMATED 
ANNUAL 

EXPENDITURE 
            

6642 Cremator Maintenance South 11 July 2007 30 June 2010  £         80,000  
            

6250 Public Clocks Central 01 January 2006 31 December 2010  £           5,000  
            

6605 Patient Handling Equipment City 
Wide 01 July 2007 30 June 2012  £         10,000  

            
6246 Portable Appliance Testing North 01 April 2006 31 March 2011 

 £       100,000  6441 Portable Appliance Testing Central 01 July 2006 30 June 2011 
6566 Portable Appliance Testing South 01 January 2007 31 March 2011 
            

6604 Fixed Appliance Testing North 01 April 2007 31 December 2010 
 £       100,000  6630 Fixed Appliance Testing Central 01 July 2007 31 December 2010 

6567 Fixed Appliance Testing South 01 January 2007 31 December 2010 
            

6574 Asbestos Removal City 
Wide 01 January 2007 31 December 2010  £       100,000  

 
Initial work has been undertaken on identifying spend levels, current 
contractual arrangements and collaborative opportunities with other 
public sector partners in the Chief Executives Forum (Procurement 
Sub-Group). It is, therefore, intended to tackle the following Estates 
Management procurements collaboratively: 
 
1. Refrigeration Plant Maintenance & Repair 
2. Lift Plant Maintenance & Repair 
3. Legionella Preventative Maintenance 
4. Fire Fighting Equipment Maintenance & Repair 
5. Emergency Lighting/Fire Alarms Maintenance & Repair 
6. Boiler Plant/Automatic Controls Maintenance & Repair 
7. Portable Appliance Testing 
8. Fixed Appliance Testing 

 
The following contracts will thereafter require to be tendered through 
national approved contractors list called Constructionline: 
 
1. Roof Repairs 
2. Glazing Repairs 
3. Cremator Maintenance 
4. Public Clocks Maintenance & Repair 
5. Patient Handling Equipment Maintenance & Repair 
6. Asbestos Removal 

 
It is intended to utilise both direct contracts and framework contracts to 
allow the maximum flexibility for the Council in procuring from a number 

Page 327



of suppliers; allowing access to a choice of suppliers (to ensure the 
continuity of service provision), whilst also allowing economies of scale 
to be generated to gain improved pricing.  
 

6. IMPACT 
 

This service is required to ensure the continued maintenance of the 
Council’s estate and they support best value and continuity of Council 
systems and services. 
 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

There are no applicable background papers. 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Craig Innes 
Head of Procurement 
cinnes@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 665650 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 328



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Finance & Resources     
 
DATE      28th September 2010 
 
DIRECTOR     Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT   North Territory Hub Programme 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       EPI/10/227 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Members 
following on from a report presented Elected Members of the Budget 
Monitoring Board of 10th September 2009 (Article 4 refers) on the 
North Territory hub programme. 
 
This report seeks to update Members on the procurement process to 
select a private sector development partner to join with the North 
Territory participants and the Scottish Futures Trust (SFT) to improve 
efficiency and provide better value for money in delivering community 
infrastructure projects in the North Territory. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 

(a) That Elected Members note the satisfactory progression of the 
North Territory procurement process to identify a Private Sector 
Development Partner; and, 

 
(b) Agree that the outcome of the North Territory procurement 

process be reported to Elected Members of the Enterprise, 
Planning & Infrastructure Committee on 9th November 2010 to 
decide on the level of participation the Council wishes to take in 
the hub. 

  
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
Other than through the development of new projects under the hub 
initiative, no new financial implications are identified for Aberdeen City 
Council at present. Management of the procurement process and 
taking forward initial schemes in the procurement stage has been met 
from within the resources allocated to the hub North Territory 
Programme Board. The costs for working capital and shareholder 
equity at the formation of the hubco will also be met from budget  
allocated to the North Territory hub Programme Board.  
 

Agenda Item 10.7

Page 329



 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None at this stage. 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
Introduction 
 

5.1 The ‘hub’ programme is being developed by the Scottish Futures 
Trust (SFT) on behalf of the Scottish Government, as a means of 
improving the planning, procurement and delivery of infrastructure in 
support of community services.  The commercial/contractual structure 
of hub will be broadly similar to NHS LIFT in England (albeit 
developed to better align with Scottish circumstances and developing 
best practice in the field of public sector procurement).  

 
5.2 hub is a procurement vehicle supporting a long term programme of 

investment in community infrastructure for local authorities, NHS 
Boards and other public sector bodies across Scotland. It will provide 
a mechanism for supporting the efficient services through delivering 
assets more effectively through a single partner, with continuous 
improvement leading to better value for money. The opportunity for a 
private sector delivery partner is to be part of a systematic approach 
to infrastructure planning and delivery in the North Territory over an 
extended time period. 

 
5.3 Public sector organisations across the North hub territory will work in 

partnership with each other and a private sector delivery partner in a 
joint venture delivery company called ‘hubco’.  ‘hubco’ will take a 
strategic, long-term planning approach to the procurement of 
infrastructure to support the delivery of community services. It is 
envisaged that ‘‘hubco’’ will provide a mechanism for delivering and 
managing assets more effectively with continuous improvement 
leading to better value for money.  

 
5.4 Continuous improvement (relating to, for example, improved project 

delivery times year on year) will be measured through detailed key 
performance indicators, with which the ‘hubco’, including the selected 
private sector development partner, is obliged to comply. 

 
5.5 While projects will mostly be new buildings (ranging from, for example, 

GP practices to large combined community, health and sports 
centres), ‘hubco’ projects can also include refurbishment and asset 
management services of existing infrastructure dependent upon the 
needs and requirements of individual ‘hubco’ participants. 

 
North Territory Hub 

 
5.6 The SFT is co-ordinating the roll-out of hub across five designated 

territories in Scotland:  North, South East, South West, West and East 

Page 330



 

Central.   Each Territory has a population of about 1 million people 
and each is co-terminous with constituent NHS Board and Local 
Authority boundaries.  Appendix 1 to this report provides a graphical 
representation of each of the respective Territory areas and of the 
respective public sector participants. 

 
5.7 The logic of having such large Territories is that there is likely to be a 

significant and sustained pipeline of projects required in each. The 
size of the Territories means that there are a significant number of 
public bodies in each and hence the hub structure has been 
developed so that bodies can participate at different levels. 

 
5.8 The North Territory is one of two pathfinder areas in Scotland 

announced by the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Sustainable 
Growth, John Swinney MSP, the other being South East.  The North 
Territory pathfinder expects to bring forward infrastructure projects 
worth approximately £445 million in the North Territory over the next 
ten years to support the delivery of community services such as 
health, education and social care. 

 
5.9 The North Territory comprises eighteen public sector bodies including 

five NHS Boards (Grampian, Highland, Orkney, Shetland, and 
Western Isles), eight Local Authorities (Aberdeen City, Aberdeenshire, 
Argyll and Bute, Eilean Siar, Highland, Moray, Orkney and Shetland 
Islands Councils) two regional Police forces (Grampian Police and 
Northern Constabulary, two regional Fire and Rescue services 
(Grampian Fire and Rescue Service and Highlands & Islands Fire and 
Rescue Service) and the Scottish Ambulance Service.   

 
5.10 By virtue of the decision of Elected Members of the Budget Monitoring 

Board (10th September 2009, Article 4 refers) Aberdeen City Council 
has signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) to act as a 
participant in the North Territory hub Programme.  The Council is 
represented on the Territory Programme Board by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure acting as the Council’s Senior 
Responsible Officer (SRO).   

 
5.11 This commitment to the North Territory hub MoU was made on the 

understanding that this involved no financial commitment by the 
Council at the time.  While this remains the case, the Council will be 
asked to decide on the level of participation in the hubco it wishes to 
take.  The anticipated costs for public sector organisations to become 
participant shareholders in hubco will be met from budget allocated to 
the North Territory hub Programme Board and not from individual 
participants. 

 
5.12 The Council, and other North Territory Participants, will have the 

option to access the services with ‘hubco’ for the 
development/procurement/construction of identified projects through 
the Territory Partnering Agreement.  In addition the Council can 

Page 331



 

decide to subscribe and become a ‘hubco’ shareholder by making a 
capital investment into the ‘hubco’ for which it is anticipated that a 
competitive investment return will be received. 

 
5.13 Should this option not be chosen, the Council would not benefit from 

any investment returns that may accrue and neither would it have any 
direct input into the direction and operation of the hubco partnership. 
The anticipated costs for public sector organisations to become 
participant shareholders in hubco will be met from budget allocated to 
the North Territory hub Programme Board and not from individual 
participants. 

 
5.14 A final recommendation about whether the Council should become a 

Participant shareholder in ‘hubco’, based upon the outcome of the 
North Territory procurement exercise, will be presented to Elected 
Members of the Council’s Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure 
Committee on 9th November 2010 for decision. 

 
Procurement & Selection of Private Sector Development Partner 

 
5.15 The North Territory Participants, through the Programme Board, are 

currently engaged in an Official Journal of the European Union 
(OJEU) competitive dialogue procurement process.  The aim of the 
procurement exercise is to identity a Private Sector Development 
Partner with whom to partner for an initial period of 20 years with an 
option to extend for a further 5 years where agreed between ‘hubco’ 
and one or more of the Territory Participants. 

 
5.16 The procurement process seeks to identify a private sector 

development partner who can bring the best combination of project 
development, supply chain management and funding capabilities for 
new facilities and the experience to provide management of the 
ongoing maintenance of operational buildings if this is required. 
Demonstration of these skills with a strong partnering ethos is being 
sought. 

 
5.17 For the selected private sector development partner, the hub 

programme within the North Territory will provide an attractive 
investment opportunity. The selected Private Sector Development 
Partner will have the opportunity to form a long term relationship with 
key local organisations in the North of Scotland tasked with public 
service delivery to communities – such as local authorities, health 
boards, the fire, ambulance and police services.  

 

5.18 By working closely with the public sector partners, ‘hubco’ will be 
expected to deliver improvements in the way that projects are 
developed and delivered and the supply chain is managed, including 
better design, lower construction and maintenance costs and the 
increased speed of delivery of new community infrastructure facilities.  

 

Page 332



 

5.19 These improvements will be monitored through the value for money 
demonstration process for new projects and by measuring 
performance against contractually binding Key Performance 
Indicators and continuous improvement targets.   

 
5.20 This continuous improvement is achievable due to the long term 

nature of the relationship and by all parties working in partnership – 
the public sector organisations, hubco itself and hub Co’s supply 
chain. The hubco is expected to drive this process and provide a key 
link between a series of projects which may each involve different 
public sector clients. 

 

5.21 Three bidders have been selected through a pre-qualification stage 
and have now completed the competitive dialogue stage in the 
process. The three bidders were invited to submit their final tenders 
on 30th July 2010 and these are due to be returned on 10th September 
2010.   

 
5.22 The three bidders are: 
 

5.22.1 Alba Community Partnerships - Cyrill Sweett Investments 
Limited and Miller Corporate Holdings Limited; 

 
5.22.2 Space - Galliford Try & Fulcrum Infrastructure Management Ltd 

& Davis Langdon LLP; and, 
 

5.22.3 Amber Blue - Amber Infrastructure Limited & International 
Public Partnerships Limited, Robertson Capital Projects Ltd 
and Forth Holdings Ltd & FES Ltd. 

 
5.23 A preferred bidder will be identified by the North Territory hub 

Programme Board on 29th October 2010 and approvals from the 
participant organisations, including Aberdeen City Council, will then 
be sought to reach the programmed Financial Close by 13th 
December 2010.   

 
North Territory Project Pipeline 

 
5.24 For the first 10 years of any partnership with hubco, hubco will have 

an exclusive right to develop proposals for (and, subject to meeting 
certain criteria, deliver through its supply chain) certain projects.  This 
exclusivity applies differently to participant groups as detailed below 
and can removed if defined performance criteria are not met by 
hubco. 

  
5.24.1 NHS projects: all front-runner projects specifically named at 

the point the partnering agreement is signed; all 
primary/community health facilities with a capital value 
exceeding £750,000; and any other projects specifically 
allocated to hubco;  

Page 333



 

 
5.24.2 Local Authority, Police and Fire Authority projects: all front-

runner projects specifically named and accepted at the point 
the territory partnering agreement is signed; any other projects 
specifically allocated and accepted by hubco;  

 
5.24.3 Joint NHS/Authority projects: all projects with a capital value 

exceeding £750,000 involving primary/community health 
facilities where the NHS is lead procurer; and any other 
projects specifically allocated to hubco.  

 
5.25 The Participants in the North hub Territory have submitted individual 

projects which have been used to form a proposed project pipeline 
which hubco may then deliver through one of the following options.  It 
should be noted that the pipeline has been presented as an indication 
of the number, scale and type of projects which hubco must be 
capable of delivering, and does not represent any commitment 
against these schemes.  It is clearly understood by all bidders that the 
public sector participants in the North Territory hub programme are 
currently reviewing priorities which will influence future investment 
programmes. 

 
5.25.1 Design and Build contract (or build only for projects which 

have already reached design development) under a capital 
cost option; or 

 
5.25.2 Design, Build, Finance and Maintain under a revenue cost 

option (the structure has flexibility to adapt to situations where 
the land is to be transferred to or otherwise owned by hubco, 
as well as the more "standard" position of land retained by the 
public sector). 

 
5.26 If the hubco fails to satisfy the public sector partners’ identified and 

prescribed requirements, then the right is reserved for the Participants 
to procure through other means. This exclusivity arrangement will be 
withdrawn if hubco performance is poor based on agreed targets for 
performance and continuous improvement.  

 
5.27 A capital enabling fund of £30m has been made available to support 

the hub programme on a national basis. This fund is for use by 
Participants across Scotland for project development such as site 
acquisition and demolition works.  

 
5.28 Revenue funding of £1.4m is also available specifically to assist the 

North Territory hub Programme with set up and ongoing running costs 
associated with hub over the first five years of operation. 

 
5.29 The project pipeline for the North Territory hub Programme includes 

four front runner projects which have been identified as opportunities 

Page 334



 

for the hubco to develop and deliver these early in the Delivery Plan. 
The front runner projects are as follows:- 

 
− Woodside Medical Group    (NHS Grampian); 
− Aberdeen Health Village    (NHS Grampian);  
− Tain Replacement Health Centre   (NHS Highland); and, 
− Ardseileach Core and Cluster Resettlement (CN Eilean Siar) 
 

5.30 Capital enabling funds of £6.5M were approved for the North Territory 
hub Programme at the meeting of the hub National Programme Board 
on 21st January 2010.  

 
Hubco corporate structure 
 

5.31 The hub structure will encompass both private project finance and 
traditionally publicly funded developments. The equity and working 
capital of hubco will be split among the private sector development 
partner, the North Territory Participants and the Scottish Futures Trust 
(60%, 30% and 10% respectively).  

 
5.32 A Shareholders Agreement will be signed by the private sector 

development partner, the North Territory Participants and the Scottish 
Futures Trust which regulates the respective rights and 
responsibilities of each party and sets out the matters in relation to 
which hubco must first obtain the consent of each category of 
shareholder.  

 
5.33 A hub Territory Partnering Agreement among the Participants and 

hubco will set out the rights and obligations of the parties, including 
the provision of partnering services by hubco to the Participants and 
the exclusivity provisions granted by some of the Participants to 
hubco. 

 
5.34 Details of the proposed Shareholders Agreement, the associated 

Territory Partnering Agreement and details arising from the North 
Territory OJEU procurement process will be reported to Members of 
the Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure committee in the next 
committee cycle as the North Territory hub initiative gains Participant 
approvals in November 2010. 

 
Conclusion 

 
5.35 The North Territory hub programme offers a significant opportunity for 

delivery of high quality cost effective public services through a long 
term partnership approach with a Private Sector Development Partner 
in conjunction with other public sector partners in the North of 
Scotland.   

 
5.36 By working closely with an identified Private Sector Development 

Partner, hubco will be expected to deliver improvements in the way 

Page 335



 

that projects are developed and delivered and the supply chain is 
managed, including better design, lower construction and 
maintenance costs and the increased speed of delivery of new 
facilities. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - The North Territory hub programme is a procurement 
model to assist the City Council and its partners across the North of 
Scotland in the effective delivery of joint services through community 
assets in conjunction with a Private Sector Development Partner.  By 
focusing on joint delivery, hub is expected to act as a driver for the 
development of joint planning and joint asset management throughout 
the public sector.   
 
In this regard the hub operating model is closely aligned with the 
Scottish Government’s Shared Services agenda and the conclusions 
within its recently published review of Public Services in addition to 
the Council’s ongoing efforts to develop a 5 year costed business 
plan. 

 
Public - The hub programme is being developed by the Scottish 
Futures Trust, on behalf of the Scottish Government, as a means of 
improving the planning, procurement and delivery of infrastructure in 
support of community services, such as health, education and social 
care.  This is of direct interest to the public as the North Territory hub 
initiative aims to assist public agencies to work together with their 
respective communities to plan and deliver better services which 
make a real difference to people’s lives at best value. 
 
The hubco will be required to operate an equalities and diversity 
policy to ensure that it will not unlawfully discriminate either directly or 
indirectly on such grounds as race, colour, ethnic or national origin, 
disability, sex or sexual orientation, religion or belief, or age or 
otherwise unlawfully discriminate within the meaning and scope of 
The Equalities Act 2010 or other relevant or equivalent legislation, or 
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof. 
 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Alun Williams 
Team Leader (Strategic Programmes) 

 01224 52(3932) 
 awilliams@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 

Page 336



 

 

 

West Territory 
North Territory 

 

East Central Territory 

 
 

South West Territory South East Territory 

APPENDIX 1 – hub Territories 

 

P
age 337



Page 338

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.1

Page 339

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 340

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.2

Page 341

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 344

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.3

Page 345

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 4 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 350

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.4

Page 351

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 356

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 357

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 364

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.5

Page 365

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8, 10 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 368

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.6

Page 369

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 376

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.7

Page 377

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 382

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.2

Page 383

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 390

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.3

Page 391

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 398

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 399

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 400

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.4

Page 401

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 404

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 405

E
xem

pt inform
ation as described in paragraph(s) 2 of S

chedule 7A
of the Local G

overnm
ent (S

cotland) A
ct 1973.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 406

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.5

Page 407

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 414

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 415

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 416

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.6

Page 417

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 420

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 421

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 422

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.7

Page 423

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 426

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 427

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 430

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.8

Page 431

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 440

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 441

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 442

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 443

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 444

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 445

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 446

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.9

Page 447

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 2 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 452

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 453

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 2 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 456

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.10

Page 457

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 464

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 465

E
xem

pt inform
ation as described in paragraph(s) 9 of S

chedule 7A
of the Local G

overnm
ent (S

cotland) A
ct 1973.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 466

T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 467

E
xem

pt inform
ation as described in paragraph(s) 9 of S

chedule 7A
of the Local G

overnm
ent (S

cotland) A
ct 1973.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 468

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.11

Page 469

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 474

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 475

E
xem

pt inform
ation as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of S

chedule 7A
of the Local G

overnm
ent (S

cotland) A
ct 1973.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 478

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.12

Page 479

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 500

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 501

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 502

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 17 June, 2010 - for approval
	3.2 Minute of Meeting of the Lord Provost Sub Committee of 29 April - for noting
	3.3 Committee Business Statement
	3.4 Motions List
	5.1 Request for Delegated Powers and Use of Work Notices - referred by the Housing and Environment Committee of 24 August, 2010
	Request for Delegated Powers and Use of Work Notices

	5.2 Furnishings Service Charge - referred by the Housing and Environment Committee of 24 August, 2010
	Furnishings Service Charge

	5.3 HMO Licence Application Fees - referred by the Housing and Environment Committee of 24 August, 2010
	HMO Licence Application Fees

	5.4 Waste Management Services Contract Progress Report - referred by the Housing and Environment Committee of 24 August, 2010
	Waste Management Services Contract Progress Report

	5.5 Resourcing a High Quality Planning System - referred by the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee of 7 September, 2010
	6.1 Corporate Governance Performance Report
	6.2 2010/11 Financial Monitoring - Corporate Governance Service
	7.1 Revenue Budget 2010/11 Monitoring
	7.2 Unrecoverable Income
	Unrecoverable Income - Appendices

	7.3 2010/11 Common Good Budget - Monitoring Report Update
	7.4 2010/11 Common Good Budget - Request by Scottish Opera for Support
	7.5 Admitted Bodies within the Aberdeen City Council Pension Fund with links to Aberdeen City Council
	7.6 Review of General Service Capital Programme 2010/11
	7.7 Tax Increment Financing for the City Garden Project
	7.8 Proposed Fee Structure - Landlords Consents etc.
	7.9 Youth Activities Small Grants Fund 2010/11- Applications for Round 2 Funding
	Appendix

	8.1 Conference Invitation - Society of Personnel Directors
	9.1 Access from the North Proposals (Third Don Crossing), Compulsory Purchase Order
	Appendix B

	9.2 Property Asset Management Plan Update 2010
	PAMP Update - document
	PAMP Update - Appendices

	10.1 Legal Services Contract Arrangements
	10.2 Property Services - Contract Extension and Retender
	10.3 Supply and Delivery of Vehicles and Items of Plant - Permission to Procure and Award
	10.4 Roads and Quarry Materials Testing Services - Permission to Procure and Award
	10.5 Cash in Transit Services - Award of Contract
	10.6 Estates Management Contracts
	10.7 North Territory Hub Programme
	11.1 Unrecoverable Income - Appendix
	11.2 Admitted Bodies within the Aberdeen City Council Pension Fund with links to Aberdeen City Council - Appendix
	11.3 ABES Loans - Monitoring Report
	11.4 Trading Services Monitoring 2009/10
	Appendix

	11.5 Customer First Programme - Capital Spend
	11.6 Transition Extreme - Restructuring of Bank Guarantees
	11.7 AECC Expansion Project for Offshore Europe 2011
	12.2 Corporate Asset Management System - progress report
	12.3 Retail Rocks
	Appendix

	12.4 Hayfield Riding Centre
	Plan

	12.5 Westside of Carnie
	Plan

	12.6 Rowan Road/Rosehill Drive
	Plan

	12.7 Proposed Sales - St Peters Nursery and former Public Toilets
	Appendices

	12.8 Bobby Calder Park and Lochinch Farm
	Appendix 1
	Bobby Calder Park - Plan
	Loirston Landholdings

	12.9 Staff Houses
	Appendix

	12.10 Land at Pitmedden Road, Dyce
	Appendix
	Plan

	12.11 Summerhill - Sale and Relocation of Services
	Appendix

	12.12 Pinewood/Hazledene
	Plan


